AR-328



780 N. Commercial Street P.O. Box 330 Manchester, NH 03105-0330

Robert A. Bersak Chief Regulatory Counsel

603-634-3355 robert.bersak@eversource.com

October 12, 2017

Ms. Debra A. Howland Executive Director New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission 21 S. Fruit Street, Suite 10 Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Re: Docket No. DE 17-124

Sale of Generation Facilities

Dear Director Howland:

On June 10, 2015, Public Service Company of New Hampshire d/b/a Eversource Energy, along with approximately a dozen other settling parties, signed the "2015 Public Service Company of New Hampshire Restructuring and Rate Stabilization Agreement" (the "Settlement Agreement"). That Settlement Agreement, reached after five months of collaborative effort, was intended to complete the State's efforts to restructure the electric utility industry that began with the enactment of House Bill 1392, "AN ACT restructuring the electric utility industry in New Hampshire and establishing a legislative oversight committee" in 1996.

The Settlement Agreement, approved by the Commission in Order No. 25,920, called for Eversource to expeditiously pursue the divestiture of its generating plants. The goals of the asset were to maximize the net Total Transaction Value ("TTV"). which reflects all of the cash and non-cash elements of the transaction(s), realized from the sale(s) in order to minimize Stranded Costs, to provide a market-based determination of Stranded Costs, and to establish a competitive energy market, while at the same time providing certain employee and host community protections.

Eversource is pleased to announce that the divestiture auction process has successfully concluded with contracts for the sale of all its generating assets. As discussed in detail in the attached Application, on October 11, 2017, Eversource signed two Purchase and Sales Agreements – one with Granite Shore Power LLC for the purchase of the Merrimack, Newington, Schiller, White Lake, and Lost Nation thermal generating stations, and the second with HSE Hydro NH AC, LLC for the purchase of Eversource's hydro generating assets. The overall total sale price for the portfolio is \$258.3 million.

Eversource respectfully requests approval of these two contracts per the procedural schedule adopted for this proceeding to preserve the value of these contracts and the overall benefits for customers set forth in the Settlement Agreement.

Contemporaneous with this filing, the Commission's auction advisor, J. P. Morgan Securities LLC filed testimony and its "Report of the Auction Advisor" supporting the auction process and recommending approval of the two sales contracts.

Eversource's accompanying Application is the culmination of several years of work that began with the signing of the Settlement Agreement. J. P. Morgan, members of the Commission's Staff, and countless Eversource employees joined together to ensure that the auction process ran smoothly, fairly, and successfully, while protecting the interests of Eversource's dedicated generation employees, the municipalities that host the generating stations, and the more than 500,000 homes and business that Eversource serves throughout New Hampshire.

Sincerely,

Robert A. Bersak

Chief Regulatory Counsel

cc: Service List

CHRISTOPHER G ASLIN
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE - CIVIL BUREAU
NH

christopher.aslin@doj.nh.gov

JARED CHICOINE

OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

jared.chicoine@nh.gov

CHRISTOPHER GOULDING EVERSOURCE ENERGY

PO BOX 330

MANCHESTER NH 03105

53 EXCHANGE ST STE 200

christopher.goulding@eversource.com

CONSERVATION LAW FOUNDATION

ROBERT BERSAK

EVERSOURCE ENERGY 780 N COMMERCIAL ST

PO BOX 330

MANCHESTER NH 03105-0330 robert.bersak@eversource.com

ERIC CHUNG

NORTHEAST UTILITIES SERVICE COMPANY

ONE NSTAR WAY WESTWOOD MA 02090 eric.chung@eversource.com

PORTLAND ME 04101 egreen@clf.org

EMILY K GREEN

CHRISTOPHER L BOLDT

DONAHUE TUCKER & CIANDELLA PLLC

111 MAPLEWOOD AVE STE D PORTSMOUTH NH 03801-3749

cboldt@dtclawyers.com

KRISTI L DAVIE

EVERSOURCE ENERGY

PO BOX 330

MANCHESTER NH 03105 kristi.davie@eversource.com DORENE HARTFORD

CONSERVATION LAW FOUNDATION

27 NORTH MAIN ST CONCORD NH 03301 dhartford@clf.org

JIM BRENNAN

OFFICE OF CONSUMER ADVOCATE

21 SOUTH FRUIT ST

SUITE 18

CONCORD NH 03301-2429 james.brennan@oca.nh.gov

JOSEPH DOIRON

OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

joseph.doiron@nh.gov

THOMAS F IRWIN

CONSERVATION LAW FOUNDATION

27 NORTH MAIN ST CONCORD NH 03301-4930

tirwin@clf.org

BRIAN BUCKLEY

OFFICE OF CONSUMER ADVOCATE

21 SOUTH FRUIT ST STE 18 CONCORD NH 03301

brian.buckley@oca.nh.gov

ZACHARY M FABISH

SIERRA CLUB 50 F ST NW 5TH FLR

WASHINGTON DC 20001 zachary.fabish@sierraclub.org

D MAURICE KREIS

OFFICE OF CONSUMER ADVOCATE

21 SOUTH FRUIT ST STE 18

CONCORD NH 03301 donald.kreis@oca.nh.gov

PRADIP K CHATTOPADHYAY
OFFICE OF CONSUMER ADVOCATE

21 S FRUIT ST STE 18 CONCORD NH 03301

pradip.chattopadhyay@oca.nh.gov

MATTHEW FOSSUM

EVERSOURCE ENERGY 780 NO COMMERCIAL ST MANCHESTER NH 03101

matthew.fossum@eversource.com

LAURA MAYNARD

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE - CIVIL BUREAU

laura.maynard@doj.nh.gov

Docket #: 17-124-1 Printed: October 12, 2017

FILING INSTRUCTIONS:

a) Pursuant to N.H. Admin Rule Puc 203.02 (a), with the exception of Discovery, file 7 copies, as well as an

electronic copy, of all documents including cover letter with:

DEBRA A HOWLAND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

NHPUC

21 S. FRUIT ST, SUITE 10 CONCORD NH 03301-2429

b) Serve an electronic copy with each person identified on the Commission's service list and with the Office of Consumer Advocate.

c) Serve a written copy on each person on the service list not able to receive electronic mail.

WALTER MITCHELL
MITCHELL MUNICIPAL GROUP PA
walter@mitchellmunigroup.com

BRIAN MURPHY
NEXERA ENERGY RESOURCES LLC
700 UNIVERSE BLVD
JUNO BEACH FL 33408
brian.j.murphy@nee.com

OCA LITIGATION
OCA LITIGATION
21 SOUTH FRUIT ST STE 18
CONCORD NH 03301
ocalitigation@oca.nh.gov

SHAWN M TANGUAY GARDNER FULTON & WAUGH 78 BANK ST LEBANON NH 03766 stanguay@townandcitylaw.com

CHRISTINE L VAUGHAN EVERSOURCE ENERGY 247 STATION DRIVE WESTWOOD MA 02090 christine.vaughan@eversource.com

JUDITH E WHITELAW MITCHELL MUNICIPAL GROUP PA 25 BEACON ST EAST LACONIA NH 03246 jae@mitchellmunigroup.com

Docket #: 17-124-1 Printed: October 12, 2017

PURSUANT TO N.H. ADMIN RULE PUC 203.09 (d), FILE DISCOVERY

DIRECTLY WITH THE FOLLOWING STAFF

RATHER THAN WITH THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

DISCOVERY NHPUC

21 S. FRUIT ST, SUITE 10 CONCORD NH 03301-2429

RICHARD CHAGNON NHPUC 21 S. FRUIT ST, SUITE 10 CONCORD NH 03301-2429

THOMAS FRANTZ NHPUC 21 S. FRUIT ST, SUITE 10 CONCORD NH 03301-2429

F ANNE ROSS NHPUC 21 S. FRUIT ST, SUITE 10 CONCORD NH 03301-2429

ALEXANDER SPEIDEL NHPUC 21 S. FRUIT ST, SUITE 10 CONCORD NH 03301-2429

LESZEK STACHOW NHPUC 21 S. FRUIT ST, SUITE 10 CONCORD NH 03301-2429

BULK MATERIALS:

Upon request, Staff may waive receipt of some of its multiple copies of bulk materials filed as data responses. Staff cannot waive other parties' right to receive bulk materials.

Docket #: 17-124-1 Printed: October 12, 2017

AMANDA NOONAN NHPUC 21 S. FRUIT ST, SUITE 10 CONCORD NH 03301-2429

Docket #: 17-124-1 Printed: October 12, 2017

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Docket No. DE 17-124

Public Service Company of New Hampshire d/b/a Eversource Energy

Sale of Generating Facilities

APPLICATION OF PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE d/b/a EVERSOURCE ENERGY FOR APPROVAL OF THE SALE OF ITS GENERATION ASSETS

Pursuant to RSA 374:30, RSA 369-B:3-a, and the 2015 Public Service Company of New Hampshire Restructuring and Rate Stabilization Agreement approved by the Commission in Order No. 25,920, Public Service Company of New Hampshire d/b/a Eversource Energy ("PSNH" or the "Company") respectfully requests that the Commission approve the sale of its generation assets.

I. Statement of the Application

PSNH applies to the Commission for approval of the sale of its generation assets.

Divestiture of these generation assets implements public policies set forth in RSA Chapters 369-B and 374-F. The sale was also agreed to by the signatories to the "2015 Public Service Company of New Hampshire Restructuring and Rate Stabilization Agreement," filed with the Commission on June 10, 2015 (the "2015 Settlement Agreement,") as subsequently amended by the January 26, 2016 "Amendment to Settlement" and the January 26, 2016 "Partial Litigation Settlement." These

agreements (collectively, the "2015 Settlements") were approved by the Commission in Order No. 25,920 dated July 1, 2016.

In this Application, PSNH seeks the Commission's approval of two Purchase and Sale Agreement(s) ("PSA") under RSA 369-B:3-a, including specific rulings that the sale meets the requirements of New Hampshire law set forth in RSA 374:30. Per RSA Chapter 369-B, PSNH requests that the Commission expeditiously act on and approve this Application.

The PSAs comply with the terms of the 2015 Settlements, including, *inter alia*, the employee protection provisions governed by RSA 369-B:3-b. Due to delays in the auction process, the Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA") between the Union (IBEW Local 1837) and PSNH in place when the 2015 Settlement Agreement was signed expired on May 31, 2017, and was replaced by a new CBA. Certain provisions in the terms agreed to and contained in the 2015 Settlement Agreement between the Union and PSNH became ambiguous and uncertain as a result of the CBA expiration due to the requirement in RSA 369-B:3-b for the provision of employee protections "no less than those set forth in the then-current collective bargaining agreement." A clarifying Memorandum of Agreement between the Union and PSNH dated September 7, 2017 (the "2017 MOA") relating to these issues is included with this Application and presented for the Commission's review and approval. (Attachment 4).

In addition, to maximize the Total Transaction Value (as defined in the 2015 Settlement Agreement) from the divestiture process, PSNH, Commission Staff, and the Commission's auction agent, J. P. Morgan, have carefully balanced the responsibility for potential environmental liabilities by retaining certain liabilities and gaining an increased sale price, while mitigating that risk by obtaining insurance to protect customers in the event future liabilities may arise. PSNH seeks the Commission's approval of that expenditure as a stranded cost to be

recovered as part of the securitization process consistent with the 2015 Settlement's goal of maximizing the Total Transaction Value.

Section II of this Application and the supporting testimony describe facts relevant to the Commission's review of this Application. Section III sets forth the statutory criteria for approval of this transaction and reasons why the Agreement meets these criteria. Section IV is the concluding request for rulings and for approval of the sale.

II. Factual Background

A. Sales Process

In RSA 369-B:3-a (2015), the Legislature found that divestiture of PSNH's generation plants and securitization of any resulting stranded costs pursuant to RSA 369-B:3, IV(c) is in the public interest, subject to the Commission finding that it is in the economic interest of retail customers of PSNH. In Order No. 25,920 approving the 2015 Settlement Agreement, the Commission included approval of the "2016 Litigation Settlement" (Hearing Exhibit C in Docket No. DE 14-238). The 2016 Litigation Settlement included as paragraph 11 the stipulation that "The Settling Parties and Staff agree that in light of the economic benefits reasonably expected from divestiture, the prompt divestiture of PSNH's generation assets is in the economic interest of retail customers of PSNH." The Commission specifically stated that "the 2015 Settlement Agreement and 2016 Litigation Settlement serve the public interest as defined by the Legislature in SB 221, Chapter 374-F, and related statutes." Order No. 25,920 at 67.

Pursuant to the 2015 Settlement, "Conduct of the [divestiture] auction will be under the oversight and administration of the Commission, with the Commission retaining such direction and control as it deems necessary." 2015 Settlement Agreement at 18.

The auction sale process and the results of the sale are described in the testimony of Neil Davids of JPMorgan. Mr. Davids confirms that the overall sale was conducted in a manner consistent with the 2015 Settlement Agreement and applicable statutory and regulatory requirements. He further testifies that the sale prices are reasonable and in line with the intent to produce the greatest Total Transaction Value.

As part of this Application, PSNH provides testimony discussing how the sale of the Generating Assets impacts the Company and its customers.

B. Sale Results

The assets to be sold include the Company's Merrimack Station; Newington Station; Schiller Station; Smith Station; Gorham Station; Canaan Station; Ayers Island Station; Eastman Falls Station; Amoskeag Station; Hooksett Station; Garvins Falls Station; Jackman Station; Lost Nation Combustion Turbine; White Lake Combustion Turbine; and its ownership share of the Androscoggin Reservoir Company (collectively, the "Generating Assets"). Recall that PSNH's minority ownership interest in the Wyman 4 Station was previously sold outside of the formal auction process, as noted in the Commission's Order No. 26,060.

The 2015 Settlement Agreement contemplated that there may be separate buyers for the hydro assets ("Hydro Assets") and the fossil fuel/wood-fired assets ("Thermal Assets"), if that maximized the sale proceeds. In fact, PSNH has entered into a pair of PSAs dated October 11, 2017

a. Sale of Hydro Assets

The buyer of the Hydro Assets is HSE Hydro NH AC, LLC. HSE Hydro NH AC, LLC is an affiliate of Hull Street Energy and subsidiary of certain investment funds which it controls ("collectively, HSE"). The Hydro PSA is included as Attachment 1. HSE recently completed the acquisition from Carlyle Power Partners of five hydroelectric plants (formerly owned by Western

Massachusetts Electric Company) located in central Massachusetts. The assets being purchased by HSE include real property, personal property, and associated licenses and permits related to Smith Station, Gorham Station, Canaan Station, Ayers Island Station, Eastman Falls Station Amoskeag Station, Hooksett Station, Garvins Falls Station, Jackman Station, and PSNH's ownership share of the Androscoggin Reservoir Company as specifically set forth in the related Hydro PSA for an overall purchase price of \$83.3 million (subject to certain adjustments at closing), with \$83 million attributed to the generating facilities and \$0.3 million attributed to inventory. As part of the transaction HSE will assume liabilities listed in Section 2.3 of the Hydro PSA. Other liabilities will remain with PSNH, as set forth in Section 2.4 of the Hydro PSA.

HSE has allocated its overall purchase price amongst the various assets it is purchasing as follows:

| Smith Station | \$24,950,000 |
|-----------------------|--------------|
| Gorham Station | 2,880,000 |
| Canaan Station | 1,700,000 |
| Ayers Island Station | 10,500,000 |
| Eastman Falls Station | 6,150,000 |
| Amoskeag Station | 21,260,000 |
| Hooksett Station | 1,970,000 |
| Garvins Falls Station | 10,640,000 |
| Jackman Station | 2,450,000 |
| ARCO | 500,000 |
| TOTAL | \$83,000,000 |

These allocated prices may be subject to certain adjustments at closing, as set forth in the Hydro PSA. Both buyer and seller will be required to agree upon an allocation among the acquired assets of the sum of the Purchase Price and the Assumed Liabilities consistent with Section 1060 of the Internal Revenue Code. In addition, appropriate allocations of the sales proceeds must be made by the parties for purposes of the New Hampshire transfer tax.

The parties to the Hydro Asset sale transaction are targeting a closing as soon as possible following receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals.

In addition to the approval sought from this Commission pursuant to this Application, various approvals for this transaction are also required from the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC"): under §203 of the Federal Power Act for the Generation Asset transfer itself; under §205 of the Federal Power Act for interconnection agreements between PSNH and HSE; and under §8 of the Federal Power Act to transfer licenses issued by FERC for various PSNH hydroelectric generating facilities.

Approval is also necessary from the Vermont Public Utility Commission relating to the sale of Canaan Station, which straddles the New Hampshire-Vermont border on the Connecticut River.

b. Sale of Fossil Fueled and Wood-Fired Assets ("Thermal Assets")

The buyer of the Thermal Assets is Granite Shore Power LLC, a newly-formed joint venture between Atlas Holdings LLC ("Atlas") of Greenwich, Connecticut and Castleton Commodities International ("CCI") of Stamford, Connecticut. The Thermal PSA is included as Attachment 2. CCI is a global commodity merchant whose activities include the ownership and operations of 20 power generation assets comprising approximately 2,000 MWs across the US and Europe. Atlas is an industrial holding company. The assets being purchased by Granite Shore Power include real property, personal property, and associated licenses and permits related

to Merrimack Station, Newington Station, Schiller Station, Lost Nation Thermal Turbine and White Lake Thermal Turbine as specifically set forth in the related Thermal PSA for an overall purchase price of \$175 million (subject to certain adjustments at closing), with \$97 million attributed to the generating facilities and \$78 million attributed to fuel and non-fuel inventory. As part of the transaction Granite Shore Power will assume liabilities listed in Section 2.3 of the Thermal PSA. Other liabilities will remain with PSNH, as set forth in Section 2.4 of the Thermal PSA.

Granite Shore Power has allocated its overall purchase price amongst the various assets it is purchasing as follows:

| Newington Station | \$80,000,000 |
|-------------------|---------------|
| Merrimack Station | 75,000,000 |
| Schiller Station | 10,000,000 |
| Lost Nation | 5,000,000 |
| White Lake | 5,000,000 |
| TOTAL | \$175,000,000 |

The parties to the Thermal Asset sale transaction are targeting a closing as soon as possible following receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals. The purchase price of the Thermal Assets is based upon a January 1, 2018, closing date, with downward price adjustments should the closing take place after that date.

In addition to the approval sought from this Commission pursuant to this Application, various approvals for this transaction are also required from the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC"): under §203 of the Federal Power Act for the Generation Asset transfer

itself, and under §205 of the Federal Power Act for interconnection agreements between PSNH and Granite Shore Power

III. Criteria for Review and Requested Approvals and Findings

A. New Hampshire Statutory Requirements

New Hampshire statutes set forth the specific criteria that must be met for the Commission to approve this transaction.

In accordance with RSA 369-B:3-a, "Divestiture of PSNH Generation Assets; Review of 2015 Settlement Proposal":

The general court finds that divestiture of PSNH's generation plants and securitization of any resulting stranded costs pursuant to RSA 369-B:3, IV(c) is in the public interest....

RSA 374:30 requires:

Any public utility may transfer or lease its franchise, works or system, or any part of such franchise, works or system, exercised or located in this state, or contract for the operation of its works and system located in this state, when the commission shall find that it will be for the public good and shall make an order assenting thereto, but not otherwise. The commission may, by general order, authorize a public utility to transfer to another public utility a part interest in poles and their appurtenances for the purpose of joint use by such public utilities.

RSA 369-B:3-a, as amended in 2015, provides unequivocal direction from the Legislature that the sale of PSNH's generation plants is in the public interest.

The sale transactions are also consistent with RSA Chapter 374-F. As described in the testimony of Mr. Chung (Attachment 3) the sale process was conducted to maximize the "Total Transaction Value" in order to mitigate stranded costs borne by PSNH's retail customers (RSA 374-F:3, XII,(c)). The net proceeds from the sales will be used to reduce PSNH's stranded costs, per the requirements of the 2015 Settlement Agreement.

Finally, the proposed transactions are also consistent with 2014 N.H. Laws, Chapter 310, "An Act relative to the divestiture of PSNH assets and relative to the siting of wind turbines." Section 310:1 provides:

The purpose of allowing the public utilities commission to determine if divestiture of Public Service Company of New Hampshire's (PSNH) remaining generation assets is in the economic interests of PSNH's retail customers should be to maximize economic value for PSNH's retail customers, minimize risk to PSNH's retail customers, reduce stranded costs for PSNH's retail customers, promote the settlement of outstanding issues involving stranded costs, and, if appropriate, provide for continued operation or possible repowering of PSNH's generation assets.

The transactions fulfill all the requirements of 310:1 as they maximize the economic value of PSNH's Generation Assets to benefit retail customers; minimize risk to PSNH's retail customers by allowing PSNH to exit the generation business; reduce stranded costs to customers by maximizing the Total Transaction Value; and will result in the continued operation of the Generating Assets for at least eighteen months following their sale.

The transactions also comply with the requirements of RSA 369-B:3-b, "Employee cProtections," and the employee protection provisions of the 2015 Settlement Agreement. RSA 369-B:3-b requires that, "In the event of divestiture or retirement of any or all of PSNH's generation assets, employee protections no less than those set forth in the then-current collective bargaining agreement shall be provided to affected employees."

B. New Hampshire Regulatory Requirements

In addition to the statutory requirements for approval discussed above, the Commission has previously issued orders addressing the sale of PSNH's generating assets. These orders were issued in Docket Nos. DE 14-238 and DE 16-817 By Order No. 25,920, the Commission approved the 2015 Settlement Agreement that expressly calls for the sale of PSNH's Generating Assets via an auction process. By Order No. 25,967, the Commission approved the auction

design and the selection of JPMorgan as the Commission's Auction Advisor. On February 10, 2017, the New Hampshire Supreme Court summarily affirmed the Commission's decision in Order No. 25,967.

IV. Discussion

A. Testimony

The testimony of Mr. Neil Davids and Auction Report being filed by JPMorgan, and the accompanying testimony of Mr. Chung, support the propositions that: the generation divestiture process was performed in accordance with the procedure approved by the Commission; New Hampshire municipalities were given the opportunity to participate in the auction process; the PSAs reflect a reasonable and proper balancing of liabilities; that PSNH's purchase of insurance to protect against costs of potential future liabilities was reasonable and necessary to achieve the PSAs; that the cost of such insurance is reasonable and is a stranded cost that will be recoverable via the securitization process; that the employee protections, as clarified by the 2017 MOA, comply with RSA 369-B:3-b and are consistent with the 2015 Settlement Agreement; and that overall, the PSAs submitted for approval maximize the Total Transaction Value and effectuate the overall intent of the 2015 Settlements.

B. Auction Procedure

In Order No. 25,967 issued on November 10, 2016, in Docket No. DE 16-817, the Commission approved the design for the generation divestiture process. As discussed in Mr. David's testimony and JPMorgan's Auction Report, the actual divestiture process complied with the design approved by the Commission. Interested municipalities that are host towns for the generation assets were provided the opportunity to participate in the auction process per Order No. 25,967. In particular, interested municipalities were provided with early access to the

engineer's report, independent market report, the Confidential Information Memorandum, and the electronic data room as required by the Order. JPMorgan offered to consult with interested municipalities regarding indicative Round (Phase) 1 bids. The PSA reflects an allocation of the purchase price amongst the various generation assets.

C. Environmental Liabilities

The PSAs represent a thoughtful and carefully negotiated balancing of responsibility for potential future environmental liabilities that may arise at any of the generating assets. PSNH, JPMorgan, and Commission Staff weighed the retention of responsibility of such liabilities with the impact on the purchase price of those generating assets. The purchase of insurance to protect against a portion of the cost of any potential future claim of liability was deemed to be an economic measure that maximized the Total Transaction Value. PSNH and PUC Staff support the recovery of the cost of such insurance as a reasonable stranded cost resulting from the divestiture of PSNH's generation assets, recoverable via the securitization process per RSA 369-B:1, XVI.

D. Employee Protections

Due to delays in the auction process, the prior Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA") between the Union (IBEW Local 1837) and PSNH expired on May 31, 2017, and was replaced by a new CBA. As a result, certain provisions in the employee protections as set forth in the 2015 Settlement Agreement became ambiguous and uncertain. Due to the requirement in RSA 369-B:3-b for the provision of employee protections consistent with those contained in the CBA in effect as of the date of any divestiture - - i.e., the new CBA - - a clarifying Memorandum of Agreement between the Union and PSNH dated September 7, 2017, was entered into. The effectiveness of this 2017 MOA is conditioned upon Commission approval, and is presented for such review and approval herein. Per RSA 374-F:2, IV,(e), all costs incurred as a result of

fulfilling employee protection obligations pursuant to RSA 369-B:3-b are deemed to be recoverable stranded costs

E. Maximization of Total Transaction Value

Per the 2015 Settlement Agreement (at line 434):

The goals of the asset auctions are to maximize the net Total Transaction Value ("TTV"). which reflects all of the cash and non-cash elements of the transaction(s), realized from the sale(s) in order to minimize Stranded Costs, to provide a market-based determination of Stranded Costs, and to establish a competitive energy market, while at the same time providing certain employee and host community protections as set forth herein.

JPMorgan, as auction advisor, was given the responsibility to ensure that the divestiture process met this goal. In its Order approving the auction design, the Commission stated, "JPM has described a number of principles that will guide a successful auction of electric generation facilities and will maximize the value received from bidders." Throughout the divestiture auction process, these principles espoused by JPMorgan were followed. JPMorgan developed a robust interest in the generating assets per the plan approved by the Commission. Municipalities were provided with the opportunities to participate in the auction process as required by the Commission's Order. The due diligence process was detailed and comprehensive, providing all bidders with more than ample opportunity to understand the nature and scope of every aspect of the generation assets.

Final bids were carefully analyzed by JPMorgan's experts and PSNH to facilitate a complete knowledge of those bids, including their value and the related commercial terms and conditions.

A consensus was reached by JPMorgan and PSNH regarding the identity of the winning bidders. The PSAs were developed to memorialize the details of the sales agreements arrived at as a result of the overall divestiture process. The PSAs represent the best net Total Transaction Value consistent with the goals of the 2015 Settlements.

V. Request for Rulings and Approval of the Sale

PSNH respectfully requests that the Commission issue a separate order for each PSA. This request is made to expedite closing on the transactions due to there being separate buyers, with differing deal terms and conditions, relating to different generating assets. Should one buyer feel that a single final order is insufficient to move to closing necessitating a request for rehearing, the closing on the other deal could also be delayed. Thus, we request the Commission ultimately issue two orders, one approving the thermal sale and one approving the hydro sale.

Therefore, PSNH respectfully requests that the Commission: (1) issue separate orders for the two PSAs; (2) find that the results of the sale comply with New Hampshire law and that the sale of the generation assets is in the economic interest of PSNH's retail customers; (3) find that the balancing of potential future liabilities reached in the PSAs as hedged by insurance is reasonable and that the costs of such insurance may be included as a stranded cost to be recovered via securitization financing; (4) approve the 2017 MOA; (5) expeditiously approve the PSAs for the sale of the Company's Generating Assets; and, (6) grant such other relief as the Commission deems reasonable and proper to effectuate RSA Chapters 369-B and 374-F and the 2015 Settlements.

Respectfully submitted this 12th day of October 2017.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE d/b/a EVERSOURCE ENERGY

By:_

Robert A. Bersak

Chief Regulatory Counsel

Public Service Company of New Hampshire d/b/a

Robub Bersa

Eversource Energy

780 N. Commercial Street

Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

603-634-3355

Robert.Bersak@Eversource.com

I hereby certify that on October 12, 2017, I served an electronic copy of this Application with each person identified on the Commission's service list for this docket pursuant to Rule Puc 203.02(a).

Robert A. Bersak

Public Service Company of New Hampshire d/b/a Eversource Energy 780 North Commercial Street Post Office Box 330 Manchester, New Hampshire 03105-0330 (603) 634-3355

Robert.Bersak@Eversource.com

ATTACHMENT 1

Hydro Purchase and Sale Agreement

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 1
Page 1 of 120

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

between

PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE as Seller

and

HSE Hydro NH AC, LLC as Buyer

Dated as of October 11, 2017

Attachment 1 Page 2 of 120

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| ARTICLE I DEFINI | TIONS AND INTERPRETATION | 1 |
|----------------------------|--|-----|
| Section 1.1 | Definitions | 1 |
| Section 1.2 | Rules of Interpretation | |
| ADTICLE HALLOCI | LAGE AND GALE OF ORDIG | 1.6 |
| ARTICLE II PURCE | HASE AND SALE; CLOSING | |
| Section 2.1 | Purchase and Sale of Acquired Assets | |
| Section 2.2 | Excluded Assets | |
| Section 2.3 | Assumption of Assumed Liabilities | |
| Section 2.4 | Excluded Liabilities | |
| Section 2.5 | Purchase Price | |
| Section 2.6 | Certain Adjustments to Base Purchase Price | 21 |
| Section 2.7 | Proration | 24 |
| Section 2.8 | Allocation of Purchase Price | 25 |
| Section 2.9 | Closing | 25 |
| Section 2.10 | Deliveries by Seller at Closing | 26 |
| Section 2.11 | Deliveries by Buyer at Closing | 27 |
| ARTICLE III REPR | ESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER | 28 |
| Section 3.1 | Organization and Existence | 28 |
| Section 3.1 Section 3.2 | Authority and Enforceability | |
| Section 3.2 | No Conflicts; Consents and Approvals | |
| Section 3.4 | Legal Proceedings | |
| Section 3.5 | Compliance with Laws; Permits | |
| Section 3.6 | Title to Acquired Assets | |
| Section 3.7 | Assets Used in Operation of the Facilities | |
| Section 3.7 Section 3.8 | Material Contracts | |
| Section 3.9 | Insurance | |
| Section 3.10 | Taxes | |
| Section 3.11 | Environmental Matters | |
| Section 3.11 | Employment and Labor Matters. | |
| Section 3.12 | Employee Benefit Plans | |
| Section 3.14 | Condemnation | |
| Section 3.14 | Regulatory Status | |
| Section 3.16 | ARCO Shares | |
| Section 3.17 | Brokers | |
| Section 3.17 | Complete Copies | |
| Section 3.19 | Exclusive Representations and Warranties | |
| | ESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BUYER | |
| | | |
| Section 4.1 | Organization and Existence | |
| Section 4.2 | Authority and Enforceability | |
| Section 4.3 | Noncontravention | |
| Section 4.4 | Legal Proceedings | 36 |

| Attac | h | me | nt | 1 |
|-------|---|----|----|---|
| Page | 3 | of | 12 | (|

| Section 4.5 | Compliance with Laws | 36 |
|------------------|---|----|
| Section 4.6 | Brokers | |
| Section 4.7 | Availability of Funds | 36 |
| Section 4.8 | Qualified Buyer | |
| Section 4.9 | Governmental Approvals | |
| Section 4.10 | WARN Act. | |
| Section 4.11 | Independent Investigation | |
| Section 4.12 | Disclaimer Regarding Projections | |
| Section 4.13 | Investment Purposes; No Distribution | |
| ARTICLE V COVE | NANTS | 38 |
| Section 5.1 | Closing Conditions. | 38 |
| Section 5.2 | Notices, Consents and Approvals | |
| Section 5.3 | Assigned Contracts | |
| Section 5.4 | Access of Buyer and Seller | |
| Section 5.5 | Conduct of Business Pending the Closing | |
| Section 5.6 | Termination of Certain Services and Contracts; Transition Matters | |
| Section 5.7 | Seller Marks | |
| Section 5.8 | Employee Matters | |
| Section 5.9 | ISO-NE and NEPOOL Matters. | |
| Section 5.10 | Post-Closing Operations | |
| Section 5.11 | Discharge of Environmental Liabilities | 53 |
| Section 5.12 | Transfer Taxes | |
| Section 5.13 | Tax Matters | |
| Section 5.14 | Further Assurances | |
| Section 5.15 | Schedule Updates | |
| Section 5.16 | Casualty | |
| Section 5.17 | Condemnation | |
| Section 5.17 | Confidentiality | |
| Section 5.19 | Public Announcements | |
| Section 5.20 | ARCO ROFR | |
| Section 5.21 | Exclusivity | |
| ARTICLE VI COND | OITIONS TO CLOSING | 58 |
| Section 6.1 | Buyer's Conditions to Closing | 58 |
| Section 6.2 | Seller's Conditions to Closing | |
| ARTICLE VII INDE | MNIFICATION; LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY AND WAIVERS . | 60 |
| Section 7.1 | Survival | 60 |
| Section 7.2 | Effect of Closing | |
| Section 7.3 | Indemnification by Seller | |
| Section 7.4 | Indemnification by Buyer | |
| Section 7.5 | Certain Limitations | |
| Section 7.6 | Indemnification Procedures | |
| Section 7.7 | Tax Treatment of Indemnification Payments | |
| Section 7.8 | Waiver of Other Representations; No Reliance; "As Is" Sale | |

| | Section 7.9 | Exclusive Remedies; Certain Waivers, Releases and Limitations | 65 |
|------|---------------|---|----|
| ARTI | CLE VIII TERI | MINATION | 66 |
| | Section 8.1 | Termination | 66 |
| | Section 8.2 | Effect of Termination; Termination Fee | 67 |
| | Section 8.3 | Specific Performance and Other Remedies | 69 |
| ARTI | CLE IX MISCI | ELLANEOUS | 69 |
| | Section 9.1 | Expenses | 69 |
| | Section 9.2 | Notices | |
| | Section 9.3 | Entire Agreement | 70 |
| | Section 9.4 | Severability | |
| | Section 9.5 | Schedules and Exhibits | 71 |
| | Section 9.6 | Successors and Assigns | 71 |
| | Section 9.7 | No Third Party Beneficiaries | |
| | Section 9.8 | No Joint Venture or Agency | 72 |
| | Section 9.9 | Amendments and Waivers | |
| | Section 9.10 | Governing Law | |
| | Section 9.11 | Dispute Resolution | |
| | Section 9.12 | Submission to Jurisdiction | |
| | Section 9.13 | Waiver of Jury Trial | |
| | Section 9.14 | Counterparts | |
| | | 1 | |

Attachment 1 Page 5 of 120

SCHEDULES

Schedule 1: Facilities

Schedule 1.1-K: Seller's Knowledge

Schedule 1.1-PL: Permitted Liens

Schedule 2.1(a): Real Property; Title Commitments

Schedule 2.1(b): Leased Real Property

Schedule 2.1(c): Personal Property

Schedule 2.1(e): Material Contracts

Schedule 2.1(g): Assigned Intellectual Property

Schedule 2.1(i): Environmental Attributes

Schedule 2.2(a): T&D and Associated Telecommunication Assets

Schedule 2.2(b): Retained Real Property

Schedule 2.2(j): Assigned Intercompany Contracts

Schedule 2.8(b): Purchase Price Allocation

Schedule 3.3: Seller Required Consents

Schedule 3.4: Legal Proceedings

Schedule 3.5(a): Compliance with Laws

Schedule 3.5(b): Permits

Schedule 3.7: Certain Assets Used in Operations

Schedule 3.8(b): Certain Matters Regarding Material Contracts

Schedule 3.9: Insurance

Schedule 3.10: Tax Claims

Schedule 3.11(a): Environmental Permits

Schedule 3.11(b): Certain Environmental Matters

Schedule 3.12(a): Scheduled Employees

Schedule 3.12(b): Certain Employment Matters

Schedule 3.13: Employee Benefit Plans

Schedule 4.3(c): Buyer Required Consents

Schedule 5.5: Interim Period Operations

Schedule 5.8(b)(i): Represented Scheduled Employee Numbers by Job Classification and

Facility

Schedule 5.8(c)(i): Selected Non-Represented Employees

Schedule 5.8(e)(i)(F): Pension Plan Modifications

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124
EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 1

Attachment 1 Page 6 of 120

Schedule 5.8(e)(ii)(B): Contributory Retirement Plan

Schedule 5.8(g): Severance Benefits

Attachment 1 Page 7 of 120

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

This PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement"), dated and effective as of October 11, 2017 (the "Effective Date"), is entered into by and between HSE Hydro NH AC, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Buyer") and Public Service Company of New Hampshire, a New Hampshire corporation ("Seller"). Buyer and Seller are each referred to in this Agreement as a "Party" and collectively as the "Parties."

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, Seller owns the electric generating facilities described in <u>Schedule 1</u> hereto (collectively, the "**Facilities**");

WHEREAS, Seller owns 1,250 shares of capital stock (the "ARCO Shares") of Androscoggin Reservoir Company, a Maine corporation ("ARCO"); and

WHEREAS, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, Seller desires to sell and assign to Buyer, and Buyer desires to purchase and assume from Seller, (i) certain assets and liabilities respecting the Facilities, and (ii) the ARCO Shares, all as set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

- **Section 1.1 Definitions**. As used in this Agreement, the following capitalized terms have the meanings set forth below:
 - "Accrued Pension Benefit" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(e)(i)(C).
 - "Acquired Assets" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.
 - "Actual Prorated Amount" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.7(c).
- "Affiliate" means, with respect to any Person, any other Person that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, such Person. For purposes of this definition, the term "control" (including the terms "controlled by" and "under common control with") means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such Person, whether through ownership of voting securities or other ownership interests, by Contract or otherwise.
 - "Agreement" has the meaning set forth in the preamble.
 - "ARCO" has the meaning set forth in the recitals.

"ARCO By-Laws" means the By-Laws of ARCO, dated as of January 25, 1985.

- "ARCO ROFR" means the right of ARCO and its stockholders to purchase the ARCO Shares pursuant to Article VII of the ARCO By-Laws.
 - "ARCO Shares" has the meaning set forth in the recitals.
 - "Asset Demarcation Agreement" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(e).
 - "Assigned Contracts" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(e).
 - "Assigned Intellectual Property" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(g).
 - "Assigned Leases" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(b).
- "Assignment and Assumption Agreement" has the meaning set forth in <u>Section</u> 2.10(d).
 - "Assignment and Assumption of Lease" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(b).
 - "Assumed Liabilities has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3.
 - "Base Purchase Price" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5.
 - "Bill of Sale" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(c).
- "Business" means the production and sale of power through the ownership and operation of the Acquired Assets.
- "Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or day on which banks are legally closed for business in Manchester, New Hampshire or New York, New York.
 - "Buyer" has the meaning set forth in the preamble.
 - "Buyer Indemnified Parties" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.3.
 - "Buyer Pension Benefit" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(e)(i)(E).
 - "Buyer Required Consents" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.3(c).
 - "Buyer's Observers" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.4(b).
 - "Buyer's Contributory Plan" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(e)(ii)(A).
 - "Buyer's Pension Plan" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(e)(i)(A).
 - "CAMS" means ISO-NE's Customer and Asset Management System.

Attachment 1 Page 9 of 120

"Cash" means cash and cash equivalents (including marketable securities and short term investments) calculated in accordance with GAAP.

"Casualty Loss" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.16.

"CBA Term" means June 1, 2017 through the later of May 31, 2020 or two years after the Closing Date.

"Claim" means any claim, demand, complaint, action, legal proceeding (whether at law or in equity), arbitration, investigation, audit or suit commenced, brought, conducted or heard by or before any Governmental Authority or arbitrator.

"Closing" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.9.

"Closing Date" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.9.

"Closing Purchase Price" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5.

"Closing Statement" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6(c)(i).

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

"Combined Minimum Pension Benefit" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(e)(i)(B).

"Condemnation Value" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.17.

"Confidentiality Agreement" means that certain Confidentiality Agreement between Seller and Hull Street Energy, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, dated as of March 15, 2017.

"Consent" means any consent, authorization, approval, release, waiver, estoppel certificate or any similar agreement or approval of or by, or registration, notice, declaration or filing to or with, the applicable Governmental Authority or other Person, including any certificate, license, permit, Order or other action issued or taken by a Governmental Authority.

"Contract" means any legally binding contract, lease, mortgage, license, instrument, note or other evidence of indebtedness, purchase order, commitment, undertaking, indenture or other agreement.

"Counterparty" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.3(a).

"Data Site" means the "Project PurpleFinch" electronic data site established and maintained by Seller with IntraLinks, Inc.

"**Deed**" has the meaning set forth in <u>Section 2.10(a)</u>.

"**Direct Claim**" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.6(c).

Attachment 1 Page 10 of 120

"**Easements**" means easements to be granted by Seller to Buyer to implement the easement plans with respect to the Facilities to be agreed to by Buyer and Seller in accordance with Section 5.2(f).

"Effective Date" has the meaning set forth in the preamble.

"Employee Benefit Plan" means any "employee benefit plan" (as such term is defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA), whether or not subject to ERISA, and any other employee benefit plan, program, policy or Contract, including any employment, pension, retirement, profit-sharing, thrift, savings, bonus plan, incentive, stock bonus, stock purchase, stock option or other equity or equity-based compensation, or retention, change in control, severance, deferred compensation, welfare benefit or fringe benefit plan, policy, program, agreement or arrangement.

"Environment" means soil, land surface or subsurface strata, real property, surface waters, groundwater, wetlands, sediments, drinking water supply, ambient air (including indoor air) and any other environmental medium or natural resource.

"Environmental Attributes" means any emissions and renewable energy credits, energy conservation credits, benefits, offsets and allowances, emission reduction credits or items of similar import or regulatory effect (including emissions reduction credits or allowances under all applicable emission trading, compliance or budget programs, or any other federal, state or regional emission, renewable energy or energy conservation trading or budget program) that are held by Seller and attributable to the operation of the Facilities.

"Environmental Claim" means any Claim by any Person alleging Liability of whatever kind or nature (including with respect to loss of life, injury to persons, property or business, damage to natural resources or trespass to property, whether or not such loss, injury, damage or trespass arose or was made manifest before the Closing Date or arises or becomes manifest on or after the Closing Date) arising out of, resulting from or in connection with: (a) the presence, Release of, or exposure to, any Hazardous Substances or (b) any actual or alleged violation or non-compliance with any Environmental Law or term or condition of any Environmental Permit.

"Environmental Laws" means all applicable Laws, Orders and any binding administrative or judicial interpretations thereof (including any binding agreement with any Governmental Authority) relating to: (a) pollution (or the cleanup thereof); (b) the regulation, protection and use of the Environment; (c) the protection, conservation, management, development, control and/or use of land, natural resources and wildlife (including endangered and threatened species); (d) the protection of human health or safety; (e) the management, manufacture, possession, presence, processing, use, generation, transportation, treatment, containment, storage, disposal, recycling, reclamation, Release, threatened Release, abatement, removal, remediation, or handling of, or exposure to, any Hazardous Substances; or (f) noise; and includes, without limitation, the following federal statutes (and their implementing regulations): the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended by the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986 (42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq.); the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments Act of 1984 (42 U.S.C. § 6901 et seq.); the Federal Water Pollution Control Act of 1972, as amended by the Clean

Attachment 1 Page 11 of 120

Water Act of 1977 (33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.); the Toxic Substances Control Act of 1976, as amended (15 U.S.C. § 2601 et seq.); the Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act of 1986 (42 U.S.C. § 11001 et seq.); the Clean Air Act of 1966, as amended by the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.); the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act, as amended (7 U.S.C. § 136 et seq.); the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972, as amended (16 U.S.C. § 1451 et seq.); the Oil Pollution Act of 1990, as amended (33 U.S.C. § 2701 et seq.); the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899, as amended (33 U.S.C. § 401 et seq.); the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, as amended (49 U.S.C. §§ 5101 et seq.); the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq.); the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 651 et seq.); and the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 300f et seq.); and all analogous or comparable state statutes and regulations.

"Environmental Liabilities" means any Liabilities of whatever kind or nature (including without limitation any natural resources damages, property damages, personal injury damages, losses, Claims, judgments, amounts paid in settlement, fines, penalties, fees, expenses and costs, including Remediation costs, engineering costs, environmental consultant fees, laboratory fees, permitting fees, investigation costs, defense costs, costs of enforcement proceedings, costs of indemnification and contribution, costs of medical monitoring, and attorneys' fees and expenses) arising out of, resulting from or in connection with (a) any violation or alleged violation of Environmental Laws or Environmental Permits, prior to, on or after the Closing Date, with respect to the ownership, operation or use of the Acquired Assets; (b) any Environmental Claims caused or allegedly caused by the presence, Release of, or exposure to Hazardous Substances at, on, in, under, adjacent to or migrating from the Acquired Assets prior to, on or after the Closing Date; (c) the investigation and/or Remediation (whether or not such investigation or Remediation commenced before the Closing Date or commences on or after the Closing Date) of Hazardous Substances that are present or have been Released prior to, on or after the Closing Date at, on, in, under, adjacent to or migrating from the Acquired Assets; (d) compliance with Environmental Laws or Environmental Permits on or after the Closing Date with respect to the ownership, operation or use of the Acquired Assets; (e) any Environmental Claim arising from or relating to the off-site disposal, treatment, storage, transportation, discharge, Release or recycling, or the arrangement for such activities, of Hazardous Substances, on or after the Closing Date, in connection with the ownership or operation of the Acquired Assets; and (f) the investigation and/or Remediation of Hazardous Substances that are generated, disposed, treated, stored, transported, discharged, Released, recycled, or the arrangement of such activities, on or after the Closing Date, in connection with the ownership or operation of the Acquired Assets, at any Offsite Disposal Facility.

"Environmental Permits" means those Permits required for the ownership or operation of any Acquired Asset under Environmental Laws.

"ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

"Estimated Closing Statement" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6(b).

"Estimated Prorated Amount" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.7(b).

Attachment 1 Page 12 of 120

"Estimated Proration Adjustment Amount" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.7(b).

"Estimated Purchase Price Adjustment" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6(b).

"Eversource" means Eversource Energy, a Massachusetts voluntary association and the parent company of Seller, formerly known as Northeast Utilities.

"Eversource Service" means Eversource Energy Service Company, a Connecticut corporation and an Affiliate of Seller, formerly known as Northeast Utilities Service Company.

"Excluded Assets" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2.

"Excluded Environmental Liabilities" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4(h).

"Excluded Liabilities" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4.

"**Facilities**" has the meaning set forth in the recitals. For avoidance of doubt, any individual Facility referred to herein by the name set forth in <u>Schedule 1</u> shall mean such Facility, as described in Schedule 1.

"FERC" means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

"Final Purchase Price Adjustment" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6(c)(iii).

"GAAP" means United States generally accepted accounting principles in effect from time to time, as applied by Seller.

"Generation CBA" means the collective bargaining agreement between Seller and the Union, with respect to Seller's Generation Group, in force as of the Effective Date.

"Good Utility Practice" means any of the practices, methods and acts engaged in or approved by a significant portion of the electric power generation industry during the relevant time period, or any of the practices, methods or acts which, in the exercise of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known at the time the decision was made, could have been expected to accomplish the desired result at a reasonable cost consistent with good business practices, reliability, safety and expedition. Good Utility Practice is not intended to be limited to the optimum practice, method or act to the exclusion of all others, but rather is intended to include acceptable practices, methods or acts generally accepted in the region, or required by the NHPUC, including but not limited to compliance with the standards established by the National Electrical Safety Code and ISO-NE.

"Governmental Authority" means any federal, state, local, municipal or foreign government or political subdivision thereof, or any agency or instrumentality of such government or political subdivision, or any self-regulated organization or other non-governmental regulatory authority or quasi-governmental authority (to the extent that the rules, regulations or orders of such organization or authority have the force of Law), or any arbitrator,

Attachment 1 Page 13 of 120

court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction, but excluding Buyer and any subsequent owner of any of the Acquired Assets (if otherwise a Governmental Authority under this definition).

"Hazardous Substance" means (a) any petrochemical or petroleum product, oil, waste oil, coal ash, radioactive materials, radon, asbestos in any form, urea formaldehyde foam insulation, lead-containing materials and polychlorinated biphenyls; (b) any products, mixtures, compounds, materials or wastes, air emissions, toxic substances, wastewater discharges and any chemical, material or substance that may give rise to Liability pursuant to, or is listed or regulated under, or the human exposure to which or the Release of which is controlled or limited by applicable Environmental Laws; and (c) any materials or substances defined in Environmental Laws as "hazardous", "toxic", "pollutant" or "contaminant", or words of similar meaning or regulatory effect.

"HSR Act" means the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976.

"Improvements" means all buildings, structures (including all fuel handling and storage facilities), machinery and equipment, fixtures, construction in progress, including all piping, cables and similar equipment forming part of the mechanical, electrical, plumbing or HVAC infrastructure of any building, structure or equipment, and including all generating units, located on and affixed to the Sites, other than the Seller Marks.

"Indemnified Party" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.5.

"Indemnifying Party" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.5.

"Independent Accountant" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6(c)(ii).

"Independent Appraiser" has the meaning set forth in <u>Section 2.8</u>.

"Intellectual Property" means any and all of the following in any jurisdiction throughout the world: (a) trademarks and service marks, including all applications and registrations and the goodwill connected with the use of and symbolized by the foregoing, but not including the Seller Marks; (b) copyrights, including all applications and registrations, and works of authorship, whether or not copyrightable; (c) trade secrets and confidential knowhow; (d) patents and patent applications; (e) websites and internet domain name registrations; and (f) all other intellectual property and industrial property rights and assets, and all rights, interests and protections that are associated with, similar to, or required for the exercise of, any of the foregoing.

"Intercompany Arrangements" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2(j).

"Interconnection Agreements" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(f).

"Interim Period" means the period of time commencing on the Effective Date and ending on the Closing.

Attachment 1 Page 14 of 120

"Inventory" or "Inventories" means natural gas, coal, biomass and oil inventories, raw materials, spare parts and consumable supplies located at or in transit to the Sites or identified in any Schedule hereto.

"ISO-NE" means ISO New England, Inc. or its successor.

"Law" means any statute, law, ordinance, regulation, rule, code, Order, constitution, treaty, common law, judgment, decree or other requirement, rule or other pronouncement having the effect of law of any Governmental Authority.

"Leased Real Property" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(b).

"Liability" means any liability or obligation (whether known or unknown, whether asserted or unasserted, whether absolute or contingent, whether accrued or unaccrued, whether liquidated or unliquidated, whether incurred or consequential and whether due or to become due), including any liability for Taxes.

"Lien" means any lien, pledge, mortgage, deed of trust, security interest, charge, claim, easement, encroachment, conditional sale or other title retention device or arrangement, option, restriction on transfer, third party purchase right, right of first offer or refusal, or other similar encumbrance, or restriction on the creation of any of the foregoing.

"Losses" means any and all judgments, losses, liabilities, amounts paid in settlement, damages, fines, penalties, deficiencies, costs, Taxes, obligations and expenses (including interest, court costs and reasonable fees of attorneys, accountants and other experts). For all purposes in this Agreement, the term "Losses" does not include any Non-Reimbursable Damages.

"Made Available" means, with respect to documents and materials, that such documents or materials have been posted to the Data Site or otherwise provided to Buyer by Seller or its Representatives.

"Material Adverse Effect" means any change or event that is materially adverse to the assets, liabilities, operations or financial condition of the Acquired Assets, taken as a whole; provided, however, that any changes or events resulting from or arising out of the following shall not be considered when determining whether a Material Adverse Effect has occurred: (a) any change generally affecting the international, national or regional electric generating, transmission or distribution industry; (b) any change generally affecting the international, national or regional wholesale or retail markets for electric power; (c) any change generally affecting the international, national or regional wholesale or retail markets for the coal, natural gas or oil industries or the transportation or storage of coal, natural gas or oil; (d) any change in markets for commodities or supplies, including electric power, natural gas, oil, coal or other fuel and water, as applicable, used in connection with the Facilities; (e) any change in market (including the market for electrical power, coal, natural gas or oil) design, pricing or rules (including rules, systems, procedures, guidelines or requirements promulgated or modified by ISO-NE, any other regional transmission organization, NERC or any similar organization); (f) any change in general regulatory or political conditions, including any engagements of hostilities, acts of war or terrorist activities or changes imposed by a Governmental Authority associated with additional security; (g) any change in the international, national or regional electric transmission or

Attachment 1 Page 15 of 120

distribution systems or operations thereof; (h) any change in any Laws (including Environmental Laws), GAAP, regulatory accounting principles or industry standards; (i) any change in the financial condition or results of operation of Buyer or its Affiliates, including its ability to access capital and equity markets and changes due to a change in the credit rating of Buyer or its Affiliates; (i) any change in the financial, banking, securities or currency markets (including the inability to finance the transactions contemplated hereby or any increased costs for financing or suspension of trading in, or limitation on prices for, securities on any domestic or international securities exchange); (k) any change in general national or regional economic or financial conditions or any failure or bankruptcy (or any similar event) of any financial services or banking institution or insurance company or counterparty to any Contract; (1) any actions to be taken pursuant to or in accordance with this Agreement, or taken by or at the request of Buyer; (m) the announcement, pendency or consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, or the fact that the prospective owner of the Acquired Assets is Buyer; (n) any labor strike, request for representation, organizing campaign, work stoppage, slowdown, or lockout or other labor dispute; (o) any new or announced power provider entrants, including their effect on pricing or transmission; (p) any effects of weather and other acts of God; (q) any Casualty Loss or event of condemnation; (r) seasonality of the operations of the Facilities; or (s) any failure of the Acquired Assets to meet projections or forecasts or revenue or earnings predictions for any period; provided, that any Loss, Claim, occurrence, change or effect that is cured prior to the Closing Date shall not be considered a Material Adverse Effect; provided, further, that, for the avoidance of doubt, a Material Adverse Effect shall be measured only against past performance of the Acquired Assets, taken as a whole, and not against any forward-looking statements, financial projections or forecasts of the Acquired Assets.

"Material Contracts" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(e).

"Mortgage Indenture" means that certain First Mortgage Indenture, dated as of August 15, 1978, as amended and restated effective as of June 1, 2011, and supplemented, between Seller and U.S. Bank National Association, successor to Wachovia Bank, National Association, successor to First Union National Bank, formerly known as First Fidelity Bank, National Association, New Jersey, as trustee.

"NEPOOL" means the New England Power Pool, or its successor.

"NHPUC" means the New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission.

"NHPUC Approval" means the Consent of the NHPUC to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements as required under New Hampshire Law.

"Non-Assigned Contracts" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.3(a)(v).

"Non-Reimbursable Damages" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.9(e).

"Non-Represented Scheduled Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.12(a).

"Non-Represented Transferred Employees" has the meaning set forth in $\underline{Section}$ 5.8(c).

Attachment 1 Page 16 of 120

"Objection Notice" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6(c)(i).

"Offsite Disposal Facility" means a location, other than a Facility or a Site, that receives or received Hazardous Substances for disposal by Seller prior to the Closing Date or by Buyer on or after the Closing Date.

"Order" means any award, decision, injunction, judgment, order, writ, decree, rule, ruling, subpoena, or verdict entered, issued, made or rendered by any Governmental Authority that possesses competent jurisdiction.

"Organizational Documents" means, with respect to any Person, the certificate or articles of incorporation, organization or formation and by-laws, the limited partnership agreement, the partnership agreement or the operating or limited liability company agreement, equity holder agreements and/or other organizational and governance documents of such Person.

"Other Assigned Contracts" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(e).

"Outside Date" has the meaning set forth in Section 8.1(a).

"Party" and "Parties" each has the meaning set forth in the preamble.

"**Permits**" means all certificates, licenses, permits, approvals, Consents, Orders, decisions and other actions of a Governmental Authority pertaining to a particular Acquired Asset, or the ownership, operation or use thereof.

"Permitted Capital Expenditures" means (a) any capital expenditure or commitment to make capital expenditures which will not be completely funded by the later of December 31, 2017 and the Closing Date, and which will not involve a total liability after such date of an amount equal to or less than Three Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$300,000) individually or One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) in the aggregate; (b) those capital expenditures that are set forth on Schedule 5.5; or (c) those capital expenditures otherwise agreed to by the Parties.

"Permitted Lien" means (a) any Lien for Taxes not yet due or delinquent or being contested in good faith; (b) any Lien arising in the ordinary course of business by operation of Law (including mechanics', materialmen's, warehousemen's, carriers', workmen's, repairmen's, landlords', suppliers' and other similar Liens) with respect to a Liability that is not yet due or delinquent or that is being contested in good faith; (c) any purchase money Lien (including Liens under purchase price conditional sales contracts and equipment leases) arising in the ordinary course of business; (d) any deposit or pledge made in connection with, or to secure payment of, workers' compensation, unemployment insurance, old age pension programs mandated under applicable Laws or other social security regulations; (e) any exception or other matter set forth in the Title Commitments (whether or not subsequently deleted or endorsed over) or discoverable based on a review or examination of an accurate survey of the Sites or the land records of the respective counties in which the Sites are located; (f) any easement, right of way, zoning or planning restriction, building and land use Law or similar restriction or condition imposed by any Governmental Authority; (g) any Lien that will no longer be binding on the Acquired Assets after Closing; (h) any Lien created by or resulting from any act or omission of Buyer; (i) any Lien granted or created by the execution and delivery of this Agreement or any of the Related

Attachment 1 Page 17 of 120

Agreements or pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof or thereof (including without limitation the Reserved Easements); (j) with respect to the ARCO Shares, the ARCO ROFR and restrictions on sales of securities under applicable securities Laws; and (k) the matters and Liens set forth on Schedule 1.1-PL.

"Person" means an individual, corporation, partnership (general or limited), limited liability company, joint venture, trust, association, unincorporated organization, other business organization or Governmental Authority.

"Prepayments" means all advance payments, prepaid expenses (including rent), prepaid Taxes, progress payments and deposits of Seller, and rights to receive prepaid expenses, deposits or progress payments relating to the ownership and operation of the Acquired Assets, but not including any prepaid expenses or deposits attributable to Excluded Assets.

"Property Tax Stabilization Payments" mean those property tax stabilization payments with respect to the Facilities payable by Seller under the Settlement Agreement.

"Prorated Amount" means (a) with respect to any Prorated Item that is a Prepayment, the amount allocable to the period on or after the Closing Date that was paid by Seller prior to the Closing Date, and (b) with respect to any other Prorated Item, the amount (expressed as a negative number) allocable to the period prior to the Closing Date, whether or not then due and payable, which was not paid by Seller prior to the Closing Date and which represents an Assumed Liability (excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, any amount paid by Seller after the Closing Date directly to the applicable Third Party), in each case, prorated in accordance with the methodology specified in Section 2.7.

"Prorated Item" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.7(a).

"Purchase Price" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5.

"Purchase Price Adjustment" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6(c)(i).

"Real Property" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(a).

"Related Agreements" means the Deeds, each Assignment and Assumption of Lease, the Bill of Sale, the Assignment and Assumption Agreement, the Asset Demarcation Agreement, the Easements, the Interconnection Agreements, the Transition Services Agreement, the Release of Mortgage Indenture, and the other agreements, certificates and documents to be delivered pursuant to this Agreement.

"Release" means any release, spill, emission, escape, migration, leaking, leaching, pumping, injection, dumping, deposit, disposal or discharge into or through the Environment.

"Release of Mortgage Indenture" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(g).

"Remediation" means any or all of the following activities to the extent required to address the presence or Release of, or exposure to, Hazardous Substances: (a) monitoring, investigation, assessment, treatment, cleanup, containment, removal, mitigation, response or

Attachment 1 Page 18 of 120

restoration work; (b) obtaining any Permits or Consents of any Governmental Authority necessary to conduct any such activity; (c) preparing and implementing any plans or studies for any such activity; (d) obtaining a written notice (or an oral notice which is appropriately documented or memorialized) from a Governmental Authority with competent jurisdiction under Environmental Laws or a written opinion of a Licensed Professional Geologist (as defined in New Hampshire RSA 310-A:118, IV), as contemplated by the relevant Environmental Laws and in lieu of a written notice from a Governmental Authority, that no material additional work is required; and (e) any other activities reasonably determined by a Party to be necessary or appropriate or required under Environmental Laws.

"Representative" means, with respect to any Person, such Person's Affiliates, and such Person and its Affiliates' respective officers, directors, managers, employees, agents, consultants and advisors (including financial advisors, accountants and counsel).

"Represented Scheduled Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.12(a).

"Represented Transferred Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(a).

"Reserved Easements" means easements to be reserved by Seller with respect to certain T&D Assets and associated telecommunications facilities located on the site of the Acquired Assets, as set forth in <u>Schedule 2.1(a)</u>, to be reserved in the Deeds substantially in the form to be agreed to by Seller and Buyer in accordance with Section 5.2(f).

"Restoration Cost" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.16.

"Scheduled Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.12(a).

"Schedule Update" has the meaning set forth in <u>Section 5.15</u>.

"Selected Represented Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(a).

"Selected Non-Represented Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(c).

"Seller" has the meaning set forth in the preamble.

"Seller Indemnified Parties" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.4.

"Seller Marks" means any and all names, marks, trade names, trademarks and corporate symbols and logos incorporating "PSNH," "Public Service Company of New Hampshire," "Public Service of New Hampshire," "Eversource," "Eversource Energy" or "Northeast Utilities," or any word or expression similar thereto or constituting an abbreviation or extension thereof, together with all other names, marks, trade names, trademarks and corporate symbols and logos of Seller or any of its Affiliates.

"Seller Required Consents" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.3.

"Seller's Knowledge" means the actual knowledge (and not imputed or constructive knowledge) of the individuals listed on <u>Schedule 1.1-K</u>, after due inquiry.

Attachment 1 Page 19 of 120

"Seller's Pension Plan" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(e)(i)(B).

"Settlement Agreement" means that certain 2015 Public Service Company of New Hampshire Restructuring and Rate Stabilization Agreement, dated as of June 10, 2015, by and among Seller, Eversource, the Office of Energy and Planning, Designated Advocate Staff of the NHPUC, the Office of Consumer Advocate, New Hampshire District 3 Senator Jeb Bradley, New Hampshire District 15 Senator Dan Feltes, the City of Berlin, New Hampshire, the Union, the Conservation Law Foundation, Inc., TransCanada Power Marketing Ltd., TransCanada Hydro Northeast Inc., and the New Hampshire Sustainable Energy Association d/b/a NH CleanTech Council, as amended by that certain Amendment to the 2015 Public Service Company of New Hampshire Restructuring and Rate Stabilization Agreement, dated January 26, 2016, and the Partial Litigation Settlement Between Settling Parties and Non-Advocate Staff, dated January 26, 2016, all as approved by NHPUC Order No. 25,920, dated July 1, 2016.

"Site" means the Real Property or Leased Real Property (as applicable) and Improvements forming a part of, or used or usable in connection with, a Facility. Any reference to a Site shall include, by definition, the surface and subsurface elements, including the soils and groundwater present at such Site, and any reference to items "at the Site" shall include all items "at, on, in, upon, over, across, under and within" the Site.

"**T&D Assets**" means the transmission, distribution, communication, substation and other assets necessary to current or future T&D Operations of Seller.

"**T&D Operations**" means the process of conducting and supporting the transmission, distribution and sale of electricity.

"Tax" or "Taxes" means any federal, state, local, or foreign income, gross receipts, license, payroll, employment, excise, severance, stamp, occupation, premium, windfall profits, environmental (including taxes under Code Section 59A), customs duties, capital stock, franchise, profits, withholding, social security (or similar, including FICA), unemployment, disability, real property, personal property, sales, use, transfer, border adjustment, registration, value added, alternative or add-on minimum, estimated, or other tax of any kind whatsoever, including any interest, penalty, or addition thereto, whether disputed or not.

"Taxing Authority" means, with respect to any Tax, the Governmental Authority (including the Internal Revenue Service) that imposes such Tax, and the agency (if any) charged with the collection of such Tax for such Governmental Authority.

"Tax Return" means any return, declaration, report, claim for refund, or information return or statement relating to Taxes, including any schedule or attachment thereto, and including any amendment thereof.

"Terminated Contracts" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.6(a).

"Third Party" means a Person that is not a Party, or an Affiliate of a Party, to this Agreement.

"Third Party Claim" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.6(a).

Attachment 1 Page 20 of 120

"Title Commitments" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(a).

"Transferable Permits" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(d).

"Transferred Books and Records" means all books, operating records, engineering designs, blueprints, as-built plans, specifications, procedures, studies, reports, manuals, equipment repair records, safety records, maintenance records, service records, supplier, contractor and subcontractor lists, pending purchase orders, property and sales Tax Returns and related Tax records, and all Transferred Employee Records (in each case, in the format (including electronic format) in which such items are reasonably and practically available), in each case, in the possession of Seller to the extent relating specifically to the ownership or operation of the Facilities and the Acquired Assets; provided, that "Transferred Books and Records" shall not include: (a) any files or records relating to any employees who are not Transferred Employees, (b) files or records relating to any Transferred Employee afforded confidential treatment under any applicable Laws, except to the extent the affected employee consents in writing to such disclosure to Buyer, (c) all records prepared in connection with the sale of the Acquired Assets (and Seller's other generation assets), including bids received from Third Parties and analyses relating to the Acquired Assets, (d) financial records, books of account or projections relating to the Acquired Assets, (e) books, records or other documents of Seller or its Affiliates related to corporate compliance matters not primarily developed for the Acquired Assets, (f) organizational documents (including minute books) of Seller, (g) materials, the disclosure of which would constitute a waiver of attorney-client or attorney work product privilege, or (h) any other books and records which Seller is prohibited from transferring to Buyer under applicable Law and is required by applicable Law to retain.

"**Transferred Employees**" means the Non-Represented Transferred Employees and the Represented Transferred Employees, collectively.

"Transferred Employee Records" means all personnel records maintained by Seller relating to the Transferred Employees, to the extent such files contain (a) names, addresses, dates of birth, job titles and descriptions; (b) dates of employment; (c) compensation and benefits information; (d) resumes and job applications; and (e) any other documents that Seller is not prohibited by Law from delivering to Buyer. To the extent the consent of a Transferred Employee is required under applicable Law in order for Seller to deliver a document that is part of the Transferred Employee Records to Buyer, Seller agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to secure such consent.

"Transfer Taxes" means all transfer, sales, ad valorem, use, goods and services, value added, documentary, stamp duty, gross receipts, excise, transfer and conveyance Taxes and other similar Taxes, duties, fees or charges, together with any interest, penalties or additions in respect thereof.

"Transition Service Cost Percentage" means one hundred ten percent (110%) during the period of the first ninety (90) days after the Closing Date, one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) for the next ninety (90) days, and one hundred fifty percent (150%) thereafter.

"Transition Services Agreement" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.6(b).

Attachment 1 Page 21 of 120

"Union" means International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local 1837.

"VTPUC" means the Vermont Public Utility Commission.

"WARN Act" means the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act, 29 U.S.C. § 2101, et seq.

- **Section 1.2 Rules of Interpretation**. The following rules of interpretation apply to this Agreement:
- (a) Unless otherwise specified, all Article, Section, Schedule and Exhibit references in this Agreement are to the Articles and Sections of, and the Schedules and Exhibits attached to, this Agreement. The Schedules and Exhibits attached to this Agreement constitute a part of this Agreement and are incorporated in this Agreement for all purposes.
- (b) Article, Section and subsection headings in this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.
- (c) If a term is defined as one part of speech (such as a noun), it shall have a corresponding meaning when used as another part of speech (such as a verb). Unless the context of this Agreement clearly requires otherwise, (i) words importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine and neutral genders and vice versa and (ii) words in the singular shall include the plural and vice versa. The words "include," "includes," and "including" are not limiting and shall mean "including without limitation." The word "or" shall not be exclusive. The words "herein," "hereunder," "hereof," "hereto" and similar terms used in this Agreement are references to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular Article or Section or other portion of this Agreement in which such words appear. For purposes of computation of periods of time, the word "from" means "from and including" and the words "to" and "until" each mean "to but excluding."
- (d) Whenever this Agreement refers to a number of days, such number shall refer to calendar days unless Business Days are specified. Whenever any action must be taken hereunder on or by a day that is not a Business Day, then such action may validly be taken on or by the next day that is a Business Day.
- (e) Unless the context of this Agreement clearly requires otherwise, any reference to any Contract means such Contract as amended and in effect from time to time in accordance with its terms and, if applicable, the terms of this Agreement.
- (f) Unless the context of this Agreement clearly requires otherwise, reference to any Law means such Law as amended, modified, codified, replaced or re-enacted, in whole or in part, and in effect from time to time, including any successor legislation thereto and all rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
 - (g) Currency amounts referenced in this Agreement are in U.S. Dollars.

Attachment 1 Page 22 of 120

- (h) All accounting terms used but not expressly defined herein have the meanings given to them under GAAP.
- (i) Each Party acknowledges that it and its attorneys have been given equal opportunity to negotiate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and that any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting Party, or any similar rule operating against the drafter of an agreement, shall not be applicable to the construction or interpretation of this Agreement.

ARTICLE II PURCHASE AND SALE; CLOSING

- **Section 2.1 Purchase and Sale of Acquired Assets**. On the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, at the Closing, Seller shall sell, assign, convey and transfer to Buyer, and Buyer shall purchase, assume and acquire from Seller, free and clear of Liens other than Permitted Liens, all of Seller's right, title and interest in and to (i) the ARCO Shares and (ii) all properties, rights and assets owned by Seller constituting, or used in and necessary for the operation of, the Facilities and the Business (collectively, the "**Acquired Assets**"):
- (a) The real property, Improvements thereon, easements and other rights in real property described in <u>Schedule 2.1(a)</u>, but subject to the exceptions and encumbrances set forth in the title policy commitments provided to Buyer and described on <u>Schedule 2.1(a)</u> (the "**Title Commitments**") and subject to the Permitted Liens (the "**Real Property**");
- (b) The leasehold interests and rights thereunder relating to real property with respect to which Seller is lessee set forth in <u>Schedule 2.1(b)</u>, but subject to the exceptions and encumbrances set forth in the Title Commitments and subject to the Permitted Liens (the "**Leased Real Property**"), and all leases set forth in <u>Schedule 2.1(b)</u> with respect to the Leased Real Property (the "**Assigned Leases**");
- (c) The machinery, equipment, tools, furniture, boats, vehicles, Inventories and other tangible and intangible personal property owned by Seller and located at or in transit to the Facilities (if related solely to any of the Acquired Assets) (including without limitation the items of personal property described on Schedule 2.1(c)), or, in the case of intangible personal property (other than Intellectual Property), otherwise used exclusively for the Facilities or the other Acquired Assets, including any Prepayments and all applicable warranties against manufacturers or vendors to the extent that such warranties are transferable, in each case as in existence on the Effective Date, but excluding such items disposed of by Seller in the ordinary course of business during the Interim Period and including such additional items as may be acquired by Seller for use in connection with the Acquired Assets in the ordinary course of business during the Interim Period;
- (d) All Permits (including all pending applications for Permits or renewals thereof) relating to the ownership and operation of the Facilities or the Acquired Assets that, as of the Closing Date, are transferable by Seller to Buyer by assignment or otherwise under applicable Law including those that are identified as Transferable Permits on Schedule 3.5(b) or

Attachment 1 Page 23 of 120

<u>Schedule 3.11(a)</u> (the "**Transferable Permits**"); *provided* that Seller shall, during the Interim Period, amend such Schedules to account for applicable changes arising during the Interim Period, to the extent such changes are not in violation of any applicable covenants in <u>Section 5.5</u>;

- Excluding the Assigned Leases addressed in Section 2.1(b), but including (e) personal property leases (whether Seller is lessor or lessee thereunder), real property leases with respect to which Seller is lessor thereunder and railroad crossing licenses and side-track agreements for the benefit of Seller, (i) those Contracts that relate to, and are material to, the ownership or operation of the Acquired Assets or the Business and that are set forth in Schedule 2.1(e) (the "Material Contracts") and (ii) all other Contracts that relate exclusively to the ownership or operation of the Acquired Assets or otherwise relate to the operation of the Business and in either case are not, individually, or in the aggregate, material to Business (the "Other Assigned Contracts" and, together with the Material Contracts, the "Assigned Contracts"); provided that Seller shall retain the rights and interests under any Assigned Contract to the extent such rights and interests provide for indemnity and exculpation rights for pre-Closing occurrences for which Seller remains liable under this Agreement; and provided further, that Seller shall, during the Interim Period, amend such Schedule to set forth any amendments to any Material Contract, or any additional Contracts entered into during the Interim Period that are material to the ownership or operation of the Acquired Assets, in each case that are not in violation of any applicable covenants in Section 5.5;
- (f) All Transferred Books and Records, subject to the right of Seller to retain copies for its use to the extent and subject to the conditions set forth herein;
- (g) All Intellectual Property that is owned by Seller and primarily used in connection with the operation of the Facilities set forth in <u>Schedule 2.1(g)</u> (the "Assigned Intellectual Property");
- (h) Subject to <u>Section 2.2(f)</u>, the rights of Seller to the use of the names of the Facilities set forth in Schedule 1:
- (i) Those Environmental Attributes set forth in <u>Schedule 2.1(i)</u>, excluding such Environmental Attributes or portions thereof disposed of by Seller in the ordinary course of business during the Interim Period and including such additional Environmental Attributes as may be acquired by Seller for use in the operation of the Facilities in the ordinary course of business during the Interim Period; and
- (j) All rights of Seller in and to any claims, causes of action, rights of recovery, rights of set-off, rights of refund and similar rights against a Third Party relating to any Assumed Liability, but excluding any such rights of Seller in, to or under any insurance policies of Seller or any insurance proceeds therefrom.

For avoidance of doubt, the terms "Acquired Assets" and "Facilities" as used in this Agreement shall not include any properties, rights, assets or facilities of ARCO.

Section 2.2 Excluded Assets. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Buyer expressly understands and agrees that it is not purchasing or acquiring, and Seller is not selling, assigning or transferring, any properties, rights or assets of Seller other than

Attachment 1 Page 24 of 120

the Acquired Assets, and all such other properties, rights and assets shall be excluded from the Acquired Assets (collectively, the "Excluded Assets"). The Excluded Assets to be retained by Seller include all of Seller's right, title and interest in and to the following properties, rights and assets:

- (a) As identified on Schedule 2.2(a) or in the Asset Demarcation Agreement, the real and personal property comprising or constituting any or all of the T&D Assets (whether or not regarded as a "transmission," "distribution" or "generation" asset for regulatory or accounting purposes), including all electric power, communications and telecommunications underground and aboveground lines, switchyard facilities, substation facilities, support equipment and other Improvements, the Reserved Easements, and all Permits and Contracts, to the extent they relate to the T&D Assets, and those certain assets and facilities identified for use or used by Seller or others pursuant to an agreement or agreements with Seller for telecommunications purposes;
 - (b) The real property and Improvements thereon described in <u>Schedule 2.2(b)</u>;
- (c) Except for Prepayments, (i) all Cash, accounts receivable, notes receivable, checkbooks and canceled checks, bank accounts and deposits, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, securities, and property or income Tax receivables, and (ii) any other Tax refunds, credits, prepayments or other rights to payment related to the Acquired Assets to the extent allocable to a period ending on or before the Closing Date;
- (d) All Contracts of Seller other than the Assigned Contracts and Assigned Leases;
 - (e) All Permits of Seller other than the Transferable Permits;
- (f) All Intellectual Property including all Seller Marks other than the Assigned Intellectual Property;
- (g) Duplicate copies of all Transferred Books and Records (to the extent and subject to the conditions set forth herein), and all other records of Seller other than the Transferred Books and Records, including corporate seals, organizational documents, minute books, stock books, Tax Returns, financial records, books of account and other corporate records of Seller, and all employee-related or employee benefit-related files or records other than the Transferred Employee Records;
 - (h) All insurance policies of Seller and insurance proceeds therefrom;
- (i) All rights of Seller in and to any claims, causes of action, rights of recovery, rights of set-off, rights of refund and similar rights against a Third Party relating to any period through the Closing or otherwise relating to any Excluded Liability, but excluding any such rights of Seller to the extent relating to an Assumed Liability;
- (j) All of Seller's rights arising from or associated with any Contract or arrangement representing an intercompany transaction, agreement or arrangement between Seller and an Affiliate of Seller, whether or not such transaction, agreement or arrangement relates to

Attachment 1 Page 25 of 120

the provisions of goods or services, payment arrangements, intercompany charges or balances or the like, including, but not limited to, the Terminated Contracts ("Intercompany Arrangements"), other than those Assigned Contracts set forth on Schedule 2.2(j);

- (k) All Employee Benefit Plans and trusts or other assets attributable thereto;
- (l) All assets of Seller related to its ownership, construction and operation of a portfolio of thermal electric generation assets and related facilities, together with fuel inventories, and including generating, selling, transmitting and delivering electric energy, capacity, ancillary services and Environmental Attributes from the generation assets to the interconnection point set forth in the respective Interconnection Agreements; and
- (m) The rights that accrue or will accrue to Seller under this Agreement and the Related Agreements.
- **Section 2.3 Assumption of Assumed Liabilities**. On the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, from and after the Closing, Buyer shall assume and shall satisfy, perform or discharge when due only those Liabilities of Seller expressly provided for herein in respect of, or otherwise arising from the operation of the Business or the ownership, operation or use of the Acquired Assets, other than the Excluded Liabilities (the "**Assumed Liabilities**") as follows:
- (a) All Environmental Liabilities, excluding the Excluded Environmental Liabilities, but only to the extent that such Excluded Environmental Liabilities are subject to indemnification by Seller pursuant to Section 7.5(f), after which they shall become an Assumed Liability;
- (b) Except as set forth in Section 2.4(c), all Liabilities under (i) the Assigned Contracts (including the Androscoggin River Headwaters Benefits Agreement, dated June 1, 1983, by and among Androscoggin Reservoir Company, Union Water Power Company, International Paper Company, Rumford Falls Power Company, James River Corporation, and Seller), the Assigned Leases, the Transferable Permits, in each case in accordance in its terms, (ii) the Assigned Intellectual Property, to the extent set forth on Schedule 2.1(g), and (iii) the Contracts, commitments and Transferable Permits entered into by Seller with respect to the Acquired Assets during the Interim Period consistent with Section 5.5, including, without limitation, commitments and agreements with respect to capital expenditures or Liabilities for real or personal property Taxes on any of the Acquired Assets (or, to the extent such agreements do not allocate such Tax liability between the Acquired Assets and the Excluded Assets, all Tax liability under such agreements entered into by Seller and any local government);
- (c) All Liabilities (i) for any compensation, benefits, employment Taxes, workers compensation benefits and other similar Liabilities in respect of the Transferred Employees (including under the Generation CBA, any Employee Benefit Plan of Buyer, or any other agreement, plan, practice, policy, instrument or document relating to any of the Transferred Employees) to the extent arising or accruing on or after the Closing Date, but not including any Liabilities arising out of the Memorandum of Agreement to the Generation CBA dated September 7, 2017, (ii) relating to the Transferred Employees which Buyer has assumed or for

Attachment 1 Page 26 of 120

which Buyer is otherwise responsible under <u>Section 5.8</u>, and (iii) in respect of any discrimination, wrongful discharge, unfair labor practice or similar Claim under applicable employment Laws by any Transferred Employee arising out of or relating to acts or omissions occurring on or after the Closing Date;

- (d) All Liabilities for (i) Taxes (including, with respect to property Taxes, payments in addition to or in lieu of Taxes, but not including the Property Tax Stabilization Payments) relating to the ownership, operation, sale or use of the Facilities, the Acquired Assets or the Assumed Liabilities on or after the Closing Date and (ii) Taxes for which Buyer is liable pursuant to Section 2.7, Section 5.12 and Section 5.13; and
- (e) All other Liabilities expressly allocated to Buyer in this Agreement or in any of the Related Agreements.
- **Section 2.4** Excluded Liabilities. Except for the Assumed Liabilities, Buyer shall not assume or be responsible for the performance of any Liabilities of Seller including, without limitation, any of the following Liabilities (collectively, the "Excluded Liabilities"):
- (a) Any Liability of Seller in respect of or otherwise arising from the operation or use of the Excluded Assets;
- (b) Any Liability of Seller arising from the making or performance of this Agreement or a Related Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby;
- (c) Any Liability of Seller under the Assigned Contracts or Assigned Leases (i) in respect of payment obligations for goods delivered or services rendered prior to the Closing Date or (ii) relating to a breach or default by Seller of any of its obligations thereunder occurring prior to the Closing Date, regardless of whether such Liability arises or is discovered on or after the Closing Date;
- (d) Except for those Assumed Liabilities set forth in Section 2.3(c), any Liability of Seller (i) for any compensation, benefits, employment Taxes, workers compensation benefits and other similar Liabilities in respect of the Transferred Employees (including under the Generation CBA, any Employee Benefit Plan of Seller, or any other agreement, plan, practice, policy, instrument or document relating to any of the Transferred Employees) to the extent arising or accruing prior to the Closing Date, (ii) relating to the Transferred Employees for which Seller is responsible under Section 5.8, or (iii) in respect of any discrimination, wrongful discharge, unfair labor practice or similar Claim under applicable employment Laws by any Transferred Employee arising out of or relating to acts or omissions occurring prior to the Closing Date;
- (e) Any Liability of Seller arising from or associated with any Intercompany Arrangement, other than Liabilities under those Assigned Contracts set forth on Schedule 2.2(j);
- (f) Any Liability of Seller for any fines or penalties imposed by a Governmental Authority resulting from (i) any investigation or proceeding pending prior to the Closing Date or (ii) illegal acts or willful misconduct of Seller prior to the Closing Date;

Attachment 1 Page 27 of 120

- (g) Any Liability for Taxes (including, with respect to property Taxes, payments in addition to or in lieu of Taxes and the Property Tax Stabilization Payments) relating to the ownership, operation, sale or use of the Acquired Assets prior to the Closing, except those Taxes for which Buyer is liable pursuant to <u>Section 2.7</u>, <u>Section 5.12</u> and <u>Section 5.13</u>;
- (h) (i) any Environmental Liability to the extent such Environmental Liability arises out of or relates to any Governmental Authority's allegation and investigation of any violations of Environmental Laws by Seller, and (ii) any Liability relating to the treatment, disposal, storage, discharge, or Release of Hazardous Substances that were generated at the Sites through ownership or operation prior to the Closing Date, including relating to recycling or the arrangement for such activities at, or the transportation to, any Offsite Disposal Facility by Seller, prior to the Closing Date (such liabilities, the "Excluded Environmental Liabilities"). For the avoidance of doubt, it is the intention of the Parties that this Section 2.4(h) shall exclusively define those Environmental Liabilities constituting Excluded Liabilities hereunder, and that no other provision of this Section 2.4 shall be construed to include any Environmental Liabilities; and
 - (i) Any Liability of Seller in respect of accounts payable or accrued expenses.
- Section 2.5 Purchase Price. In consideration for Seller's sale, assignment and transfer of the Acquired Assets to Buyer, at the Closing, Buyer shall (i) pay to Seller an aggregate amount equal to Eighty-Three Million Dollars (\$83,000,000) (the "Base Purchase Price") plus or minus amounts to account for (a) the Estimated Purchase Price Adjustment to be made as of the Closing under Section 2.6(a) and Section 2.6(b), and (b) the prorations to be made as of the Closing under Section 2.7 (the Base Purchase Price, as so adjusted, shall be referred to herein as the "Closing Purchase Price"), and (ii) assume the Assumed Liabilities. The Closing Purchase Price shall be payable in cash by wire transfer to Seller in accordance with written instructions of Seller given to Buyer at least three (3) Business Days prior to the Closing. Following the Closing, the Closing Purchase Price shall be subject to adjustment pursuant to Section 2.6(c) and Section 2.7(b), and the Closing Purchase Price, as so adjusted pursuant to such Sections, shall be herein referred to as the "Purchase Price."
- **Section 2.6** Certain Adjustments to Base Purchase Price. At the Closing, the Base Purchase Price shall be adjusted as set forth in Section 2.6(a) and Section 2.6(b), and the Closing Purchase Price shall be subject to adjustment following the Closing as set forth in Section 2.6(c).
- (a) <u>Determination of Adjustment</u>. The Base Purchase Price shall be increased to account for the following items:
 - (i) The lesser of net book value of all Inventory held by Seller with respect to the Facilities as of the Closing Date and Three Hundred Ten Thousand Dollars (\$310,000);
 - (ii) Any Permitted Capital Expenditures paid by Seller during the Interim Period; and
 - (iii) Subject to, and without limiting, Seller's obligations in <u>Section 5.5</u> to operate and maintain the Acquired Assets in the ordinary course of business consistent

Attachment 1 Page 28 of 120

with Good Utility Practice, any operations and maintenance expenses paid for by Seller during the Interim Period that Seller would not have actually paid for but for Buyer's written request.

(b) <u>Estimated Purchase Price Adjustment</u>. At least five (5) Business Days prior to the Closing Date, Seller shall prepare and deliver to Buyer a statement (the "**Estimated Closing Statement**") setting forth in reasonable detail Seller's good faith estimate of the net amount of all adjustments to the Base Purchase Price required by <u>Section 2.6(a)</u> (the "**Estimated Purchase Price Adjustment**"), together with reasonable supporting material regarding the computation thereof. In calculating the Closing Purchase Price pursuant to <u>Section 2.5</u>, the Base Purchase Price will be increased to reflect the Estimated Proration Adjustment Amount.

(c) <u>Post-Closing Adjustment.</u>

- Within sixty (60) days following the Closing Date, Seller shall prepare and deliver to Buyer a statement (the "Closing Statement") that shall set forth in reasonable detail Seller's calculation of the net amount of all adjustments to the Base Purchase Price required by <u>Section 2.6(a)</u> taking into account actual data (the "**Purchase**" Price Adjustment"), together with reasonable supporting material regarding the computation thereof. Buyer shall have thirty (30) days to review the Closing Statement following receipt thereof. On or before the end of such 30-day review period, Buyer may object to the Closing Statement by written notice to Seller (the "Objection Notice"), setting forth Buyer's specific objections to the calculation of the Purchase Price Adjustment. Such Objection Notice shall specify those items or amounts with which Buyer disagrees, together with a detailed written explanation of the reasons for disagreement with each such item or amount (and reasonable supporting material therefor), and shall set forth Buyer's calculation of the Purchase Price Adjustment based on such objections. To the extent not set forth in a timely-delivered Objection Notice, Buyer shall be deemed to have agreed with Seller's calculation of all other items and amounts contained in the Closing Statement and neither party may thereafter dispute any item or amount not set forth in such Objection Notice. If Buyer does not timely deliver any Objection Notice, Buyer shall be deemed to have agreed with and accepted Seller's calculation of the Purchase Price Adjustment, and the Closing Statement shall be final and binding on the Parties as of the end of Buyer's 30-day review period.
- (ii) If Buyer timely delivers an Objection Notice to Seller, Buyer and Seller shall, during the thirty (30) day period following such delivery (or any mutually agreed extension thereof), use their commercially reasonable efforts to negotiate and reach agreement on the disputed items and amounts in order to determine the amount of the Purchase Price Adjustment. If, at the end of such period (or any mutually agreed extension thereof), the Parties are unable to resolve their disagreements, they shall jointly retain and refer their disagreements to a nationally recognized independent accounting firm selected by Seller (the "Independent Accountant"). The Parties shall instruct the Independent Accountant to promptly review this Section 2.6 and to determine solely with respect to the disputed items and amounts so submitted whether and to what extent, if any, the Purchase Price Adjustment set forth in the Closing Statement requires adjustment. The Independent Accountant shall base its determination solely on written

Attachment 1 Page 29 of 120

submissions by Buyer and Seller. As promptly as practicable, but in no event later than thirty (30) days after its retention, the Independent Accountant shall deliver to Buyer and Seller a report which sets forth its resolution of the disputed items and amounts and its calculation of the Purchase Price Adjustment; provided that the Independent Accountant may not assign a value to any item greater than the greatest value for such item claimed by either Party or less than the smallest value for such item claimed by either Party. The decision of the Independent Accountant shall be final and binding on the Parties. The costs and expenses of the Independent Accountant shall be allocated between the Parties based upon the percentage which the portion of the contested amount not awarded to each party bears to the amount actually contested by such party, as determined by the Independent Accountant. The Parties agree to execute, if requested by the Independent Accountant, a reasonable engagement letter, including customary indemnities in favor of the Independent Accountant. The Parties shall cooperate and shall furnish each other and, if applicable, the Independent Accountant, with such documents and other records that may be reasonably requested in connection with the preparation, review and final determination of the Closing Statement and Purchase Price Adjustment and the other matters addressed in this Section 2.6.

- (iii) For purposes of this <u>Section 2.6(c)</u>, "**Final Purchase Price Adjustment**" means the Purchase Price Adjustment:
 - (A) As shown in the Closing Statement delivered by Seller to Buyer pursuant to $\underline{\text{Section 2.6(c)(i)}}$, if no Objection Notice with respect thereto is timely delivered by Buyer to Seller pursuant to $\underline{\text{Section 2.6(c)(i)}}$; or
 - (B) If an Objection Notice is so delivered, (x) as agreed by the Parties pursuant to $\underline{Section \ 2.6(c)(ii)}$ or (y) in the absence of such agreement, as shown in the Independent Accountant's report delivered pursuant to $\underline{Section \ 2.6(c)(ii)}$.
- (iv) Within three (3) Business Days after the Final Purchase Price Adjustment has been finally determined pursuant to this Section 2.6(c):
 - (A) If the Final Purchase Price Adjustment is less than the Estimated Purchase Price Adjustment, Seller shall pay to Buyer an amount equal to (x) the Estimated Purchase Price Adjustment minus (y) the Final Purchase Price Adjustment; and
 - (B) If the Final Purchase Price Adjustment is greater than the Estimated Purchase Price Adjustment, Buyer shall pay to Seller an amount equal to (x) the Final Purchase Price Adjustment minus (y) the Estimated Purchase Price Adjustment.

Any payment required to be made by a Party pursuant to this <u>Section 2.6(c)(iv)</u> shall be made to the other Party by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the account designated in writing by such other Party.

Attachment 1 Page 30 of 120

Section 2.7 Proration.

- (a) Buyer and Seller agree that all of the items (including any Prepayments with respect to such items) normally prorated in a sale of assets of the type contemplated by this Agreement, including those listed below, relating to the ownership and operation of the Acquired Assets (collectively, the "**Prorated Items**"), shall be prorated on a daily basis as of the Closing Date in accordance with this <u>Section 2.7</u>, with Seller liable to the extent such items relate to any period prior to the Closing Date, and Buyer liable to the extent such items relate to periods on and after the Closing Date:
 - (i) Personal property, real property, occupancy and water Taxes, assessments and other charges, if any, on or associated with the Acquired Assets;
 - (ii) Rent, Taxes and other items payable by or to Seller under any of the Assigned Contracts or Assigned Leases;
 - (iii) Any Permit, license, registration or other fees with respect to any Transferable Permit associated with the Acquired Assets;
 - (iv) Sewer rents and charges for water, telephone, electricity and other utilities; and
 - (v) Revenues associated with the Environmental Attributes set forth in Schedule 2.1(i).
- (b) At least five (5) Business Days prior to the Closing Date, Seller will deliver to Buyer a worksheet setting forth in reasonable detail (i) Seller's good faith reasonable estimate of the Prorated Amount for each Prorated Item (with respect to each Prorated Item, the "Estimated Prorated Amount"), together with reasonable supporting material regarding such estimate, and (ii) the calculation of the net amount of the Estimated Prorated Amounts (the "Estimated Proration Adjustment Amount"). In the event that, with respect to any Prorated Item, actual figures are not available as of the time of the calculation of the Estimated Prorated Amount, the Estimated Prorated Amount for such Prorated Item shall be a good faith reasonable estimate based upon the actual fee, cost or amount of the Prorated Item for the most recent preceding year (or appropriate period) for which an actual fee, cost or amount paid is available. In calculating the Closing Purchase Price pursuant to Section 2.5, the Base Purchase Price will be adjusted appropriately to reflect the Estimated Proration Adjustment Amount.
- (c) When the actual Prorated Amount with respect to any Prorated Item (the "Actual Prorated Amount") becomes available to either Party, it shall promptly (and in any event within ninety (90) days following Closing) notify the other Party of such Prorated Item and Actual Prorated Amount, together with reasonable detail and supporting material regarding the computation thereof. For any Prorated Item with respect to which the Estimated Prorated Amount is not equal to the Actual Prorated Amount, upon the request of either Seller or Buyer, made within thirty (30) days of the date when such Actual Prorated Amount became available to such Party (or such Party received notice of such Actual Prorated Amount from the other Party, as applicable), the Parties shall agree on an adjustment to account for the difference between the Estimated Prorated Amount and the Actual Prorated Amount for such Prorated Item. All disputes

Attachment 1 Page 31 of 120

between Seller and Buyer respecting any such requested adjustments that are not resolved by mutual agreement within sixty (60) days following the end of the foregoing ninety (90) day notice period shall be referred by the Parties to the Independent Accountant, who shall resolve such disputes and determine such final adjustment substantially in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 2.6(c)(ii), applied mutatis mutandis. Any adjustment payment to be made by Buyer or Seller, as applicable, to the other Party pursuant to this Section 2.7(c) shall be paid within ten (10) days following the Parties' agreement (or the Independent Accountant's determination) with respect thereto by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the account designated in writing by such other Party. The Parties agree to cooperate and furnish each other with such documents and other records that may be reasonably requested in order to confirm all adjustment and proration calculations made pursuant to this Section 2.7.

Section 2.8 Allocation of Purchase Price.

- (a) Buyer and Seller shall agree upon an allocation among the Acquired Assets of the sum of the Purchase Price and the Assumed Liabilities consistent with Section 1060 of the Code and the Treasury Regulations thereunder on or before the Closing Date (or any mutually agreed extension thereof). Each of Buyer and Seller agrees to file Internal Revenue Service Form 8594 and all federal, state, local and foreign Tax Returns, and to report the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements for federal income Tax and all other Tax purposes, in a manner consistent with the allocation determined pursuant to this Section 2.8 (as revised to take into account subsequent adjustments to the Purchase Price, including adjustments to the Purchase Price pursuant to Section 2.6 and Section 2.7 and any indemnification payment treated as an adjustment to the Purchase Price pursuant to Section 7.7, as mutually agreed upon by the Parties and in accordance with the provisions of the Code and the Treasury Regulations thereunder). Each of Buyer and Seller agrees to provide the other promptly with any other information required to complete Form 8594. Each of Buyer and Seller shall notify and provide the other with reasonable assistance in the event of an examination, audit or other proceeding regarding the agreed upon allocation of the Purchase Price.
- (b) In compliance with the Settlement Agreement's requirement to fairly allocate among individual assets the sale price of any assets that are sold as a group, the Parties acknowledge and agree that the portion of the Purchase Price allocable to each Facility and to the ARCO Shares for purposes of the ARCO ROFR is as set forth on Schedule 2.8(b).
- **Section 2.9** Closing. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the "Closing") shall take place at the offices of Seller, 780 N. Commercial Street, Manchester, New Hampshire 03105-0330, beginning at 10:00 a.m. local time, on the third (3rd) Business Day following the date on which all of the conditions set forth in <u>ARTICLE VI</u> have either been satisfied or expressly waived by the Party for whose benefit such condition exists (other than conditions which, by their nature, are to be satisfied at Closing, but subject to the satisfaction or waiver of those conditions), or at such other time, date or place as the Parties may mutually agree. The date of Closing is hereinafter called the "Closing Date." The Closing shall be effective for all purposes herein as of 12:01 a.m. Eastern time on the Closing Date.

Attachment 1 Page 32 of 120

Section 2.10 Deliveries by Seller at Closing. At Closing, Seller shall deliver the following to Buyer, duly executed and properly acknowledged, if appropriate:

- (a) With respect to each parcel of Real Property, a deed conveying such parcel to Buyer, substantially in the form to be agreed to by Seller and Buyer in accordance with Section 5.2(f) and otherwise in a form suitable for recording (each, a "**Deed**");
- (b) With respect to each Assigned Lease, an assignment and assumption of lease, substantially in the form to be agreed to by Seller and Buyer in accordance with <u>Section 5.2(f)</u> and otherwise in a form suitable for recording, if necessary (each, an "Assignment and Assumption of Lease");
- (c) A bill of sale transferring the tangible personal property included in the Acquired Assets to Buyer, substantially in the form to be agreed to by Seller and Buyer in accordance with Section 5.2(f) (the "Bill of Sale");
- (d) An assignment and assumption agreement pursuant to which Seller shall assign certain rights, liabilities and obligations to Buyer and Buyer shall assume the Assumed Liabilities, substantially in the form to be agreed to by Seller and Buyer in accordance with Section 5.2(f) (the "Assignment and Assumption Agreement");
- (e) An agreement between the Parties evidencing their agreement as to the demarcation of ownership with respect to certain assets not situated wholly on real property owned, or to be owned, by either Seller or Buyer, as applicable, substantially in the form to be agreed to by Seller and Buyer in accordance with <u>Section 5.2(f)</u> (the "**Asset Demarcation Agreement**");
- (f) With respect to each Facility, an agreement between the Parties respecting the interconnection of such Facility with Seller's transmission system, substantially in the applicable forms to be agreed to by Seller and Buyer in accordance with <u>Section 5.2(f)</u> (together, the "**Interconnection Agreements**");
- (g) A release of the Acquired Assets from the Lien imposed by the Mortgage Indenture, substantially in the form to be agreed to by Seller and Buyer in accordance with Section 5.2(f) (the "Release of Mortgage Indenture");
 - (h) The Easements;
 - (i) If requested by Buyer, the Transition Services Agreement;
- (j) Stock certificates evidencing the ARCO Shares, duly endorsed in blank or accompanied by stock powers or other instruments of transfer duly executed in blank;
- (k) Certificates of title for the vehicles and boats which are part of the Acquired Assets;
 - (l) Copies of all Seller Required Consents;

Attachment 1 Page 33 of 120

- (m) Seller's Transfer Tax Declarations of Consideration required under New Hampshire RSA 78-B:10 and New Hampshire Department of Revenue Administration rules (Forms CD-57-S);
- (n) A certification of non-foreign status, pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.1445-2(b)(2), with respect to Seller;
 - (o) The officer's certificate of Seller required by Section 6.1(c);
- (p) A certificate of existence and good standing with respect to Seller, as of a recent date, issued by the secretary of state or other appropriate Governmental Authority of the jurisdiction of Seller's organization, and certificates of good standing and qualification or authorization to do business (or the equivalent certificates) with respect to Seller, each as of a recent date, issued by the secretary of state or similar Governmental Authority in each other jurisdiction where the actions to be performed hereunder make such qualification or authorization necessary;
- (q) A copy, certified by the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of Seller, of corporate resolutions authorizing the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Related Agreements and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby;
- (r) A certificate of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of Seller which shall identify by name and title and bear the signature of the officers of Seller authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement and the Related Agreements; and
- (s) All such other instruments or documents as Buyer and its counsel may reasonably request in order to give effect to the transfer of the Acquired Assets as contemplated hereby or to otherwise facilitate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements; *provided, however*, that this Section 2.10(s) shall not require Seller to prepare or obtain any surveys relating to the Real Property or Leased Real Property other than those previously provided to Buyer.
- **Section 2.11 Deliveries by Buyer at Closing**. At Closing, Buyer shall deliver to Seller, duly executed and properly acknowledged, if appropriate:
 - (a) The Closing Purchase Price in accordance with Section 2.5;
- (b) The Assignment and Assumption of Lease respecting each Assigned Lease;
 - (c) The Bill of Sale;
 - (d) The Assignment and Assumption Agreement;
 - (e) The Asset Demarcation Agreement;
 - (f) The Interconnection Agreements;

Attachment 1 Page 34 of 120

- (g) The Easements;
- (h) If requested by Buyer, the Transition Services Agreement;
- (i) Copies of all Buyer Required Consents;
- (j) Evidence of Buyer's membership in NEPOOL;
- (k) Buyer's Transfer Tax Declarations of Consideration required under New Hampshire RSA 78-B:10 and New Hampshire Department of Revenue Administration rules (Forms CD-57-P) and Inventory of Property Transfer Forms (Forms PA-34);
- (l) All applicable exemption certificates with respect to Taxes that would otherwise be imposed with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;
 - (m) The officer's certificate of Buyer required by Section 6.2(c);
- (n) A certificate of existence and good standing with respect to Buyer, as of a recent date, issued by the secretary of state or other appropriate Governmental Authority of the jurisdiction of Buyer's organization, and certificates of good standing and qualification or authorization to do business (or the equivalent certificates) with respect to Buyer, each as of a recent date, issued by the secretary of state or similar Governmental Authority in each other jurisdiction where the actions to be performed hereunder make such qualification or authorization necessary;
- (o) A copy, certified by the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of Buyer, of resolutions authorizing the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Related Agreements and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby;
- (p) A certificate of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of Buyer which shall identify by name and title and bear the signature of the officers of Seller authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement and the Related Agreements; and
- (q) All such other instruments or documents as Seller and its counsel may reasonably request in order to give effect to the transfer of the Acquired Assets or the assumption of the Assumed Liabilities as contemplated hereby or to otherwise facilitate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements.

ARTICLE III REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER

Seller represents and warrants to Buyer that the statements contained in this <u>ARTICLE</u> <u>III</u> are true and correct as of the Effective Date and as of the Closing Date, except as set forth in the Schedules.

Section 3.1 Organization and Existence. Seller is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of the State of New Hampshire. Seller is duly qualified or authorized to do business in each other jurisdiction in which the ownership or

Attachment 1 Page 35 of 120

operation of the Acquired Assets make such qualification or authorization necessary, except in those jurisdictions where the failure to be so duly qualified or authorized would not have a Material Adverse Effect

Section 3.2 Authority and Enforceability. Seller has the corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and the Related Agreements to which it is a party and, subject to receipt of the Seller Required Consents, to perform its obligations hereunder and thereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. All corporate actions or proceedings to be taken by or on the part of Seller to authorize and permit the due execution and valid delivery by Seller of this Agreement and the Related Agreements to which it is a party, the performance by Seller of its obligations hereunder and thereunder, and the consummation by Seller of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly and properly taken. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by Seller and, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by Buyer and receipt of the Seller Required Consents, constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of Seller, enforceable against Seller in accordance with its terms and conditions, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance or other similar Laws relating to creditors' rights generally and general principles of equity, whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law. When each Related Agreement to which Seller is a party has been duly executed and delivered by Seller, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by each other party thereto and receipt of the Seller Required Consents, such Related Agreement will constitute the valid and legally binding obligation of Seller, enforceable against Seller in accordance with its terms and conditions, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance or other similar Laws relating to creditors' rights generally and general principles of equity, whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.

- Section 3.3 No Conflicts; Consents and Approvals. Assuming all of the Consents of the Governmental Authorities and other Persons set forth on Schedule 3.3 (the "Seller Required Consents") have been obtained, and assuming the truth and accuracy of Buyer's representations and warranties set forth herein, the execution and delivery by Seller of this Agreement and the Related Agreements to which it is or will be a party do not and will not, the performance by Seller of its obligations hereunder and thereunder will not, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby will not:
- (a) conflict with or result in a violation or breach of any of the terms, conditions or provisions of the Organizational Documents of Seller;
- (b) (i) conflict with, result in a breach of, constitute a default under, result in the acceleration of, or create in any Person the right to accelerate, terminate, modify, revoke, suspend or cancel (with or without giving of notice, the lapse of time or both), any material Contract to which Seller is bound or to which any of the Acquired Assets is subject, (ii) conflict with or result in a violation or breach of any Law, Order or Permit to which Seller or any of the Acquired Assets is subject, or (iii) require the Consent of any Governmental Authority under any applicable Law; or

Attachment 1 Page 36 of 120

(c) result in the imposition or creation of any Lien on any Acquired Asset, other than any Permitted Lien.

Section 3.4 Legal Proceedings. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.4, there is no Claim pending or, to Seller's Knowledge, threatened against Seller (a) that relates to any Facility or any of the Acquired Assets or that would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect, or (b) that, as of the Effective Date, seeks an Order restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting or making illegal any of the transactions contemplated hereby. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.4, neither Seller (to the extent relating to the Acquired Assets or the Business) nor any of the Acquired Assets are bound by any Order (other than any Order of general applicability). As of the Effective Date, Seller is not subject to any Order that prohibits the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. None of the representations and warranties set forth in this Section 3.4 shall be deemed to relate to (i) Tax matters, which are addressed in Section 3.10, (ii) environmental matters, which are addressed in Section 3.11, (iii) employment and labor matters, which are addressed in Section 3.13.

Section 3.5 Compliance with Laws; Permits.

- (a) Except as set forth on <u>Schedule 3.5(a)</u>, Seller is in compliance in all material respects with all Laws applicable to the Acquired Assets and Seller's ownership and operation thereof.
- (b) <u>Schedule 3.5(b)</u> lists all Permits (other than Environmental Permits) that are material to the ownership and operation of the Acquired Assets, and identifies those material Permits that are Transferable Permits. The Permits listed in <u>Schedule 3.5(b)</u> are in full force and effect. Seller is in compliance in all material respects with the terms of all Permits listed in <u>Schedule 3.5(b)</u>.
- (c) None of the representations and warranties set forth in this <u>Section 3.5</u> shall be deemed to relate to (i) Tax matters, which are addressed in <u>Section 3.10</u>, (ii) environmental matters, which are addressed in <u>Section 3.11</u>, (iii) employment and labor matters, which are addressed in <u>Section 3.12</u>, or (iv) employee benefits matters, which are addressed in Section 3.13.
- **Section 3.6 Title to Acquired Assets**. Except for Permitted Liens, Seller has valid title to the Real Property, and leasehold interests in the Leased Real Property, free and clear of Liens other than Permitted Liens. Seller has valid title to, valid leasehold interests in or valid licenses or rights to use all other Acquired Assets, free and clear of Liens other than Permitted Liens.
- Section 3.7 Assets Used in Operation of the Facilities. Except as set forth in Schedule 3.7, (a) the Acquired Assets include all of the material assets and properties that are used by Seller in the operation of the Facilities and necessary for the operation of the Business, and (b) all Acquired Assets that constitute tangible personal property are currently located at (or are in transit to) the Facilities and no such Acquired Assets intended for the Facilities are being held by Third Parties.

Attachment 1 Page 37 of 120

Section 3.8 Material Contracts.

- (a) Except (i) as listed in <u>Schedule 2.1(b)</u> or <u>Schedule 2.1(e)</u>, (ii) for Contracts that will expire or be fully performed prior to the Closing Date, (iii) for Contracts that can be terminated upon sixty (60) days' or less notice without liability, and (iv) for Contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business that will not by their terms extend more than two (2) years beyond the Closing Date and whose payment obligations do not exceed Three Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$300,000) individually or One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) in the aggregate, Seller is not a party to any Contract that is material to the ownership or operation of the Acquired Assets as owned and operated by Seller on the Effective Date.
- (b) Except as described in <u>Schedule 3.8(b)</u>, and assuming all Seller Required Consents required in connection with each Material Contract are obtained prior to Closing, (i) each Material Contract (except to the extent such Material Contract terminates or expires after the Effective Date in accordance with its terms) is in full force and effect and is a valid and binding obligation of Seller and, to Seller's Knowledge, of the other parties thereto, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance or other similar Laws relating to creditors' rights generally and general principles of equity, whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law, (ii) neither Seller nor, to Seller's Knowledge, any other party thereto, is in violation of or default under any Material Contract, and (iii) each Material Contract may be assigned to Buyer pursuant to this Agreement without breaching the terms thereof or resulting in the forfeiture or impairment of any material rights thereunder. No Material Contract has been terminated, repudiated, rescinded, amended or modification is contemplated.
- Section 3.9 Insurance. The Acquired Assets are insured to the extent specified under the material insurance policies listed on Schedule 3.9. No written notice of cancellation or termination has been received by Seller with respect to any such policy that has not been replaced on substantially similar terms prior to the date of such cancellation or termination. Schedule 3.9 sets forth a list of all pending claims that have been made under any such policy with respect to the Acquired Assets. Except as described in Schedule 3.9, Seller has not been refused any material insurance with respect to the Acquired Assets, nor has coverage with respect to the Acquired Assets been limited in any material respect by any insurance carrier to which Seller has applied for any such insurance or with which it has carried insurance, in each case, during the twelve (12) months ending on the Effective Date.
- **Section 3.10 Taxes**. Seller has filed all Tax Returns that it was required to file with respect to the Acquired Assets and has paid all Taxes that have become due as indicated thereon (except where Seller is contesting such Taxes in good faith by appropriate proceedings), where the failure to so file or pay would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect or result in any Liability to Buyer. There is no unpaid Tax due and payable that would reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect or for which Buyer could become liable. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.10, there is no audit or other Claim now pending with respect to any material Tax respecting the Acquired Assets. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, this Section 3.10 contains the sole and exclusive representations and warranties of Seller relating to Tax matters.

Attachment 1 Page 38 of 120

Section 3.11 Environmental Matters.

- (a) <u>Schedule 3.11(a)</u> lists all Environmental Permits that are material to the ownership and operation of the Acquired Assets, and identifies those material Environmental Permits that are Transferable Permits. Except as set forth on <u>Schedule 3.11(a)</u>, the Environmental Permits listed in <u>Schedule 3.11(a)</u> are in full force and effect.
- Except as disclosed on Schedule 3.11(b), during the past five (5) years, (b) with respect to the Acquired Assets: (i) Seller has not received any written notice from any Governmental Authority that it is not in compliance with Environmental Laws or that it failed to obtain material Environmental Permits; (ii) Seller has not received any written notice from any Governmental Authority that any Acquired Asset is listed under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation Liability Information Systems or any similar state list; (iii) Seller has not received written notice from any Person alleging Liability for any Environmental Claims and no Environmental Claims are pending or, to Seller's Knowledge, threatened, against Seller by any Governmental Authority or third party under any Environmental Laws; and (iv) Seller was not required by any applicable Environmental Laws to place any use or activities restrictions or any institutional controls on any Acquired Assets. Except as disclosed on Schedule 3.11(b), with respect to the Acquired Assets, there has been no occurrence of any the events described in clauses (i) – (iv) of the previous sentence at any time during Seller's ownership of the Acquired Assets which are not finally resolved or satisfied. Except as described in Schedule 3.11(b), Seller has no Knowledge of any matters which could give rise to material Environmental Liabilities.
- (c) To the Seller's Knowledge, there has been no Release of Hazardous Substances in violation of Environmental Laws at any of the Facilities that has not been duly and finally resolved to a condition of "No Further Action Required" or equivalent under applicable Environmental Laws.
- (d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, this <u>Section 3.11</u> contains the sole and exclusive representations and warranties of Seller relating to Environmental Laws, Environmental Permits, Hazardous Substances or other environmental matters.

Section 3.12 Employment and Labor Matters.

(a) <u>Schedule 3.12(a)</u> sets forth (i) a list, organized by job classification at each Facility, of all employees of Seller who are represented by the Union and employed under the terms of the Generation CBA, and who are primarily employed in the operation or support of the Facilities as of the Effective Date (the "**Represented Scheduled Employees**"), and (ii) a list of all other employees of Seller or Eversource Service who are primarily employed in the operation or support of the Facilities as of the Effective Date, but are not represented by the Union (the "**Non-Represented Scheduled Employees**" and, together with the Represented Scheduled Employees, the "**Scheduled Employees**"), which list shall be amended during the Interim Period to reflect any changes thereto, to the extent such changes are not in violation of any applicable covenants in <u>Section 5.5</u>. Except as set forth on <u>Schedule 3.12(a)</u>, there are no agreements or contracts for employment between Seller, on the one hand, and any Non-Represented Scheduled

Attachment 1 Page 39 of 120

Employee, on the other which require the Buyer to pay any severance or other amounts following termination of such Non-Represented Scheduled Employee's employment.

- The Generation CBA is the only collective bargaining agreement to which Seller is a party and which governs terms and conditions of employment of any Scheduled Employees listed in part (i) of Schedule 3.12(a), and Seller is not a party to any other collective bargaining agreement that is applicable to any other Scheduled Employee. Except as described in Schedule 3.12(b): (i) Seller has not experienced any strikes or work stoppages at any of the Facilities due to labor disagreements in the past five (5) years and to Seller's Knowledge none is currently pending or threatened; (ii) Seller is in compliance in all material respects with all applicable Laws respecting employment and employment practices, equal employment opportunity, occupational health and safety and affirmative action, terms and conditions of employment and wages and hours with respect to the Scheduled Employees; (iii) Seller is not currently subject to any pending, or to Seller's Knowledge threatened, unfair labor practice charge or complaint against Seller before the National Labor Relations Board or any other Governmental Authority with respect to the Scheduled Employees; (iv) no arbitration proceeding arising out of or under the Generation CBA is pending or, to Seller's Knowledge threatened, against Seller with respect to the Scheduled Employees; and (v) Seller is in compliance in all material respects with the Generation CBA.
- (c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, this <u>Section 3.12</u> contains the sole and exclusive representations and warranties of Seller relating to employment and labor matters.
- Section 3.13 Employee Benefit Plans. Schedule 3.13 lists, as of the Effective Date, all Employee Benefit Plans established, sponsored, maintained or contributed to (or required to be contributed to) by Seller in respect of the Scheduled Employees. True and complete copies of all such Employee Benefit Plans have been Made Available to Buyer. Seller does not contribute to, and has no obligation to contribute to, a "multiemployer plan" within the meaning of Section 3(37) of ERISA. No liability under Title IV or Section 302 of ERISA or Section 412 of the Code has been incurred by Seller with respect to the Scheduled Employees that has not been satisfied in full, and to Seller's Knowledge no condition exists that presents a material risk to Seller of incurring any such liability, other than liability for premiums due the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation, which premiums have been paid. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, this Section 3.13 contains the sole and exclusive representations and warranties of Seller relating to employee benefits matters.
- **Section 3.14 Condemnation**. Seller has received no written notice from any Governmental Authority of any pending or threatened proceeding to condemn or take by power of eminent domain or otherwise, by any Governmental Authority, all or any part of the Acquired Assets.
- **Section 3.15 Regulatory Status**. Seller is a "public utility" under New Hampshire RSA 362:2 and is subject to regulation as such by the NHPUC. With respect to Canaan Station, Seller is a "public service corporation" under the laws of Vermont and is subject to regulation as such by the VTPUC. Seller is an "electric utility company" that is a "subsidiary company" of a "holding company" which is registered under (and as those terms are defined in) the Public

Attachment 1 Page 40 of 120

Utility Holding Company Act of 2005, and is subject to regulation as such by FERC. With respect to the Facilities and the Business, Seller has authorization from FERC to charge marketbased rates for wholesale sales of capacity and energy in a final order, no longer subject to rehearing or appeal. Seller is not subject to any pending action, and to Seller's Knowledge, no such action is threatened, in either case by FERC, NERC, any independent system operator or regional transmission organization, any state utility, or any state public services commission in any manner relating to the Facilities or the Business, and Seller is in compliance in all material respects with the requirements under the Federal Power Act, applicable to a "public utility" with authority to sell wholesale electric power, capacity and ancillary services at market-based rates and is in compliance in all material respects with all requirements of any federal, state, independent system operator or regional transmission organization related to the generation or sale of wholesale power, in each case to the extent related to the Business. To Seller's Knowledge, there has been no Claim or conduct by any Person that would serve as the basis for any Claim against Seller before FERC. All material filings required to be made within the last three (3) calendar years with the FERC under the Federal Power Act, the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 2005, the Department of Energy or any applicable state public utility commissions, as the case may be, have been made, including all material forms, statements, reports, agreements and all material documents, exhibits, amendments and supplements appertaining thereto, including all rates, tariffs and related documents, in each case to the extent related to the Business, and all such filings complied in all material respects, as of their respective dates, with applicable requirements of applicable Law.

Section 3.16 ARCO Shares. Seller is the sole record and beneficial owner of the ARCO Shares, free and clear of Liens other than Permitted Liens. The ARCO By-Laws are in full force and effect, have not been terminated, repudiated, rescinded, amended or modified, and no such termination, repudiation, rescission, amendment or modification is contemplated. Other than the ARCO Bylaws, there are no agreements among or binding upon all of the shareholders of ARCO (in their capacity as such). Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, Section 3.2, Section 3.3, Section 3.4 and this Section 3.16 contain the sole and exclusive representations and warranties of Seller relating to ARCO and the ARCO Shares.

Section 3.17 Brokers. Except for the fees and expenses of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, for which Seller is solely responsible, Seller does not have any Liability to pay fees or commissions to any broker, finder or agent with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Related Agreements for which Buyer could become liable or obligated.

Section 3.18 Complete Copies. True and complete copies of the Material Contracts, the Assigned Leases, the Transferable Permits and the Generation CBA have been Made Available to Buyer.

Section 3.19 Exclusive Representations and Warranties. It is the explicit intent of each Party hereto that Seller is not making any representation or warranty whatsoever, express or implied, respecting the Business, the Acquired Assets, the Assumed Liabilities or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements, except those representations and warranties expressly set forth in this <u>ARTICLE III</u>.

Attachment 1 Page 41 of 120

ARTICLE IV REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BUYER

Buyer represents and warrants to Seller that the statements contained in this ARTICLE IV are true and correct as of the Effective Date and the Closing Date.

- **Section 4.1 Organization and Existence**. Buyer is a limited liability company duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of the State of Delaware. Buyer is duly qualified or authorized to do business in each other jurisdiction where the actions to be performed hereunder make such qualification or authorization necessary.
- Authority and Enforceability. Buyer has the limited liability company power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and the Related Agreements to which it is a party, to perform its obligations hereunder and thereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. All limited liability company actions or proceedings to be taken by or on the part of Buyer to authorize and permit the due execution and valid delivery by Buyer of this Agreement and the Related Agreements to which it is a party, the performance by Buyer of its obligations hereunder and thereunder, and the consummation by Buyer of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly and properly taken. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by Buyer and, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by Seller, constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of Buyer, enforceable against Buyer in accordance with its terms and conditions, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance or other similar Laws relating to creditors' rights generally and general principles of equity, whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law. When each Related Agreement to which Buyer is a party has been duly executed and delivered by Buyer, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by each other party thereto, such Related Agreement will constitute the valid and legally binding obligation of Buyer, enforceable against Buyer in accordance with its terms and conditions, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance or other similar Laws relating to creditors' rights generally and general principles of equity, whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.
- **Section 4.3 Noncontravention**. The execution and delivery by Buyer of this Agreement and the Related Agreements to which it is or will be a party do not and will not, the performance by Buyer of its obligations hereunder and thereunder will not, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby will not:
- (a) conflict with or result in a violation or breach of any of the terms, conditions or provisions of the Organizational Documents of Buyer;
- (b) conflict with, result in a breach of, constitute a default under, result in the acceleration of, or create in any Person the right to accelerate, terminate, modify, revoke, suspend or cancel (with or without giving of notice, the lapse of time or both), any Contract to which Buyer is bound or to which any of its assets is subject, except as would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on Buyer's ability to perform its obligations hereunder; or

Attachment 1 Page 42 of 120

- (c) assuming all of the Consents of the Governmental Authorities set forth on Schedule 4.3(c) (the "Buyer Required Consents") have been obtained, (i) conflict with or result in a violation or breach of any Law, Order or Permit to which Buyer or any of its assets is subject, or (ii) require the Consent of any Governmental Authority under any applicable Law; except, in the case of each of clauses (i) and (ii), as would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on Buyer's ability to perform its obligations hereunder.
- **Section 4.4 Legal Proceedings**. Buyer has not been served with notice of any Claim and no Claim is pending or, to Buyer's knowledge, threatened, against Buyer (a) that seeks an Order restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting or making illegal any of the transactions contemplated hereby or (b) that would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on Buyer's ability to perform its obligations hereunder. Buyer is not bound by any Order that prohibits the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or that would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on Buyer's ability to perform its obligations hereunder.
- **Section 4.5 Compliance with Laws**. Buyer is not in violation of any Law applicable to Buyer or its assets the effect of which, individually or in the aggregate, would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on Buyer's ability to perform its obligations hereunder.
- **Section 4.6 Brokers**. Neither Buyer nor any of its Affiliates has any Liability to pay fees or commissions to any broker, finder or agent with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement for which Seller or its Affiliates could become liable or obligated.
- **Section 4.7 Availability of Funds**. Buyer has, and at the Closing will have, (a) cash on hand or other sources of immediately available funds in amounts sufficient to pay the full amount of the Purchase Price as well as any related fees, costs and expenses incurred by Buyer in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, and (b) the resources and capabilities (financial or otherwise) to perform its obligations (including the Assumed Liabilities) under this Agreement and any Related Agreements. Buyer acknowledges and agrees that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, its obligation to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby is not subject to Buyer or any of its Affiliates obtaining any financing, or to any other contingency or condition respecting financing or availability of funds.
- **Section 4.8 Qualified Buyer**. To Buyer's knowledge, Buyer is qualified to obtain any Permits necessary for Buyer to own and operate the Acquired Assets as of the Closing, to the extent required by any Related Agreement or this Agreement, or is contemplated by Buyer.
- **Section 4.9 Governmental Approvals**. As of the Effective Date, neither Buyer nor any of its Affiliates is a party to any Contract respecting the construction, development, acquisition, ownership or operation of any power facility or related asset that would reasonably be expected to cause a delay in any Governmental Authority's granting of a Buyer Required Consent or Seller Required Consent, and neither Buyer nor any of its Affiliates has any plans or has engaged in any discussions to enter into any such Contract prior to the Closing Date.

Attachment 1 Page 43 of 120

Section 4.10 WARN Act. Buyer does not intend, with respect to the Acquired Assets or Transferred Employees, to engage in a "plant closing" or "mass layoff," as such terms are defined in the WARN Act, within sixty (60) days after the Closing Date.

Section 4.11 Independent Investigation. Buyer is a sophisticated Person, knowledgeable about the industry in which Seller operates, experienced in investments in such businesses, and able to bear the economic risks associated with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements. Buyer has such knowledge and experience as to be aware of the risks and uncertainties inherent in the acquisition of the Acquired Assets, the assumption of the Assumed Liabilities, and the rights and obligations of the type contemplated in this Agreement. Buyer has conducted to its satisfaction, independently and without reliance on Seller or its Representatives (except to the extent that Buyer has relied on the representations and warranties of Seller set forth in ARTICLE III hereof), its own investigation, review and analysis of the Facilities, the Acquired Assets and the Assumed Liabilities, and based on such investigation, review and analysis, has formed an independent judgment concerning the assets, Liabilities, condition, operations and prospects of the Acquired Assets and the ownership and operation thereof. In making its decision to execute this Agreement and the Related Agreements and to enter into the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, Buyer has relied and will rely solely upon the results of such independent investigation, review and analysis and the terms and conditions of this Agreement (including the representations and warranties of Seller set forth in ARTICLE III hereof) and the Related Agreements. Buyer acknowledges that it has had reasonable and sufficient access to the Facilities, the Acquired Assets and documents and other information and materials in connection therewith, that all documents and other information and materials requested by Buyer have been provided to Buyer to its satisfaction, and that it and its Representatives have had the opportunity to meet with the personnel and Representatives of Seller to discuss and ask questions concerning the foregoing.

Section 4.12 Disclaimer Regarding Projections. Buyer may be in possession of certain plans, projections and other forecasts regarding the Acquired Assets and the Assumed Liabilities, including estimates, budgets of future revenues, expenses or expenditures, projections of future results of operations (or any component thereof), future cash flows (or any component thereof) or future financial condition (or any component thereof). Buyer acknowledges that there are substantial uncertainties inherent in attempting to make such plans, projections and other forecasts, that Buyer is familiar with such uncertainties, that Buyer is taking full responsibility for making its own independent evaluation of the adequacy and accuracy of all plans, projections and other forecasts so furnished to it, and that Buyer shall have no claim against Seller, its Affiliates or their respective Representatives with respect thereto. Accordingly, Buyer acknowledges that without limiting the generality of this Section 4.12, neither Seller nor any of its Affiliates has made any representation or warranty with respect to such plans, projections or other forecasts.

Section 4.13 Investment Purposes; No Distribution. Buyer acknowledges that the ARCO Shares being acquired pursuant to this Agreement have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933 or under any state or foreign securities Laws, and that the ARCO Shares may not be transferred, assigned, sold, offered for sale, pledged or otherwise disposed of except pursuant to the registration provisions of the Securities Act of 1933 and any applicable state or foreign securities Laws or pursuant to an applicable exemption from registration under the

Attachment 1 Page 44 of 120

Securities Act of 1933 and any applicable state or foreign securities Laws. Buyer is purchasing the ARCO Shares for its own account for investment purposes and not with a view to any public resale or other distribution thereof. Buyer is an "accredited investor" as defined under Rule 501 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, is able to bear the economic risk of holding the ARCO Shares for an indefinite period (including total loss of its investment), and has sufficient knowledge and experience in financial and business matters so as to be capable of evaluating the merits and risk of such investment.

ARTICLE V COVENANTS

Section 5.1 Closing Conditions. From the Effective Date until the Closing (the "**Interim Period**"), subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, each Party shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to take such actions as are necessary, proper or advisable in order to expeditiously consummate and make effective the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements (including satisfaction, but not waiver, of those closing conditions set forth in ARTICLE VI).

Section 5.2 Notices, Consents and Approvals. During the Interim Period:

Subject to Section 5.2(c), during the Interim Period, each Party will and (a) will cause its respective applicable Affiliates to, in order to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements, provide reasonable cooperation to the other Party, and proceed diligently and in good faith and use all reasonable best efforts, as promptly as practicable, to (i) obtain the Buyer Required Consents and the Seller Required Consents, (ii) make all required filings with, and give all required notices to, the applicable Governmental Authorities or other Persons required to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements, and (iii) cooperate in good faith with the applicable Governmental Authorities or other Persons and promptly provide such other information and communications to such Governmental Authorities or other Persons as such Governmental Authorities or other Persons may reasonably request in connection with the foregoing. The Parties will provide prompt notification to each other when any such Consent referred to in this Section 5.2(a) is obtained, taken, made, given or denied, as applicable, and will, subject to Section 5.2(b), promptly advise each other of any material communications (in oral or written form) with any Governmental Authority or other Person regarding any of the transactions contemplated under this Agreement or the Related Agreements.

(b) In furtherance of the covenants set forth in Section 5.2(a):

(i) As soon as practicable following the Effective Date, Buyer and Seller shall prepare all necessary filings in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements that may be required to be filed by such Party with applicable Governmental Authorities or under any applicable Laws. Such filings shall be submitted as soon as practicable following the Effective Date, but in no event later than thirty (30) days thereafter (subject to extension by mutual written agreement. The Parties shall (A) request expedited treatment of any such filings (where applicable), (B) subject to applicable Law and the instructions of any Governmental

Attachment 1 Page 45 of 120

Authority, keep each other apprised of the status of matters relating to such filings, including by promptly furnishing each other with copies of any notices, correspondence or other written communication from the relevant Governmental Authority, (C) promptly make any appropriate or necessary subsequent or supplemental filings, submissions or responses to any Governmental Authority, and (D) cooperate in the preparation of such filings, submissions or responses as is reasonably necessary and appropriate, including by making available to the other Party such information as the other Party may reasonably request in order to complete such filings or respond to information requests by any Governmental Authority. Prior to making any material filing, submission, response or other communication to any Governmental Authority (or members of their respective staffs) in oral or written form, each Party will permit the other Party (or its counsel) a reasonable opportunity to review and provide comments on such proposed filing, submission, response or other communication, and will consult with and consider in good faith the views of the other Party in connection therewith. Each Party will consult with the other Party in advance of any material meeting or conference (in person or by telephone) with any such Governmental Authority, and to the extent not prohibited by Law or such Governmental Authority, give the other Party the opportunity to attend and to participate in such meetings and conferences. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither Buyer nor Seller shall be obligated to share any information, filing, submission or response with the other Party if a Governmental Authority objects to the sharing of such information, filing, submission or response or if prohibited by applicable Law.

- (ii) The Parties shall not, and shall cause their respective Affiliates not to, take any action that would reasonably be expected to materially adversely affect or delay the Consent of any Governmental Authority with respect to any of the filings referred to in <u>Section 5.2(a)</u>. In addition, Buyer shall not knowingly take any action that would reasonably be expected to materially adversely affect or delay the Consent of any Governmental Authority with respect to any other asset sales being undertaken by Seller.
- (iii) Except as set forth in <u>Section 9.1</u> or as otherwise set forth in this <u>Section 5.2</u>, each Party shall bear its own fees, costs and all other expenses (including filing fees, transfer fees, legal fees and other filing preparation costs) associated with any Consents or other actions contemplated by this <u>Section 5.2</u> in connection with or otherwise related to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements.
- (c) In addition to the covenants set forth in Section 5.2(a) and Section 5.2(b), Buyer and Seller, as applicable, shall undertake promptly any and all actions required to complete lawfully the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements prior to the Outside Date, including by (i) responding to and complying with, as promptly as reasonably practicable, any request for information or documentary material regarding such transactions from any relevant Governmental Authority (including, if applicable, responding to any "second request" for additional information or documentary material under the HSR Act as promptly as reasonably practicable), (ii) causing the prompt expiration or termination (including requesting early termination and/or approvals thereof) of any applicable waiting period and clearance or approval by any relevant Governmental Authority, including defense against, and the resolution of, any objections or challenges, in court or otherwise, by any relevant

Attachment 1 Page 46 of 120

Governmental Authority or other Person preventing consummation of such transactions, and (iii) making any necessary post-Closing filing or proffering and consenting to an Order providing for the sale or other disposition, or the holding separate, of particular assets, categories of assets or lines of business, including the Acquired Assets or any other assets or lines of business of Buyer or any of its Affiliates, in order to mitigate or otherwise remedy any requirements of, or concerns of, any Governmental Authority, or proffering and consenting to any other restriction, prohibition or limitation on any of the Acquired Assets, or on Buyer or any of Buyer's Affiliates or any of their respective assets, in order to mitigate or remedy such requirements or concerns. The entry by any Governmental Authority in any legal proceeding of an Order permitting the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and/or any of the Related Agreements but which is subject to certain conditions or requires Buyer or any of its Affiliates to take any action, including any restructuring of the Acquired Assets or lines of business of Buyer or any of its Affiliates or any changes to the existing business of Buyer or any of its Affiliates, shall not be deemed a failure to satisfy the conditions specified in ARTICLE VI. For the avoidance of doubt, Buyer shall not take any action with respect to its obligations under this Section 5.2(c) which would bind Seller or any of its Affiliates irrespective of whether the transactions contemplated hereby occur.

- (d) Buyer further agrees that neither it nor any of its Affiliates shall, prior to Closing, enter into any other Contract to acquire or market or control the output of, nor acquire or market or control the output of, electric generating facilities or uncommitted generation capacity in the ISO-NE market if the proposed acquisition or ability to market or control output of such additional electric generating facilities or uncommitted generation capacity in such market could reasonably be expected to increase the market power attributable to Buyer and its Affiliates in such market in a manner materially adverse to approval of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements by any relevant Governmental Authority or Counterparty or that would reasonably be expected to prevent or otherwise materially interfere with, or materially delay the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.
- During the Interim Period, Buyer and Seller shall cooperate and use their (e) commercially reasonable efforts to secure the transfer or reissuance of the Transferable Permits to Buyer (including obtaining any necessary Consents thereto), or the substitution of Buyer for Seller where appropriate on pending applications for such Transferable Permits or renewals thereof, effective as of the Closing Date. If the Parties are unable to secure the transfer, reissuance or substitution respecting one or more Transferable Permits effective as of the Closing Date, Seller shall continue to reasonably cooperate with Buyer's efforts to secure such transfer, reissuance or substitution following the Closing Date. Each Party agrees that it will accept the terms of all Transferable Permits as existing on the Effective Date relating to the operation of the Acquired Assets, and that it will not seek to amend any of such terms in connection with filings with Governmental Authorities relating to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements, other than as necessary to effect the transfer or reissuance thereof to Buyer. In addition, with respect to any Transferable Permits for which the date for renewal will have passed by the Closing Date, Seller and Buyer shall cooperate to file by the Closing Date all applications with Governmental Authorities necessary to renew such Transferable Permits in a timely fashion without any material modifications to the terms thereof, except as may be required by applicable Law or to effect the renewal of such Permit in the name of Buyer.

Attachment 1 Page 47 of 120

(f) Promptly after the Effective Date and during the Interim Period, Buyer and Seller will in good faith negotiate the terms and conditions of the Related Agreements, Easements and easement plans with the intention of the forms of each being final on or before the thirtieth (30th) day after the Effective Date.

Section 5.3 Assigned Contracts.

- (a) During the Interim Period, Buyer and Seller shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all required Consents to the assignment to Buyer of the Assigned Contracts from the applicable counterparties thereto (each, a "Counterparty"), effective as of the Closing Date, in accordance with the following:
 - (i) Seller shall have primary responsibility for obtaining all necessary Consents to the assignment of Material Contracts, *provided* that Buyer shall cooperate with Seller's efforts in this regard and shall use commercially reasonable efforts to assist Seller when so requested by Seller. Seller shall have primary responsibility for obtaining all necessary Consents to the assignment of Other Assigned Contracts, and in furtherance thereof, to the maximum extent permitted by Law and each applicable Other Assigned Contract, Seller appoints Buyer as Seller's agent to obtain all required Consents of any Counterparty to each of the Other Assigned Contracts for the assignment thereof to Buyer effective as of the Closing Date, which Seller shall pursue, using commercially reasonable efforts, in accordance with a mutually agreed protocol and form letters to be sent to such Counterparties.
 - (ii) To the extent that any Assigned Contract relates to assets or services that are both used in the operations of one or more Facilities and used by Seller in its other operations, the Parties shall cooperate and use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the required Consent for any partial assignment, apportionment or other arrangement as may be necessary or practicable to permit Buyer to obtain such portion of assets or services necessary for the continued operation of such Facilities on and after the Closing Date, and to permit Seller to retain such other rights or portion of the assets or services to continue its operations on and after the Closing Date, it being understood that the portion of each such Assigned Contract relating to Buyer's continued operation of such Facilities on and after the Closing Date must be assigned to or otherwise obtained by Buyer as of the Closing pursuant to Section 2.1(e), and Schedule 2.1(e) (with respect to Material Contracts) shall be updated accordingly.
 - (iii) Seller shall reasonably cooperate with Buyer in providing any notices to Counterparties as may be required by the terms of any Assigned Contract or as Buyer (acting reasonably) may deem necessary or advisable, including notices providing Counterparties with updated notice information and updated bank account information to which any applicable payments should be made by such Counterparties. Buyer shall, where necessary, enter into a master agreement or similar enabling agreement with any Counterparty, on substantially the same terms as those in place on the Effective Date in a master or enabling agreement between Seller and such Counterparty, in connection with the assignment to Buyer of one or more purchase orders or similar Contracts subject to such master agreement or enabling agreement with Seller.

Attachment 1 Page 48 of 120

- (iv) For the avoidance of doubt, it is specifically acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that neither Party shall be obligated to incur, pay, reimburse or provide or cause any of their respective Affiliates to incur, pay, reimburse or provide, any liability, compensation, consideration or charge to obtain the Consent of any Counterparty to the assignment of any Assigned Contract except to the extent set forth in or required by the terms of such Assigned Contract.
- To the extent that Seller's rights under any Contract included as an Acquired Asset may not be assigned without the Consent of another Person, and such Consent has not been obtained by the Closing, this Agreement shall not constitute an agreement to assign the same if an attempted assignment would constitute a breach thereof or be unlawful or ineffective (or would otherwise impair Buyer's rights and obligations thereunder), and such Contract shall not be so assigned at the Closing (such non-assigned Contracts, the "Non-Assigned Contracts"). Seller and Buyer shall continue to comply with their obligations under this Section 5.3(a) to the extent and for so long as the applicable Non-Assigned Contract shall not have been assigned to Buyer (and Seller, to the maximum extent permitted by Law and such Non-Assigned Contract, shall appoint Buyer to be Seller's agent with respect to such Non-Assigned Contract for the purpose of obtaining an assignment thereof to Buyer); provided that neither Seller nor Buyer shall have any obligation to offer or pay any consideration in order to obtain any such Consent to assignment; provided, further, that Buyer and Seller shall use their commercially reasonable efforts, to the maximum extent permitted by Law and such Non-Assigned Contract, to enter into one or more back-to-back Contracts, or such other reasonable arrangements, that would place Buyer in the same or a substantially similar position and provide Buyer the same or substantially similar rights, privileges, liabilities, benefits and obligations, in each case, as if such Non-Assigned Contract had been assigned to Buyer as of the Closing.
- During the Interim Period, Buyer and Seller shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all required Consents to the assignment to Buyer of any warranty described in Section 2.1(c), effective as of the Closing Date. To the extent that Seller's rights under any such warranty may not be assigned without the Consent of another Person, and such Consent has not been obtained by the Closing, this Agreement shall not constitute an agreement to assign the same if an attempted assignment would constitute a breach thereof or be unlawful or ineffective (or would otherwise impair Buyer's rights and obligations thereunder), and such warranty shall not be so assigned at the Closing. Seller and Buyer shall continue to comply with their obligations under this Section 5.3(b) to the extent and for so long as the applicable warranty shall not have been assigned to Buyer, and Seller, to the maximum extent permitted by Law and such warranty, shall from and after the Closing, appoint Buyer to be Seller's agent for the purpose of enforcing such warranty so as to the maximum extent possible to provide Buyer with the rights and obligations of such warranty. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Seller shall not be obligated to bring or file suit against any Third Party; provided that if Seller shall determine not to bring or file suit after being requested by Buyer to do so, Seller shall, to the maximum extent permitted by Law or any applicable Contract, enter into such reasonable arrangements with Buyer so that Buyer may bring or file such suit with respect to the rights of Seller.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017

Attachment 1 Page 49 of 120

Section 5.4 Access of Buyer and Seller.

- During the Interim Period, Seller will provide Buyer and its Representatives with reasonable access, upon reasonable prior notice and during normal business hours, to the Facilities, the Scheduled Employees and all information related to the Acquired Assets, the Scheduled Employees and the Assumed Liabilities in possession of Seller and its Affiliates (including, subject to the receipt of any required Consents and in accordance with applicable Law, such information and records respecting the Scheduled Employees as Buyer reasonably deems necessary to comply with its obligations under this Agreement), and to the Representatives of Seller who have significant responsibility with respect thereto, in each case, as reasonably requested by Buyer in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, but only to the extent that such access does not unreasonably interfere with the operation of the Facilities or the other business or operations of Seller or its Affiliates, and subject to compliance with applicable Laws and Permits; provided, that Seller shall have the right to have its Representatives present for any communication with the Scheduled Employees, or any other employees or officers of Seller or its Affiliates, and to impose reasonable restrictions and requirements for safety purposes. In connection with and subject to the limitations set forth in the foregoing, during the Interim Period, Seller shall permit Buyer and its Representatives to make such reasonable inspections of the Sites as Buyer may reasonably request (and Buyer shall be entitled, at its expense, to have the Sites surveyed and to conduct non-invasive physical inspections thereof); provided, however, that Buyer shall not be entitled to (i) perform any Phase I or Phase II environmental studies or environmental site assessments, except that Buyer may, at Buyer's cost and direction and upon notice to and in cooperation with Seller, engage the original environmental firm to update the existing Phase I environmental assessments posted to the Data Site to enable Buyer to conduct an examination of all appropriate inquiries and be afforded the protections of a bona fide purchaser under Environmental Laws, and Buyer shall promptly furnish Seller with a copy of any such updates or reports, and shall cause Seller to be listed as an identified user of the updated reports, or (ii) collect any air, soil, surface water or ground water samples nor to perform any invasive or destructive sampling on the Sites. Seller shall furnish Buyer with a copy of each material report, schedule or other document filed or received by Seller or its Affiliates with a Governmental Authority with respect to the Acquired Assets during the Interim Period. Notwithstanding the foregoing, and without limiting the generality of the confidentiality provisions set forth in this Agreement, the Confidentiality Agreement or any Related Agreement, Seller shall not be required to provide any information or access to any Facilities (A) which Seller reasonably believes it is prohibited from providing to Buyer by reason of any applicable Law or Permit, (B) which, if provided to Buyer, could constitute a waiver by Seller of the attorney-client privilege in respect of such information, (C) which Seller is required to keep confidential or prevent access to by reason of a Contract with a Third Party, or (D) relating to any potential sale of the Acquired Assets, or any other generating facilities of Seller, to any other Person; provided, however, that the Parties will, to the extent legally permissible, reasonably necessary and practicable, use commercially reasonable efforts to make appropriate substitute disclosure arrangements, or seek appropriate waivers or consents, under circumstances in which the foregoing restrictions of this sentence apply.
- (b) During the Interim Period, upon reasonable prior request of Buyer and at Buyer's sole cost and expense, Seller will permit designated employees or Representatives of

Attachment 1 Page 50 of 120

Buyer ("Buyer's Observers") to observe all operations of Seller related to the Facilities, with such observation permitted on a cooperative basis in the presence of personnel of Seller during normal daytime business hours of Seller; *provided, however*, that Buyer's Observers shall not unreasonably interfere with the operation of the Facilities by Seller or the other business or operations of Seller or its Affiliates.

- (c) Buyer shall not be permitted during the Interim Period to contact any of Seller's vendors, customers or suppliers, or any Governmental Authorities (except, in accordance with Section 5.2 or Section 5.3, in connection with Consents to be obtained in connection with this Agreement or any Related Agreement), regarding the operations or legal status of Seller or with respect to the transactions contemplated under this Agreement or the Related Agreements without receiving prior written authorization from Seller (not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed); *provided*, that nothing in this Section 5.4(c) shall be construed to restrict Buyer or its Affiliates from contacting any Person to the extent the subject of such communications is not related to this Agreement or any Related Agreement, or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby.
- (d) Buyer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Seller, its Affiliates and their Representatives for any and all Losses incurred by Seller, its Affiliates or their Representatives arising out of any exercise of the access rights under this Section 5.4, including any Claims by any of Buyer's Representatives for any injuries or property damage while present at the Facilities, except in cases of Seller's or its Representatives' gross negligence or willful misconduct.
- (e) On or as soon as reasonably practicable after the Closing Date (but in no event more than twenty (20) days thereafter), Seller shall deliver to Buyer all the Transferred Books and Records (to the extent not already located at the Facilities or otherwise Made Available to Buyer on or prior to the Closing), except as prohibited by applicable Law.
- (f) Following the Closing, Seller shall be entitled to retain copies (at Seller's sole cost and expense and subject to the confidentiality and non-disclosure obligations set forth herein) of all books and records relating to its ownership or operation of the Acquired Assets and the Assumed Liabilities.
- (g) After the Closing, Buyer will, and will cause its Representatives to, provide Seller and its Affiliates, including their respective Representatives, reasonable access to or copies of all books, records, files and documents to the extent they are related to the Acquired Assets or the Assumed Liabilities, and to periods ending prior to the Closing Date in order to permit Seller and its Affiliates and their respective Representatives to prepare and file their Tax Returns and to prepare for and participate in any investigation with respect thereto, to prepare for and participate in any other investigation and defend any Claims relating to or involving Seller or its Affiliates, to discharge its obligations under this Agreement, to comply with financial reporting requirements, and for other reasonable purposes, and will afford Seller and its Affiliates reasonable assistance in connection therewith at no cost to Seller. Buyer will cause such records to be maintained for not less than seven (7) years from the Closing Date and will not dispose of such records without first offering in writing to deliver them to Seller; *provided, however*, that in the event that Buyer transfers all or a portion of the Acquired Assets or the

Attachment 1 Page 51 of 120

Assumed Liabilities to any Third Person during such period, Buyer may transfer to such Third Person all or a portion of the books, records, files and documents related thereto, *provided* such transferee expressly assumes in writing the obligations of Buyer under this <u>Section 5.4(g)</u>.

- On and after the Closing Date, (i) at the request of either Party, the other (h) Party shall make available to such requesting Party, its Affiliates and their respective Representatives, those employees of the non-requesting Party or its Affiliates requested by such requesting Party in connection with any Claim, including to provide testimony, to be deposed, to act as witnesses and to assist counsel, and (ii) at the reasonable request of Seller, Seller shall have reasonable access to the Transferred Employees for a period of seven (7) years following the Closing Date, for purposes of consultation or otherwise, to the extent that such access may reasonably be required by Seller in connection with matters relating to or affected by the operations of Seller prior to the Closing; provided, however, that, in each case, (x) such access to such employees shall not unreasonably interfere with the normal conduct of the operations of the non-requesting Party, (y) the requesting Party shall pay and reimburse the non-requesting Party for the out-of-pocket costs reasonably incurred by the non-requesting Party in making such employees available, and (z) such assistance shall be provided insofar as the same may be provided without violating any Law or Permit, or waiving any attorney-client privilege, as determined in the reasonable opinion of counsel to the non-requesting Party.
- Section 5.5 Conduct of Business Pending the Closing. Except as set forth in Schedule 5.5, during the Interim Period, Seller will operate and maintain the Acquired Assets in the ordinary course of business consistent with Good Utility Practice, unless otherwise contemplated by this Agreement or with the prior written consent of Buyer (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed). Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, except as otherwise expressly contemplated by this Agreement or as set forth in Schedule 5.5, Seller shall not, without the prior written consent of the Buyer (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), during the Interim Period, with respect to the Acquired Assets or Assumed Liabilities:
- (a) Except for Acquired Assets used at or consumed by the Facilities in the ordinary course of business consistent with Good Utility Practice, and except for sales or dispositions of obsolete or surplus assets in connection with the normal repair or replacement of assets or properties, (i) sell, lease (as lessor), license (as licensor), transfer or otherwise dispose of any of the Acquired Assets, or (ii) encumber, pledge, mortgage or suffer to be imposed on any of the Acquired Assets any Lien other than Permitted Liens;
- (b) Make any material change in the levels of Inventories customarily maintained by the Seller with respect to the Acquired Assets, except for such changes that are consistent with Good Utility Practice;
- (c) Terminate, make any waiver under, extend, materially amend, or renew or replace any Material Contract, Assigned Lease or Transferable Permit other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with Good Utility Practice, or as may be required or permitted to implement another provision of this <u>Section 5.5</u>, pursuant to <u>Section 5.2(e)</u> or <u>Section 5.3</u> or otherwise in connection with transferring Seller's rights or obligations thereunder to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement; *provided* that, during the Interim Period, and subject to <u>Section 5.15</u>,

Attachment 1 Page 52 of 120

<u>Schedule 2.1(b)</u>, <u>Schedule 2.1(e)</u>, <u>Schedule 3.5(b)</u> and <u>Schedule 3.11(a)</u>, as appropriate, shall be amended to account for any matter permitted under this <u>Section 5.5(c)</u>;

- (d) Enter into any Contract relating to the ownership or operation of the Acquired Assets, except for any Contract (i) entered into in the ordinary course of business that will be terminated or fully performed prior to the Closing (without assignment to, or any continuing Liability of, Buyer on or after the Closing), (ii) that can be freely assigned to Buyer at the Closing and terminated by Buyer at its option at any time on or after the Closing without penalty or cancellation charge, (iii) that can be freely assigned to Buyer at the Closing and that does not increase an Assumed Liability or which increases an Assumed Liability by an amount of Three Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$300,000) or less individually or One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) or less in the aggregate with other such Contracts, or (iv) as may be required or permitted pursuant to Section 5.3 or to implement another provision of this Section 5.5, so long as such Contract can be freely assigned to Buyer at the Closing; provided that, during the Interim Period, Schedule 2.1(e) shall be amended to account for any Contract permitted under this Section 5.5(d);
- (e) Enter into, amend, or otherwise modify any real or personal property Tax agreement, treaty or settlement that would reasonably be expected to affect the Tax Liabilities of Buyer or any of its Affiliates in a material manner for any taxable year or period ending after the Closing Date;
- (f) Make, or enter into any Contractual commitment to make, any capital expenditures relating to the Acquired Assets, Facilities or Sites, except for those capital expenditures or commitments necessitated by Good Utility Practice;
- (g) Materially increase the level of wages, compensation or other benefits of any Scheduled Employee, except as required pursuant to the Generation CBA or applicable Law or in accordance with Seller's ordinary course of business consistent with past practices;
- (h) Terminate the employment of any Scheduled Employee except for cause, or hire any employee who would be a Scheduled Employee (other than to replace or fill vacancies on compensation and other terms substantially similar to those paid by Seller for any replaced employee), in each case, without first consulting with Buyer; *provided*, that, during the Interim Period, Schedule 3.12(a) shall be amended to reflect any changes in the Scheduled Employees listed thereon that are permitted under this Section 5.5(h); or
- (i) Except for amendments which do not result in any increased liability by Buyer following the Closing or as required by Law, agree to any amendment to or waiver of any term of the Generation CBA, or enter into any new collective bargaining agreement with respect to any Scheduled Employees.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Seller may take commercially reasonable actions with respect to emergency situations or as required by Law as reasonably determined by Seller and without Buyer's prior written consent, so long as Seller shall promptly inform Buyer upon taking any such action; provided, that Seller shall notify Buyer of any such actions as soon as reasonably practicable; provided, further, that the taking of such actions in an emergency that

Attachment 1 Page 53 of 120

would otherwise be prohibited hereunder shall not be deemed to cure any breach of this Agreement (other than a breach of Section 5.5 resulting from the taking of such action).

Section 5.6 Termination of Certain Services and Contracts; Transition Matters.

- Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, at or prior to (a) the Closing, Seller shall (i) terminate, effective upon the Closing, any services provided to any of the Facilities or with respect to the Acquired Assets by Seller, or by any Affiliate thereof under an Intercompany Arrangement, including the termination or severance of insurance policies with respect to coverage for any of the Facilities, Tax services, legal services and banking services (to include the severance of any centralized clearance accounts), other than any such services provided pursuant to the Transition Services Agreement and other than with respect to those Assigned Contracts set forth on Schedule 2.2(j) and (ii) terminate each Contract requested by Buyer within thirty (30) days after the date hereof or such later date as may be requested by Buyer and agreed to by Seller (which such terminations shall be provided so long as Seller will not incur any Liability from and after the Closing Date as a result of such termination) (such services or Contracts collectively, the "Terminated Contracts"). For avoidance of doubt, Buyer acknowledges and agrees that all insurance coverage with respect to the Acquired Assets, including those policies referred to in Section 3.9, shall be terminated as of the Closing, and that Buyer shall be solely responsible for providing insurance in respect of the Acquired Assets and for any claims made in connection with such insurance policies after the Closing regardless of when the event or occurrence relating to any claim arose.
- (b) At the request of Buyer, at the Closing, Seller shall, and shall cause Eversource Services to, enter into an agreement with Buyer to provide, following Closing, those transition services respecting the Acquired Assets that are reasonably agreed upon by Buyer and Seller at a price equal to the applicable Transition Service Cost Percentage of cost (as allocated in accordance with the same methodologies used for such allocations by Seller and its Affiliates in accordance with past practice) and in accordance with the other terms and conditions set forth therein (the "**Transition Services Agreement**"). The Parties will agree upon any remaining terms and conditions of the Transition Services Agreement in a commercially reasonable manner as soon as practicable after the date hereof and in any event within sixty (60) days of the date hereof
- (c) Within thirty (30) days after the date hereof, Buyer shall deliver to Seller a list of its proposed representatives to a joint transition team. Seller will add its representatives to such team within ten (10) Business Days after receipt of Buyer's list. Such team will be responsible for preparing as soon as reasonably practicable after the date hereof, and using commercially reasonable efforts to timely implement, a transition plan which will identify and describe substantially all of the various transition activities that the Parties will cause to occur before and after the Closing and any other transfer of control matters that any Party reasonably believes should be addressed in such transition plan. Buyer and Seller shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause their representatives on such transition team to cooperate in good faith and take reasonable steps necessary to develop a mutually acceptable transition plan no later than sixty (60) days after the date of this Agreement.

Attachment 1 Page 54 of 120

Section 5.7 Seller Marks. Buyer acknowledges and agrees that as a result of the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, it will not obtain any right, title, interest, license or other right hereunder to use any of the Seller Marks. Prior to the Closing, Seller may remove any of the Seller Marks as it determines in its sole discretion. As soon as reasonably practicable but in no event more than sixty (60) days after the Closing Date, Buyer shall dispose of any unused products, materials, stationery and literature bearing the Seller Marks remaining at the Facilities following the Closing. Following the Closing, upon reasonable prior written notice and at mutually agreed upon reasonable times, Buyer shall allow Seller, at Seller's cost, to remove, cover or conceal the Seller Marks appearing on signage at the primary entrances of the Facilities; provided, however, Seller agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Buyer, its Affiliates and their Representatives for any and all Losses incurred by Buyer, its Affiliates or their Representatives arising out of any exercise of the access rights under this Section 5.7, including any Claims by any of Seller's Representatives for any injuries or property damage while present at the Facilities, except in cases of Buyer's or its Representatives' gross negligence or willful misconduct. Thereafter, Buyer shall not use any Seller Mark or any name or term confusingly similar to any Seller Mark in connection with the sale of any products or services, in the corporate or doing business name of any of its Affiliates or otherwise in the conduct of its or any of its Affiliates' businesses or operations; provided, however that Buyer shall not be in violation of this Section 5.7 to the extent such violation results from Seller's failure to remove all Seller Marks at the Facilities. In the event that Buyer breaches this Section 5.7, Seller shall be entitled to specific performance of this Section 5.7 and to injunctive relief against further violations, as well as any other remedies at law or in equity available to Seller.

Section 5.8 Employee Matters.

(a) <u>Settlement Agreement</u>. The Parties acknowledge and agree that under New Hampshire Law (New Hampshire RSA 369-B:3-b) and the Settlement Agreement, affected employees are entitled to certain employee protections that apply in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, including provisions requiring that Buyer undertake certain employee-related obligations as a condition to the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the covenants and agreements set forth in this <u>Section 5.8</u> are intended to implement the applicable employee protection provisions and requirements set forth under New Hampshire Law and in the Settlement Agreement and shall be interpreted consistently therewith.

(b) Represented Transferred Employees.

(i) Schedule 5.8(b)(i) sets forth the total number of Represented Scheduled Employees (including all such Represented Scheduled Employees who are on inactive status due to any short-term disability, long-term disability or other approved leave) employed in each job classification as of the Effective Date. Within fifteen (15) days following the Effective Date, Buyer shall provide notice to Seller of the number of Represented Scheduled Employees by classification and facility which Buyer desires to retain. The Parties shall cooperate in good faith with the Union to identify, within thirty (30) days after receipt of Buyer's notice, in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Generation CBA and the Settlement Agreement, the particular Represented Scheduled Employees to whom Buyer shall offer employment pursuant to the terms of

Attachment 1 Page 55 of 120

this <u>Section 5.8</u> (the "**Selected Represented Employees**"). Within sixty (60) days following the Effective Date, Buyer shall offer employment, commencing as of 12:01 a.m. Eastern time on the Closing Date, to all such Selected Represented Employees.

- (ii) All such offers of employment shall be made in accordance with applicable Laws, the Generation CBA and the Settlement Agreement, and otherwise on terms consistent with the provisions of this Section 5.8. Those employees who accept such offer of employment are referred to herein as the "Represented Transferred Employees." Buyer shall, as soon as reasonably practicable and in no event more than fifteen (15) Business Days following the Effective Date, provide notice to the Union (i) that Buyer recognizes the Union, as of the Closing, as the collective bargaining representative for all Represented Transferred Employees, (ii) that Buyer agrees to become party to and bound by the terms of the Generation CBA and to assume Seller's obligations with respect to the Represented Transferred Employees thereunder, and (iii) that describes Buyer's plans regarding staffing by classification and operations of the Facilities, as required by the Generation CBA.
- (iii) On and after the Closing, Buyer shall comply with all applicable obligations under the Generation CBA with respect to the Represented Transferred Employees covered thereby.

(c) Non-Represented Transferred Employees.

- (i) Within forty-five (45) days following the Effective Date, Buyer shall offer employment to those Non-Represented Scheduled Employees set forth on Schedule 5.8(c)(i) whom Buyer desires to employ commencing as of 12:01 a.m. Eastern time on the Closing Date (the "Selected Non-Represented Employees"). All such offers of employment shall be made in accordance with applicable Laws and otherwise on terms consistent with the provisions of this Section 5.8. Those Selected Non-Represented Employees who accept such offer of employment are referred to herein as the "Non-Represented Transferred Employees."
- (ii) The Parties acknowledge and agree that, pursuant to the Settlement Agreement and New Hampshire RSA 369-B:3-b, the Non-Represented Transferred Employees are entitled to employee protections no less than those set forth in the Generation CBA with respect to the Represented Transferred Employees. As required by the Settlement Agreement, Buyer shall, from and after Closing, assume and comply with those employee protection obligations to the Non-Represented Transferred Employees required by New Hampshire RSA 369-B:3-b.
- (iii) Continuing from Closing through no sooner than the end of the CBA Term, Buyer shall maintain an overall benefit package for the Non-Represented Transferred Employees at least as favorable as the overall benefit package provided to each such Non-Represented Transferred Employee immediately prior to the Closing.
- (d) <u>Service Credit</u>. Buyer shall recognize and apply each Transferred Employee's prior service with Seller toward any eligibility, vesting, accrual and benefit

Attachment 1 Page 56 of 120

calculation purposes under the Employee Benefits Plans and other compensation arrangements of Buyer, including Buyer's Pension Plan and any other plans established to provide benefits described in the Generation CBA and/or in Seller's policies and plans applicable to Non-Represented Transferred Employees. Buyer shall vest each Transferred Employee under the Employee Benefits Plans of Buyer to the extent such employee is vested under the Employee Benefits Plans of Seller (or its applicable Affiliates) immediately prior to the Closing. Buyer shall waive all limitations with respect to preexisting conditions, exclusions and waiting periods with respect to participation and coverage requirements under Buyer's health and welfare plans under Seller's (or its applicable Affiliates') comparable plans in which such Transferred Employee participates. Within a reasonable time prior to the Closing Date, Seller shall, subject to applicable Law, provide Buyer with such pertinent data or information as Buyer shall reasonably require to determine each Transferred Employee's service, eligibility, vesting, accrued benefits and other relevant information under the Employee Benefits Plans of Seller or its applicable Affiliates (including Seller's Pension Plan).

(e) <u>Pension and Retirement Benefits</u>.

(i) Defined Benefit Pension Plan Participants.

- (A) As soon as practicable after the Effective Date, Buyer shall take all necessary and appropriate action to establish and maintain a tax qualified defined benefit or defined contribution plan ("**Buyer's Pension Plan**") for Transferred Employees who participate in Seller's defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the provisions of this <u>Section 5.8(e)</u>.
- Minimum Pension Benefit" means, for any such Transferred Employee, the Transferred Employee's total pension benefit as calculated as of the earlier of (i) such Transferred Employee's retirement date and (ii) the end of the CBA Term, using (A) the pension benefit formula under the Eversource Pension Plan ("Seller's Pension Plan") applicable to such Transferred Employee as of the Closing Date, (B) such Transferred Employee's final average earnings (as specified in Seller's Pension Plan) as of the earlier of (i) such Transferred Employee's retirement date and (ii) the end of the CBA Term,, taking into account compensation earned from both Seller and Buyer, (C) such Transferred Employee's total years of service with both Seller (or its applicable Affiliates and predecessors) and Buyer as of the earlier of (i) such Transferred Employee's retirement date and (ii) the end of the CBA Term, and (D) covered compensation as of the earlier of (i) such Transferred Employee's retirement date and (ii) the end of the CBA Term, and (D) covered compensation as of the earlier of (i) such Transferred Employee's retirement date and (ii) the end of the CBA Term.
- (C) For purposes of this <u>Section 5.8(e)(i)</u>, the term "**Accrued Pension Benefit**" means, for any such Transferred Employee, the pension benefit payable to such Transferred Employee under Seller's Pension Plan at such Transferred Employee's retirement, which shall be calculated based upon (A) the pension benefit formula under the Seller's Pension Plan applicable to such Transferred Employee as of the Closing Date, (B) such Transferred Employee's

Attachment 1 Page 57 of 120

years of credited service with Seller (or its applicable Affiliates) as of the Closing Date, (C) such Transferred Employee's final average earnings (as specified in the Seller's Pension Plan) as of the Closing Date, and (D) such Transferred Employee's covered compensation as of the Closing Date.

- (D) Upon such Transferred Employee's retirement date, Seller (or its Affiliates) shall provide each such Transferred Employee with a vested and non-forfeitable right to a pension benefit equal to such Transferred Employee's Accrued Pension Benefit.
- (E) On and after Closing, and continuing through no sooner than the end of the CBA Term, Buyer shall provide each such Transferred Employee with a pension benefit under Buyer's Pension Plan equal to or exceeding the difference between such Transferred Employee's Combined Minimum Pension Benefit and such Transferred Employee's Accrued Pension Benefit (the "Buyer Pension Benefit"). Such Buyer Pension Benefit must be guaranteed to each Transferred Employee and protected from forfeiture to no less extent than an ERISA plan benefit. If any such Transferred Employee's Buyer Pension Benefit should be subject to Social Security and Medicare Taxes that do not apply to ERISA pension benefits, Buyer shall "gross up" such Buyer Pension Benefit to offset such additional Tax liability to the applicable Transferred Employee.
- (F) On and after Closing, and continuing through no sooner than the end of the CBA Term, in the event that any such Transferred Employee (A) is involuntarily separated from employment as a result of layoff from Buyer (or any of its Affiliates) and (B) at the time of Closing (x) is age 50-54 and (y) whose age plus credited service equal or exceed 65 years, then such Transferred Employees shall be provided those pension and other retirement benefits described in Schedule 5.8(e)(i)(F).

(ii) Contributory Retirement Plan Participants.

- (A) As soon as practicable after the Effective Date, Buyer shall take all necessary and appropriate action to establish and maintain a tax qualified contributory retirement plan ("**Buyer's Contributory Plan**") for the Transferred Employees who participate in Seller's "K-Vantage" contributory retirement plan in accordance with the provisions of this <u>Section 5.8(e)(ii)</u>.
- (B) On and after Closing and through the end of the CBA Term, Buyer (or its Affiliates) shall provide each Transferred Employee with contributions to Buyer's Contributory Plan in an amount no less than the amount such Transferred Employee would have received under Seller's "K-Vantage" contributory retirement plan, as set forth in Schedule 5.8(e)(ii)(B).
- (f) <u>Transition Matters</u>. Effective as of the Closing, the Transferred Employees shall cease active participation in all Employee Benefit Plans of Seller (or its applicable

Attachment 1 Page 58 of 120

Affiliates). Seller (or its applicable Affiliates) shall pay, in accordance with Seller's customary practice, to all Transferred Employees all accrued salary or wages, including overtime, vacation pay or other benefits to which they are entitled under the Employee Benefit Plans of Seller (or its applicable Affiliates) as of immediately prior to the Closing. Buyer and Seller intend that the transactions contemplated by this Agreement should not constitute a separation, termination or severance of employment of any Transferred Employee for purposes of any Employee Benefit Plan that provides for separation, termination or severance benefits, and that each such Transferred Employee will have continuous employment immediately before and immediately after the Closing. All Liability and Claims relating to the employment and compensation of any Transferred Employee on and after the Closing shall be the sole responsibility of Buyer, and Buyer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Seller, its Affiliates and their Representatives for any and all Losses incurred by Seller, its Affiliates or their Representatives arising out of or related to Buyer's (or its Affiliate's) employment of any Transferred Employee following the Closing.

- (g) <u>Severance Benefits</u>. Any Transferred Employee who is terminated as a result of a reduction in force or change in operational practices prior to the end of the CBA Term will be entitled to the benefits set forth in <u>Schedule 5.8(g)</u> from Buyer.
- (h) <u>WARN Act; Restructuring Activities</u>. Seller agrees to timely perform and discharge all requirements under the WARN Act and under applicable state and local Laws for the notification of its and its Affiliates' employees arising from the sale of the Acquired Assets to Buyer up to and including the Closing Date, including those employees who will become Transferred Employees effective as of the Closing Date. After the Closing Date, Buyer shall be responsible for performing and discharging all requirements under the WARN Act and under applicable state and local Laws for the notification of its employees, whether Transferred Employees or otherwise. All severance and other costs (other than in respect of any Accrued Pension Benefits) associated with workforce restructuring activities associated with the Transferred Employees subsequent to the Closing Date shall be borne solely by Buyer.
- (i) <u>Successors and Assigns</u>. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the agreements and obligations of Buyer set forth in this <u>Section 5.8</u> shall be binding upon and enforceable against any successor or assign or any other entity acquirer of Buyer, whether by sale, transfer, merger, acquisition or otherwise. Buyer shall make it a condition of any such sale, transfer, merger, acquisition or other transaction or event that any such successor or assign or other entity acquirer shall be bound by the terms of this <u>Section 5.8</u>.
- (j) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, except for Buyer's obligations in respect of the Buyer Pension Benefit and the Buyer's Contribution Plan which are set forth in Section 5.8(e)(i) and Section 5.8(e)(ii), respectively, and Buyer's obligations in respect of severance benefits as set forth in Section 5.8(g), Buyer shall have no obligation to provide any other post-employment benefits to any Transferred Employee and to the extent any obligations to provide any such post-employment benefits are owing to Transferred Employees, including without limitation in respect of retiree health benefits or contributions, Seller shall provide any such benefits and shall be solely responsible for any obligations associated therewith.

Attachment 1 Page 59 of 120

Section 5.9 ISO-NE and NEPOOL Matters.

- (a) At the Closing, Buyer shall be a member in good standing in NEPOOL. Except as required to preserve system reliability and in compliance with the requirements of the ISO-NE or NEPOOL, and as may be otherwise provided in any Related Agreement, following Closing, Seller shall not, directly or indirectly, interfere with Buyer's efforts to expand or modify generation capacity at any of the Sites.
- Not less than five (5) Business Days prior to the Closing Date, Buyer shall initiate, and Seller shall confirm, with ISO-NE Buyer's acquisition of the Facilities from Seller, to be effective as of the Closing Date, pursuant to the CAMS User Guide for Company and Affiliate Maintenance, Version 1.4, Section 2.3.15, Asset Ownership Share Transfers. In the event that ISO-NE (or NEPOOL) does not recognize until after the Closing Buyer's acquisition of the Facilities as of the Closing Date (or recognizes such acquisition effective as of any date other than the Closing Date), the Parties agree that (i) any proceeds received by Seller or its Affiliates from ISO-NE (or NEPOOL) after Closing relating to Buyer's ownership of the Facilities on and after the Closing Date shall be promptly paid over to Buyer, and (ii) any proceeds received by Buyer or its Affiliates from ISO-NE (or NEPOOL) after Closing relating to Seller's ownership of the Facilities prior to the Closing Date shall be promptly paid over to Seller. The Parties further agree that (x) any amounts received by Buyer or its Affiliates from ISO-NE after the Closing respecting the Facilities, to the extent attributable to any period prior to the Closing, including (A) ISO-NE Winter Reliability Program revenues attributable to any period prior to the Closing, and (B) ISO-NE Forward Capacity Market capacity payments attributable to any period prior to the Closing, shall be promptly paid over to Seller; and (y) any amounts received by Seller or its Affiliates from ISO-NE after Closing respecting the Facilities, to the extent attributable to any period on and after the Closing, including (A) ISO-NE Winter Reliability Program revenues attributable to any period on and after the Closing and (B) ISO-NE Forward Capacity Market capacity payments attributable to any period on and after the Closing. shall be promptly paid over to Buyer. Any payment required to be made by a Party pursuant to this Section 5.9(b) shall be made to the other Party by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the account designated in writing by such other Party.
- **Section 5.10 Post-Closing Operations**. As required by the Settlement Agreement, Buyer hereby covenants and agrees that Buyer shall (and shall cause any successor or assign of Buyer to) cause the Facilities to remain in service for a minimum of eighteen (18) months following the Closing Date.
- Section 5.11 Discharge of Environmental Liabilities. On and after the Closing Date, with respect to Environmental Liabilities which constitute Excluded Environmental Liabilities, Buyer will use commercially reasonable efforts not to prejudice or impair Seller's rights under the Environmental Laws or interfere with Seller's ability to contest in appropriate administrative, judicial or other proceedings its Liability, if any, for Environmental Claims or Remediation. To the extent relevant to those Environmental Liabilities which constitute Excluded Liabilities, (a) Buyer further agrees to provide to Seller draft copies of all plans and studies prepared in connection with any Site investigation or Remediation prior to their submission to the Governmental Authority with jurisdiction under Environmental Laws, (b) Seller shall have the right, without the obligation, to attend all meetings between Buyer, its Representatives, and such

Attachment 1 Page 60 of 120

Governmental Authorities, and (c) Buyer shall promptly provide to Seller copies of all written information, plans, documents and material correspondence submitted to or received from such Governmental Authorities relating to Buyer's discharge of any Environmental Liabilities assumed pursuant to this Agreement.

Section 5.12 Transfer Taxes. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, Buyer and Seller shall in good faith determine the amount and at Closing each pay fifty percent (50%) of all Transfer Taxes that may be imposed upon, or payable, collectible or incurred in connection with the transfer of the Acquired Assets to Buyer or otherwise in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements. Accordingly, if Seller is required by Law to pay any such Transfer Taxes, Buyer shall reimburse Seller such that Buyer bears fifty percent (50%) of such Transfer Taxes. Buyer shall, at its own expense, prepare and timely file all Tax Returns relating to any such Transfer Tax (and Seller shall cooperate with respect thereto as reasonably necessary, including by preparing, executing and providing its Tax Return to Buyer, or by joining in the execution of any such Tax Returns if required by applicable Law), shall notify Seller when such filings have been made and shall provide Seller with copies thereof.

Section 5.13 Tax Matters. Except as provided in <u>Section 5.12</u> relating to Transfer Taxes:

- (a) With respect to Taxes to be prorated in accordance with Section 2.7 of this Agreement, Buyer shall prepare and timely file all Tax Returns required to be filed after the Closing with respect to the Acquired Assets, if any, and Buyer shall duly and timely pay all such Taxes shown to be due on such Tax Returns (or shall reimburse Seller for any such Taxes paid by Seller). Buyer's preparation of any such Tax Returns shall be subject to Seller's review and comment, and Buyer shall consider in good faith any comments received from Seller. No later than twenty (20) Business Days prior to the due date of any such Tax Return, Buyer shall make such Tax Return available for Seller's review and comment. Buyer shall respond no later than five (5) Business Days prior to the due date for filing such Tax Return. Without the prior written consent of Seller, Buyer will not (i) file or amend any Tax Return relating to any taxable period ending on or prior to the Closing Date, or to any taxable period beginning before the Closing Date and ending after the Closing Date, or any portion thereof or (ii) extend or waive, or cause to be extended or waived, any statute of limitations or other period for the assessment of any Tax or deficiency related to any such taxable period (or portion thereof).
- (b) Whenever any Taxing Authority asserts a claim, makes an assessment, or otherwise disputes the amount of Taxes relating to any taxable period ending on or prior to the Closing Date, or to any taxable period beginning before the Closing Date and ending after the Closing Date, or any portion thereof, Buyer shall, upon receipt of such assertion, promptly, but no later than thirty (30) days thereafter, inform Seller in writing of such assertion. With respect to proceedings that relate solely to Taxes that represent Excluded Liabilities and to any proceedings described on Schedule 3.10, Seller shall have the sole right to control any such proceedings and to determine whether and when to settle any such claim, assessment or dispute; provided, however, that Seller shall not settle any Tax controversies in a manner that would reasonably be expected to affect the Tax Liabilities of Buyer or any of its Affiliates in a material manner for any taxable year or period ending after the Closing Date without the prior written

Attachment 1 Page 61 of 120

consent of Buyer. With respect to proceedings that relate to Taxes that represent Assumed Liabilities, Buyer shall have the sole right to control any such proceedings and determine whether and when to settle any such claim, assessment or dispute; provided, however, that Buyer shall not settle any Tax controversies in a manner that would reasonably be expected to affect the Tax Liabilities of Seller or any of its Affiliates in a material manner for any taxable year or period without the prior written consent of Seller. Each of Buyer and Seller shall provide the other with such assistance and cooperation as may reasonably be requested by the other Party in connection with the preparation of any Tax Return, any audit or other examination by any Taxing Authority, or any judicial or administrative proceedings relating to Liability for Taxes. Such assistance and cooperation shall include the retention and (upon the other Party's request) the provision of records and information that are reasonably relevant to any such audit, litigation or other proceeding and making employees available on a mutually convenient basis to provide additional information and explanation of any material provided hereunder, and each will retain and provide the requesting Party with any records or information until the expiration of the statute of limitations (and, to the extent notified by the other Party, any extensions thereof) of the respective taxable periods which may be relevant to such Tax Return, audit or examination, proceedings or determination.

Section 5.14 Further Assurances. At any time and from time to time after the Closing, at the reasonable request of a Party and without further consideration, the other Party will or will cause its Affiliates to execute and deliver such instruments of sale, transfer, conveyance, assignment, assumption and confirmation and take such actions as the Parties may reasonably agree are necessary to transfer, convey and assign to Buyer, and to confirm Buyer's title to or interest in the Acquired Assets and assumption of and obligation with respect to the Assumed Liabilities, to put Buyer in actual possession and operating control of the Acquired Assets, and otherwise to consummate and give effect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. For avoidance of doubt, in the event that any asset that is an Acquired Asset shall not have been conveyed to Buyer at the Closing, Seller shall, subject to Section 5.3, use its commercially reasonable efforts to convey such asset to Buyer as promptly as is practicable after the Closing.

Section 5.15 Schedule Updates. From time to time during the Interim Period, Seller may supplement or amend and deliver updates to the Schedules with respect to any changes or events occurring or conditions arising after the Effective Date, including such supplements or amendments to Schedules expressly permitted or required herein (each, a "Schedule Update"). In the event that any Schedule Update discloses any such change, event or condition that would prevent the Seller from satisfying the condition set forth in Section 6.1(a), then either (A) Seller shall have a reasonable opportunity to cure such fact or circumstance or (B) if Seller determines that such fact or circumstance is incapable of cure by Seller by the Outside Date, Seller shall promptly notify Buyer of such determination, and then within five (5) Business Days of such determination, Buyer and Seller shall in good faith seek to quantify the amount of Losses relating to such fact or circumstance that Buyer would reasonably be expected to suffer as a result thereof. In the event the Buyer and Seller are unable to agree as to the amount of Losses resulting from such fact or circumstance, such matter shall be referred to the Independent Accountant for final determination. The amount of any such Losses finally determined (whether by agreement of the parties or by the Independent Accountant) shall result in a dollar for dollar reduction to the Base Purchase Price payable by Buyer at the Closing, provided, that if the amount of such Losses are equal to or greater than ten percent (10%) of the Base Purchase Price,

Attachment 1 Page 62 of 120

either Seller or Buyer may, in their discretion, elect to terminate this Agreement in lieu of accepting a reduction to the Base Purchase Price by delivering a written termination notice to the other Party. If, pursuant to this Section 5.15, either Seller cures such fact or circumstance, or the amount of Losses is finally determined (and, if applicable, neither Seller nor Buyer exercises any termination right pursuant to the previous sentence), then the Schedule Update relating to such fact or circumstance shall be deemed to be part of the Schedules for purposes of determining whether Seller has satisfied the condition set forth in Section 6.1(a). In the event that Seller provides a Schedule Update, Seller shall also promptly provide any additional information relating thereto as Buyer may reasonably request.

Section 5.16 Casualty. If any Acquired Asset is damaged or destroyed by a casualty loss during the Interim Period (a "Casualty Loss"), and the cost of restoring such damaged or destroyed Acquired Asset to a condition reasonably comparable to its prior condition inclusive of a reasonable estimate of the likely business interruption cost associated with such event (assuming commercially reasonable efforts are undertaken to remediate such casualty event) (such costs with respect to any Acquired Asset, the "Restoration Cost") does not exceed ten percent (10%) of the Base Purchase Price, Seller may elect, by written notice to Buyer provided within sixty (60) days of the applicable Casualty Loss, to either (a) reduce the amount of the Purchase Price by the estimated Restoration Cost (as estimated by a qualified firm mutually selected by Buyer and Seller as promptly as practicable after the date of the event giving rise to the Casualty Loss) or (b) restore such damaged or destroyed Acquired Asset at Seller's expense at any time prior to the Outside Date to a condition reasonably comparable to its condition prior to such Casualty Loss, and in either event such Casualty Loss shall not affect the Closing; provided, that in the event Seller elects to restore such damaged or destroyed Acquired Asset pursuant to the foregoing clause (b), Seller shall have the option, exercisable by delivering written notice to Buyer, to extend the Outside Date by an additional period of up to ninety (90) days after the original Outside Date set forth in Section 8.1(a) to the extent additional time is needed to complete such restoration. If Seller does not make an election as set forth in the preceding sentence within such sixty (60) day period following the Casualty Loss, Seller shall be deemed to have elected to reduce the amount of the Purchase Price by the estimated Restoration Cost as provided above. If the Restoration Cost exceeds ten percent (10%) of the Base Purchase Price, Buyer may elect, by written notice to Seller provided within sixty (60) days of the applicable Casualty Loss, to either (i) reduce the amount of the Purchase Price by the estimated Restoration Cost (as estimated by a qualified firm mutually selected by Buyer and Seller as promptly as practicable after the date of the event giving rise to the Casualty Loss) or (ii) terminate this Agreement. If Buyer does not make an election as set forth in the preceding sentence within such sixty (60) day period following the Casualty Loss, Seller may elect to terminate this Agreement by written notice to Buyer delivered within ten (10) days thereafter. In the event Seller elects to restore such damaged or destroyed Acquired Asset or to reduce the amount of the Purchase Price by the estimated Restoration Cost pursuant to this Section 5.16, (A) for avoidance of doubt, Buyer shall have no rights to any insurance proceeds related thereto, to which Seller shall be solely entitled, and (B) on or after the Closing, Buyer will, at Seller's written election, assign to Seller the rights, if any, to any contribution available under any long term service agreement or other Contract included in the Acquired Assets, as and to the extent relating to the applicable Casualty Loss, and, to the extent that Buyer receives any proceeds or other compensation associated with any such Casualty Loss, Buyer shall cause the amount of such proceeds or compensation to be paid over to Seller promptly upon receipt.

Attachment 1 Page 63 of 120

Section 5.17 Condemnation. If any Acquired Assets are taken by condemnation during the Interim Period and such Acquired Assets have a condemnation value (the "Condemnation Value") that does not exceed ten percent (10%) of the Base Purchase Price, the Purchase Price shall be reduced by such Condemnation Value and such condemnation shall not affect the Closing. If the Condemnation Value exceeds ten percent (10%) of the Base Purchase Price, Buyer may elect, by written notice to Seller provided within sixty (60) days of the applicable Condemnation Event, to either reduce the Purchase Price by such Condemnation Value or terminate this Agreement. If Buyer does not make such an election within such sixty (60) day period, Seller may elect to terminate this Agreement by written notice to Buyer delivered within ten (10) days thereafter. To the extent the amount of the Purchase Price is reduced by the Condemnation Value pursuant to this Section 5.17, (A) for avoidance of doubt, Buyer shall have no rights to any condemnation award or insurance proceeds related thereto, to which Seller shall be solely entitled, and (B) Buyer shall, to the extent that it receives any award, proceeds or other compensation associated with any such condemnation event on or after Closing, cause the amount of such award, proceeds or compensation to be paid over to Seller promptly upon receipt.

Section 5.18 Confidentiality. Buyer acknowledges and agrees that the Confidentiality Agreement remains in full force and effect and, in addition, covenants and agrees to keep confidential, in accordance with the provisions of the Confidentiality Agreement, information provided to Buyer pursuant to this Agreement (including this Agreement and the Exhibits and Schedules hereto); *provided*, that from and after Closing, Buyer shall not have any obligation to maintain the confidentiality of information with respect to the Acquired Assets, but Buyer's confidentiality obligations under the Confidentiality Agreement (including with respect to information concerning Seller and its Affiliates) shall otherwise continue. If this Agreement is, for any reason, terminated prior to the Closing, the Confidentiality Agreement and the provisions of this Section 5.18 shall nonetheless continue in full force and effect. From and after the Closing, Seller agrees to keep all non-public information relating to Buyer or the Acquired Assets (including to the extent contained in any copy of the Transferred Books and Records maintained by Seller) confidential and not to disclose such information without Buyer's written consent (unless required by Law or Order).

Section 5.19 Public Announcements. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, each Party shall, and shall cause its Affiliates (as applicable) to, consult with the other Party regarding the timing and content of any public announcements regarding this Agreement, the Closing and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement to the news media, financial community, any Governmental Authority, customers, suppliers or the general public. Except as otherwise provided herein, no Party or its Affiliates shall make any such public announcement without the prior written consent of the other Party, unless any such disclosure is otherwise required by Law or by the rules of a national securities exchange (in which case such Party will provide to the other Party reasonable advance notice of and an opportunity to review any such disclosure).

Section 5.20 ARCO ROFR. As promptly as practicable following the Effective Date, Seller shall comply with the ARCO ROFR requirements set forth in Article VII of the ARCO By-Laws, and shall promptly notify Buyer in the event that ARCO or any of its stockholders exercises its right to purchase the ARCO Shares in accordance with the ARCO ROFR. Upon the

Attachment 1 Page 64 of 120

exercise of such right by ARCO or any of its stockholders, (a) Seller shall not be required to sell, and Buyer shall not be required to purchase, the ARCO Shares pursuant to this Agreement, the ARCO Shares shall cease to be included as an Acquired Asset hereunder, and any provisions of this Agreement relating to the ARCO Shares shall be deemed of no further force and effect, (b) the Purchase Price shall automatically be deemed to be reduced by the amount allocated to the ARCO Shares on Schedule 2.8(b), (c) except as set forth in the foregoing, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect in all respects, and (d) the removal of the ARCO Shares from the transactions contemplated hereby as contemplated by this Section 5.20 shall not be deemed a breach or default of this Agreement in any event.

Section 5.21 Exclusivity. From and after the Effective Date, Seller agrees not to engage in any discussions or negotiations concerning any potential sale of the Acquired Assets to any party other than Buyer.

ARTICLE VI CONDITIONS TO CLOSING

- **Section 6.1 Buyer's Conditions to Closing.** The obligation of Buyer to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement is subject to the fulfillment, at or prior to Closing, of each of the following conditions (except to the extent waived in writing by Buyer):
- (a) Representations and Warranties. (i) The representations and warranties made by Seller in ARTICLE III that are not qualified by "materiality," "Material Adverse Effect" or similar qualifiers shall be true and correct in all material respects on the Closing Date as though made on and as of the Closing Date (except to the extent such representations and warranties expressly relate to an earlier date, in which case as of such earlier date) and (ii) the representations and warranties made by Seller in ARTICLE III that are qualified by "materiality," "Material Adverse Effect" or similar qualifiers shall be true and correct on the Closing Date as though made on and as of the Closing Date (except to the extent such representations and warranties expressly relate to an earlier date, in which case as of such earlier date).
- (b) <u>Performance</u>. Seller shall have performed and complied, in all material respects, with all agreements, covenants and obligations required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by Seller at or before the Closing.
- (c) <u>Officer's Certificate</u>. Seller shall have delivered to Buyer at the Closing a certificate of an authorized officer of Seller, dated as of the Closing Date, stating that the conditions set forth in <u>Section 6.1(a)</u> and <u>Section 6.1(b)</u> have been satisfied.
- (d) <u>Consents</u>. The Seller Required Consents and the Buyer Required Consents marked with an asterisk on <u>Schedule 3.3</u> and <u>Schedule 4.3(c)</u> shall have been duly obtained, made or given and shall be in full force and effect, and all terminations or expirations of waiting periods imposed by any Governmental Authority with respect thereto (including under the HSR Act, if applicable) shall have occurred.

Attachment 1 Page 65 of 120

- (e) <u>No Injunctions</u>. On the Closing Date, there shall be no Laws or Orders in effect that operate to restrain, enjoin or otherwise prevent or make illegal the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
- (f) <u>Deliveries</u>. Seller shall have delivered or shall stand ready to deliver all of the certificates, instruments, agreements, documents and other items specified to be delivered by it hereunder, including pursuant to Section 2.10.
 - (g) <u>Material Adverse Effect</u>. No Material Adverse Effect shall have occurred.
- **Section 6.2 Seller's Conditions to Closing.** The obligation of Seller to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement is subject to the fulfillment, at or prior to Closing, of each of the following conditions (except to the extent waived in writing by Seller):
- (a) Representations and Warranties. (i) The representations and warranties made by Buyer in ARTICLE IV that are not qualified by "materiality," "Material Adverse Effect" or similar qualifiers shall be true and correct in all material respects on the Closing Date as though made on and as of the Closing Date (except to the extent such representations and warranties expressly relate to an earlier date, in which case as of such earlier date) and (ii) the representations and warranties made by Buyer in ARTICLE IV that are qualified by "materiality," "Material Adverse Effect" or similar qualifiers shall be true and correct on the Closing Date as though made on and as of the Closing Date (except to the extent such representations and warranties expressly relate to an earlier date, in which case as of such earlier date).
- (b) <u>Performance</u>. Buyer shall have performed and complied, in all material respects, with all agreements, covenants and obligations required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by Buyer at or before the Closing.
- (c) <u>Officer's Certificate</u>. Buyer shall have delivered to Seller at the Closing a certificate of an authorized officer of Buyer, dated as of the Closing Date, stating that the conditions set forth in <u>Section 6.2(a)</u> and <u>Section 6.2(b)</u> have been satisfied.
- (d) <u>Consents</u>. The Seller Required Consents and the Buyer Required Consents marked with an asterisk on <u>Schedule 3.3</u> and <u>Schedule 4.3(c)</u> shall have been duly obtained, made or given and shall be in full force and effect, and all terminations or expirations of waiting periods imposed by any Governmental Authority with respect thereto (including under the HSR Act, if applicable) shall have occurred.
- (e) <u>No Injunctions</u>. On the Closing Date, there shall be no Laws or Orders in effect that operate to restrain, enjoin, prohibit or otherwise prevent or make illegal the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
- (f) <u>Deliveries</u>. Buyer shall have delivered or shall stand ready to deliver all of the certificates, instruments, agreements, documents and other items specified to be delivered by it hereunder, including pursuant to <u>Section 2.11</u>.

Attachment 1 Page 66 of 120

(g) <u>Closing Purchase Price</u>. Buyer shall have delivered the Closing Purchase Price in accordance with Section 2.5.

ARTICLE VII INDEMNIFICATION; LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY AND WAIVERS

- Survival. Subject to the limitations and other provisions of this Section 7.1 Agreement, the representations and warranties of Seller set forth in Section 3.1 (Organization and Existence), Section 3.2 (Authority and Enforceability) and Section 3.17 (Brokers) and the representations and warranties of Buyer set forth in Section 4.1 (Organization and Existence), Section 4.2 (Authority and Enforceability) and Section 4.6 (Brokers), shall survive the Closing and shall remain in full force and effect for a period of twelve (12) months following the Closing Date. All other representations and warranties of any Party contained in this Agreement shall expire at the Closing and shall have no further force or effect. The covenants and agreements of the Parties contained in this Agreement to be performed on or prior to the Closing shall expire at the Closing and have no further force or effect, and the covenants and agreements of the Parties contained in this Agreement that by their terms survive the Closing or contemplate performance after the Closing shall survive Closing until fully performed. The indemnification obligations of any Party pursuant to this ARTICLE VII with respect to any breach of a representation, warranty, covenant or other agreement hereunder shall terminate upon the expiration of such representation, warranty, covenant or other agreement.
- **Section 7.2 Effect of Closing**. Upon the Closing, any condition to the obligations of either Party to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby that has not been satisfied as of the Closing Date, and any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement that has been breached or left unsatisfied by either Party as of the Closing Date, will be deemed waived by the Parties as of the Closing Date, and each Party will be deemed to fully release and forever discharge the other Party on account of any and all Claims and Losses with respect to the same. Nothing in this <u>Section 7.2</u> shall be deemed to affect any provision herein which expressly survives the Closing or pertains to matters which will occur after the Closing.
- Section 7.3 Indemnification by Seller. Subject to the other provisions of this <u>ARTICLE VII</u>, from and after the Closing, Seller shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Buyer, its Affiliates and their respective Representatives (collectively, the "Buyer Indemnified Parties") from and against all Losses suffered or incurred by a Buyer Indemnified Party resulting or arising from:
- (a) Any breach of any representation or warranty of Seller contained in this Agreement that survives the Closing pursuant to <u>Section 7.1</u>;
- (b) Any breach of any covenant or agreement of Seller contained in this Agreement that survives the Closing pursuant to Section 7.1; or
 - (c) Any Excluded Liability.
- **Section 7.4 Indemnification by Buyer**. Subject to the other provisions of this <u>ARTICLE VII</u>, from and after the Closing, Buyer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Seller, its Affiliates and their respective Representatives (collectively, the "**Seller Indemnified**"

Attachment 1 Page 67 of 120

Parties") from and against all Losses suffered or incurred by a Seller Indemnified Party resulting or arising from:

- (a) Any breach of any representation or warranty of Buyer contained in this Agreement that survives the Closing pursuant to <u>Section 7.1</u>;
- (b) Any breach of any covenant or agreement of Buyer contained in this Agreement that survives the Closing pursuant to <u>Section 7.1</u>; or
 - (c) Any Assumed Liability.
- **Section 7.5 Certain Limitations**. The Buyer Indemnified Party or Seller Indemnified Party, as applicable, making a claim for indemnification under this <u>ARTICLE VII</u> is referred to herein as the "**Indemnified Party**" and the Party against whom such claims are asserted under this <u>ARTICLE VII</u> is referred to as the "**Indemnifying Party**." The indemnification provided for in this ARTICLE VII shall be subject to the following limitations and other provisions:
- (a) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the aggregate amount of all Losses for which Seller shall be liable pursuant to <u>Section 7.3(a)</u> shall not exceed an amount equal to the Purchase Price.
- (b) Any Indemnified Party that becomes aware of a Loss for which it seeks indemnification under this <u>ARTICLE VII</u> shall be required to use commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate the Loss.
- (c) Losses of any Indemnified Party hereunder shall be calculated after deducting the amount of any insurance proceeds and any indemnity, contribution or other similar Third Party recoveries actually received or reasonably expected to be received by such Indemnified Party in respect of such Loss at or prior to the time of such calculation (net of the reasonable out of pocket costs and expenses associated with such recoveries and any associated increases in insurance premiums). The Indemnified Party shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to recover under insurance policies or indemnity, contribution or similar agreements for any Losses prior to seeking indemnification under this Agreement.
- (d) Losses of any Indemnified Party hereunder shall be determined net of (i) any Tax benefit actually realized as of the time of such determination as a result of sustaining such Losses, and (ii) the net present value, calculated as of the time of such determination, of Tax benefits reasonably expected to be derived as a result of sustaining such Losses.
- (e) All Losses shall be determined without duplication of recovery under any other provisions of this Agreement or any Related Agreement. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (i) if any fact, circumstance, condition, agreement or event forming a basis for a claim for indemnification under this <u>ARTICLE VII</u> shall overlap with any fact, circumstance, condition, agreement or event forming the basis of any other claim for indemnification under this <u>ARTICLE VII</u>, there shall be no duplication in the calculation of the amount of Losses, and (ii) neither Seller nor Buyer shall have any liability under this <u>ARTICLE VII</u> for Losses relating to matters to the extent included in the calculation of the Purchase Price Adjustment in accordance

Page 68 of 120

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 1

with <u>Section 2.6</u> or the prorations made in accordance with <u>Section 2.7</u> (other than the failure to pay or credit any amounts so included).

(f) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Seller's liability for indemnification of Excluded Environmental Liabilities pursuant to Section 7.3(c) (i) shall terminate on the fifth (5th) anniversary of the Closing Date, after which Seller shall have no further obligation to indemnify any Buyer Indemnified Party in respect of such Excluded Environmental Liabilities pursuant to Section 7.3(c); provided, that any such claims for indemnification in respect of Excluded Environmental Liabilities asserted in good faith by any Buyer Indemnified Party prior to the fifth (5th) anniversary of the Closing Date and not finally resolved prior to the fifth (5th) anniversary of the Closing Date shall survive until finally resolved, subject to the dollar limitations set forth in clause (ii) below, (ii) shall in no event exceed, in the aggregate, ten percent (10%) of the Purchase Price, and (iii) shall be subject to reduction to the extent such liability results from a violation by Buyer of its obligations under Section 5.11.

Section 7.6 Indemnification Procedures.

Third Party Claims. If any Indemnified Party receives notice of the (a) assertion or commencement of any Claim made or brought by any Third Party (a "Third Party Claim") against such Indemnified Party with respect to which the Indemnifying Party is obligated to provide indemnification under this Agreement, the Indemnified Party shall give the Indemnifying Party prompt written notice thereof. The failure to give such prompt written notice shall not, however, relieve the Indemnifying Party of its indemnification obligations, except and only to the extent that the Indemnifying Party forfeits rights or defenses by reason of such failure. Such notice by the Indemnified Party shall describe the Third Party Claim in reasonable detail, shall include copies of all material written evidence thereof and shall indicate the estimated amount, if reasonably practicable, of the Loss that has been or may be sustained by the Indemnified Party. The Indemnifying Party shall have the right to participate in, or by giving written notice to the Indemnified Party, to assume the defense of any Third Party Claim at the Indemnifying Party's expense and by the Indemnifying Party's own counsel, and the Indemnified Party shall cooperate in good faith in such defense. In the event that the Indemnifying Party assumes the defense of any Third Party Claim, subject to Section 7.6(b), it shall have the right to take such action as it deems necessary to avoid, dispute, defend, appeal or make counterclaims pertaining to any such Third Party Claim in the name and on behalf of the Indemnified Party. The Indemnified Party shall have the right, at its own cost and expense, to participate in the defense of any Third Party Claim with counsel selected by it, subject to the Indemnifying Party's right to control the defense thereof. If the Indemnifying Party elects not to compromise or defend such Third Party Claim or fails to promptly notify the Indemnified Party in writing of its election to defend as provided in this Agreement, the Indemnified Party may, subject to Section 7.6(b), pay, compromise or defend such Third Party Claim and, subject to the limitations set forth in this ARTICLE VII, seek indemnification for any and all Losses based upon, arising from or relating to such Third Party Claim. Seller and Buyer shall cooperate with each other in all reasonable respects in connection with the defense of any Third Party Claim, including making available (subject to the provisions of Section 5.18) information reasonably available to such Party relating to such Third Party Claim.

Attachment 1 Page 69 of 120

- Settlement of Third Party Claims. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Indemnifying Party shall not enter into settlement of any Third Party Claim without the prior written consent of the Indemnified Party (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), except as provided in this Section 7.6(b). If a firm offer is made to settle a Third Party Claim without leading to liability or the creation of a financial or other obligation on the part of the Indemnified Party and provides, in customary form, for the unconditional release of each Indemnified Party from all liabilities and obligations in connection with such Third Party Claim and the Indemnifying Party desires to accept and agree to such offer, the Indemnifying Party shall give written notice to that effect to the Indemnified Party. If the Indemnified Party fails to consent to such firm offer within ten (10) days after its receipt of such notice, the Indemnified Party may continue to contest or defend such Third Party Claim and in such event, the maximum liability of the Indemnifying Party as to such Third Party Claim shall not exceed the amount of such settlement offer. If the Indemnified Party fails to consent to such firm offer and also fails to assume defense of such Third Party Claim, the Indemnifying Party may settle the Third Party Claim upon the terms set forth in such firm offer to settle such Third Party Claim. If the Indemnified Party has assumed the defense pursuant to Section 7.6(a), it shall not agree to any settlement without the written consent of the Indemnifying Party (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed).
- Direct Claims. Any Claim by an Indemnified Party for indemnification on (c) account of a Loss which does not result from a Third Party Claim (a "Direct Claim") shall be asserted by the Indemnified Party giving the Indemnifying Party prompt written notice thereof, and in any event within thirty (30) days after the discovery by the Indemnified Party of the circumstances giving rise to such Claim. The failure to give such prompt written notice shall not, however, relieve the Indemnifying Party of its indemnification obligations, except and only to the extent that the Indemnifying Party forfeits rights or defenses by reason of such failure. Such notice by the Indemnified Party shall describe the Direct Claim in reasonable detail, shall include copies of all material written evidence thereof and shall indicate the estimated amount, if reasonably practicable, of the Loss that has been or may be sustained by the Indemnified Party. The Indemnifying Party shall have thirty (30) days after its receipt of such notice to respond in writing to such Direct Claim. During such thirty (30) day period, the Indemnified Party shall allow the Indemnifying Party and its Representatives to investigate the matter or circumstance alleged to give rise to the Direct Claim, and whether and to what extent any amount is payable in respect of the Direct Claim, and the Indemnified Party shall assist the Indemnifying Party's investigation by giving such reasonable information and assistance (including access to the Indemnified Party's premises and personnel and the right to examine and copy any accounts, documents or records) as the Indemnifying Party or any of its professional advisors may reasonably request (subject to the provisions of Section 5.18). If the Indemnifying Party does not so respond within such thirty (30) day period, the Indemnifying Party shall be deemed to have rejected such claim, in which case the Indemnified Party shall be free to pursue such remedies as may be available to the Indemnified Party on the terms and subject to the provisions of this Agreement.

Section 7.7 Tax Treatment of Indemnification Payments. Unless otherwise required by applicable Law, all indemnification payments made pursuant to this Agreement will be treated as an adjustment to the Purchase Price for all Tax purposes

Attachment 1 Page 70 of 120

Section 7.8 Waiver of Other Representations; No Reliance; "As Is" Sale.

- NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING IN THIS AGREEMENT TO THE (a) CONTRARY AND EXCEPT FOR THOSE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN ARTICLE III, IT IS THE EXPLICIT INTENT OF EACH PARTY, AND THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE, THAT NONE OF SELLER, ITS AFFILIATES OR THEIR RESPECTIVE REPRESENTATIVES HAS MADE OR IS MAKING ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY WHATSOEVER, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AT COMMON LAW, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, WRITTEN OR ORAL, WITH RESPECT TO, (I) THE ACQUIRED ASSETS, THE ASSUMED LIABILITIES, OR ANY PART THEREOF OR (II) THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE INFORMATION, RECORDS, AND DATA NOW, HERETOFORE, OR HEREAFTER MADE AVAILABLE TO BUYER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT AND ANY SUCH OTHER REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES ARE HEREBY EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED. BUYER HAS NOT EXECUTED OR AUTHORIZED THE EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT IN RELIANCE UPON ANY SUCH PROMISE, REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY NOT EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN.
- WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, (b) EXCEPT FOR THOSE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN ARTICLE III, THE ACQUIRED ASSETS ARE SOLD "AS IS, WHERE IS," "WITH ALL FAULTS," AND NONE OF SELLER OR ITS AFFILIATES, NOR ANY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE REPRESENTATIVES, MAKE OR HAVE MADE, AND BUYER IS NOT RELYING ON. ANY REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND OR NATURE, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AT COMMON LAW, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, WRITTEN OR ORAL, AS TO LIABILITIES, OPERATIONS OF THE FACILITIES, TITLE, CONDITION, VALUE OR QUALITY OF THE ACQUIRED ASSETS OR THE PROSPECTS (FINANCIAL AND OTHERWISE), RISKS OR ANY OTHER MATTERS RESPECTING THE ASSETS OR ASSUMED LIABILITIES, INCLUDING. LIMITATION, WITH RESPECT TO (TO THE EXTENT NOT OTHERWISE PROVIDED FOR HEREIN) (I) THE ACTUAL OR RATED GENERATING CAPABILITY OF ANY OF THE FACILITIES OR THE ABILITY OF BUYER TO SELL FROM ANY OF THE FACILITIES ELECTRIC ENERGY, CAPACITY OR OTHER PRODUCTS RECOGNIZED BY ISO-NE FROM TIME TO TIME. (II) MERCHANTABILITY. USAGE. OR SUITABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE WITH RESPECT TO THE ACQUIRED ASSETS, OR ANY PART THEREOF, (III) THE WORKMANSHIP OF THE ACQUIRED ASSETS, OR THE ABSENCE OF ANY DEFECTS THEREIN, WHETHER LATENT OR PATENT, (IV) COMPLIANCE WITH ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS RESPECTING THE ACQUIRED ASSETS, (V) WHETHER SELLER POSSESSES SUFFICIENT REAL PROPERTY OR PERSONAL PROPERTY TO OPERATE THE ACQUIRED ASSETS, OR (VI) THE PROBABLE SUCCESS OR PROFITABILITY OF OPERATING THE ACQUIRED ASSETS AFTER THE CLOSING, ALL OF WHICH ARE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED BY EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN, SELLER FURTHER SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY REGARDING THE ABSENCE OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES OR LIABILITY OR POTENTIAL LIABILITY ARISING UNDER ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS. WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY

Attachment 1 Page 71 of 120

PROVIDED HEREIN, SELLER EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND REGARDING THE CONDITION OF THE ACQUIRED ASSETS OR THE SUITABILITY THEREOF FOR OPERATION AS POWER GENERATION FACILITIES OR AS SITES FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF ADDITIONAL OR REPLACEMENT GENERATION CAPACITY. NO MATERIAL OR INFORMATION MADE AVAILABLE BY OR COMMUNICATIONS MADE BY SELLER, ITS AFFILIATES AND THEIR RESPECTIVE REPRESENTATIVES, THE NHPUC, OR ANY BROKER OR INVESTMENT BANKER IN EXPECTATION OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY INFORMATION OR MATERIAL CONTAINED IN THE CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION MEMORANDUM DATED AS OF MARCH 2017, ANY OTHER EVALUATION OR DUE DILIGENCE MATERIAL, THE DATA SITE, MANAGEMENT PRESENTATIONS, FUNCTIONAL "BREAK-OUT" DISCUSSIONS, OR ANY ORAL, WRITTEN OR ELECTRONIC RESPONSE TO ANY INFORMATION REQUEST MADE AVAILABLE TO BUYER, WILL CAUSE OR CREATE ANY WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE TITLE, CONDITION, VALUE OR QUALITY OF THE ACQUIRED ASSETS OTHER THAN THOSE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN ARTICLE III, AND EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN, SELLER SHALL NOT HAVE OR BE SUBJECT TO ANY LIABILITY TO BUYER RESULTING THEREFROM.

Section 7.9 Exclusive Remedies; Certain Waivers, Releases and Limitations.

- Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, subject to (a) Section 8.3, from and after the Closing, the rights and remedies of the Parties under this ARTICLE VII shall be the exclusive rights and remedies available to any Party hereto with respect to any breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement set forth in this Agreement or otherwise in respect of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Related Agreements (excluding the Asset Demarcation Agreement, the Easements, the Interconnection Agreements, and the Transition Services Agreement). In furtherance of the foregoing, subject to Section 8.3, each Party hereby waives, from and after the Closing, any and all rights, claims and causes of action for any breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement set forth in this Agreement or otherwise relating to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Related Agreements that it may have against the other Party hereto and its Affiliates and their respective Representatives arising under or based upon any Law or otherwise, except pursuant to the provisions of this ARTICLE VII. Nothing in this Section 7.9(a) shall limit any Party's rights to seek and obtain any equitable relief to which such Party is entitled pursuant to Section 8.3; provided, however, that any monetary awards awarded as a part of such equitable relief shall be subject to the limitations set forth in this ARTICLE VII.
- (b) Without limiting the provisions of Section 7.9(a), Buyer, for itself and its Affiliates, effective as of the Closing, hereby irrevocably releases, agrees to hold harmless and forever discharges Seller, its Representatives and its Affiliates from any and all claims, demands, Losses, Liabilities, damages, complaints, causes of action, investigations, hearings, actions, suits or other Claims or proceedings of any kind or character whether known or unknown, hidden or concealed, arising out of or related to any Environmental Liability, except for Excluded Environmental Liabilities but only to the extent and for so long as the same are retained by Seller

Attachment 1 Page 72 of 120

pursuant to Section 2.4(h). In furtherance of the foregoing, effective as of the Closing, Buyer, for itself and its Affiliates, hereby irrevocably waives, with respect to any matter it is releasing pursuant to the preceding sentence, any and all rights and benefits that it now has or in the future may have conferred upon it by virtue of any Law or common law principle which provides that a general release does not extend to claims which a party does not know or suspect to exist in its favor at the time of executing such release, if knowledge of such claims would have materially affected such party's settlement with the obligor. Buyer hereby acknowledges that it is aware that factual matters now unknown to it may have given or hereafter may give rise to claims, demands, Losses, Liabilities, damages, complaints, causes of action, investigations, hearings, actions, suits or other Claims or proceedings that are unknown, unanticipated and unsuspected as of the Effective Date and will not be known, anticipated or suspected prior to the Closing Date, and Buyer further agrees that this Section 7.9(b) has been negotiated and agreed upon in light of that awareness, and Buyer, for itself and on behalf of its Affiliates, nevertheless hereby intends to irrevocably release, hold harmless and forever discharge Seller and its Affiliates as set forth in the first sentence of this Section 7.9(b).

- (c) To the extent the transfer, conveyance, assignment and delivery of the Acquired Assets to Buyer as contemplated in this Agreement is accomplished by deeds, assignments, easements, leases, licenses, bills of sale or other instruments of transfer and conveyance, whether executed at the Closing or thereafter, these instruments are made without representation or warranty by, or recourse against, Seller, except as expressly provided in this Agreement or in any such instrument.
- (d) No Representative or Affiliate of Seller shall have any personal liability to Buyer or any other Person as a result of the breach of any representation, warranty, covenant, agreement or obligation of Seller in this Agreement, and no Representative or Affiliate of Buyer shall have any personal liability to Seller or any other Person as a result of the breach of any representation, warranty, covenant, agreement or obligation of Buyer in this Agreement.
- (e) NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING IN THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY RELATED AGREEMENT (EXCLUDING THE ASSET DEMARCATION AGREEMENT, THE EASEMENTS, THE INTERCONNECTION AGREEMENTS, AND THE TRANSITION SERVICES AGREEMENT) TO THE CONTRARY, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT PURSUANT TO A THIRD PARTY CLAIM, NO PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR INDIRECT DAMAGES, OR LOST OPPORTUNITY, LOST PROFITS, DIMINUTION OF VALUE OR ANY DAMAGES BASED ON ANY TYPE OF MULTIPLE, WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY, OTHER LAW OR OTHERWISE AND WHETHER OR NOT ARISING FROM THE OTHER PARTY'S SOLE, JOINT OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHER FAULT ("NON-REIMBURSABLE DAMAGES").

ARTICLE VIII TERMINATION

Section 8.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time before the Closing as follows:

Attachment 1 Page 73 of 120

- (a) By either Buyer or Seller, by written notice to the other, if the Closing shall not have occurred within twelve (12) months after the Effective Date, as may be extended pursuant to Section 5.16 (the "Outside Date"); provided, that (i) if the sole reason Closing has not occurred prior to the Outside Date is that one or more Consents of a Governmental Authority required to consummate the Closing pursuant to ARTICLE VI have not yet been obtained or made, and such Consents are being diligently pursued by the appropriate Party, then such Outside Date may be extended by either Party by written notice to the other Party delivered at any time before termination of this Agreement, for an additional ninety (90) days, and (ii) Buyer cannot terminate this Agreement under this provision if the failure of the Closing to occur is the result of the failure on the part of Buyer to perform any of its obligations hereunder and Seller cannot terminate this Agreement under this provision if the failure of the Closing to occur is the result of the failure on the part of Seller to perform any of its obligations hereunder;
- (b) By Seller, by written notice to Buyer, (i) immediately if Buyer has (A) breached its obligation to pay the Closing Purchase Price pursuant to Section 2.5 and Section 2.11(a), or (B) breached any of its covenants, agreements or obligations contained in Section 5.18 at any time; or (ii) if Buyer has breached in any material respect any other representation, warranty, covenant, agreement or obligation in this Agreement and such breach, in the case of this clause (ii), has not been cured within thirty (30) days following written notification thereof; provided, however, that if, at the end of such thirty (30) day period, Buyer is endeavoring in good faith, and proceeding diligently, to cure such breach, Buyer shall have an additional thirty (30) days in which to effect such cure;
- (c) By Buyer, by written notice to Seller, if Seller has breached any of its representations, warranties, covenants, agreements or obligations in this Agreement and (i) such breach has not been cured within thirty (30) days following written notification thereof; provided, however, that if, at the end of such thirty (30) day period, Seller is endeavoring in good faith, and proceeding diligently, to cure such breach, Seller shall have an additional thirty (30) days in which to effect such cure and (ii) such breach (to the extent not cured) would result in a Material Adverse Effect or would have a material adverse effect on Seller's ability to perform its obligations hereunder;
- (d) By either Buyer or Seller, by written notice to the other, if there shall be in effect any Law or final, non-appealable Order restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting or making illegal the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;
- (e) By Buyer or Seller, as applicable, in accordance with <u>Section 5.16</u> or <u>Section 5.17</u>; or
 - (f) By mutual written agreement of Buyer and Seller.

Section 8.2 Effect of Termination; Termination Fee.

(a) If this Agreement is validly terminated pursuant to <u>Section 8.1</u>, there will be no liability or obligation on the part of Seller or Buyer (or any of their respective Representatives or Affiliates), except as provided in this <u>Section 8.2</u>.

Attachment 1 Page 74 of 120

- (b) Regardless of the reason for termination, <u>Section 5.4(d)</u>, <u>Section 5.18</u>, <u>Section 5.19</u>, <u>Section 7.9</u>, <u>Section 8.2</u>, <u>Section 8.3</u> and <u>ARTICLE IX</u> (and, in each case the applicable definitions and rules of interpretation set forth in <u>ARTICLE I</u>) will survive any termination of this Agreement.
- Party shall return or destroy, in accordance with the terms of the Confidentiality Agreement and Section 5.18, all documents and other materials provided by the other Party relating to the Acquired Assets, the Assumed Liabilities, the Facilities or to this Agreement, the Related Agreements or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, including any information relating to the Parties to this Agreement, whether obtained before or after the execution of this Agreement, and all information received by Buyer with respect to Seller, the Acquired Assets, the Assumed Liabilities, the Facilities, this Agreement, the Related Agreements or otherwise respecting the transactions contemplated hereby shall remain subject to the terms of the Confidentiality Agreement and Section 5.18.
- If this Agreement is terminated by Seller pursuant to Section 8.1(b), then notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement but without limiting any right of Seller to an injunction, specific performance or other non-monetary equitable relief in accordance with Section 8.3, Buyer hereby agrees to pay immediately to Seller, as liquidated damages (and not a penalty) in connection with any such termination, an amount equal to Twelve Million, Four Hundred Fifty Dollars (\$12,450,000) in immediately available funds. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the provisions for payment of liquidated damages in this Section 8.2(d) have been included because, in the event of termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.1(b), the actual damages to be incurred by Seller are reasonably expected to approximate the amount of liquidated damages set forth in this Section 8.2(d) and because the actual amount of such damages would be difficult if not impossible to measure and prove precisely. The Parties therefore expressly intend to liquidate damages in advance in accordance with this Section 8.2(d), and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, acknowledge and agree that the amount of liquidated damages set forth in this Section 8.2(d) is reasonable and is not greatly disproportionate to the presumable loss or injury of Seller in the event of termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.1(b). Buyer acknowledges that the agreements contained in this Section 8.2(d) are an integral part of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and that, without these agreements, Seller would not enter into this Agreement. The Parties acknowledge and agree that (A) Seller shall be entitled both to pursue payment of liquidated damages in accordance with this Section 8.2(d) and to pursue specific performance pursuant to Section 8.3 and (B) Seller may, in its sole discretion, elect to receive either an award of liquidated damages in accordance with this Section 8.2(d) or judgment awarding specific performance pursuant to Section 8.3; provided, that the Parties acknowledge and agree that under no circumstance shall Seller be entitled to receive both payment of liquidated damages in accordance with this Section 8.2(d) and specific performance pursuant to Section 8.3.
- (e) In the event Seller or Buyer, as applicable, commences a proceeding in order to obtain (i) payment hereunder that results in a judgment against Buyer or Seller for the amounts set forth in Section 8.2(d), or (ii) specific performance or other equitable relief that results in a judgment against Buyer or Seller pursuant to Section 8.3, then in either case Buyer or Seller, as applicable, shall also pay to Seller or Buyer, as applicable, its costs and expenses

Attachment 1 Page 75 of 120

(including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses) in connection with such proceeding, together with interest on the amounts due pursuant to <u>Section 8.2(d)</u> or this <u>Section 8.2(e)</u> from the date such payment was required to be made until the date of payment at the prime lending rate as published in The Wall Street Journal in effect on the date such payment was required to be made.

Section 8.3 Specific Performance and Other Remedies. Each Party hereby acknowledges and agrees that the rights of each Party to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby are special, unique and of extraordinary character, and that, if any of the provisions of this Agreement were not performed by a Party in accordance with their specific terms or were otherwise breached by a Party, the non-breaching Party would suffer irreparable damage and would be without an adequate remedy at law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if any Party violates or fails or refuses to perform any covenant or agreement made by such Party herein, without limiting or waiving in any respect any rights or remedies of a Party under this Agreement now or hereafter existing at law, in equity or by statute, the nonbreaching Party shall, in addition to any other remedy to which a Party is entitled at law or in equity, be entitled to specific performance of such covenant or agreement, injunctions to prevent or restrain breaches of this Agreement, and any other equitable relief, in each case without the proof of actual damages. Each Party agrees to waive any requirement for the security or posting of any bond in connection with any such equitable remedy, and agrees that it will not oppose the granting of an injunction, specific performance or other equitable relief on the basis that (a) the other Party has an adequate remedy at law, or (b) an award of specific performance is not an appropriate remedy for any reason at law or equity.

ARTICLE IX MISCELLANEOUS

Expenses. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, Section 9.1 including in Section 8.2, whether or not the Closing shall have occurred, each Party will pay its own costs and expenses (including, without limitation, fees and disbursements of counsel, financial advisors and accountants) incurred in anticipation of, relating to and in connection with the negotiation and execution of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Buyer will pay (a) all filing fees for Consents of Governmental Authorities required in connection with this Agreement, the Related Agreements and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, including filing fees in connection with obtaining required Consents from FERC and any filings under the HSR Act, (b) all document recordation costs (including all New Hampshire County Registry of Deeds recording fees and New Hampshire Land and Community Heritage Investment Program surcharges for all deeds, mortgage indenture releases, easements, plans and other recorded documents) and fifty percent (50%) of all Transfer Taxes in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements in accordance with Section 5.12, and (c) all costs and expenses of any title policy and all endorsements thereto that Buyer elects to obtain.

Section 9.2 Notices. All notices, requests, consents, waivers, demands, claims and other communications hereunder will be in writing and shall be deemed duly given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); (c) on the date sent by facsimile or e-mail (in each case, with confirmation of delivery) if sent during normal business

Attachment 1 Page 76 of 120

hours of the recipient, and on the next Business Day if sent after normal business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the fifth day after the date mailed, by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to the applicable Party at the address and/or other contact information for such Party set forth below (or at such other address and/or other contact information for a Party as shall be specified in a notice given in accordance with this Section 9.2):

If to Seller: Public Service Company of New Hampshire

c/o Eversource Energy 56 Prospect Street

Hartford, Connecticut 06103 Attention: General Counsel

with a copy to:

Public Service Company of New Hampshire 780 North Commercial Street Manchester, New Hampshire 03101-1134

Attention: Law Department

If to Buyer:

c/o Hull Street Energy, LLC 4920 Elm Street, Suite 205 Bethesda, MD 20814 Attention: David Meeker Facsimile No.: (443) 378-8616 Telephone: (240) 800-3217

Email: dmeeker@hullstreetenergy.com

with a copy to:

Manatt, Phelps & Phillips, LLP 1050 Connecticut Avenue, NW, Suite 600 Washington, DC 20036 Attention: Alan M. Noskow

Facsimile No.: (202) 637-1595 Telephone: (202) 585-6525 e-mail: anoskow@manatt.com

Section 9.3 Entire Agreement. This Agreement (including the Exhibits and Schedules hereto), the Related Agreements and the Confidentiality Agreement constitute, as a complete and final integration thereof, the sole and entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersede all prior and contemporaneous agreements (other than the Confidentiality Agreement), understandings or representations, both written and oral, between the Parties with respect to such subject matter. Except as otherwise set forth herein, all

Attachment 1 Page 77 of 120

conflicts or inconsistencies between the terms hereof and the terms of any of the Related Agreements, if any, shall be resolved in favor of this Agreement.

Section 9.4 Severability. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such manner as to be valid, binding and enforceable under applicable Law. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable under any present or future Law, and if the rights and obligations of any Party will not be materially and adversely affected thereby, (a) such provision will be fully severable, (b) this Agreement will be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision had never comprised a part hereof, (c) the remaining provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect and will not be affected by the illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision or by its severance herefrom and (d) in lieu of such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision, there will be added automatically as a part of this Agreement a legal, valid and enforceable provision as similar in terms of such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision as may be possible.

Section 9.5 **Schedules and Exhibits**. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, all Schedules and Exhibits referred to herein, as the same may be amended, modified or supplemented from time to time in accordance with this Agreement, are intended to be and hereby are made a part of this Agreement. Any matter set forth in any Schedule under this Agreement corresponding to or qualifying a specific numbered paragraph of this Agreement shall be deemed to correspond to and qualify any other numbered paragraph of this Agreement to which the relevance or applicability of such matter is reasonably apparent on its face, whether or not there is an explicit cross-reference thereto. Certain information set forth in the Schedules is included solely for informational and other disclosure purposes, is not an admission of liability with respect to the matters covered by the information, and may not be required to be disclosed pursuant to this Agreement. The specification of any dollar amount in any provision of this Agreement or the inclusion of any specific item in the Schedules is not intended to imply, and shall not be deemed to be an acknowledgement or admission, that such amounts (or higher or lower amounts) or items are or are not material, and shall not otherwise be deemed to establish any standard of materiality or to define further or otherwise interpret the meaning of "material," "Material Adverse Effect," or any similar terms for purposes of the Agreement. In no event shall the inclusion of any matter in these Schedules be deemed or interpreted to broaden or otherwise amplify the representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in this Agreement. Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined in the Schedules shall have the meanings given to them in this Agreement.

Section 9.6 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties named herein and their respective successors and permitted assigns. No Party may assign either this Agreement or the Related Agreements or any of its rights, interests, or obligations hereunder or thereunder without the prior written consent of the other Party; *provided*, that Buyer may, upon notice to Seller, collaterally assign all or part of its rights under this Agreement or other Related Agreements to any third party lender or one or more wholly-owned subsidiaries of Buyer, *provided*, that such transferee agrees in writing to be bound by the terms hereof applicable to Buyer and provides a copy of such undertaking to Seller. No assignment shall relieve the assigning Party of any of its obligations hereunder or thereunder.

Attachment 1 Page 78 of 120

Section 9.7 No Third Party Beneficiaries. The terms and provisions of this Agreement are intended solely for the benefit of the Parties hereto, their respective successors and permitted assigns, and any Person benefitting from the indemnities, releases or limitations of liability provided herein, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon any other Person (including any employee, any beneficiary or dependents thereof, or any collective bargaining representative thereof) any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement.

Section 9.8 No Joint Venture or Agency. Nothing in this Agreement creates or is intended to create an association, trust, partnership, joint venture or other entity or similar legal relationship between the Parties, or impose a trust, partnership or fiduciary duty, obligation or liability on or with respect to either Party. Except as expressly provided herein, neither Party is or shall act as or be the agent or representative of the other Party.

Section 9.9 Amendments and Waivers. Except to the extent expressly set forth herein with respect to Schedule Updates during the Interim Period, this Agreement may not be amended, modified or supplemented except by an agreement in writing signed by each Party hereto. No waiver by any Party of any of the provisions hereof shall be effective unless explicitly set forth in writing and signed by the Party so waiving. No waiver by any Party shall operate or be construed as a waiver in respect of any failure, breach or default not expressly identified by such written waiver, whether of a similar or different character, and whether occurring before or after such written waiver. No failure to exercise, or delay in exercising, any right, remedy, power or privilege arising from this Agreement shall operate or be construed as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy, power or privilege.

Section 9.10 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the state of New Hampshire without giving effect to any choice or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the state of New Hampshire or any other jurisdiction) that would cause the application of Laws of any jurisdiction other than those of the state of New Hampshire, except to the extent that certain matters are pre-empted by federal Law or are governed by the Law of the jurisdiction of organization of any Party or other Person referred to herein.

Section 9.11 Dispute Resolution. Prior to instituting any litigation or dispute resolution mechanism, each of the Parties will attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute or claim promptly by referring any such matter to their respective senior executives for resolution. Either Party may give the other Party written notice of any dispute or claim. Within ten (10) days after delivery of said notice, the executives will meet at a mutually acceptable time and place, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem necessary to exchange information and to attempt to resolve the dispute or claim within thirty (30) days.

Section 9.12 Submission to Jurisdiction. ANY ACTION, SUIT OR PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE RELATED AGREEMENTS OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY SHALL BE INSTITUTED IN THE FEDERAL OR STATE COURTS LOCATED IN THE

Attachment 1 Page 79 of 120

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION 9.12. EACH PARTY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY CONSENTS HEREBY TO SUBMIT TO THE EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF THE BUSINESS AND COMMERCIAL DISPUTE DOCKET (BCDD) OF THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE PURSUANT TO N.H. SUPERIOR COURT CIVIL RULE 207 OR THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW HAMPSHIRE FOR ANY SUCH ACTION, SUIT OR PROCEEDING, AND HEREBY FURTHER IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES AND AGREES NOT TO PLEAD IN ANY SUCH COURT THAT ANY SUCH ACTION, SUIT, OR PROCEEDING BROUGHT IN ANY SUCH COURT HAS BEEN BROUGHT IN AN INCONVENIENT FORUM. SERVICE OF PROCESS, SUMMONS, NOTICE OR OTHER DOCUMENT BY MAIL TO SUCH PARTY'S ADDRESS SET FORTH HEREIN SHALL BE EFFECTIVE SERVICE OF PROCESS FOR ANY ACTION, SUIT OR OTHER PROCEEDING BROUGHT IN ANY SUCH COURT.

Section 9.13 Waiver of Jury Trial. EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT ANY CONTROVERSY WHICH MAY ARISE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR THE RELATED AGREEMENTS IS LIKELY TO INVOLVE COMPLICATED AND DIFFICULT ISSUES AND, THEREFORE, EACH SUCH PARTY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY LEGAL ACTION ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE RELATED AGREEMENTS OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY.

Section 9.14 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same agreement. A signed copy of this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail, PDF or other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement.

[Signature page follows.]

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 80 of 120

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first written above.

Title:_

| SELLER: |
|---|
| PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE |
| Name: Philip J. Lembo |
| Title: Executive Vice President and Chief |
| Financial Officer |
| BUYER: |
| HSE HYDRO NH AC, LLC |
| Name: |

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first written above.

SELLER:

PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Name: Philip J. Lembo

Title: Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer

BUYER:

HSE HYDRO NH AC, LLC

Name: David G. Meeker Title: Vice President

SCHEDULES TO PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

These Schedules are attached to and a part of the Purchase and Sale Agreement (the "**Agreement**"), dated as of October 11, 2017, by and between Public Service Company of New Hampshire, a New Hampshire corporation ("**Seller**") and HSE Hydro NH AC, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("**Buyer**"). Unless the context otherwise requires, capitalized terms used but not defined in the Schedules have the meanings given to them in the Agreement.

Schedule references in these Schedules are for convenience only. Any matter set forth in any Schedule corresponding to or qualifying a specific numbered paragraph of the Agreement shall be deemed to correspond to and qualify any other numbered paragraph of the Agreement to which the relevance or applicability of such matter is reasonably apparent on its face, whether or not there is an explicit cross-reference thereto. Any reference to a Contract, Permit, report or other document or item of any kind in these Schedules shall be deemed a full disclosure of all of the terms thereof and it shall not be necessary to identify or reference specific provisions or portions of such item in order to make a full disclosure for purposes of these Schedules.

Certain information set forth in the Schedules is included solely for informational and other disclosure purposes, is not an admission of liability with respect to the matters covered by the information, and may not be required to be disclosed pursuant to the Agreement. The specification of any dollar amount in any provision of the Agreement or the inclusion of any specific item in the Schedules is not intended to imply, and shall not be deemed to be an acknowledgement or admission, that such amounts (or higher or lower amounts) or items are or are not material, and shall not otherwise be deemed to establish any standard of materiality or to define further or otherwise interpret the meaning of "material," "Material Adverse Effect," or any similar terms for purposes of the Agreement. In no event shall the inclusion of any matter in these Schedules be deemed or interpreted to broaden or otherwise amplify the representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in the Agreement. No disclosure in the Schedules relating to any possible breach or violation of any Contract or Law shall be construed as an admission or indication to any Person that is not a Party to the Agreement that any such breach or violation exists or has actually occurred.

The attachments to these Schedules form an integral part of these Schedules and are incorporated by reference for all purposes as if set forth fully herein. These Schedules may be amended, modified or supplemented from time to time in accordance with the Agreement.

SCHEDULE 1

Facilities¹

| | Station Name | Description |
|----|-----------------------|--|
| 1. | Amoskeag Station | 18 MW hydroelectric generation facility located in Manchester, New Hampshire |
| 2. | Ayers Island Station | 9 MW hydroelectric generation facility located in New Hampton, New Hampshire |
| 3. | Canaan Station | 1 MW hydroelectric generation facility located in Canaan, Vermont |
| 4. | Eastman Falls Station | 7 MW hydroelectric generation facility located in Franklin, New Hampshire |
| 5. | Garvins Falls Station | 12 MW hydroelectric generation facility located in Bow, New Hampshire |
| 6. | Gorham Station | 2 MW hydroelectric generation facility located in Gorham, New Hampshire |
| 7. | Hooksett Station | 2 MW hydroelectric generation facility located in Hooksett, New Hampshire |
| 8. | Jackman Station | 4 MW hydroelectric generation facility located in Hillsborough, New Hampshire |
| 9. | Smith Station | 18 MW hydroelectric generation facility located in Berlin, New Hampshire |

¹ All megawatt (MW) references in this Schedule 1 refer to the applicable Facility's nominal or nameplate capacity.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 84 of 120

SCHEDULE 1.1-K

Seller's Knowledge

- 1. William H. Smagula
- 2. Elizabeth H. Tillotson
- 3. Terrance J. Large
- 4. Shawn Southworth
- 5. Michael Hitchko
- 6. Curtis Mooney

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 85 of 120

SCHEDULE 1.1-PL

Permitted Liens

1. Seller will convey a storm water license to the Town of Gorham after the Effective Date but before the Closing Date.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 86 of 120

SCHEDULE 2.1(a)

Real Property; Title Commitments

[Real Property; Title Commitments Details Not Included in Filing]

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 87 of 120

SCHEDULE 2.1(b)

Leased Real Property

None.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 88 of 120

SCHEDULE 2.1(c)

Personal Property²

[Personal Property Details Not Included in Filing]

² PSNH only listed items with a cost of over \$100,000 as a proxy for materiality to avoid overly voluminous schedules.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 89 of 120

SCHEDULE 2.1(e)

Material Contracts

[Material Contracts Details Not Included in Filing]

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 90 of 120

SCHEDULE 2.1(g)

Assigned Intellectual Property

[Assigned Intellectual Property Details Not Included in Filing]

SCHEDULE 2.1(i)

Environmental Attributes

Generally

1. None.

Amoskeag Station

2. None.

Ayers Island Station

3. None.

Canaan Station

4. None.

Eastman Falls Station

5. None.

Garvins Falls Station

6. None.

Gorham Station

7. None.

Hooksett Station

8. None.

Jackman Station

9. None.

Smith Station

10. New Hampshire Renewable Portfolio Certification NH-I-08-011, Class I Renewable Credits, effective July 29, 2008.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 92 of 120

SCHEDULE 2.2(a)

T&D and Associated Telecommunications Assets

[T&D and Associated Telecommunications Assets Details Not Included in Filing]

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 93 of 120

SCHEDULE 2.2(b)

Retained Real Property

[Retained Real Property Details Not Included in Filing]

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 94 of 120

SCHEDULE 2.2(j)

Assigned Intercompany Contracts

None.

SCHEDULE 2.8(b)

Purchase Price Allocation

Buyer views the portfolio of hydro assets to be worth more than the sum of the individual parts, and accordingly, is not proposing or offering to acquire any of the individual plants for the prices listed below. This is merely an allocation of the portfolio value to each individual asset.

| Hydro Facilities | Allocated Purchase Price |
|--|-----------------------------|
| 12.5% of Androscoggin Reservoir Company (ARCO) | \$500,000.00 |
| Amoskeag Station | 21,260,000.00 |
| Ayers Island Statilon | 10,500,000.00 |
| Canaan Station | 1,700,000.00 |
| Eastman Falls Station | 6,150,000.00 |
| Garvins Falls Station | 10,640,000.00 |
| Gorham Station | 2,880,000.00 |
| Hooksett Station | 1,970,000.00 |
| Jackman Station | 2,450,000.00 |
| Smith Station | 24,950,000.00 |
| Total Hydro Facilities | \$83,000,000.00 |

SCHEDULE 3.3

Seller Required Consents

General

- A. Consents of Governmental Authorities
 - 1. *FERC 203 approval
 - 2. *HSR Act, if applicable
 - 3. *NHPUC pursuant to the Settlement Agreement
- B. Consents of Other Persons
 - 4. *Release of Mortgage Indenture
 - 5. General Terms and Conditions for Utility Services, dated July 20, 2015, by and between Eversource Energy, as agent for Seller, and Yates Electric Service Inc.
 - 6. General Terms and Conditions, dated July 20, 2015, by and between Eversource Energy, as agent for Seller, and Ayer Electric LLC.
 - 7. Terms and Conditions for GlobalCare, dated September 26, 2016, by and between GE Intelligent Platforms, Inc. and Seller.
 - 8. General Terms and Conditions Consulting Services, dated February 3, 2015, by and between Eversource Energy, as agent for Seller, and Kleinschmidt Associates.

Amoskeag Station

- A. Consents of Governmental Authorities
 - 9. *FERC consent required to transfer item 2 of Schedule 3.5(b).
- B. Consents of Other Persons
 - 10. None.

Ayers Island Station

- A. Consents of Governmental Authorities
 - 11. *FERC consent required to transfer item 3 of Schedule 3.5(b).
- B. Consents of Other Persons
 - 12. None.

Canaan Station

- A. Consents of Governmental Authorities
 - 13. *VTPUC.
 - 14. *FERC consent required to transfer item 4 of Schedule 3.5(b).
- B. Consents of Other Persons

15. None.

Eastman Falls Station

- A. Consents of Governmental Authorities
 - 16. *FERC consent required to transfer item 5 of Schedule 3.5(b).
- B. Consents of Other Persons
 - 17. None.

Garvins Falls Station

- A. Consents of Governmental Authorities
 - 18. *FERC consent required to transfer item 6 of Schedule 3.5(b).
- B. Consents of Other Persons
 - 19. None.

Gorham Station

- A. Consents of Governmental Authorities
 - 20. *FERC consent required to transfer item 7 of Schedule 3.5(b).
- B. Consents of Other Persons
 - 21. None.

Hooksett Station

- A. Consents of Governmental Authorities
 - 22. *FERC consent required to transfer item 8 of Schedule 3.5(b).
- B. Consents of Other Persons
 - 23. None.

Jackman Station

- A. Consents of Governmental Authorities
 - 24. None.
- B. Consents of Other Persons
 - 25. None.

Smith Station

- A. Consents of Governmental Authorities
 - 26. *FERC consent required to transfer item 10 of Schedule 3.5(b).
- B. Consents of Other Persons
 - 27. None.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 98 of 120

ARCO Shares
28. *Waiver of rights of first refusal pursuant to the ARCO By-Laws.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 99 of 120

SCHEDULE 3.4

Legal Proceedings

- 1. See Schedule 3.11(b) and Schedule 3.12(b).
- 2. Settlement Agreement and related dockets.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 100 of 120

SCHEDULE 3.5(a)

Compliance with Laws

None.

SCHEDULE 3.5(b)

Permits

| Issuing AgencyPermit # DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable1. None.Amoskeag StationIssuing AgencyPermit # DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable2. FERC1893-042Hydroelectric project licenseMay 18, 2047YesIssuing AgencyPermit # DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable3. FERC2456-009Hydroelectric project licenseApril 29, April 29, 2036YesCanaan StationIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable4. FERC7528-009Hydroelectric project licenseJanuary 19, August 1, 2039YesEastman Falls StationIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable5. FERC2457-041Hydroelectric April 20, April 30, 2047Yes | | | | | |
|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| 1. None. Amoskeag Station Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 2. FERC 1893-042 Hydroelectric project license 2007 Avers Island Station Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 3. FERC 2456-009 Hydroelectric project license 1996 Canaan Station Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 4. FERC 7528-009 Hydroelectric January 19, August 1, 2039 Yes project license 2009 Eastman Falls Station Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 1. FERC 7528-009 Hydroelectric January 19, August 1, 2039 Yes Eastman Falls Station Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 4. FERC 2457-041 Hydroelectric April 20, April 30, 2047 Yes | | | | | |
| Issuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable2. FERC1893-042Hydroelectric project licenseMay 18, 2047YesAvers Island StationIssuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable3. FERC2456-009Hydroelectric project licenseApril 29, April 29, 2036YesCanaan StationIssuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable4. FERC7528-009Hydroelectric project licenseJanuary 19, 2009August 1, 2039YesEastman Falls StationIssuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable5. FERC2457-041Hydroelectric April 20, April 30, 2047Yes | | | | | |
| Issuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable2. FERC1893-042Hydroelectric project licenseMay 18, 2047YesAvers Island StationIssuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable3. FERC2456-009Hydroelectric project licenseApril 29, April 29, 2036YesCanaan StationIssuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable4. FERC7528-009Hydroelectric project licenseJanuary 19, 2009August 1, 2039YesEastman Falls StationIssuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable5. FERC2457-041Hydroelectric April 20, April 30, 2047Yes | | | | | |
| 2. FERC 1893-042 Hydroelectric project license 2007 Avers Island Station Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 3. FERC 2456-009 Hydroelectric project license 1996 Canaan Station Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 4. FERC 7528-009 Hydroelectric project license 2009 Eastman Falls Station Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 1 | | | | | |
| Avers Island Station Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 3. FERC 2456-009 Hydroelectric project license 1996 Canaan Station Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 4. FERC 7528-009 Hydroelectric project license 2009 Eastman Falls Station Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 2009 Eastman Falls Station Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 2009 Eastman Falls Station Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable August 1, 2039 Yes Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable April 20, April 30, 2047 Yes | | | | | |
| Ayers Island StationIssuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable3. FERC2456-009Hydroelectric project licenseApril 29, April 29, 2036YesCanaan StationIssuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable4. FERC7528-009Hydroelectric project licenseJanuary 19, August 1, 2039YesEastman Falls StationIssuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable5. FERC2457-041Hydroelectric April 20, April 30, 2047Yes | | | | | |
| Issuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable3. FERC2456-009Hydroelectric project licenseApril 29, April 29, 2036YesCanaan StationIssuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable4. FERC7528-009Hydroelectric project licenseJanuary 19, 2009August 1, 2039YesEastman Falls StationIssuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable5. FERC2457-041Hydroelectric April 20, April 30, 2047Yes | | | | | |
| 3. FERC 2456-009 Hydroelectric April 29, April 29, 2036 Yes Canaan Station Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 4. FERC 7528-009 Hydroelectric January 19, August 1, 2039 Yes project license 2009 Eastman Falls Station Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 2009 Eastman Falls Station Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable April 29, 2036 Yes | | | | | |
| 3. FERC 2456-009 Hydroelectric April 29, April 29, 2036 Yes project license 1996 Canaan Station Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 4. FERC 7528-009 Hydroelectric January 19, August 1, 2039 Yes project license 2009 Eastman Falls Station Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 2009 Eastman Falls Station Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 5. FERC 2457-041 Hydroelectric April 20, April 30, 2047 Yes | | | | | |
| Canaan StationIssuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable4. FERC7528-009Hydroelectric project licenseJanuary 19, 2009August 1, 2039YesEastman Falls StationIssuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable5. FERC2457-041Hydroelectric April 20, April 30, 2047Yes | | | | | |
| Issuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable4. FERC7528-009Hydroelectric project licenseJanuary 19, 2009August 1, 2039YesEastman Falls StationIssuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable5. FERC2457-041Hydroelectric April 20, April 30, 2047Yes | | | | | |
| 4. FERC 7528-009 Hydroelectric January 19, August 1, 2039 Yes project license 2009 Eastman Falls Station Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 5. FERC 2457-041 Hydroelectric April 20, April 30, 2047 Yes | | | | | |
| 4. FERC 7528-009 Hydroelectric January 19, August 1, 2039 Yes project license 2009 Eastman Falls Station Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable 5. FERC 2457-041 Hydroelectric April 20, April 30, 2047 Yes | | | | | |
| Eastman Falls StationIssuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable5. FERC2457-041HydroelectricApril 20,April 30, 2047Yes | | | | | |
| Issuing AgencyPermit #DescriptionIssue DateExpiration DateTransferable5. FERC2457-041HydroelectricApril 20,April 30, 2047Yes | | | | | |
| 5. FERC 2457-041 Hydroelectric April 20, April 30, 2047 Yes | | | | | |
| 5. FERC 2457-041 Hydroelectric April 20, April 30, 2047 Yes | | | | | |
| 2 4 4 5 6 4 7 | | | | | |
| project license 2017 | | | | | |
| Garvins Falls Station | | | | | |
| Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable | | | | | |
| 6. FERC 1893-042 Hydroelectric May 18, May 18, 2047 Yes | | | | | |
| project license 2007 | | | | | |
| Gorham Station | | | | | |
| Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable | | | | | |
| 7. FERC 2288-004 Hydroelectric August 1, August 1, 2024 Yes | | | | | |
| project license 1994 | | | | | |
| Hooksett Station | | | | | |
| Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable | | | | | |
| 8. FERC 1893-042 Hydroelectric May 18, May 18, 2047 Yes | | | | | |
| project license 2007 | | | | | |
| Jackman Station | | | | | |
| Issuing Agency Permit # Description Issue Date Expiration Date Transferable | | | | | |

³ Permits noted as "transferable" include permits for which a new owner can undertake administrative measures to amend or revise the permit to reflect a change in ownership. These measures may include, among other things, notification to the relevant authority, approval by the relevant authority, or submittal of permit amendments.

9. None.

Smith Station

| | Issuing Agency | Permit # | Description | Issue Date | Expiration Date | Transferable |
|-----|----------------|----------|-------------------------------|------------|-----------------|--------------|
| 10. | FERC | 2287-003 | Hydroelectric project license | • | August 1, 2024 | Yes |

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 103 of 120

SCHEDULE 3.7

Certain Assets Used in Operations

Generally

1. See Schedule 2.2(b) for retained properties historically used by Seller in the operation of the Facilities but which are not necessary for the operation of the Business.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 104 of 120

SCHEDULE 3.8(b)

Certain Matters Regarding Material Contracts

Various Contracts that apply to the entire generation portfolio or to multiple Facilities will need to be amended or bifurcated to effect the transaction, including each of those Contracts listed under the heading "Generally" under Schedule 2.1(e).

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 105 of 120

SCHEDULE 3.9

Insurance

[Insurance Details Not Included in Filing]

.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 106 of 120

SCHEDULE 3.10

Tax Claims

None.

SCHEDULE 3.11(a)

Environmental Permits

Generally

None.

Amoskeag Station

| | Issuing | | | | Expiration | Application | |
|----|-----------|---|-----------|------------|------------|---|------------------|
| | Agency | Description | Permit # | Issue Date | Date | Pending | $Transferable^4$ |
| 1. | EPA | NPDES General Permit for Hydroelectric Generating Facilities in New Hampshire | NHG360017 | 7/21/2010 | 12/7/2014 | Renewal App. submitted 8/22/2014 and Permit Administratively Continued | Yes |
| Αv | ers Islan | d Station | | | | | |

| | Issuing Agency | Description | Permit # | Issue Date | Expiration Date | Application Pending | Transferable |
|----|-------------------|---|-----------|------------|--------------------|--|--------------|
| 2. | EPA | NPDES General Permit for Hydroelectric Generating Facilities in New | NHG360019 | 7/21//2010 | 12/7/2014 | Renewal App. submitted 8/22/2014 and Permit Administratively | Yes |
| | | Hampshire | | | | Continued | |

Canaan Station

None

Eastman Falls Station

| | Issuing | | | | Expiration | Application | |
|----|---------|-------------------|-----------|------------|------------|------------------|--------------|
| | Agency | Description | Permit # | Issue Date | Date | Pending | Transferable |
| 3. | EPA | NPDES General | NHG360018 | 7/21/2010 | 12/7/2014 | Renewal App. | Yes |
| | | Permit for | | | | submitted | |
| | | Hydroelectric | | | | 8/22/2014 and | |
| | | Generating | | | | Permit | |
| | | Facilities in New | | | | Administratively | |
| | | Hampshire | | | | Continued | |

⁴ Permits noted as "transferable" include permits for which a new owner can undertake administrative measures to amend or revise the permit to reflect a change in ownership. These measures may include, among other things, notification to the relevant authority, approval by the relevant authority, or submittal of permit amendments.

Garvins Falls Station

| | Issuing | | | | Expiration | Application | |
|------------|-------------------|---|-----------|------------|--------------------|---|--------------|
| | Agency | Description | Permit # | Issue Date | Date | Pending | Transferable |
| 4. | EPA | NPDES General Permit for Hydroelectric Generating Facilities in New Hampshire | NHG360014 | 6/10/2010 | 12/7/2014 | Renewal App. submitted 8/22/2014 and Permit Administratively Continued | Yes |
| Go | rham Sta | <u>ition</u> | | | | | |
| | Issuing Agency | Description | Permit # | Issue Date | Expiration Date | Application Pending | Transferable |
| 5. | EPA | NPDES General Permit for Hydroelectric Generating Facilities in New Hampshire | NHG360013 | 6/2/2010 | 12/7/2014 | Renewal App. submitted 8/22/2014 and Permit Administratively Continued | Yes |
| Ho | oksett St | <u>ation</u> | | | | | |
| | Issuing | Description | Permit # | Issue Date | Expiration Date | Application Pending | Transferable |
| 6. | Agency EPA | NPDES General Permit for Hydroelectric Generating Facilities in New Hampshire | NHG360015 | 5/14/2010 | 12/7/2014 | Renewal App. submitted 8/22/2014 and Permit Administratively Continued | Yes |
| <u>Jac</u> | ckman St | <u>ation</u> | | | | | |
| | Issuing | Description | Permit # | Issue Date | Expiration Date | Application Pending | Transferable |
| 7. | Agency EPA | NPDES Permit for Jackman Hydroelectric Generating Station | NH0001431 | 5/20/2011 | 7/31/2016 | Renewal App. submitted 1/28/2016 and Permit Administratively Continued | Yes |
| <u>Sm</u> | ith Static | <u>on</u> | | | | | |
| | Issuing Agency | Description | Permit # | Issue Date | Expiration Date | Application Pending | Transferable |
| 8. | EPA | NPDES Permit for J. Brodie Hydroelectric Generating Station | NH0001481 | 5/20/2011 | 7/31/2016 | Renewal App. submitted 1/28/2016 and Permit Administratively Continued | Yes |

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 109 of 120

SCHEDULE 3.11(b)

Certain Environmental Matters

None.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 110 of 120

SCHEDULE 3.12(a)

Scheduled Employees⁵

[Scheduled Employees Details Not Included in Filing]

⁵ Current as of the Effective Date.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 111 of 120

SCHEDULE 3.12(b)

Certain Employment Matters

None.

SCHEDULE 3.13

Employee Benefit Plans

| | Plan | Vendor | Current Plan Document ⁶ | Document Date |
|-----|---|--|---------------------------------------|--------------------|
| 1. | Medical Plan – choice between three (3) self- insured PPO Plans, PPO 100, PPO 90 or SAVER (a CDHP PLAN) | CIGNA | A | January 1, 2013 |
| 2. | Prescription Drugs | Express Scripts or CIGNA, if in SAVER plan | A | January 1, 2013 |
| 3. | Dental – Choice of two (2) plans | Delta Dental of MA | A | January 1, 2013 |
| 4. | Vision Plan | Vision Service Plan | A | January 1, 2013 |
| 5. | Group Term Life Insurance | Minnesota Life Insurance Company | С | January 1, 2013 |
| 6. | Optional Supplemental Life | Minnesota Life Insurance Company | С | January 1, 2013 |
| 7. | Optional Dependent Life | Minnesota Life Insurance Company | С | January 1, 2013 |
| 8. | Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) | Minnesota Life Insurance Company | D | January 1, 2013 |
| 9. | Basic Accidental Death (Union) | Minnesota Life Insurance Company | D | January 1, 2013 |
| 10. | Business Travel Accident | Minnesota Life Insurance Company | D | January 1, 2013 |
| 11. | Optional AD&D | Minnesota Life Insurance Company | D | January 1, 2013 |
| 12. | Optional Dependent AD&D | Minnesota Life Insurance Company | D | January 1, 2013 |
| 13. | Flex Spending Account – medical and dependent care | Discovery benefits | A | January 1, 2013 |
| 14. | Health Savings Account (linked to SAVER Plan) | CIGNA | A | January 1, 2013 |
| 15. | Short-term Disability | Liberty Mutual | G | January 1, 2014 |
| | Long-term Disability | Liberty Mutual | G | January 1, 2014 |
| 17. | 401(K) Plan | Fidelity | E | January 1, 2014 |
| 18. | Pension Plan | Willis Towers Watson | В | January 1, 2015 |
| 19. | K-Vantage (enhance 401(K) for those not eligible for the Pension Plan) | Fidelity | E | |
| 20. | Med-Vantage Account | Discovery Benefits | F | |

⁶ See immediately following list of Current Plan Documents for reference.

| | Plan | Vendor | Current Plan Document ⁶ | Document Date |
|-----|---|--------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|------------------|
| 21. | Group Auto and Home | Met Life | Н | |
| 22. | Group Legal | Met Life | Н | |
| 23. | Employee Assistance Program | KGA, Inc | Н | |
| 24. | Wellness Program | Premise Health | Н | |
| 25. | Illness Plan (not on STD Plan) | Internally | G | |
| 26. | Tuition Reimbursement | administered Internally administered | Н | |
| 27. | Adoption Assistance | Internally administered | Н | |
| 28. | Vacation | Internally administered | I | |
| 29. | Vacation Buy (phasing out) | Internally administered | I | |
| 30. | Holidays | Internally administered | I | |
| 31. | Employee Annual Incentive Program (all employees) | Internally administered | J | |
| 32. | * * | Internally administered | K | |

Current Plan Documents:

- A. Eversource Flexible Benefits Plan f/k/a Northeast Utilities Service Company Flexible Benefits Plan (Union and Non-Union) January 1, 2013
- B. Eversource Pension Plan f/k/a Northeast Utilities Service Company Retirement January 1, 2015
- C. AD&D Insurance-Minnesota Life Insurance Company (contained in #3 Eversource Flexible Benefits Plan) January 1, 2013
- D. Group Term Life Insurance-Minnesota Life Insurance Company (contained in #3 Eversource Flexible Benefits Plan) January 1, 2013
- E. Eversource 401k Plan f/k/a Northeast Utilities Service Company 401k Plan January 1, 2014
- F. Eversource Med-Vantage Plan January 1, 2017
- G. PSNH Disability Plans January 1, 2014
- H. Eversource Benefits Highlights January 1, 2017
- I. Eversource Energy Vacation, Sick Time, and Holiday Schedule July 10, 2017
- J. 2017 Eversource Energy Employee Annual Incentive Program January 1, 2017
- K. 2017 2019 Long-Term Incentive Program January 1, 2017

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 114 of 120

SCHEDULE 4.3(c)

Buyer Required Consents

1. See Schedule 3.3.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 115 of 120

SCHEDULE 5.5

Interim Period Operations

d. Contracts

1. If the Closing has not occurred prior to January 1, 2018, Seller and Buyer will cooperate to bid the Facilities into the ISO-NE forward capacity market to the extent such cooperation is allowed by FERC and ISO-NE.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 116 of 120

SCHEDULE 5.8(b)(i)

Represented Scheduled Employee Numbers by Job Classification and Facility

[Represented Scheduled Employee Numbers by Job Classification and Facility

Details Not Included in Filing]

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 1 Page 117 of 120

SCHEDULE 5.8(c)(i)

Selected Non-Represented Employees

[Buyer to provide 45 days following the Effective Date.]

SCHEDULE 5.8(e)(i)(F)

Pension Plan Modifications

- 1. Seller to provide Minnesota Life life insurance, beginning at separation, upon the same terms and conditions provided to Seller's retirees as of the Closing Date.
- 2. Buyer to provide continuation of health benefits at COBRA rates until age 55, the sole cost and expense of which shall be borne by such Transferred Employee, after which Seller's retiree health benefits and contributions apply, to the extent such Transferred Employee is eligible.
- 3. Option to begin pension payments before age 55. Total pension payments from Seller and Buyer would be as follows (prorated for partial years):

| Age When Benefits Begin | Percent of Accrued Age 65 Benefit |
|-------------------------|-----------------------------------|
| 55 | 75% |
| 54 | 71% |
| 53 | 67% |
| 52 | 63% |
| 51 | 59% |
| 50 | 55% |

SCHEDULE 5.8(e)(ii)(B)

Contributory Retirement Plan

The following is an excerpt from the "Eversource 401k Plan – Summary Plan Description" document that describes the key components of the Seller's Contributory Retirement Plan. Please refer to the plan documents in the Data Site for additional details, including definitions of terms referenced in the description below.

Seller-Matching Contributions

Employees are always full vested in their contributions to the Plan and in Seller-matching contributions.

The Seller-matching contribution is equal to 100% up to the first three percent of Eligible Compensation the Employee contributes to his or her Pre-Tax and/or Roth-401(k) accounts for any Plan year.

K-Vantage

K-Vantage is an account within the Plan that was added when participation in the Eversource Pension Plan, a defined benefit pension plan, was discontinued for newly hired, non-represented Employees in 2006 and represented employees as subsequently negotiated. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2006 may not actively participate in K-Vantage and in the Eversource Pension Plan unless they "opted in" to K-Vantage through the former "CHOICE" program—in which case they will continue to have a frozen benefit in the Eversource Pension Plan. All non-represented employees hired after December 31, 2005, and represented Employees subsequently hired on dates as negotiated, are eligible to receive K-Vantage contributions from the Company—effective on their first date of employment. K-Vantage contributions are automatically provided regardless of whether or not a K-Vantage employee actively participates in the Plan. Non-represented employees hired before January 1, 2006 (and represented Employees hired before a negotiated date) may also participate in K-Vantage if they "opted in" to K-Vantage during specified enrollment periods.

Employee's account each pay period and are calculated based on the sum of the eligible Employee's years and months of age and K-Vantage Service, rounded down to a whole year as of January 1 of each Plan Year as follows:

| Age Plus K-Vantage Service | % of K-Vantage Pay |
|-----------------------------|--------------------|
| Less than 40 | 2.5 |
| 40 or more but less than 60 | 4.5 |
| 60 or more | 6.5 |

The applicable K-Vantage percentage is multiplied by the Employee's K-Vantage Pay to arrive at the K-Vantage contributions for the pay period.

SCHEDULE 5.8(g)

Severance Benefits

- 1. Outplacement assistance (such as the Lee Hecht Harrison workshop provided to Seller's employees in prior years).
- 2. Severance pay: Transferred Employees with between 1 and 26 years of service (collectively with Buyer and Seller) will receive 52 weeks of pay. Transferred Employees with between more than 26 years of service (collectively with Buyer and Seller) will receive an additional 1 week of pay for every additional 6 months of service (calculated to the nearest 6-month period).
- 3. Up to \$5,000 in tuition assistance for job/career related educational courses or training programs begun within 12 months from the date of termination and concluded within 36 months of that date.
- 4. Medical benefits at Buyer's expense (excluding the Transferred Employee's contributions) for a period based on number of weeks equal to severance pay with a maximum of 1 year.
- 5. Employee Assistance Program counseling for term of medical benefits.
- 6. In the event of a reduction in force, it will be administered within a classification:
 - a. Voluntary senior to junior
 - b. Involuntary junior to senior

Volunteers who are eligible for retirement at the time of the reduction in force will be permitted to take their severance and medical benefits in addition to, and unreduced by, their normal retirement benefit, to the full extent permitted by law.

ATTACHMENT 2

Thermal Purchase and Sale Agreement

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2
Page 1 of 159

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

between

PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE as Seller

and

GRANITE SHORE POWER LLC as Buyer

Dated as of October 11, 2017

Attachment 2 Page 2 of 159

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| ARTICLE I DEFINI | TIONS AND INTERPRETATION | 1 |
|-------------------|---|----|
| Section 1.1 | Definitions | 1 |
| Section 1.2 | Rules of Interpretation | |
| | • | |
| ARTICLE II PURCH | HASE AND SALE; CLOSING | 19 |
| Section 2.1 | Purchase and Sale of Acquired Assets | 19 |
| Section 2.2 | Excluded Assets | |
| Section 2.3 | Assumption of Assumed Liabilities | 22 |
| Section 2.4 | Excluded Liabilities | 23 |
| Section 2.5 | Purchase Price | 25 |
| Section 2.6 | Certain Adjustments to Base Purchase Price | 25 |
| Section 2.7 | Proration | |
| Section 2.8 | Allocation of Purchase Price | 30 |
| Section 2.9 | Closing | 30 |
| Section 2.10 | Deliveries by Seller at Closing | 30 |
| Section 2.11 | Deliveries by Buyer at Closing | 32 |
| Section 2.12 | Guaranties | 34 |
| ARTICLE III REPRI | ESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER | 34 |
| Section 3.1 | Organization and Existence | 34 |
| Section 3.2 | Authority and Enforceability | |
| Section 3.3 | No Conflicts; Consents and Approvals | |
| Section 3.4 | Legal Proceedings | 35 |
| Section 3.5 | Compliance with Laws; Permits | |
| Section 3.6 | Title to Acquired Assets | 36 |
| Section 3.7 | Assets Used in Operation of the Facilities | 36 |
| Section 3.8 | Material Contracts | 37 |
| Section 3.9 | Insurance | 39 |
| Section 3.10 | Taxes | 39 |
| Section 3.11 | Environmental Matters | 39 |
| Section 3.12 | Employment and Labor Matters. | 40 |
| Section 3.13 | Employee Benefit Plans | 42 |
| Section 3.14 | Condemnation | |
| Section 3.15 | Financial Information. | |
| Section 3.16 | Absence of Certain Changes | |
| Section 3.17 | Real Property. | |
| Section 3.18 | Regulatory Status | |
| Section 3.19 | Brokers | |
| Section 3.20 | Complete Copies | |
| Section 3.21 | Capacity Markets; Winter Reliability Program. | |
| Section 3.22 | Exclusive Representations and Warranties | 45 |
| ARTICI E IV REPRI | ESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BUYER | 45 |

| Attac | h | me | nt | 2 |
|-------|---|----|----|---|
| Page | 3 | of | 15 | 5 |

| Section 4.1 | Organization and Existence | 45 |
|------------------|---|----|
| Section 4.2 | Authority and Enforceability | |
| Section 4.3 | Noncontravention | |
| Section 4.4 | Legal Proceedings | 46 |
| Section 4.5 | Compliance with Laws | |
| Section 4.6 | Brokers | 46 |
| Section 4.7 | Availability of Funds | |
| Section 4.8 | Qualified Buyer | |
| Section 4.9 | Governmental Approvals | |
| Section 4.10 | WARN Act. | |
| Section 4.11 | Independent Investigation | |
| Section 4.12 | Disclaimer Regarding Projections | |
| ARTICLE V COVEN | NANTS | 48 |
| Section 5.1 | Closing Conditions | 48 |
| Section 5.2 | Notices, Consents; Approvals | |
| Section 5.3 | Assigned Contracts | |
| Section 5.4 | Access of Buyer and Seller | |
| Section 5.5 | Conduct of Business Pending the Closing | |
| Section 5.6 | Termination of Certain Services and Contracts; Transition Matters | |
| Section 5.7 | Seller Marks | |
| Section 5.8 | Employee Matters | 60 |
| Section 5.9 | ISO-NE and NEPOOL Matters | |
| Section 5.10 | Post-Closing Operations | 67 |
| Section 5.11 | Post-Closing Environmental Matters | |
| Section 5.12 | Transfer Taxes; Expenses | 67 |
| Section 5.13 | Tax Matters | 67 |
| Section 5.14 | Further Assurances | |
| Section 5.15 | Schedule Modifications During the Interim Period and Updates | 69 |
| Section 5.16 | Casualty | 70 |
| Section 5.17 | Condemnation | 70 |
| Section 5.18 | Confidentiality | 71 |
| Section 5.19 | Public Announcements | 71 |
| Section 5.20 | Mercury Removal Contract | 71 |
| ARTICLE VI COND | ITIONS TO CLOSING | 71 |
| Section 6.1 | Buyer's Conditions to Closing | 71 |
| Section 6.2 | Seller's Conditions to Closing | |
| ARTICLE VII INDE | MNIFICATION; LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY AND WAIVERS | 74 |
| Section 7.1 | Survival | 74 |
| Section 7.2 | Indemnification by Seller | |
| Section 7.3 | Indemnification by Buyer | |
| Section 7.4 | Certain Limitations and Provisions. | |
| Section 7.5 | Indemnification Procedures | |
| Section 7.6 | Tax Treatment of Indemnification Payments | |

| Section 7.7 | Waiver of Other Representations; No Reliance; "As Is" Sale | 78 |
|---------------|---|---|
| Section 7.8 | Exclusive Remedies; Certain Waivers, Releases and Limitations | |
| CLE VIII TERI | MINATION | 81 |
| Section 8.1 | Termination | 81 |
| Section 8.2 | Effect of Termination; Termination Fee | 82 |
| Section 8.3 | Specific Performance and Other Remedies | 83 |
| CLE IX MISCE | ELLANEOUS | 84 |
| Section 9.1 | Expenses | 84 |
| Section 9.2 | Notices | |
| Section 9.3 | Entire Agreement | 85 |
| Section 9.4 | Severability | |
| Section 9.5 | Schedules and Exhibits | 85 |
| Section 9.6 | Successors and Assigns | 86 |
| Section 9.7 | No Third Party Beneficiaries | 86 |
| Section 9.8 | No Joint Venture or Agency | 86 |
| Section 9.9 | Amendments and Waivers | |
| Section 9.10 | Governing Law | 87 |
| Section 9.11 | <u> </u> | |
| Section 9.12 | Submission to Jurisdiction | |
| Section 9.13 | Waiver of Jury Trial | 87 |
| Section 9.14 | Counterparts | |
| | Section 7.8 CLE VIII TERM Section 8.1 Section 8.2 Section 8.3 CLE IX MISCH Section 9.1 Section 9.2 Section 9.3 Section 9.4 Section 9.5 Section 9.6 Section 9.7 Section 9.7 Section 9.8 Section 9.9 Section 9.10 Section 9.11 Section 9.11 Section 9.12 Section 9.13 | Section 7.8 Exclusive Remedies; Certain Waivers, Releases and Limitations CLE VIII TERMINATION |

Attachment 2 Page 5 of 159

SCHEDULES

Schedule 1: Facilities

Schedule 1.1-K: Seller's Knowledge

Schedule 1.1-PL: Permitted Liens

Schedule 2.1(a): Real Property

Schedule 2.1(b): Leased Real Property

Schedule 2.1(c): Personal Property

Schedule 2.1(e): Material Contracts

Schedule 2.1(g): Assigned Intellectual Property

Schedule 2.1(i): Environmental Attributes

Schedule 2.2(a): T&D and Associated Telecommunication Assets

Schedule 2.2(b): Retained Real Property

Schedule 2.2(j): Assigned Intercompany Contracts

Schedule 2.6(a)(i): Working Capital Adjustment Calculation

Schedule 2.6(a)(iv): Delayed Closing Adjustment Calculation

Schedule 2.8(b): Purchase Price Allocation

Schedule 3.1: Jurisdictions

Schedule 3.3: Seller Required Consents

Schedule 3.4: Legal Proceedings

Schedule 3.5(a): Compliance with Laws

Schedule 3.5(b): Permits

Schedule 3.6: Title Commitments

Schedule 3.7(a): Certain Assets Used in Operations

Schedule 3.7(b-1): Other Matters Related to Certain Assets Used in Operations

Schedule 3.7(b-2): Interconnection Matters

Schedule 3.8(c): Certain Matters Regarding Material Contracts

Schedule 3.9: Insurance

Schedule 3.10: Tax Claims

Schedule 3.11(a): Environmental Permits

Schedule 3.11(b): Certain Environmental Matters

Schedule 3.11(e): Removal Contract

Schedule 3.12(a): Scheduled Employees

Attachment 2 Page 6 of 159

Schedule 3.12(b): Certain Employment Matters

Schedule 3.12(c): Independent Contractor Information

Schedule 3.13: Employee Benefit Plans

Schedule 3.15: Financial Information

Schedule 3.16: Changes

Schedule 3.17(e): Real Property Agreements Non-Compliance

Schedule 3.17(f): Real Property Agreement Subleases, Etc.

Schedule 3.18: Facilities Not Registered with NERC

Schedule 3.21(a): ISO-Recognized Capacity

Schedule 3.21(b): Pledged Capacity

Schedule 3.21(c): Qualified Capacity Reductions

Schedule 3.21(d): Winter Reliability Program Obligations and Reduction Notices

Schedule 4.3(c): Buyer Required Consents

Schedule 5.5: Interim Period Operations

Schedule 5.6(a): Terminated Contracts

Schedule 5.6(b): Transition Services

Schedule 5.8(b)(i): Represented Scheduled Employee Numbers by Job Classification and

Facility

Schedule 5.8(e)(i)(F): Pension Plan Modifications

Schedule 5.8(e)(ii)(B): Contributory Retirement Plan

Schedule 5.8(g): Severance Benefits

Attachment 2 Page 7 of 159

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

This PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (this "Agreement"), dated and effective as of October 11, 2017 (the "Effective Date"), is entered into by and between Granite Shore Power LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Buyer"), and Public Service Company of New Hampshire, a New Hampshire corporation ("Seller"). Buyer and Seller are each referred to in this Agreement as a "Party" and collectively as the "Parties."

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, Seller owns the electric generating facilities described in <u>Schedule 1</u> hereto (collectively, the "**Facilities**");

WHEREAS, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, Seller desires to sell and assign to Buyer, and Buyer desires to purchase and assume from Seller certain assets and liabilities respecting the Facilities, all as set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

Section 1.1 Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following capitalized terms have the meanings set forth below:

- "Accrued Pension Benefit" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(e)(i)(C).
- "Acquired Assets" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.
- "Actual Prorated Amount" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.7(c).
- "Affiliate" means, with respect to any Person, any other Person that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, such Person. For purposes of this definition, the term "control" (including the terms "controlled by" and "under common control with") means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such Person, whether through ownership of voting securities or other ownership interests, by Contract or otherwise.
- "Affected Employees" means employees of Seller or Eversource Service whose primary employment duties include support of the Facilities and whose employment is terminated or significantly negatively affected as a direct result of the transactions contemplated hereby.
 - "Agreement" has the meaning set forth in the preamble.
 - "Asset Demarcation Agreement" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(e).

"Assigned Contracts" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(e).

- "Assigned Intellectual Property" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(g).
- "Assigned Leases" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(b).
- "Assignment and Assumption Agreement" has the meaning set forth in $\underline{\text{Section}}$ $\underline{2.10(d)}$.
 - "Assignment and Assumption of Lease" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(b).
 - "Assumed Liabilities has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3.
 - "Base Purchase Price" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5.
 - "Bill of Sale" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(c).
- "Business" means the ownership, construction and operation of a portfolio of thermal electric generation assets and related facilities listed on <u>Schedule 1</u> together with fuel inventories, and including the generation, sale, transmission and delivery of electric energy, capacity, ancillary services and Environmental Attributes from the generation assets to the relevant interconnection point with the high voltage transmission system operated by ISO-NE or, in the case of Lost Nation, with the distribution system operated by Seller.
- "Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or day on which banks are legally closed for business in Manchester, New Hampshire or New York, New York.
 - "Buyer" has the meaning set forth in the preamble.
- "Buyer Fundamental Warranties" means the representations and warranties of Buyer set forth in Section 4.1 (Organization and Existence), Section 4.2 (Authority and Enforceability) and Section 4.6 (Brokers).
 - "Buyer Indemnified Parties" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.2.
 - "Buyer Pension Benefit" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(e)(i)(E).
 - "Buyer Required Consents" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.3(c).
 - "Buyer Subsidiary" has the meaning set forth in Section 9.6.
 - "Buyer's Observers" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.4(b).
 - "Buyer's Contributory Plan" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(e)(ii)(A).
 - "Buyer's Retirement Benefit" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(e)(i)(E).
 - "Buyer's Retirement Plan" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(e)(i)(A).

Attachment 2 Page 9 of 159

"CAMS" means ISO-NE's Customer and Asset Management System.

"Capacity Supply Obligation" is an obligation to provide capacity from a resource, or a portion thereof, to satisfy a portion of the Installed Capacity Requirement that is acquired through a Forward Capacity Auction in accordance with Section III.13.2 of the ISO-NE Tariff, a reconfiguration auction in accordance with Section III.13.4 of the ISO-NE Tariff, or a Capacity Supply Obligation Bilateral in accordance with Section III.13.5.1 of Market Rule 1 of the ISO-NE Tariff. For avoidance of doubt, capitalized terms used in this definition but not defined in this Agreement have the meaning given them in the ISO-NE Tariff.

"Cash" means cash and cash equivalents (including marketable securities and short-term investments) calculated in accordance with GAAP.

"Casualty Loss" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.16.

"CBA MOA" means that certain Memorandum of Agreement Clarifying Certain Employee Protections Following a Divestiture by PSNH of its Generating Assets, dated September 7, 2017, between Seller and the Union.

"CBA Term" means June 1, 2017 through the later of May 31, 2020 or two years after the Closing Date.

"Claim" means any claim, demand, complaint, action, legal proceeding (whether at law or in equity), summons, citation, notice of violation, arbitration, investigation, audit or suit commenced, brought, received from, conducted or heard by or before any Governmental Authority, arbitrator, or Third Party.

"Closing" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.9.

"Closing Date" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.9.

"Closing Purchase Price" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5.

"Closing Statement" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6(c)(i).

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

"Combined Minimum Pension Benefit" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(e)(i)(B).

"Confidentiality Agreements" means those certain Confidentiality Agreements between Seller and Atlas FRM LLC d/b/a Atlas Holdings LLC, dated as of March 20, 2017 and Seller and Castleton Commodities International LLC, dated as of March 31, 2017.

"Consent" means any consent, authorization, approval, release, waiver, estoppel certificate or any similar agreement or approval of or by, or registration, notice, declaration or filing to or with, the applicable Governmental Authority or other Person, including any certificate, license, permit, Order or other action issued or taken by a Governmental Authority.

Attachment 2 Page 10 of 159

"Contract" means any legally binding contract, lease, mortgage, license, instrument, note or other evidence of indebtedness, purchase order, commitment, undertaking, indenture or other agreement.

"Counterparty" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.3(a).

"**Data Site**" means the "Project PurpleFinch" electronic data site established and maintained by Seller with IntraLinks, Inc. as it exists at 4 p.m. ET on October 6, 2017 and for which Buyer has been given access to the contents.

"**Deed**" has the meaning set forth in <u>Section 2.10(a)</u>.

"Dig Activities" means (i) any investigation (including any drilling, sampling, testing or monitoring of any air, soil, soil gas, surface water, groundwater, sediments, building materials or other environmental media), monitoring, correction, removal or Remediation or other similar activity conducted by or on behalf of Buyer or any of its Affiliates (or any of their respective successors or assigns) on or after the Closing Date that is not required by applicable Environmental Law, Environmental Permits or pursuant to an express Order or directive of any Governmental Authority with jurisdiction (other than any such Order or directive that is issued at the request of or otherwise solicited by or on behalf of Buyer or any of its Affiliates (or any of their respective successors or assigns)); or (ii) any change by or on behalf of Buyer or any of its Affiliates (or any of their respective successors or assigns) to the operation and use of any of the Acquired Assets on or after the Closing Date not required by applicable Environmental Law, Environmental Permits or pursuant to an express Order or directive of any Governmental Authority with jurisdiction (other than any such Order or directive that is issued at the request of or otherwise solicited by or on behalf of Buyer or any of its Affiliates (or any of their respective successors or assigns)) compared to the operation and use of such Acquired Assets as operated and used by Seller in the twelve (12) months prior to the Closing Date (including the decommissioning, dismantling or removal of any Facility by or on behalf of Buyer or any of its Affiliates (or any of their respective successors or assigns)). Any of the foregoing activities engaged in as a result of a force majeure event shall not be "Dig Activities."

"Direct Claim" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.5(c).

"Easements" means easements to be granted by Seller to Buyer to implement the Easement Plans.

"Easement Plans" means the plans to be agreed to by the Parties for purposes of implementing the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements, including the Demarcation Agreement.

"Effective Date" has the meaning set forth in the preamble.

"Employee Benefit Plan" means any "employee benefit plan" (as such term is defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA), whether or not subject to ERISA, and any other employee benefit plan, program, policy or Contract, including any employment, pension, retirement, profit-sharing, thrift, savings, bonus plan, incentive, stock bonus, stock purchase, stock option or other equity or

Attachment 2 Page 11 of 159

equity-based compensation, or retention, change in control, severance, deferred compensation, welfare benefit or fringe benefit plan, policy, program, agreement or arrangement.

"Environment" means soil, land surface or subsurface strata, real property, surface waters, groundwater, wetlands, sediments, plant or animal life, drinking water supply, ambient air (including indoor air) and any other environmental medium or natural resource.

"Environmental Attributes" means any emissions and renewable energy credits, energy conservation credits, benefits, offsets and allowances, emission reduction credits or items of similar import or regulatory effect (including emissions reduction credits or allowances under all applicable emission trading, compliance or budget programs, or any other federal, state or regional emission, renewable energy or energy conservation trading or budget program) that are attributable to the operation of the Facilities.

"Environmental Claim" means any Claim by any Person alleging Liability of whatever kind or nature (including with respect to loss of life, injury to persons, property or business, damage to natural resources or trespass to property, whether or not such loss, injury, damage or trespass arose or was made manifest before the Closing Date or arises or becomes manifest on or after the Closing Date) arising out of, resulting from or in connection with: (a) the presence, Release of, or exposure to, any Hazardous Substances or (b) any actual or alleged violation or non-compliance with any Environmental Law or term or condition of any Environmental Permit.

"Environmental Laws" means all applicable Laws, Orders and any binding administrative or judicial interpretations thereof (including any binding agreement with any Governmental Authority) relating to: (a) pollution (or the cleanup thereof); (b) the regulation, protection and use of the Environment; (c) the protection, conservation, management, development, control and/or use of land, natural resources and wildlife (including endangered and threatened species); (d) the protection of human health or safety; (e) the management, manufacture, possession, presence, processing, use, generation, transportation, treatment, containment, storage, disposal, recycling, reclamation, Release, threatened Release, abatement, removal, remediation, or handling of, or exposure to, any Hazardous Substances; or (f) noise: and includes, without limitation, the following federal statutes (and their implementing regulations): the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as amended by the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986 (42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq.); the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments Act of 1984 (42 U.S.C. § 6901 et seq.); the Federal Water Pollution Control Act of 1972, as amended by the Clean Water Act of 1977 (33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.); the Toxic Substances Control Act of 1976, as amended (15 U.S.C. § 2601 et seq.); the Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act of 1986 (42 U.S.C. § 11001 et seq.); the Clean Air Act of 1966, as amended by the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.); the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act, as amended (7 U.S.C. § 136 et seq.); the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972, as amended (16 U.S.C. § 1451 et seq.); the Oil Pollution Act of 1990, as amended (33 U.S.C. § 2701 et seq.); the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899, as amended (33 U.S.C. § 401 et seq.); the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, as amended (49 U.S.C. §§ 5101 et seq.); the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq.); the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 651 et seq.); and the Safe Drinking

Attachment 2 Page 12 of 159

Water Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 300f et seq.); and all analogous or comparable statutes and regulations of any Governmental Authority.

"Environmental Liabilities" means any Liabilities of whatever kind or nature (including without limitation any natural resources damages, property damages, personal injury damages, losses, Claims, judgments, amounts paid in settlement, fines, penalties, fees, expenses and costs, including Remediation costs, engineering costs, environmental consultant fees, laboratory fees, permitting fees, investigation costs, defense costs, costs of enforcement proceedings, costs of indemnification and contribution, costs of medical monitoring, and attorneys' fees and expenses) arising out of, resulting from or in connection with (a) any violation or alleged violation of Environmental Laws or Environmental Permits, with respect to the ownership, operation or use of the Acquired Assets; (b) any Environmental Claims caused or allegedly caused by the presence, Release of, or exposure to Hazardous Substances at, on, in, under, adjacent to or migrating from the Acquired Assets; (c) the investigation and/or Remediation (whether or not such investigation or Remediation commenced before the Closing Date or commences on or after the Closing Date) of Hazardous Substances that are present or have been Released at, on, in, under, adjacent to or migrating from the Acquired Assets; (d) compliance with Environmental Laws or Environmental Permits with respect to the ownership, operation or use of the Acquired Assets; (e) any Environmental Claim arising from or relating to the off-site disposal, treatment, storage, transportation, discharge, Release or recycling, or the arrangement for such activities, of Hazardous Substances in connection with the ownership or operation of the Acquired Assets; and (f) the investigation and/or Remediation of Hazardous Substances that are generated, disposed, treated, stored, transported, discharged, Released, recycled, or the arrangement of such activities in connection with the ownership or operation of the Acquired Assets, at any Offsite Disposal Facility.

"Environmental Permits" means those Permits required for the ownership or operation of any Acquired Asset or the Business under Environmental Laws.

"ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

"Escrow Agreement" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6(a)(iii)(B).

"Estimated Closing Statement" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6(b).

"Estimated Prorated Amount" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.7(b).

"Estimated Proration Adjustment Amount" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.7(b).

"Estimated Purchase Price Adjustment" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6(b).

"Eversource" means Eversource Energy, a Massachusetts voluntary association and the parent company of Seller, formerly known as Northeast Utilities.

"Eversource Service" means Eversource Energy Service Company, a Connecticut corporation and an Affiliate of Seller, formerly known as Northeast Utilities Service Company.

Attachment 2 Page 13 of 159

"Excluded Assets" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2.

"Excluded Environmental Liabilities" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4(i).

"Excluded Environmental Liability Termination Date" means, (i) with respect to those Excluded Environmental Liabilities described in Section 2.4(i)(A) and Section 2.4(i)(B)(I), the seventh (7th) anniversary of the Closing Date, and (ii) with respect to those Excluded Environmental Liabilities described in Section 2.4(i)(B)(II), the seventh (7th) anniversary of the Schiller Boiler Removal Completion Date.

"Excluded Liabilities" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4.

"**Facilities**" has the meaning set forth in the recitals. For avoidance of doubt, any individual Facility referred to herein by the name set forth in <u>Schedule 1</u> shall mean such Facility, as described in <u>Schedule 1</u>.

"FERC" means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

"Final Purchase Price Adjustment" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6(c)(iii).

"GAAP" means United States generally accepted accounting principles in effect from time to time, as applied by Seller.

"GADS" means the Generating Availability Data System operated by NERC.

"GADS Event" means an outage or derating reportable to GADS affecting any unit at any Facility, the effect of which is that such Facility's applicable Capacity Supply Obligation as listed in Schedule 3.21(a) exceeds the amount of capacity reported as available in GADS by the lesser of 5 megawatts or 10 percent of the Facility's Capacity Supply Obligation as listed in Schedule 3.21(a).

"Generation CBA" means the Generation Group Contract, IBEW Local 1837, between Seller and the Union, made and entered into as of June 1, 2013, as amended by (i) that Addendum, dated June 1, 2017 and ratified on June 9, 2017, that modified wages and certain benefits including the Disability Plan, Vacation and Holiday Schedules, (ii) that Memorandum of Agreement Extending Current CBA Upon Divestiture by PSNH of any Generating Asset dated May 20, 2015 (including the Memorandum of Understanding attached as Exhibit A thereto and the Enhanced Bidding Rights Agreement attached as Exhibit B thereto), (iii) that Amendment to Memorandum of Agreement Extending Current CBA Upon Divestiture by PSNH of any Generating Asset dated November 14, 2016, (iv) the CBA MOA; and (v) as further amended by that Memorandum of Understanding regarding "Policies" between IBEW Locals 455, 457, 420 & 1837 and Northeast Utilities, that January 20, 1994 Agreement regarding Schiller 12 hour shifts signed April 18, 1995, that September 8, 2015 Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Day Worker Path to Operator Maintenance as amended by an Agreement dated January 21, 2016, that Memorandum of Understanding regarding Global Positioning System signed October 26, 2015, that August 5, 2016 Agreement regarding Holiday in lieu of practice, that April 26, 2016 Agreement regarding Generation positions retention, that July 29, 1998 Agreement regarding the 12 Hour Shift Policy at Newington; the August 25, 1999 Schiller Stations

Attachment 2 Page 14 of 159

Operations Agreement, and that April 21, 1997 Settlement Agreement as amended by the June 15, 2009 Amendment to that Settlement Agreement regarding working foremen at Schiller Station.

"Good Utility Practice" means any of the practices, methods and acts engaged in or approved by a significant portion of the electric power generation industry during the relevant time period, or any of the practices, methods or acts which, in the exercise of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known at the time the decision was made, could have been expected to accomplish the desired result at a reasonable cost consistent with good business practices, reliability, safety and expedition. Good Utility Practice is not intended to be limited to the optimum practice, method or act to the exclusion of all others, but rather is intended to include acceptable practices, methods or acts generally accepted in the region, or required by the NHPUC, including but not limited to compliance with the standards established by the National Electrical Safety Code and ISO-NE.

"Governmental Authority" means any federal, state, local, municipal or foreign government or political subdivision thereof, or any agency or instrumentality of such government or political subdivision, or any self-regulated organization or other non-governmental regulatory authority or quasi-governmental authority (to the extent that the rules, regulations or orders of such organization or authority have the force of Law), or any arbitrator, court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction, including, without limitation, FERC, NERC, ISO-NE and Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc., but excluding Buyer and any subsequent owner of any of the Acquired Assets (if otherwise a Governmental Authority under this definition).

"Guaranties" means each Guaranty delivered to Seller on the Effective Date by Atlas Capital Resources II LP and Castleton Commodities International LLC.

"Handling" means any manner of manufacturing, using, generating, accumulating, storing, treating, disposing of, recycling, processing, distributing, handling, labeling, producing, releasing, or transporting, as any such terms may be defined in any Environmental Law, of Hazardous Substances.

"Hazardous Substance" means (a) any petrochemical or petroleum product, oil, waste oil, coal ash, radioactive materials, radon, asbestos in any form, urea formaldehyde foam insulation, lead-containing materials and polychlorinated biphenyls; (b) any products, mixtures, compounds, materials or wastes, air emissions, toxic substances, wastewater discharges and any chemical, material or substance that may give rise to Liability pursuant to, or is listed or regulated under, or the human exposure to which or the Release of which is controlled or limited by applicable Environmental Laws; and (c) any materials or substances defined in Environmental Laws as "hazardous", "toxic", "pollutant" or "contaminant", or words of similar meaning or regulatory effect.

"HSR Act" means the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976.

"Hydro Business" means the ownership, construction and operation of the portfolio of hydroelectric generation assets and related facilities owned by Seller on the Effective Date, together with storage reservoirs, including generating, selling, transmitting and delivering

Attachment 2 Page 15 of 159

electric energy, capacity, ancillary services and Environmental Attributes from the generation assets to the relevant interconnection point with the high voltage transmission system operated by ISO-NE.

"Improvements" means all buildings, structures (including all fuel handling and storage facilities), machinery and equipment, fixtures, construction in progress, including all piping, cables and similar equipment forming part of the mechanical, electrical, plumbing or HVAC infrastructure of any building, structure or equipment, and including all generating units, located on and affixed to the Sites other than the Seller Marks.

"Indemnified Party" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.4.

"Indemnifying Party" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.4.

"Independent Accountant" means a nationally recognized independent accounting firm mutually agreed upon by the Parties.

"Intellectual Property" means any and all of the following in any jurisdiction throughout the world: (a) trademarks and service marks, including all applications and registrations and the goodwill connected with the use of and symbolized by the foregoing, but not including the Seller Marks; (b) copyrights, including all applications and registrations, and works of authorship, whether or not copyrightable; (c) trade secrets and confidential knowhow; (d) patents and patent applications; (e) websites and internet domain name registrations; and (f) all other intellectual property and industrial property rights and assets, and all rights, interests and protections that are associated with, similar to, or required for the exercise of, any of the foregoing.

"Intercompany Arrangements" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2(j).

"Interconnection Agreements" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(f).

"Interim Period" means the period of time commencing on the Effective Date and ending on the Closing.

"Inventory" or "Inventories" means natural gas, coal, biomass and oil inventories, and raw materials, spare parts and consumable supplies located at or held or acquired for use in connection with the Business, whether on or off any Site, or in transit to any of the Sites or identified in any Schedule hereto.

"ISO-NE" means ISO New England, Inc. or its successor.

"ISO-NE Tariff" means the ISO New England Inc. Transmission, Markets and Services Tariff as in effect from time to time.

"**ISO-Recognized Capacity**" means, for a Facility, the most recent FCA Qualified Capacity as of the Effective Date as listed in <u>Schedule 3.21(a)</u> and as reported by ISO-NE in its most recent "CCP Forward Capacity Auction Obligations" report.

Attachment 2 Page 16 of 159

"Law" means any statute, law, ordinance, regulation, rule, code, Order, constitution, treaty, common law, judgment, tariff, approval, directive, writ, decree or other requirement, rule or other pronouncement having the effect of law of any Governmental Authority.

"Leased Real Property" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(b).

"Liability" means any liability or obligation, or contingent liability or obligation of any type whatsoever (whether known or unknown, whether asserted or unasserted, whether absolute or contingent, whether accrued or unaccrued, whether liquidated or unliquidated, whether incurred or consequential and whether due or to become due), including any liability for Taxes.

"Lien" means any lien, pledge, mortgage, deed of trust, security interest, charge, claim, easement, encroachment, conditional sale or other title retention device or arrangement, option, restriction on transfer, third party purchase right, right of first offer or refusal, or other encumbrance of any kind, or restriction on the creation of any of the foregoing.

"Losses" means any and all judgments, losses, Liabilities, amounts paid in settlement, damages, fines, penalties, deficiencies, costs, Taxes, obligations and expenses (including interest, court costs and reasonable fees of attorneys, accountants and other experts and the cost of enforcing any right to indemnification hereunder). For all purposes in this Agreement, the term "Losses" does not include any Non-Reimbursable Damages.

"Made Available" means, with respect to documents and materials, that such documents or materials have been posted to the Data Site or otherwise provided to Buyer by Seller or its Representatives.

"Material Adverse Effect" means any change or event, whether singly or in the aggregate, that is materially adverse to the assets, liabilities, operations or financial condition of any of the Business or the ownership, use, operation repair, maintenance or replacement of any of the Acquired Assets, taken as a whole; provided, however, that any changes or events resulting from or arising out of the following shall not be considered when determining whether a Material Adverse Effect has occurred: (a) any change generally affecting the international. national or New England regional electric generating, transmission or distribution industry; (b) any change generally affecting the international, national or New England regional wholesale or retail markets for electric power; (c) any change generally affecting the international, national or New England regional wholesale or retail markets for the coal, natural gas or oil industries or the transportation or storage of coal, natural gas or oil; (d) any change in markets for commodities or supplies, including electric power, natural gas, oil, coal or other fuel and water, as applicable, used in connection with the Facilities; (e) any change in market (including the market for electrical power, coal, natural gas or oil) design, pricing or rules (including rules, systems, procedures, guidelines or requirements promulgated or modified by ISO-NE, any other regional transmission organization, NERC or any similar organization); (f) any change in general regulatory or political conditions, including any engagements of hostilities, acts of war or terrorist activities or changes imposed by a Governmental Authority associated with additional security; (g) any change in the international, national or New England regional electric transmission or distribution systems or operations thereof; (h) any change in any Laws (including Environmental Laws), GAAP, regulatory accounting principles or industry standards; (i) any

Attachment 2 Page 17 of 159

change in the financial condition or results of operation of Buyer or its Affiliates, including its ability to access capital and equity markets and changes due to a change in the credit rating of Buyer or its Affiliates; (i) any change in the financial, banking, securities or currency markets (including the inability to finance the transactions contemplated hereby or any increased costs for financing or suspension of trading in, or limitation on prices for, securities on any domestic or international securities exchange); (k) any change in general national or New England regional economic or financial conditions or any failure or bankruptcy (or any similar event) of any financial services or banking institution or insurance company or counterparty to any Contract; (1) any actions to be taken pursuant to or in accordance with this Agreement, or taken by or at the written request of Buyer; (m) the announcement, pendency or consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, or the fact that the prospective owner of the Acquired Assets is Buyer; (n) any labor strike, request for representation, organizing campaign, work stoppage, slowdown, or lockout or other labor dispute; (o) any new or announced power provider entrants, including their effect on pricing or transmission; (p) any Casualty Loss or event of condemnation; (q) seasonality of the operations of the Facilities; or (r) any failure of the Acquired Assets to meet projections or forecasts or revenue or earnings predictions for any period; provided, that any Loss, Claim, occurrence, change or effect that is cured prior to the Closing Date shall not be considered a Material Adverse Effect; provided, further, that, for the avoidance of doubt, a Material Adverse Effect shall be measured only against past performance of the Acquired Assets, taken as a whole, and not against any forward-looking statements, financial projections or forecasts of the Acquired Assets.

"Material Contracts" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(e).

"Merrimack Landfill Trust" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.3(c).

"Mortgage Indenture" means that certain First Mortgage Indenture, dated as of August 15, 1978, as amended and restated effective as of June 1, 2011, and supplemented, between Seller and U.S. Bank National Association, successor to Wachovia Bank, National Association, successor to First Union National Bank, formerly known as First Fidelity Bank, National Association, New Jersey, as trustee.

"NEPOOL" means the New England Power Pool, or its successor.

"NERC" means the North American Electric Reliability Corporation or its successors and assigns.

"NHDES" means the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services.

"NHPUC" means the New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission.

"NHPUC Approval" means the Consent of the NHPUC to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements as required under New Hampshire Law.

"Non-Assigned Contracts" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.3(a)(v).

"Non-Reimbursable Damages" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.8(e).

Attachment 2 Page 18 of 159

"Non-Represented Scheduled Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.12(a).

"Non-Represented Transferred Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(c)(i).

"Objection Notice" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6(c)(i).

"Offsite Disposal Facility" means a location, other than a Facility or a Site, that receives or received Hazardous Substances for disposal by Seller prior to the Closing Date or by Seller as a result of Remediation at a Facility or a Site (including, but not limited to, the removal of Hazardous Substances pursuant to the Removal Contract) on or after the Closing Date, or by Buyer on or after the Closing Date; *provided, however*, Offsite Disposal Facility does not include any location to which Hazardous Substances disposed of or Released at any of the Sites have migrated.

"**Order**" means any award, decision, injunction, judgment, order, writ, decree, stipulation, rule, ruling, subpoena, arbitration award or verdict entered, issued, made or rendered by any Governmental Authority or arbitrator that possesses competent jurisdiction.

"Organizational Documents" means, with respect to any Person, the certificate or articles of incorporation, organization or formation and by-laws, the limited partnership agreement, the partnership agreement or the operating or limited liability company agreement, equity holder agreements and/or other organizational and governance documents of such Person.

"Other Assigned Contracts" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(e).

"Outside Date" has the meaning set forth in Section 8.1(a).

"Party" and "Parties" each has the meaning set forth in the preamble.

"**Permits**" means all certificates, licenses, permits, approvals, authorizations, registrations, Consents, Orders, decisions and other authorizing actions of a Governmental Authority pertaining to a particular Acquired Asset, or the ownership, operation or use thereof.

"Permitted Lien" means (a) any Lien for Taxes not yet due or payable; (b) any Lien arising in the ordinary course of business by operation of Law (including mechanics', materialmen's, warehousemen's, carriers', workmen's, repairmen's, landlords', suppliers' and other similar Liens) with respect to a Liability that is not yet due or payable; (c) any purchase money Lien (including Liens under purchase price conditional sales contracts and equipment leases) arising in the ordinary course of business and listed on Schedule 1.1-PL; (d) any deposit or pledge made in connection with, or to secure payment of, workers' compensation, unemployment insurance, old age pension programs mandated under applicable Laws or other social security regulations; (e) any exception or other matter set forth in Schedule BII of each of the Title Commitments; (f) any zoning or planning restriction, building and land use Law or similar restriction or condition imposed by any Governmental Authority that does not materially and adversely affect the Business or the ownership, use, operation, maintenance, repair or replacement of any of the Acquired Assets; (g) the terms and conditions of the Assigned Contracts, Assigned Leases and Transferable Permits; (h) any Lien that will no longer be binding

Attachment 2 Page 19 of 159

on the Acquired Assets after Closing; (i) any Lien created by or resulting from any act or omission of Buyer; (j) any Lien granted or created by the execution and delivery of this Agreement or any of the Related Agreements or pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof or thereof (including without limitation the Reserved Easements); and (k) the matters and Liens set forth on Schedule 1.1-PL.

"Person" means an individual, corporation, partnership (general or limited), limited liability company, joint venture, trust, association, unincorporated organization, other business organization or Governmental Authority.

"Potential Qualified Capacity Increase" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6(a)(iii).

"Potential Qualified Capacity Reduction" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6(a)(iii)(B).

"Prepayments" means all advance payments, prepaid expenses (including rent), prepaid Taxes, progress payments and deposits of Seller, and rights to receive prepaid expenses, deposits or progress payments relating to the ownership and operation of the Acquired Assets, but not including any prepaid expenses or deposits attributable to Excluded Assets.

"Property Tax Stabilization Payments" mean those property tax stabilization payments with respect to the Facilities payable by Seller under the Settlement Agreement.

"Prorated Amount" means (a) with respect to any Prorated Item that is a Prepayment, the amount allocable to the period on or after the Closing Date that was paid by Seller prior to the Closing Date, and (b) with respect to any other Prorated Item, the amount (expressed as a negative number) allocable to the period prior to the Closing Date, whether or not then due and payable, which was not paid by Seller prior to the Closing Date and which represents an Assumed Liability (excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, any amount paid by Seller after the Closing Date directly to the applicable Third Party), in each case, prorated in accordance with the methodology specified in Section 2.7.

"Prorated Items" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.7(a).

"Purchase Price" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5.

"Purchase Price Adjustment" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6(c)(i).

"Qualified Capacity" means the amount of capacity a resource may provide in the summer or winter in a Capacity Commitment Period (as defined in the ISO-NE Tariff), as determined in the Forward Capacity Market (as defined in the ISO-NE Tariff) qualification processes.

"Qualified Capacity Increase" has the meaning given to it in Section 2.6(a)(iii)(C).

"Qualified Capacity Reduction" has the meaning given to it in Section 2.6(a)(iii).

"Real Property" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(a).

Attachment 2 Page 20 of 159

"Real Property Agreements" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.17(d).

"Related Agreements" means the Deeds, each Assignment and Assumption of Lease, the Bill of Sale, the Assignment and Assumption Agreement, the Asset Demarcation Agreement, the Easements, the Interconnection Agreements, the Transition Services Agreement, the Release of Mortgage Indenture, the Guaranties, the Escrow Agreement and the other agreements, certificates and documents to be delivered pursuant to this Agreement.

"Release" means any release, spill, emission, escape, migration, leaking, leaching, pumping, injection, dispersal, migration, dumping, deposit, disposal or discharge at, into, onto, or through the Environment, whether sudden or non-sudden and whether accidental or non-accidental, or any release, emission or discharge as those terms are defined in any applicable Environmental Law.

"Release of Mortgage Indenture" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.10(h).

"Remediation" means any or all of the following activities to the extent required to address the presence or Release of, or exposure to, Hazardous Substances: (a) monitoring, investigation, assessment, treatment, cleanup, containment, removal, mitigation, response or restoration work; (b) obtaining any Permits or Consents of any Governmental Authority necessary to conduct any such activity; (c) preparing and implementing any plans or studies for any such activity; (d) obtaining a written notice (or an oral notice which is appropriately documented or memorialized) from a Governmental Authority with competent jurisdiction under Environmental Laws or a written opinion of a Licensed Professional Geologist (as defined in New Hampshire RSA 310-A:118, IV), as contemplated by the relevant Environmental Laws and in lieu of a written notice from a Governmental Authority, that no material additional work is required; and (e) any other activities reasonably determined by a Party to be necessary or appropriate or required under Environmental Laws.

"Removal Contract" means that certain Cover Agreement for Abatement, Demolition and Disposal of the Mercury Vapor Power Units at Schiller Station between Eversource Service, as agent for Seller, and Manafort Brothers, Inc., as contractor, dated as of April 12, 2016, as amended by the First Amendment to the Cover Agreement for Abatement, Demolition and Disposal of the Mercury Vapor Power Units at Schiller Station, dated October 24, 2016.

"Removal Contractor" means Manafort Brothers, Inc., the contractor under the Removal Contract.

"Representative" means, with respect to any Person, such Person's Affiliates, and such Person and its Affiliates' respective officers, directors, managers, employees, agents, consultants and advisors (including financial advisors, accountants and counsel).

"Represented Scheduled Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.12(a).

"Represented Transferred Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(b)(ii).

Attachment 2 Page 21 of 159

"Reserved Easements" means easements to be reserved by Seller with respect to certain T&D Assets and associated telecommunications facilities located on the site of the Acquired Assets, to be reserved in the Deeds pursuant to Section 5.2(f).

"Restoration Cost" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.16.

"Scheduled Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.12(a).

"Schedule Update" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.15(b).

"Schiller Boiler Removal Completion Date" means the date that Seller notifies Buyer that it has satisfied in full its obligations under Section 5.20.

"Selected Represented Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(b)(i).

"Selected Non-Represented Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(c)(i).

"Seller" has the meaning set forth in the preamble.

"Seller Fundamental Warranties" means the representations and warranties of Seller set forth in Section 3.1 (Organization and Existence), Section 3.2 (Authority and Enforceability), Section 3.6 (Title to Acquired Assets) and Section 3.19 (Brokers).

"Seller Indemnified Parties" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.3.

"Seller Marks" means any and all names, marks, trade names, trademarks and corporate symbols and logos incorporating "PSNH," "Public Service Company of New Hampshire," "Public Service of New Hampshire," "Eversource," "Eversource Energy" or "Northeast Utilities," or any word or expression similar thereto or constituting an abbreviation or extension thereof, together with all other names, marks, trade names, trademarks and corporate symbols and logos of Seller or any of its Affiliates.

"Seller Required Consents" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.3.

"Seller's Knowledge" means the actual knowledge (and not imputed or constructive knowledge) of the individuals listed on <u>Schedule 1.1-K</u>, after due inquiry.

"Seller's Pension Plan" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.8(e)(i)(B).

"Settlement Agreement" means that certain 2015 Public Service Company of New Hampshire Restructuring and Rate Stabilization Agreement, dated as of June 10, 2015, by and among Seller, Eversource, the Office of Energy and Planning, Designated Advocate Staff of the NHPUC, the Office of Consumer Advocate, New Hampshire District 3 Senator Jeb Bradley, New Hampshire District 15 Senator Dan Feltes, the City of Berlin, New Hampshire, the Union, the Conservation Law Foundation, Inc., TransCanada Power Marketing Ltd., TransCanada Hydro Northeast Inc., and the New Hampshire Sustainable Energy Association d/b/a NH CleanTech Council, as amended by that certain Amendment to the 2015 Public Service Company of New Hampshire Restructuring and Rate Stabilization Agreement, dated January 26,

Attachment 2 Page 22 of 159

2016, and the Partial Litigation Settlement Between Settling Parties and Non-Advocate Staff, dated January 26, 2016, all as approved by NHPUC Order No. 25,920, dated July 1, 2016.

"Site" means the Real Property or Leased Real Property (as applicable) and Improvements forming a part of, or used or usable in connection with, a Facility. Any reference to a Site shall include, by definition, the surface and subsurface elements, including the soils and groundwater present at such Site, and any reference to items "at the Site" shall include all items "at, on, in, upon, over, across, under and within" the Site.

"**T&D Assets**" means the transmission, distribution, communication, substation and other assets necessary to current or future T&D Operations of Seller.

"**T&D Operations**" means the process of conducting and supporting the transmission, distribution and sale of electricity.

"**Taking**" has the meaning set forth in <u>Section 5.17</u>.

"Tax" or "Taxes" means any federal, state, local, or foreign income, gross receipts, license, payroll, employment, excise, severance, stamp, occupation, premium, windfall profits, environmental (including taxes under Code Section 59A), customs duties, capital stock, franchise, profits, withholding, social security (or similar, including FICA), unemployment, disability, real property, personal property, ad valorem, sales, use, transfer, border adjustment, registration, value added, alternative or add-on minimum, estimated, or other tax, governmental charge or assessment of any kind whatsoever, including any interest, penalty, or addition thereto, whether disputed or not.

"Tax and HR Warranties" means the representations and warranties set forth in <u>Section 3.10</u> (Taxes), <u>Section 3.12</u> (Employment and Labor Matters) and <u>Section 3.13</u> (Employee Benefit Plans).

"Taxing Authority" means, with respect to any Tax, the Governmental Authority (including the Internal Revenue Service) that imposes such Tax, and the agency (if any) charged with the collection or administration of such Tax for such Governmental Authority.

"Tax Return" means any return, declaration, report, claim for refund, or information return or statement relating to Taxes filed with or submitted to, or required to be filed with or submitted to, any Governmental Authority in connection with the determination, assessment, collection, or payment of any Tax or in connection with the administration, implementation, or enforcement of or compliance with any Law relating to any Tax, including any schedule or attachment thereto, and including any amendment thereof.

"Terminated Contracts" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.6(a).

"Third Party" means a Person that is not a Party.

"Third Party Claim" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.5(a).

"Threshold Amount" has the meaning set forth in Section 7.4(a).

Attachment 2 Page 23 of 159

"Title Commitments" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.6.

"Title Policies" means the title insurance policies which may be purchased by Buyer pursuant to Section 6.1(b).

"Transfer Taxes" means all transfer, sales, ad valorem, use, goods and services, value added, documentary, stamp duty, gross receipts, excise, transfer and conveyance Taxes and other similar Taxes, duties, fees or charges, together with any interest, penalties or additions in respect thereof, including, but not limited to, the New Hampshire real estate transfer tax due pursuant to NH RSA 78-B:1, et seq.

"Transferable Permits" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(d).

"Transferred Books and Records" means all books, operating records, engineering designs, blueprints, as-built plans, specifications, procedures, studies, reports (including PI software historical data), manuals, equipment repair records, safety records, maintenance records, service records, supplier, contractor and subcontractor lists, pending purchase orders, property and sales Tax Returns and related Tax records, and all Transferred Employee Records (in each case, in the format (including electronic format) in which such items are reasonably and practically available), in each case, in the possession or control of Seller or any of its Affiliates to the extent relating specifically to the ownership or operation of the Facilities, the Sites and the Acquired Assets; provided, that "Transferred Books and Records" shall not include: (a) any files or records relating to any employees who are not Transferred Employees. (b) files or records relating to any Transferred Employee afforded confidential treatment under any applicable Laws, except to the extent the affected employee consents in writing to such disclosure to Buyer, (c) all records prepared in connection with the sale of the Acquired Assets (and Seller's other generation assets), including bids received from Third Parties and analyses relating to the Acquired Assets, (d) financial records, books of account or projections relating to the Acquired Assets, (e) books, records or other documents of Seller or its Affiliates related to corporate compliance matters not primarily developed for the Acquired Assets, (f) organizational documents (including minute books) of Seller, (g) materials, the disclosure of which would constitute a waiver of attorney-client or attorney work product privilege, or (h) any other books and records which Seller is prohibited from transferring to Buyer under applicable Law and is required by applicable Law to retain.

"Transferred Employees" means the Non-Represented Transferred Employees and the Represented Transferred Employees, collectively.

"Transferred Employee Records" means all personnel records maintained by Seller relating to the Transferred Employees, to the extent such files contain (a) names, addresses, dates of birth, job titles and descriptions; (b) dates of employment; (c) compensation and benefits information; (d) resumes and job applications; and (e) any other documents that Seller is not prohibited by Law from delivering to Buyer. To the extent the consent of a Transferred Employee is required under applicable Law in order for Seller to deliver a document that is part of the Transferred Employee Records to Buyer, Seller agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to secure such consent.

Attachment 2 Page 24 of 159

"Transition Service Cost Percentage" means 100% during the period of the first thirty (30) days after the Closing Date, 110% for the next sixty (60) days, 125% for the next ninety (90) days, and 150% thereafter.

"Transition Services Agreement" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.6(b).

"Union" means International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local 1837.

"WARN Act" means the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act, 29 U.S.C. § 2101, et seq.

Section 1.2 Rules of Interpretation. The following rules of interpretation apply to this Agreement:

- (a) Unless otherwise specified, all Article, Section, Schedule and Exhibit references in this Agreement are to the Articles and Sections of, and the Schedules and Exhibits attached to, this Agreement. The Schedules and Exhibits attached to this Agreement constitute a part of this Agreement and are incorporated in this Agreement for all purposes.
- (b) Article, Section and subsection headings in this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.
- (c) If a term is defined as one part of speech (such as a noun), it shall have a corresponding meaning when used as another part of speech (such as a verb). Unless the context of this Agreement clearly requires otherwise, (i) words importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine and neutral genders and vice versa and (ii) words in the singular shall include the plural and vice versa. The words "include," "includes," and "including" are not limiting and shall mean "including without limitation." The word "or" shall not be exclusive. The words "herein," "hereunder," "hereof," "hereto" and similar terms used in this Agreement are references to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular Article or Section or other portion of this Agreement in which such words appear. For purposes of computation of periods of time, the word "from" means "from and including" and the words "to" and "until" each mean "to but excluding."
- (d) Whenever this Agreement refers to a number of days, such number shall refer to calendar days unless Business Days are specified. Whenever any action must be taken hereunder on or by a day that is not a Business Day, then such action may validly be taken on or by the next day that is a Business Day.
- (e) Unless the context of this Agreement clearly requires otherwise, any reference to any Contract means such Contract as amended and in effect from time to time in accordance with its terms and, if applicable, the terms of this Agreement.
- (f) Unless the context of this Agreement clearly requires otherwise, reference to any Law means such Law as amended, modified, codified, replaced or re-enacted, in whole or in part, and in effect from time to time, including any successor legislation thereto and all rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

Attachment 2 Page 25 of 159

- (g) Currency amounts referenced in this Agreement are in U.S. Dollars.
- (h) All accounting terms used but not expressly defined herein have the meanings given to them under GAAP.
- (i) Each Party acknowledges that it and its attorneys have been given equal opportunity to negotiate the terms and conditions of this Agreement and that any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting Party, or any similar rule operating against the drafter of an agreement, shall not be applicable to the construction or interpretation of this Agreement.

ARTICLE II PURCHASE AND SALE; CLOSING

- Section 2.1 Purchase and Sale of Acquired Assets. On the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, at the Closing, Seller shall sell, assign, convey and transfer to Buyer, and Buyer shall purchase, assume and acquire from Seller, free and clear of Liens other than Permitted Liens, all of Seller's right, title and interest in and to the following properties, rights and assets owned by Seller constituting, or used in and necessary for the operation of, the Business (collectively, the "Acquired Assets"):
- (a) The real property, Improvements thereon, easements, licenses and other rights in real property described in <u>Schedule 2.1(a)</u>, but subject to the Permitted Liens (the "**Real Property**");
- (b) The leasehold interests and rights thereunder relating to real property with respect to which Seller is lessee set forth in <u>Schedule 2.1(b)</u>, but subject to the Permitted Liens (the "**Leased Real Property**"), and all leases set forth in <u>Schedule 2.1(b)</u> with respect to the Leased Real Property (the "**Assigned Leases**");
- (c) The machinery, equipment, tools, furniture, vehicles, Inventories and other tangible and intangible personal property owned by Seller and located at or in transit to the Facilities (if related primarily to any of the Acquired Assets) (including without limitation the items of personal property described on Schedule 2.1(c)), or, in the case of intangible personal property (other than Intellectual Property), otherwise used primarily in the operation of any of the Facilities or the other Acquired Assets, including any Prepayments and all applicable warranties of manufacturers or vendors to the extent that such warranties are transferable, in each case as in existence on the Effective Date, but excluding such items disposed of by Seller in the ordinary course of business during the Interim Period and including such additional items as may be acquired by Seller for use in connection with the Acquired Assets in the ordinary course of business during the Interim Period, in each case in accordance with Section 5.5;
- (d) All Permits (including all pending applications for Permits or renewals thereof) relating to the ownership and operation of the Facilities or the Acquired Assets that, as of the Closing Date, are transferable by Seller to Buyer by assignment or otherwise under applicable Law and that are identified as "Transferable Permits" on Schedule 3.5(b) or Schedule 3.11(a) (the "Transferable Permits");

Attachment 2 Page 26 of 159

- Excluding the Assigned Leases addressed in Section 2.1(b), but including personal property leases (whether Seller is lessor or lessee thereunder), real property leases with respect to which Seller is lessor thereunder and railroad crossing licenses and side-track agreements for the benefit of Seller, (i) those Contracts that are material to the ownership or operation of the Acquired Assets and that are set forth in Schedule 2.1(e) (the "Material **Contracts**") and (ii) all other Contracts that relate primarily to the ownership or operation of any of the Acquired Assets or otherwise in connection with the Business, a copy of each Seller will provide to Buyer during the Interim Period and each of which will be subject to Buyer's agreement to assume in accordance with Section 5.6(a) (the "Other Assigned Contracts" and, together with the Material Contracts, the "Assigned Contracts"); provided that subject to and to the extent it does not interfere with Buyer's rights under any Assigned Contract, including Buyer's right to exculpation and indemnification, Seller shall retain the rights and interests under any Assigned Contract to the extent such rights and interests provide for indemnity and exculpation rights for pre-Closing occurrences for which Seller remains liable under this Agreement; and provided further, that Seller shall, during the Interim Period, amend such Schedule to set forth any amendments to any Material Contract, or any additional Contracts entered into during the Interim Period that are material to the ownership or operation of the Acquired Assets, subject to the applicable covenants in Section 5.5;
- (f) All Transferred Books and Records, subject to the right of Seller to retain copies for its use to the extent and subject to the conditions set forth herein;
- (g) All Intellectual Property that is owned by Seller and primarily used in connection with the operation of the Facilities, as set forth in <u>Schedule 2.1(g)</u> (the "**Assigned Intellectual Property**");
- (h) Subject to Section 2.2(f), the rights of Seller to the use of the names of the Facilities set forth in Schedule 1;
- (i) Those Environmental Attributes set forth in Schedule 2.1(i), excluding such Environmental Attributes or portions thereof disposed of by Seller in the ordinary course of business during the Interim Period and including such additional Environmental Attributes as may be acquired by Seller for use in the operation of the Facilities in the ordinary course of business during the Interim Period, in each case in accordance with Section 5.5; and
- (j) All rights of Seller in and to any claims, causes of action, rights of recovery, rights of set-off, rights of refund and similar rights against a Third Party relating to any Assumed Liability, but excluding any such rights of Seller in, to or under any insurance policies of Seller or any insurance proceeds therefrom; *provided however*, if any such insurance proceeds relate to equipment or other tangible property to be transferred to Buyer and such equipment or tangible property is not repaired or otherwise restored to its condition as of the Effective Date on or prior to Closing, Seller will transfer such proceeds to Buyer at the Closing.
- **Section 2.2 Excluded Assets**. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Buyer expressly understands and agrees that it is not purchasing or acquiring, and Seller is not selling, assigning or transferring, any properties, rights or assets of Seller other than the Acquired Assets, and all such other properties, rights and assets shall be excluded from the Acquired

Attachment 2 Page 27 of 159

Assets (collectively, the "Excluded Assets"). The Excluded Assets to be retained by Seller include all of Seller's right, title and interest in and to the following properties, rights and assets:

- (a) As identified on Schedule 2.2(a) or in the Asset Demarcation Agreement, the real and personal property comprising or constituting any or all of the T&D Assets (whether or not regarded as a "transmission," "distribution" or "generation" asset for regulatory or accounting purposes), including all electric power, communications and telecommunications underground and aboveground lines, switchyard facilities, substation facilities, support equipment and other Improvements, the Reserved Easements, and all Permits and Contracts, to the extent they relate to the T&D Assets, and those certain assets and facilities identified for use or used by Seller or others pursuant to an agreement or agreements with Seller for telecommunications purposes;
 - (b) The real property and Improvements thereon described in <u>Schedule 2.2(b)</u>;
- (c) Except for Prepayments, (i) all Cash, accounts receivable, notes receivable, checkbooks and canceled checks, bank accounts and deposits, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, securities, and property or income Tax receivables, other than the Merrimack Landfill Trust assets, and (ii) any other Tax refunds, credits, prepayments or other rights to payment related to the Acquired Assets to the extent allocable to a period ending prior to the Closing Date;
- (d) All Contracts of Seller (other than the Assigned Contracts and Assigned Leases), *provided* that any excluded Contract of Seller used in connection with the Business that is not an Assigned Contract or an Assigned Lease is identified on Schedule 3.7(a);
- (e) All Permits of Seller (other than the Transferable Permits), *provided* that any excluded Permit of Seller used in connection with the Business that is not a Transferable Permit is identified on Schedule 3.7(a);
- (f) All Intellectual Property including all Seller Marks (other than the Assigned Intellectual Property), *provided* that any excluded Intellectual Property of Seller used in connection with the Business that is not included in the Assigned Intellectual Property is identified on Schedule 3.7(a);
- (g) Duplicate copies of all Transferred Books and Records (to the extent and subject to the conditions set forth herein), and all other records of Seller other than the Transferred Books and Records, including corporate seals, organizational documents, minute books, stock books, Tax Returns, financial records, books of account and other corporate records of Seller, and all employee-related or employee benefit-related files or records other than the Transferred Employee Records;
- (h) All insurance policies of Seller and insurance proceeds therefrom, subject to Section 2.1(j);
- (i) All rights of Seller in and to any claims, causes of action, rights of recovery, rights of set-off, rights of refund and similar rights against a Third Party relating to any

Attachment 2 Page 28 of 159

period through the Closing or otherwise relating to any Excluded Liability, but excluding any such rights of Seller to the extent relating to an Assumed Liability;

- (j) All of Seller's rights arising from or associated with any Contract or arrangement representing an intercompany transaction, agreement or arrangement between Seller and an Affiliate of Seller, whether or not such transaction, agreement or arrangement relates to the provisions of goods or services, payment arrangements, intercompany charges or balances or the like, including, but not limited to, the Terminated Contracts ("Intercompany Arrangements"), other than those Assigned Contracts set forth on Schedule 2.2(j), provided that any excluded Intercompany Arrangement used in connection with the Business is identified on Schedule 3.7(a);
 - (k) All Employee Benefit Plans and trusts or other assets attributable thereto;
 - (l) Seller's Hydro Business; and
- (m) The rights that accrue or will accrue to Seller under this Agreement and the Related Agreements.
- **Section 2.3 Assumption of Assumed Liabilities**. On the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, from and after the Closing, Buyer shall assume and shall satisfy, perform or discharge when due all of the Liabilities of Seller in respect of, or otherwise arising from the ownership, operation or use of the Acquired Assets, other than the Excluded Liabilities (the "**Assumed Liabilities**"), including the following Liabilities:
- (a) All Environmental Liabilities, other than the Excluded Environmental Liabilities until such Excluded Environmental Liabilities become Assumed Liabilities as provided in Section 2.4(i) and, for avoidance of doubt, it is the intention of the Parties that (i) Environmental Liabilities described in Section 2.4(i)(B)(II), Section 2.4(i)(C) and Section 2.4(i)(D) are not and would never become Assumed Liabilities and (ii) Environmental Liabilities resulting from Dig Activities are Assumed Liabilities;
- (b) Except as set forth in <u>Section 2.4(c)</u>, all Liabilities related to the performance or non-performance of contractual obligations or commitments to be performed or addressed, in each case first arising from and after the Closing Date under (i) the Assigned Contracts, the Assigned Leases, the Transferable Permits and the Assigned Intellectual Property, in each case in accordance with the terms thereof, except with respect to Taxes, which shall be assumed in accordance with <u>Section 2.7</u>, and (ii) the Contracts, commitments and Transferable Permits entered into by Seller with respect to the Acquired Assets during the Interim Period in accordance with <u>Section 5.5</u>;
- (c) Except as set forth in <u>Section 2.4(c)</u>, all Liabilities related to the performance or non-performance of contractual obligations or commitments to be performed or addressed, in each case first arising from and after the Closing Date under the Permitted Liens, other than under or with respect to the exercise of the Reserved Easements;
- (d) All Liabilities first arising from and after the Closing Date (i) for any compensation, benefits, employment Taxes, workers compensation benefits and other similar

Attachment 2 Page 29 of 159

Liabilities in respect of the Transferred Employees (including under the Generation CBA, any Employee Benefit Plan of Buyer, or any other agreement, plan, practice, policy, instrument or document relating to any of the Transferred Employees) created or owing as a consequence of employment by Buyer on or after the Closing Date, but not including any Liabilities arising out of the CBA MOA, (ii) relating to the Transferred Employees which Buyer has assumed or for which Buyer is otherwise responsible under Section 5.8, and (iii) in respect of any discrimination, wrongful discharge, unfair labor practice or similar Claim under applicable employment Laws by any Transferred Employee arising out of or relating to acts or omissions occurring on or after the Closing Date;

- (e) All Liabilities for (i) Taxes (including, with respect to property Taxes, payments in addition to or in lieu of Taxes, but not including the Property Tax Stabilization Payments) relating to the ownership, operation, sale or use of the Facilities and the Acquired Assets, in each case first arising from and after the Closing Date, or the Assumed Liabilities and (ii) Taxes for which Buyer is liable pursuant to Section 2.7, Section 5.12 and Section 5.13; and
- (f) All other Liabilities expressly allocated to Buyer in this Agreement or in any of the Related Agreements.
- **Section 2.4 Excluded Liabilities**. Buyer shall not assume or be responsible for the performance of any of the following Liabilities (collectively, the "Excluded Liabilities"):
- (a) Any Liability of Seller exclusively in respect of or otherwise arising from the operation or use of (x) the Excluded Assets or (y) except as expressly set forth in this Agreement, for the period prior to the Closing, the Acquired Assets;
- (b) Any Liability of Seller arising from the making or performance of this Agreement or a Related Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby;
- (c) Any Liability of Seller under the Assigned Contracts or Assigned Leases (i) in respect of payment obligations for goods delivered or services rendered prior to the Closing Date, (ii) relating to a breach or default by Seller of any of its obligations thereunder occurring prior to the Closing Date whenever such breach is declared by the Counterparty thereto or (iii) relating to the CBA MOA;
- (d) Except for those Assumed Liabilities set forth in Section 2.3(d), any Liability of Seller (i) for any compensation, benefits, employment Taxes, workers compensation benefits and other similar Liabilities (including under the Generation CBA, any Employee Benefit Plan of Seller, or any other agreement, plan, practice, policy, instrument or document relating to any of the Transferred Employees) created, arising or accruing before the Closing Date, whether or not subject to any continued service agreement, including pro rata payments earned before the Closing Date, in respect of the Transferred Employees, any temporary employees, and the Scheduled Employees who are not offered, or who do not accept, employment with the Buyer, (ii) relating to the Transferred Employees or temporary employees for which Seller is responsible under Section 5.8, (iii) relating to former employees, temporary employees or Scheduled Employees who are not offered, or who do not accept, employment with Buyer, or (iv) in respect of any workers' compensation, tort, Hazardous Substance exposure,

Attachment 2 Page 30 of 159

discrimination, wrongful discharge, unfair labor practice or other employee Claim under applicable Laws or under Seller's Employee Benefits Plans by any Transferred Employee arising out of or relating to acts or omissions occurring prior to the Closing Date, by any former employee, by any temporary employee or by any Scheduled Employee who is not offered, or who does not accept, employment with Buyer;

- (e) Any Liability of Seller arising from or associated with any Intercompany Arrangement, other than Liabilities under those Assigned Contracts set forth on Schedule 2.2(j);
- (f) Any Liability of Seller for any fines or penalties imposed by a Governmental Authority resulting from (i) any investigation or proceeding pending prior to the Closing Date or (ii) illegal acts or willful misconduct of Seller prior to the Closing Date;
- (g) Any Liability for Taxes (including, with respect to property Taxes, payments in addition to or in lieu of Taxes and the Property Tax Stabilization Payments) relating to the ownership, operation, sale or use of the Acquired Assets prior to the Closing, except those Taxes for which Buyer is liable pursuant to <u>Section 2.7</u>, <u>Section 5.12</u> and <u>Section 5.13</u>.
 - (h) Any Liability of Seller pursuant to <u>Section 5.20</u>; and
- Subject to the provisions of Section 5.11, (A) any Environmental Liability caused, created or otherwise in existence due to the activities of or otherwise attributable to Seller prior to the Closing, except those Environmental Liabilities described in Section 2.4(i)(B)(II), Section 2.4(i)(C) and Section 2.4(i)(D) below, (B) any Environmental Liability arising out of or resulting from any Release of mercury at Schiller Station that occurred (I) prior to or on the Closing or (II) during the performance of the work pursuant to the Removal Contract, which Release occurred after Closing but prior to the Schiller Boiler Removal Completion Date, (C) any Environmental Liability relating to the treatment, disposal, storage, discharge, Release, recycling or the arrangement for such activities at, or the transportation to, any Offsite Disposal Facility by Seller, prior to or on the Closing Date, of Hazardous Substances that were generated at the Sites, and (D) any Environmental Liability of Seller for any fines or penalties imposed by a Governmental Authority resulting from (I) any investigation or proceeding pending prior to the Closing Date or (II) illegal acts or willful misconduct of Seller prior to the Closing Date; provided, however, that the Liability of Seller pursuant to Section 2.4(i)(A) and, from and after the occurrence of the Schiller Boiler Removal Completion Date, Section 2.4(i)(B)(I) (and, together with such clauses, any associated indemnification obligations of Seller hereunder) shall terminate (x) on the applicable Excluded Environmental Liability Termination Date, after which any Liabilities described in Section 2.4(i)(A) and Section 2.4(i)(B)(I) shall be Assumed Liabilities for which Buyer is liable pursuant to Section 2.3(a), and Seller shall have no further Liability with respect thereto, or (y) upon exceeding the indemnification cap set forth in Section 7.4(a)(ii), if earlier than the applicable Excluded Environmental Liability Termination Date, any Liabilities described in Section 2.4(i)(A) and Section 2.4(i)(B)(I) shall be Assumed Liabilities for which Buyer is liable pursuant to Section 2.3(a), and Seller shall have no further Liability with respect thereto.

The Excluded Liabilities described in <u>Section 2.4(d)</u> (solely as it relates to employee exposure to Hazardous Substances), <u>Section 2.4(h)</u> and <u>Section 2.4(i)</u>, as limited by the terms thereof, are

Attachment 2 Page 31 of 159

referred to herein as the "Excluded Environmental Liabilities." For avoidance of doubt, it is the intention of the Parties that Section 2.4(d) (solely as it relates to employee exposure to Hazardous Substances), Section 2.4(h) and Section 2.4(i) shall exclusively define those Environmental Liabilities constituting Excluded Liabilities hereunder, and that no other provision of this Section 2.4 shall be construed to include any Environmental Liabilities.

- Section 2.5 Purchase Price. In consideration for Seller's sale, assignment and transfer of the Acquired Assets to Buyer, at the Closing, Buyer shall (i) pay to Seller an aggregate amount equal to One Hundred Seventy-Five Million Dollars (\$175,000,000) (the "Base Purchase Price") plus or minus amounts to account for (a) the Estimated Purchase Price Adjustment to be made as of the Closing under Section 2.6(a) and Section 2.6(b), and (b) the prorations to be made as of the Closing under Section 2.7 (the Base Purchase Price, as so adjusted, shall be referred to herein as the "Closing Purchase Price"), and (ii) assume the Assumed Liabilities. The Closing Purchase Price shall be payable in cash by wire transfer to Seller in accordance with written instructions of Seller given to Buyer at least three (3) Business Days prior to the Closing. Following the Closing, the Closing Purchase Price shall be subject to adjustment pursuant to Section 2.6(c) and Section 2.7(b), and the Closing Purchase Price, as so adjusted pursuant to such Sections, shall be herein referred to as the "Purchase Price."
- Section 2.6 Certain Adjustments to Base Purchase Price. At the Closing, the Base Purchase Price shall be adjusted as set forth in Section 2.6(a) and Section 2.6(b), and the Closing Purchase Price shall be subject to adjustment following the Closing as set forth in Section 2.6(c).
- (a) <u>Determination of Adjustment</u>. The Base Purchase Price shall be increased or decreased to account for the following items:
 - (i) Increased or decreased, as the case may be, by an amount equal to the working capital adjustment, which adjustment will be calculated in accordance with Schedule 2.6(a)(i);
 - (ii) Increased by any non-ordinary course operations and maintenance expenses incurred and paid for by Seller during the Interim Period that Seller is not otherwise obligated to perform and incur under this Agreement and that Seller would not have actually incurred and paid for but for Buyer's written request;
 - (iii) If prior to Closing, any event occurs which has or may have the effect of increasing or decreasing the Qualified Capacity of any Facility during the Interim Period or following Closing, then the following provisions shall apply:
 - (A) (1) If Seller receives notice from ISO-NE that has or may have the effect of reducing the Qualified Capacity of any Facility individually or any number of Facilities such that in the aggregate the Qualified Capacity of all Facilities is less than the ISO-Recognized Capacity of all of the Facilities (a "Qualified Capacity Reduction") and such Qualified Capacity Reduction (i) results in an aggregate decrease in Qualified Capacity that is equal to or greater than 20 megawatts but is less than 100 megawatts with respect to all Facilities, or (ii) is greater than zero with respect to Lost Nation, then in each case the Base

Attachment 2 Page 32 of 159

Purchase Price shall be reduced by an amount equal to the product of the aggregate Qualified Capacity Reduction (in megawatts) and (x) Three Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars (\$325,000) per megawatt for Qualified Capacity Reduction relating to Newington Station as identified on Schedule 1 or (y) Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$250,000) per megawatt for Qualified Capacity Reduction relating to each other Facility. (2) To the extent Seller receives notice of a Qualified Capacity Reduction and such Qualified Capacity Reduction, together with any other Qualified Capacity Reduction with respect to any Facility, results in an aggregate decrease in Qualified Capacity that is equal to or greater than 100 megawatts, then Buyer in its sole discretion may elect to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.1(f) of this Agreement.

- If Seller receives notice from ISO-NE prior to the Closing Date that has or may have the effect of a Qualified Capacity Reduction for any Facility and (i) Seller pursues a formal dispute or correction of the event that would result in such Qualified Capacity Reduction and resolution is not achieved prior to Closing or (ii) Seller does not pursue a resolution of the event which gave rise to such notice (in which case, as soon as practicable, the Buyer shall pursue in good faith and with commercially reasonable efforts and in cooperation with Seller a remediation plan or other similar efforts to avoid such Qualified Capacity Reduction) and resolution is not achieved prior to Closing (a "Potential Qualified Capacity Reduction"), then the amount by which the Base Purchase Price would be reduced using the formula in Section 2.6(a)(iii)(A)(1) shall be paid by Buyer into an escrow account subject to an escrow agreement mutually acceptable to the Parties (the "Escrow Agreement") and the amount placed in the escrow account under the Escrow Agreement shall be released to (x) Seller, to the extent there is no Qualified Capacity Reduction and (y) Buyer, to the extent there is a Qualified Capacity Reduction.
- (C) To the extent Seller receives notice from ISO-NE that has or may have the effect of increasing the Qualified Capacity of any Facility such that it is greater than the ISO-Recognized Capacity (a "Qualified Capacity Increase") and such Qualified Capacity Increase, together with any other Qualified Capacity Increases with respect to any Facility, results in an aggregate increase of Qualified Capacity equal to or greater than 20 megawatts but is less than 100 megawatts, then the Base Purchase Price shall be increased by an amount equal to the product of the aggregate Qualified Capacity Increase (in megawatts) and (i) Three Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars (\$325,000) per megawatt for Qualified Capacity Increase relating to Newington Station as identified on Schedule 1 or (ii) Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$250,000) per megawatt for Qualified Capacity Increase relating to each other Facility.
- (iv) Decreased by the delayed closing adjustment, calculated in accordance with Schedule 2.6(a)(iv), if any.
- (b) <u>Estimated Purchase Price Adjustment</u>. At least five (5) Business Days prior to the Closing Date, Seller shall prepare and deliver to Buyer a statement (the "**Estimated**"

Attachment 2 Page 33 of 159

Closing Statement") setting forth in reasonable detail Seller's good faith estimate of the net amount of all adjustments to the Base Purchase Price required by Section 2.6(a) (the "Estimated Purchase Price Adjustment"), together with reasonable supporting material regarding the computation thereof. In calculating the Closing Purchase Price pursuant to Section 2.5, the Base Purchase Price will be increased to reflect the Estimated Proration Adjustment Amount.

(c) <u>Post-Closing Adjustment</u>.

- Within sixty (60) days following the Closing Date, Seller shall prepare and deliver to Buyer a statement (the "Closing Statement") that shall set forth in reasonable detail Seller's calculation of the net amount of all adjustments to the Base Purchase Price required by Section 2.6(a) taking into account actual data (the "Purchase Price Adjustment"), together with reasonable supporting material regarding the computation thereof. Buyer shall have thirty (30) days to review the Closing Statement following receipt thereof. On or before the end of such 30-day review period, Buyer may object to the Closing Statement by written notice to Seller (the "Objection Notice"), setting forth Buyer's specific objections to the calculation of the Purchase Price Adjustment. Such Objection Notice shall specify those items or amounts with which Buyer disagrees, together with a detailed written explanation of the reasons for disagreement with each such item or amount (and reasonable supporting material therefor), and shall set forth Buyer's calculation of the Purchase Price Adjustment based on such objections. To the extent not set forth in a timely-delivered Objection Notice, Buyer shall be deemed to have agreed with Seller's calculation of all other items and amounts contained in the Closing Statement and neither party may thereafter dispute any item or amount not set forth in such Objection Notice. If Buyer does not timely deliver any Objection Notice, Buyer shall be deemed to have agreed with and accepted Seller's calculation of the Purchase Price Adjustment, and the Closing Statement shall be final and binding on the Parties as of the end of Buyer's 30-day review period.
- If Buyer timely delivers an Objection Notice to Seller, Buyer and Seller shall, during the thirty (30) day period following such delivery (or any mutually agreed extension thereof), use their commercially reasonable efforts to negotiate and reach agreement on the disputed items and amounts in order to determine the amount of the Purchase Price Adjustment. If, at the end of such period (or any mutually agreed extension thereof), the Parties are unable to resolve their disagreements, they shall jointly retain and refer their disagreements to the Independent Accountant. The Parties shall instruct the Independent Accountant to promptly review this Section 2.6 and to determine solely with respect to the disputed items and amounts so submitted whether and to what extent, if any, the Purchase Price Adjustment set forth in the Closing Statement requires adjustment. The Independent Accountant shall base its determination solely on written submissions by the Parties. As promptly as practicable, but in no event later than thirty (30) days after its retention, the Independent Accountant shall deliver to Buyer and Seller a report which sets forth its resolution of the disputed items and amounts and its calculation of the Purchase Price Adjustment; provided that the Independent Accountant may not assign a value to any item greater than the greatest value for such item claimed by either Party or less than the smallest value for such item claimed by either Party. The decision of the Independent Accountant shall be final and binding on the Parties. The costs and expenses of the

Attachment 2 Page 34 of 159

Independent Accountant shall be allocated between the Parties based upon the percentage which the portion of the contested amount not awarded to each party bears to the amount actually contested by such party, as determined by the Independent Accountant. The Parties agree to execute, if requested by the Independent Accountant, a reasonable engagement letter, including customary indemnities in favor of the Independent Accountant. The Parties shall cooperate and shall furnish each other and, if applicable, the Independent Accountant, with such documents and other records that may be reasonably requested in connection with the preparation, review and final determination of the Closing Statement and Purchase Price Adjustment and the other matters addressed in this Section 2.6.

- (iii) For purposes of this <u>Section 2.6(c)</u>, "**Final Purchase Price Adjustment**" means the Purchase Price Adjustment:
 - (A) As shown in the Closing Statement delivered by Seller to Buyer pursuant to $\underline{\text{Section 2.6(c)(i)}}$, if no Objection Notice with respect thereto is timely delivered by Buyer to Seller pursuant to $\underline{\text{Section 2.6(c)(i)}}$; or
 - (B) If an Objection Notice is so delivered, (x) as agreed by the Parties pursuant to $\underline{\text{Section 2.6(c)(ii)}}$ or (y) in the absence of such agreement, as shown in the Independent Accountant's report delivered pursuant to $\underline{\text{Section 2.6(c)(ii)}}$.
- (iv) Within three (3) Business Days after the Final Purchase Price Adjustment has been finally determined pursuant to this <u>Section 2.6(c)</u>:
 - (A) If the Final Purchase Price Adjustment is less than the Estimated Purchase Price Adjustment, Seller shall pay to Buyer an amount equal to (x) the Estimated Purchase Price Adjustment minus (y) the Final Purchase Price Adjustment; and
 - (B) If the Final Purchase Price Adjustment is greater than the Estimated Purchase Price Adjustment, Buyer shall pay to Seller an amount equal to (x) the Final Purchase Price Adjustment minus (y) the Estimated Purchase Price Adjustment.

Any payment required to be made by a Party pursuant to this <u>Section 2.6(c)(iv)</u> shall be made to the other Party by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the account designated in writing by such other Party.

Section 2.7 Proration.

(a) Buyer and Seller agree that all of the items (including any Prepayments with respect to such items) normally prorated in a sale of assets of the type contemplated by this Agreement, including those listed below, relating to the ownership and operation of the Acquired Assets (collectively, the "**Prorated Items**"), shall be prorated on a daily basis as of the Closing Date in accordance with this <u>Section 2.7</u>, with Seller liable to the extent such items relate to any

Attachment 2 Page 35 of 159

period prior to the Closing Date, and Buyer liable to the extent such items relate to periods on and after the Closing Date:

- (i) Personal property, real property, occupancy and water Taxes, assessments and other charges, if any, on or associated with the Acquired Assets;
- (ii) Rent, Taxes and other items payable by or to Seller under any of the Assigned Contracts or Assigned Leases;
- (iii) Any Permit, license, registration or other fees with respect to any Transferable Permit associated with the Acquired Assets;
- (iv) Sewer rents and charges for water, telephone, electricity and other utilities; and
- (v) Revenues associated with the Environmental Attributes set forth in Schedule 2.1(i).
- (b) At least five (5) Business Days prior to the Closing Date, Seller will deliver to Buyer a worksheet setting forth in reasonable detail (i) Seller's good faith reasonable estimate of the Prorated Amount for each Prorated Item (with respect to each Prorated Item, the "Estimated Prorated Amount"), together with reasonable supporting material regarding such estimate, and (ii) the calculation of the net amount of the Estimated Prorated Amounts (the "Estimated Proration Adjustment Amount"). In the event that, with respect to any Prorated Item, actual figures are not available as of the time of the calculation of the Estimated Prorated Amount, the Estimated Prorated Amount for such Prorated Item shall be a good faith reasonable estimate based upon the actual fee, cost or amount of the Prorated Item for the most recent preceding year (or appropriate period) for which an actual fee, cost or amount paid is available. In calculating the Closing Purchase Price pursuant to Section 2.5, the Base Purchase Price will be adjusted appropriately to reflect the Estimated Proration Adjustment Amount.
- When the actual Prorated Amount with respect to any Prorated Item (the "Actual Prorated Amount") becomes available to either Party, it shall promptly (and in any event within ninety (90) days following Closing) notify the other Party of such Prorated Item and Actual Prorated Amount, together with reasonable detail and supporting material regarding the computation thereof. For any Prorated Item with respect to which the Estimated Prorated Amount is not equal to the Actual Prorated Amount, upon the request of either Seller or Buyer, made within thirty (30) days of the date when such Actual Prorated Amount became available to such Party (or such Party received notice of such Actual Prorated Amount from the other Party, as applicable), the Parties shall agree on an adjustment to account for the difference between the Estimated Prorated Amount and the Actual Prorated Amount for such Prorated Item. All disputes between Seller and Buyer respecting any such requested adjustments that are not resolved by mutual agreement within sixty (60) days following the end of the foregoing ninety (90) day notice period shall be referred by the Parties to the Independent Accountant, who shall resolve such disputes and determine such final adjustment substantially in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 2.6(c)(ii), applied mutatis mutandis. Any adjustment payment to be made by Buyer or Seller, as applicable, to the other Party pursuant to this Section 2.7(c) shall

Attachment 2 Page 36 of 159

be paid within ten (10) days following the Parties' agreement (or the Independent Accountant's determination) with respect thereto by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the account designated in writing by such other Party. The Parties agree to cooperate and furnish each other with such documents and other records that may be reasonably requested in order to confirm all adjustment and proration calculations made pursuant to this <u>Section 2.7</u>.

Section 2.8 Allocation of Purchase Price.

- Buyer and Seller shall use their good faith commercially reasonable efforts to agree upon an allocation among the Acquired Assets of the sum of the Purchase Price and the Assumed Liabilities consistent with Section 1060 of the Code and the Treasury Regulations thereunder prior to or within a reasonable time after the Closing Date (or any mutually agreed extension thereof). Each of Buyer and Seller agrees to file Internal Revenue Service Form 8594 and all federal, state, local and foreign Tax Returns, and to report the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements for federal income Tax and all other Tax purposes, in a manner consistent with the allocation determined pursuant to this Section 2.8 (as revised to take into account subsequent adjustments to the Purchase Price, including adjustments to the Purchase Price pursuant to Section 2.6 and Section 2.7 and any indemnification payment treated as an adjustment to the Purchase Price pursuant to Section 7.6, as mutually agreed upon by the Parties and in accordance with the provisions of the Code and the Treasury Regulations thereunder). Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event Buyer and Seller cannot agree as to the allocation, each party shall be entitled to take its own position in any Tax Return, Tax proceeding or audit, provided that such position is reasonable and consistent with the general principles of Section 1060 of the Code and the Treasury Regulations thereunder. Each of Buyer and Seller agrees to provide the other promptly with any other information required to complete Form 8594. Each of Buyer and Seller shall notify and provide the other with reasonable assistance in the event of an examination, audit or other proceeding regarding the agreed upon allocation of the Purchase Price.
- (b) In compliance with the Settlement Agreement's requirement to fairly allocate among individual assets the sale price of any assets that are sold as a group, the Parties acknowledge and agree that the portion of the Purchase Price allocable to each Facility is as set forth on Schedule 2.8(b).
- **Section 2.9** Closing. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the "Closing") shall take place at the offices of Seller, 780 N. Commercial Street, Manchester, New Hampshire 03105-0330, beginning at 10:00 a.m. local time, on the third (3rd) Business Day following the date on which all of the conditions set forth in <u>Article VI</u> have either been satisfied or expressly waived by the Party for whose benefit such condition exists (other than conditions which, by their nature, are to be satisfied at Closing, but subject to the satisfaction or waiver of those conditions), or at such other time, date or place as the Parties may mutually agree. The date of Closing is hereinafter called the "Closing Date." The Closing shall be effective for all purposes herein as of 12:01 a.m. Eastern time on the Closing Date.
- **Section 2.10 Deliveries by Seller at Closing**. At Closing, Seller shall deliver the following to Buyer, duly executed and properly acknowledged, if appropriate:

Attachment 2 Page 37 of 159

- (a) With respect to each parcel of Real Property, a deed conveying such parcel to Buyer, substantially in the form agreed to by Seller and Buyer in accordance with Section 5.2(f) and otherwise in a form suitable for recording (each, a "**Deed**");
- (b) With respect to each Assigned Lease, an assignment and assumption of lease, substantially in the form agreed to by Seller and Buyer in accordance with Section 5.2(f) and otherwise in a form suitable for recording, if necessary (each, an "Assignment and Assumption of Lease");
- (c) A bill of sale transferring the tangible personal property included in the Acquired Assets to Buyer, substantially in the form agreed to by Seller and Buyer in accordance with Section 5.2(f) (the "Bill of Sale");
- (d) An assignment and assumption agreement pursuant to which Seller shall assign certain rights, liabilities and obligations to Buyer and Buyer shall assume the Assumed Liabilities, substantially in the form agreed to by Seller and Buyer in accordance with <u>Section 5.2(f)</u> (the "Assignment and Assumption Agreement");
- (e) An agreement between the Parties evidencing their agreement as to the demarcation of ownership with respect to certain assets not situated wholly on real property owned, or to be owned, by either Seller or Buyer, as applicable, substantially in the form agreed to by Seller and Buyer in accordance with <u>Section 5.2(f)</u> (the "Asset Demarcation Agreement");
- (f) With respect to each Facility, an agreement between the Parties respecting the interconnection of such Facility with Seller's transmission system, substantially in the applicable forms agreed to by Seller and Buyer in accordance with <u>Section 5.2(f)</u> (together, the "**Interconnection Agreements**");
 - (g) The Escrow Agreement, if applicable;
- (h) All documents necessary to release or discharge all Liens affecting the Acquired Assets, except for Permitted Liens, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Buyer, including the document or documents necessary to discharge the Lien imposed by the Mortgage Indenture, which discharge will be substantially in the form agreed to by Seller and Buyer in accordance with Section 5.2(f) (the "Release of Mortgage Indenture");
 - (i) The Easements:
 - (j) If requested by Buyer, the Transition Services Agreement;
- (k) Certificates of title for the vehicles and boats which are part of the Acquired Assets;
 - (l) Copies of all Seller Required Consents;

Attachment 2 Page 38 of 159

- (m) Seller's Transfer Tax Declarations of Consideration required under New Hampshire RSA 78-B:10 and New Hampshire Department of Revenue Administration rules (Forms CD-57-S), together with Seller's share of applicable real estate transfer taxes;
- (n) Affidavits and indemnities typically delivered in commercial real estate transactions sufficient for purposes of issuing the Title Policies without the standard title insurance policy exceptions regarding mechanic's liens, if available, parties in possession, real estate taxes not yet due and payable and broker liens for brokers engaged by or on behalf of Seller;
- (o) A certification of non-foreign status, pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.1445-2(b)(2), with respect to Seller;
 - (p) The officer's certificate of Seller required by Section 6.1(d);
- (q) A certificate of existence and good standing with respect to Seller, as of a recent date, issued by the secretary of state or other appropriate Governmental Authority of the jurisdiction of Seller's organization, and certificates of good standing and qualification or authorization to do business (or the equivalent certificates) with respect to Seller, each as of a recent date, issued by the secretary of state or similar Governmental Authority in each other jurisdiction where the actions to be performed hereunder make such qualification or authorization necessary;
- (r) A copy, certified by the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of Seller, of corporate resolutions authorizing the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Related Agreements and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby;
- (s) A certificate of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of Seller which shall identify by name and title and bear the signature of the officers of Seller authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement and the Related Agreements; and
- (t) All such other instruments or documents as Buyer and its counsel may reasonably request in order to give effect to the transfer of the Acquired Assets as contemplated hereby or to otherwise facilitate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements; *provided, however*, that this Section 2.10(t) shall not require Seller to prepare or obtain any surveys relating to the Real Property or Leased Real Property other than those previously provided to Buyer.
- **Section 2.11 Deliveries by Buyer at Closing**. At Closing, Buyer shall deliver to Seller, duly executed and properly acknowledged, if appropriate:
 - (a) The Closing Purchase Price in accordance with Section 2.5;
- (b) The Assignment and Assumption of Lease respecting each Assigned Lease;
 - (c) The Bill of Sale:

Attachment 2 Page 39 of 159

- (d) The Assignment and Assumption Agreement;
- (e) The Asset Demarcation Agreement;
- (f) The Interconnection Agreements;
- (g) The Escrow Agreement, if applicable;
- (h) The Easements;
- (i) If requested by Buyer, the Transition Services Agreement;
- (j) Copies of all Buyer Required Consents;
- (k) Evidence of Buyer's membership in NEPOOL or other evidence that Buyer has sufficient authority to sell the Facilities' electrical output into the wholesale market;
- (I) Buyer's Transfer Tax Declarations of Consideration required under New Hampshire RSA 78-B:10 and New Hampshire Department of Revenue Administration rules (Forms CD-57-P) and Inventory of Property Transfer Forms (Forms PA-34), together with Buyer's share of any taxes and other fees due thereunder;
- (m) All applicable exemption certificates with respect to Taxes that would otherwise be imposed with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;
 - (n) The officer's certificate of Buyer required by Section 6.2(c);
- (o) A certificate of existence and good standing with respect to Buyer, as of a recent date, issued by the secretary of state or other appropriate Governmental Authority of the jurisdiction of Buyer's organization, and certificates of good standing and qualification or authorization to do business (or the equivalent certificates) with respect to Buyer, each as of a recent date, issued by the secretary of state or similar Governmental Authority in each other jurisdiction where the actions to be performed hereunder make such qualification or authorization necessary;
- (p) A copy, certified by the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of Buyer, of limited liability company resolutions authorizing the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Related Agreements and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby;
- (q) A certificate of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of Buyer which shall identify by name and title and bear the signature of the officers of Seller authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement and the Related Agreements; and
- (r) All such other instruments or documents as Seller and its counsel may reasonably request in order to give effect to the transfer of the Acquired Assets or the assumption of the Assumed Liabilities as contemplated hereby or to otherwise facilitate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements.

Attachment 2 Page 40 of 159

Section 2.12 Guaranties. The executed Guaranties will be delivered to Seller simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement.

ARTICLE III REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER

Seller represents and warrants to Buyer that the statements contained in this <u>Article III</u> are true and correct as of the Effective Date, except as set forth in the Schedules.

Section 3.1 Organization and Existence. Seller is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of the State of New Hampshire. Seller is duly qualified or authorized to do business in each other jurisdiction in which the ownership or operation of the Acquired Assets make such qualification or authorization necessary, except in those jurisdictions where the failure to be so duly qualified or authorized would not have a Material Adverse Effect. Schedule 3.1 lists each jurisdiction in which Seller is qualified to do business in connection with the Business.

Section 3.2 Authority and Enforceability. Seller has the corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and the Related Agreements to which it is a party and, subject to receipt of the Seller Required Consents, to perform its obligations hereunder and thereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. All corporate actions or proceedings to be taken by or on the part of Seller to authorize and permit the due execution and valid delivery by Seller of this Agreement and the Related Agreements to which it is a party, the performance by Seller of its obligations hereunder and thereunder, and the consummation by Seller of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly and properly taken. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by Seller and, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by Buyer and receipt of the Seller Required Consents, constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of Seller, enforceable against Seller in accordance with its terms and conditions, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance or other similar Laws relating to creditors' rights generally and general principles of equity, whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law. When each Related Agreement to which Seller is a party has been duly executed and delivered by Seller, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by each other party thereto and receipt of the Seller Required Consents, such Related Agreement will constitute the valid and legally binding obligation of Seller, enforceable against Seller in accordance with its terms and conditions, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance or other similar Laws relating to creditors' rights generally and general principles of equity, whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.

Section 3.3 No Conflicts; Consents and Approvals. Assuming all of the Consents of the Governmental Authorities and other Persons set forth on Schedule 3.3 (the "Seller Required Consents") have been obtained, and assuming the truth and accuracy of Buyer's representations and warranties set forth herein, the execution and delivery by Seller of this Agreement and the Related Agreements to which it is or will be a party do not and will not, the performance by Seller of its obligations hereunder and thereunder will not, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby will not:

Attachment 2 Page 41 of 159

- (a) conflict with or result in a violation or breach of any of the terms, conditions or provisions of the Organizational Documents of Seller;
- (b) (i) conflict with, result in a breach of, constitute a default under, result in the acceleration of, or create in any Person the right to accelerate, terminate, modify, revoke, suspend or cancel (with or without giving of notice, the lapse of time or both), any Material Contract to which Seller is bound or to which any of the Acquired Assets is subject, (ii) conflict with or result in a violation or breach of any Law or material Permit to which Seller or any of the Acquired Assets is subject, or (iii) require the Consent of any Governmental Authority under any applicable Law; or
- (c) result in the imposition or creation of any Lien on any Acquired Asset, other than any Permitted Lien.
- Legal Proceedings. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.4, there is no Claim Section 3.4 pending or, to Seller's Knowledge, threatened against Seller (a) that, if adversely determined against Seller would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to materially and adversely affect Seller, the Business or the Acquired Assets, or (b) that, as of the Closing Date, seeks an Order restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting or making illegal any of the transactions contemplated hereby. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.4, neither Seller nor any of the Acquired Assets are bound by any Order (other than any Order of general applicability) that would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to materially and adversely affect Seller, the Business or the Acquired Assets. As of the Closing Date, Seller is not subject to any Order that prohibits the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Seller has not received from any Person a Claim in writing that Seller or any of its Affiliates' use of the Assigned Intellectual Property infringes on the Intellectual Property of such Person nor, to Seller's Knowledge, has any such Claim been threatened. None of the representations and warranties set forth in this Section 3.4 shall be deemed to relate to (i) Tax matters, which are addressed in Section 3.10, (ii) environmental matters, which are addressed in Section 3.11, (iii) employment and labor matters, which are addressed in Section 3.12, or (iv) employee benefits matters, which are addressed in Section 3.13.

Section 3.5 Compliance with Laws; Permits.

- (a) Except as set forth on Schedule 3.5(a), Seller is (and has been for the last two years with respect to FERC and NERC Laws only), and the Business and the Acquired Assets are owned, operated and maintained, in compliance in all material respects with all Laws applicable to it, the Business and the Acquired Assets and in the last two years, Seller has not received written notice or, to Seller's Knowledge, any threat from ISO-NE, NERC or any Governmental Authority alleging any material non-compliance with Laws or orders applicable to it.
- (b) <u>Schedule 3.5(b)</u> lists all Permits (other than Environmental Permits) that are material to the ownership and operation of the Acquired Assets, and identifies those material Permits that are Transferable Permits. The Permits listed in <u>Schedule 3.5(b)</u> are in full force and effect, except to the extent that the failure of such Permits to be in full force and effect would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a material and adverse

Attachment 2 Page 42 of 159

effect on the operation or ownership of each Facility individually or in the aggregate. Seller is in compliance in all material respects with the terms and conditions of all Permits listed in <u>Schedule</u> 3.5(b).

(c) None of the representations and warranties set forth in this <u>Section 3.5</u> shall be deemed to relate to (i) Tax matters, which are addressed in <u>Section 3.10</u>, (ii) environmental matters, which are addressed in <u>Section 3.11</u>, (iii) employment and labor matters, which are addressed in <u>Section 3.12</u>, or (iv) employee benefits matters, which are addressed in <u>Section 3.13</u>.

Section 3.6 Title to Acquired Assets. Except for the Mortgage Indenture (which will which will be discharged at or prior to Closing), the Assigned Leases and the Permitted Liens, Seller has (x) title to each Site, to the extent, and only to the extent, specified in the title policy commitments referred to on Schedule 3.6 (the "Title Commitments"); (y) good and marketable title to, and valid leases, licenses or other rights to use, as applicable, all tangible personal property free and clear of any Liens and (z) the necessary ownership rights, valid leases and licenses or other rights, as applicable, to all other Acquired Assets (excluding tangible personal property) free and clear of any Liens, in each case that are material to the conduct of the Business and the ownership, use, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of any of the Acquired Assets.

Section 3.7 Assets Used in Operation of the Facilities.

- (a) Except as set forth in <u>Schedule 3.7(a)</u>, (i) the Acquired Assets constitute all of the material assets necessary for use in connection with the operation of the Business as (x) currently operated by Seller, (y) otherwise required for Seller to comply with all Transferrable Permits and Material Contracts, and (z) required by applicable Law; and (ii) all Acquired Assets that constitute tangible personal property are currently located at (or are in transit to) the Facilities and no such Acquired Assets intended for the Facilities are being held by Third Parties.
- (b) Except as set forth on <u>Schedule 3.7(b-1)</u>, (i) the Interconnection Agreements and the Acquired Assets constitute all of the assets necessary for Buyer to connect each Facility to the grid operated by ISO-NE through the T&D Assets; (ii) the portion of the Acquired Assets that is necessary or desirable for use in connection with each Interconnection Agreement meets and satisfies Seller's specifications and requirements for T&D Operations and no transmission upgrades are required; and (iii) upon execution, the Interconnection Agreements will be sufficient to ensure each Facility has access to a Pool Transmission Facility (as defined in the ISO-NE Tariff) administered by ISO-NE without the need for any modifications to the transmission system and without incurring any local network service charges for transmission. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the existing interconnection agreements for Merrimack and Schiller or the proposed interconnection agreements for Newington, White Lake and Lost Nation, to Seller's Knowledge, no further studies or analyses are required under or pursuant to such interconnection agreements. <u>Schedule 3.7(b-2)</u> sets forth Seller's expectations with respect to certain equipment and services used in the operation of the Facilities.

Attachment 2 Page 43 of 159

(c) To Seller's Knowledge, the only Acquired Assets requiring or containing any material credit support obligations by Seller or its Affiliates in connection with the Business for the benefit of any Third Party, including ISO-NE, are the Merrimack Landfill Trust, NHDES Groundwater Management Permits GWP-100112013-004, GWP-198400065-B-006, GWP-198404088-P-002, GWP-199112013-N-003, Standard Large Generator Interconnection Agreement, dated May 31, 2010, by and between ISO-NE and Seller, Master Delivered Petroleum Products Sales Agreement, dated August 4, 2015, between Sprague Operating Resources LLC and Seller, Base Contract for Sale and Purchase of Natural Gas, dated November 1, 2011, between Emera Energy Services, Inc. and Seller, Distillate Fuel Oil Agreement, dated February 7, 2017, between C.N. Brown Company and Seller, REC Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 30 2014, between Seller and United Illuminating Co., and REC Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 20, 2014, between Seller and Connecticut Light and Power Co.

Section 3.8 Material Contracts.

- (a) The Material Contracts set forth on <u>Schedule 2.1(e)</u> include the Contracts meeting the following criteria to which Seller is a party and used in connection with the operation of the Business or by which any of the Acquired Assets may be bound:
 - (i) Contracts for the future purchase, exchange or sale of fuel oil or other fuel for a Facility;
 - (ii) Contracts for the future purchase, exchange or sale of electric power or ancillary services;
 - (iii) Contracts for the future transportation of fuel oil or other fuel for a Facility;
 - (iv) Contracts for the future transmission of electric power;
 - (v) interconnection Contracts, including the Interconnection Agreements;
 - (vi) Contracts for the future purchase, exchange, transmission or sale of electric power in any form, including energy, capacity, Environmental Attributes or any ancillary services;
 - (vii) other than Contracts of the nature addressed by Section 3.8(a)(i) to Section 3.8(a)(ii), Contracts (A) for the purchase or sale of any Acquired Asset (by merger or otherwise) or that grant a right or option to purchase or sell any Acquired Asset (including by merger or otherwise), other than in each case Contracts relating to the Acquired Assets or services with a nominal value of less than Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$250,000) individually or One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) in the aggregate and (B) for the provision or receipt of any services or that grant a right or option to provide or receive any services, other than in each case Contracts relating to services with a nominal value of less than Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$250,000) individually or One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) in the aggregate;

Attachment 2 Page 44 of 159

- (viii) Contracts under which (A) Seller has imposed a security interest on any of the Acquired Assets, tangible or intangible (excluding the Mortgage Indenture) and (B) any credit support has been issued in favor Seller relating to any of the Acquired Assets or the operation of the Business, including, without limitation, letters of credit or any guaranties;
- (ix) Contracts of guaranty, indemnity, surety or similar obligation, direct or indirect, by Seller that affect, are related to, or otherwise encumber or may be reasonably expected to encumber any of the Acquired Assets, other than Contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business that include standard indemnity provisions;
 - (x) collective bargaining Contracts and employment Contracts;
- (xi) outstanding futures, swap, collar, put, call, floor, cap, option or other Contracts that are intended to benefit from or reduce or eliminate the risk of fluctuations in interest rates or the price of commodities, including electric power, in any form, including energy, capacity or any ancillary services, natural gas, oil or securities;
- (xii) partnership, joint venture, licensing arrangement (other than in respect of Intellectual Property) or limited liability company agreements or Contracts for sharing profits;
- (xiii) real property leases and any ground leases relating to, or affecting, any of the Acquired Assets and property tax agreements;
- (xiv) Contracts that purport to limit Seller's freedom to compete in any line of business or in any geographic area;
- (xv) any Contract between Seller, on the one hand, and any Affiliate of Seller, or any current officer, director or manager of Seller or any Affiliate, on the other hand, in each case related to the Business or any of the Acquired Assets, all of which shall be terminated or modified to exclude the Acquired Assets as of the Closing Date (but excluding the Assigned Intercompany Agreements); and
 - (xvi) any Contract entered into with a Governmental Authority.
- (b) Except as described on <u>Schedule 3.8(b)</u>, Seller has provided Buyer with accurate and complete copies of all Material Contracts, including all amendments, modifications and waivers related thereto.
- (c) Except as described in <u>Schedule 3.8(c)</u>, and assuming all Seller Required Consents required in connection with each Material Contract are obtained prior to Closing, (i) each Material Contract (except to the extent such Material Contract terminates or expires after the Effective Date in accordance with its terms) is in full force and effect and is a valid and binding obligation of Seller and, to Seller's Knowledge, of the other parties thereto, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance or other similar Laws relating to creditors' rights generally and general principles of equity, whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law, (ii) neither Seller nor, to Seller's Knowledge, any

Attachment 2 Page 45 of 159

other party thereto, is in violation of or default under any Material Contract, (iii) each Material Contract may be assigned to Buyer pursuant to this Agreement without breaching the terms thereof or resulting in the forfeiture or impairment of any material rights thereunder, and (iv) Seller has not received written notice from nor, to Seller's Knowledge, any threat that, any other party to a Material Contract intends to terminate a Material Contract.

Section 3.9 Insurance. The Acquired Assets are insured to the extent specified under the material insurance policies listed on <u>Schedule 3.9</u>. No written notice of cancellation or termination has been received by Seller with respect to any such policy that has not been replaced on substantially similar terms prior to the date of such cancellation or termination. <u>Schedule 3.9</u> sets forth a list of all pending claims that have been made under any such policy with respect to the Acquired Assets. Except as described in <u>Schedule 3.9</u>, Seller has not been refused any material insurance with respect to the Acquired Assets, nor has coverage with respect to the Acquired Assets been limited in any material respect by any insurance carrier to which Seller has applied for any such insurance or with which it has carried insurance, in each case, during the preceding twelve (12) month period.

Section 3.10 Taxes. Seller has filed all material Tax Returns that it was required to file with respect to the Acquired Assets or its operation thereof and has paid all Taxes that have become due as indicated thereon and all Taxes due in the absence of a Return (except where Seller is contesting such Taxes in good faith by appropriate proceedings). There is no unpaid Tax due and payable that would reasonably be expected to result in a lien on all or any part of the Acquired Assets or for which Buyer could become liable. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.10, there is no audit or other Claim now pending with respect to any material Tax respecting the Acquired Assets, including without limitation any claim regarding or based on the valuation of all or any part of the Acquired Assets. Except as set forth in the Settlement Agreement or on Schedule 3.10, there is no agreement, treaty or settlement regarding the valuation of all or any part of the Acquired Assets or any Taxes payable in respect thereof. No part of the Acquired Assets is located within any so-called "tax increment financing" district or special assessment district or is otherwise subject to assessment other than in accordance with generally applicable provisions of New Hampshire Law. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, this Section 3.10 contains the sole and exclusive representations and warranties of Seller relating to Tax matters.

Section 3.11 Environmental Matters.

- (a) <u>Schedule 3.11(a)</u> lists all Environmental Permits that are material to the ownership and operation of the Acquired Assets, and identifies those material Environmental Permits that are Transferable Permits; all Environmental Permits necessary for the operation of the Acquired Assets are transferrable. Except as set forth on <u>Schedule 3.11(a)</u>, the Environmental Permits listed in <u>Schedule 3.11(a)</u> are in full force and effect.
- (b) Except as disclosed on <u>Schedule 3.11(b)</u>, during the previous six (6)-year period, with respect to the Acquired Assets: (i) Seller has not received any written notice from any Governmental Authority that it is not in material compliance with Environmental Laws, that it failed to obtain or timely apply for the renewal of any material Environmental Permits, or that it is not in material compliance with any Environmental Permit; (ii) there is no proceeding

Attachment 2 Page 46 of 159

pending or, to Seller's Knowledge, threatened, to revoke, prevent the renewal of, rescind, modify, refuse to renew or limit any material Environmental Permit, nor has Seller received any written notice from any Governmental Authority with respect to same; (iii) Seller has not received any written notice from any Governmental Authority that any Acquired Asset is listed under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation Liability Information Systems or any similar state list; (iv) Seller has not received written notice from any Person alleging Liability for any Environmental Claims and no Environmental Claims are pending or, to Seller's Knowledge, threatened, against Seller by any Governmental Authority under any Environmental Laws; (v) Seller was not required by any applicable Environmental Laws to place any use or activities restrictions or any institutional controls on any Acquired Assets; and (vi) except as authorized by applicable Environmental Permits, to Seller's Knowledge there has been no Release or threatened Release of any Hazardous Substances from any Real Property. Except as described in Schedule 3.11(b), Seller has no Knowledge of any matters which could give rise to material Environmental Liabilities.

- (c) Seller has provided to Buyer copies of all material reports and investigations within its possession or control regarding the environmental condition of the Acquired Assets that are required to be maintained by the operator of the Facilities pursuant to applicable Law or relate to the un-permitted Release of Hazardous Substances.
- (d) During the previous six (6)-year period, to Seller's Knowledge Seller has not sent or disposed of Hazardous Substances to or at a site which, pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act or any similar state law, has been listed or proposed for listing on the National Priorities List or its state equivalent.
- (e) Seller has provided Buyer with a true and complete copy of the Removal Contract. Except as set forth in <u>Schedule 3.11(e)</u>, the Removal Contract is in full force and effect, the work thereunder is being timely performed in accordance with its terms, and neither Eversource Services, Seller, or to Seller's Knowledge, the Removal Contractor are in default of their respective obligations thereunder.
- (f) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, this <u>Section 3.11</u> contains the sole and exclusive representations and warranties of Seller relating to Environmental Laws, Environmental Permits, Hazardous Substances or other environmental matters.

Section 3.12 Employment and Labor Matters.

(a) Schedule 3.12(a) sets forth (i) a list, organized by job classification at each Facility, of all employees of Seller who are represented by the Union and employed under the terms of the Generation CBA, and who are primarily employed in the operation or support of the Facilities, including all such employees who are on inactive status due to any short-term disability, long-term disability or other approved leave or on layoff status as of the Effective Date (the "Represented Scheduled Employees"), and (ii) a list of all other employees of Seller or Eversource Service who are primarily employed in the operation or support of the Facilities as of the Effective Date, but are not represented by the Union (the "Non-Represented Scheduled Employees" and, together with the Represented Scheduled Employees, the "Scheduled

Attachment 2 Page 47 of 159

Employees"), which list shall be amended during the Interim Period to reflect any changes thereto, to the extent such changes are not in violation of any applicable covenants in this Agreement. For each Scheduled Employee, Seller has provided Buyer the following information: employer; name; job title; job classification; facility or operating unit; date of commencement of employment; details of leave of absence or layoff; exempt or non-exempt status; full-time or part-time status; status as temporary if applicable; rate of compensation; bonus, commission or incentive compensation arrangement; a description of the medical/dental/vision/life insurance, pension, retirement and other benefits provided to the employee; accrued vacation, personal and sick time; years of service; and service credited for purposes of vesting and eligibility to participate under any Benefit Plan. Each Scheduled Employee classified as exempt under the Fair Labor Standards Act and state and local wage and hour laws is properly classified.

- The Generation CBA is the only collective bargaining agreement to which (b) Seller is a party and which governs terms and conditions of employment of any Scheduled Employees listed in part (i) of Schedule 3.12(a), and Seller is not a party to or bound by any other collective bargaining agreement that is applicable to any Scheduled Employee. Seller has provided Buyer with a true and complete copy of the Generation CBA in effect as of the Effective Date. Except as described in Schedule 3.12(b): (i) there has not been in the preceding two (2) year period, there is not presently pending or existing, and to Seller's Knowledge there is not threatened any strike, work slowdown, informational picketing activity, lockout, work stoppage, employee grievance process or labor dispute at any of the Facilities; (ii) Seller is, and for the preceding three (3) year period has been, in material compliance with all applicable Laws respecting employment and employment practices, equal employment opportunity, nondiscrimination, harassment, retaliation, family and medical leave obligations, workers compensation, unemployment compensation, immigration, benefits, COBRA and similar state laws, labor relations, worker classification, collective bargaining, the WARN Act and similar state and local laws, workforce reductions, plant closings, uniformed services employment and reemployment rights, occupational health and safety, affirmative action, terms and conditions of employment and wages and hours with respect to the Scheduled Employees; (iii) Seller is not currently subject to any pending, or to Seller's Knowledge, threatened, unfair labor practice charge or complaint against Seller before the National Labor Relations Board with respect to the Scheduled Employees; (iv) Seller is not the subject of any pending or to Seller's Knowledge threatened Claim or grievance pertaining to labor relations or employment matters including any charge or complaint filed with any Governmental Body with respect to the Scheduled Employees; (v) there are no pending, or to Seller's Knowledge, threatened, claims against Seller under any workers compensation plan or policy or for long term disability with respect to the Scheduled Employees; (vi) there are no grievance or arbitration proceeding arising out of or under the Generation CBA pending, or to Seller's Knowledge threatened, against Seller with respect to the Scheduled Employees; and (vii) Seller is in compliance in all material respects with the Generation CBA and all other contracts with respect to the Scheduled Employees. Seller is not liable for any arrears of wages or unpaid wages or the payment of any Taxes, fines, penalties, damages or other amounts, however designated, for failure to comply with any of the foregoing Laws or legal requirements with respect to the Scheduled Employees.
- (c) <u>Schedule 3.12(c)</u> sets forth: (i) a list with the name, responsibilities, and inclusive dates of engagement of every independent contractor of Seller or Eversource Service

Attachment 2 Page 48 of 159

who, as of the Effective Date, provides individual services related to the operation or support of the Facilities (and Seller has provided Buyer with copies of each agreement with such independent contractors to which Seller or Eversource Service is a party); and (ii) a list with the name of each staffing or employee leasing agency/company with whom Seller or Eversource Service has an agreement or arrangement, as of the Effective Date, for temporary or leased employees to provide services related to the operation or support of the Facilities (and Seller Parties have provided Buyer with copies of each such agreement), the number of temporary employees at each Facility performing services for Seller through each such agency/company, and the type of services provided or position(s) filled. Seller is not liable for any arrears of payments to such independent contractors or temporary employees or the payment of any Taxes, fines, penalties, damages or other amounts for failure to comply with any Laws pertaining to independent contractors or temporary employees.

- (d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, this <u>Section 3.12</u> contains the sole and exclusive representations and warranties of Seller relating to employment and labor matters.
- Section 3.13 Employee Benefit Plans. Schedule 3.13 lists, as of the Effective Date, all Employee Benefit Plans established, sponsored, maintained or contributed to (or required to be contributed to) by Seller in respect of the Scheduled Employees. True and complete copies of all such Employee Benefit Plans have been Made Available to Buyer. Seller does not contribute to, and has no obligation to contribute to, a "multiemployer plan" within the meaning of Section 3(37) of ERISA. No liability under Title IV or Section 302 of ERISA or Section 412 of the Code has been incurred by Seller with respect to the Scheduled Employees that has not been satisfied in full, and to Seller's Knowledge no condition exists that presents a material risk to Seller of incurring any such liability, other than liability for premiums due the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation, which premiums have been paid. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, this Section 3.13 contains the sole and exclusive representations and warranties of Seller relating to employee benefits matters.
- **Section 3.14 Condemnation**. Seller has received no written notice from any Governmental Authority of any pending or threatened proceeding to condemn or take by power of eminent domain or otherwise, by any Governmental Authority, all or any part of the Acquired Assets having a Condemnation Value exceeding the Condemnation Threshold.
- Section 3.15 Financial Information. Set forth on Schedule 3.15 are true and complete copies of segregated historical financial information relating to the Acquired Assets dated as of June 30, 2017, prepared by or on behalf of senior management of Seller. The Parties acknowledge that the limited balance sheet financial information provided on Schedule 3.15 is a good faith estimate not maintained in the ordinary course and is not prepared in accordance with GAAP, provided that the fuel, limestone and allowances inventory quantities set forth on Schedule 3.15 are, as of June 30, 2017, true, accurate, and complete in all material respects, and represent all Inventory of a quality and quantity that is usable in the operation of the Business as currently conducted by Seller. The Parties acknowledge that the limited operating expenses and capital expenditure information provided on Schedule 3.15 is a good faith estimate not maintained in the ordinary course of the Business and is not prepared in accordance with GAAP, provided that such information for the four-year period from January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2016 is, in

Attachment 2 Page 49 of 159

all material respects, true, accurate and complete representations of amounts related to the Acquired Assets as captured in the Seller's accounting system, and this information is a portion of the books and records from which Seller's complete and consolidated audited financial statements are prepared.

Section 3.16 Absence of Certain Changes. Except as set forth on <u>Schedule 3.16</u>, from December 31, 2016, Seller has operated the Business, including the Acquired Assets, in all material respects in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices. Since December 31, 2016, there has not occurred any set of circumstances individually or in the aggregate that has or could be reasonably expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 3.17 Real Property.

- (a) <u>Schedule 2.1(a)</u> lists all of the Sites used by Seller in connection with Seller's operation of the Business.
- (b) Seller has exclusive possession of all Sites and Facilities necessary or desirable for the operation of each Facility and the Business except for (A) the rights of others in accordance with Permitted Liens; (B) such possession which would not materially deny, diminish, restrict or interfere with the Seller's or, after Closing, Buyer's right to use, operate, and maintain the Sites and Facilities as currently operated; and (C) as otherwise noted on <u>Schedule</u> 2.1(a).
- (c) Except for Permitted Liens or as set forth on <u>Schedule 2.1(a)</u> or <u>Schedule 2.1(e)</u>, (i) with respect to each Site and Facility, Seller has not leased or otherwise granted any Person the right to use or occupy such Property or any material portion thereof that is still in effect and (ii) Seller has not granted any outstanding options, rights of first refusal, rights of first offer, rights of reverter or other third party rights to purchase any of the Property. To Seller's Knowledge, except for Permitted Liens, there are no unrecorded Liens, easements, restrictions, covenants, licenses or other matters affecting the Property.
- (d) <u>Schedule 2.1(a)</u>, <u>Schedule 2.1(b)</u>, <u>Schedule 2.1(e)</u> and the Easement Plans set forth a complete list of all leases, easements and access agreements used by Seller in the conduct of the Business (the "**Real Property Agreements**"). Except as set forth in such schedules and Easement Plans, each Real Property Agreement is in full force and effect in all material respects and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of Seller and, to Seller's Knowledge, of the other parties thereto.
- (e) Except as set forth on <u>Schedule 3.17(e)</u>, Seller is not in breach or default in any material respect under any Real Property Agreement, and to Seller's Knowledge, no other party to any of the Real Property Agreement is in breach or default in any material respect thereunder
- (f) Except for Permitted Liens or as otherwise set forth on <u>Schedule 3.17(f)</u>, Seller has not subleased or otherwise granted to any Person the right to use or occupy any property leased under any Real Property Agreements.

Attachment 2 Page 50 of 159

- (g) Seller has good and valid rights in the Real Property Agreements to which it is a party, free and clear of Liens, except Permitted Liens.
- (h) All Sites and Facilities have access to and use of such public utilities as are necessary for the operation of the Business as currently conducted by Seller and no public utility has, to Seller's Knowledge, threatened to discontinue or curtail such services.
- **Section 3.18 Regulatory Status**. Seller is a "public utility" under New Hampshire RSA 362:2 and is subject to regulation as such by the NHPUC. Seller is an "electric utility company" that is a "subsidiary company" of a "holding company" which is registered under (and as those terms are defined in) the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 2005, is a "public utility" under (and as that term is defined in) the Federal Power Act, and is subject to regulation as such by FERC. Except as set forth on <u>Schedule 3.18</u>, each Facility is registered with NERC.
- **Section 3.19 Brokers**. Except for the fees and expenses of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, for which Seller is solely responsible, Seller does not have any Liability to pay fees or commissions to any broker, finder or agent with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Related Agreements for which Buyer could become liable or obligated.
- **Section 3.20 Complete Copies**. True and complete copies of the Material Contracts, the Assigned Leases, the Transferable Permits and the Generation CBA have been Made Available to Buyer.

Section 3.21 Capacity Markets; Winter Reliability Program.

- (a) <u>Schedule 3.21(a)</u> sets forth for each Facility its (i) Capacity Supply Obligations and Qualified Capacity with respect to the Facility as established by ISO-NE for each Capacity Commitment Period associated with any of Forward Capacity Auctions #8, #9, #10, and #11, in each case after accounting for any reconfiguration auctions, bilateral transactions, or other adjustments; (ii) all information with respect to any de-list bids submitted to ISO-NE with respect to the Facility in connection with any Forward Capacity Auctions for which Capacity Supply Obligations have not yet been awarded; and (iii) for each Capacity Commitment Period associated with any of Forward Capacity Auctions #7, #8, #9, #10, and #11 the summer and winter Seasonal Claimed Capabilities and Capacity Network Resource Capabilities of the Facility as formally recognized or determined by ISO-NE and the instrument used to identify Capacity Network Resource Capability. For purposes of this <u>Section 3.21(a)</u>, capitalized terms used in this subsection but not defined in this Agreement have the meaning given them in the ISO-NE Tariff.
- (b) Except as set forth on <u>Schedule 3.21(b)</u>, the capacity allocated to any Capacity Supply Obligations and any revenues expected from ISO-NE therefrom have not been pledged, encumbered or committed by Seller, except for any pledge, encumbrance or commitment that will be released at or prior to Closing.
- (c) Except as set forth on <u>Schedule 3.21(c)</u>, Seller has not received written notice or, to Seller's Knowledge, other notice, from ISO-NE of a Qualified Capacity Reduction.

Attachment 2 Page 51 of 159

(d) Schedule 3.21(d) sets forth for each Facility the obligations undertaken with respect to ISO-NE's 2017-18 Winter Reliability Program and the anticipated revenue from such undertaking, as reflected by any notifications, awards or orders from ISO-NE or FERC regarding the nature of such obligations or any anticipated revenue therefrom. Seller has received no written notice or, to Seller's Knowledge, other notice, from ISO-NE determining that any revenue set forth on Schedule 3.21(d) will be reduced, except as according to the rules of Appendix K of Section III of the ISO New England Transmission, Markets and Services Tariff, including its Performance Adjustment.

Section 3.22 Exclusive Representations and Warranties. It is the explicit intent of each Party hereto that Seller is not making any representation or warranty whatsoever, express or implied, respecting the Business, the Acquired Assets, the Assumed Liabilities or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements, except those representations and warranties expressly set forth in this <u>Article III</u>, the Related Agreements or under any certificates delivered by Seller in connection with the Closing.

ARTICLE IV REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BUYER

Buyer represents and warrants to Seller that the statements contained in this <u>Article IV</u> are true and correct as of the Effective Date.

Section 4.1 Organization and Existence. Buyer is a limited liability company duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of the State of Delaware. Buyer is duly qualified or authorized to do business in each other jurisdiction where the actions to be performed hereunder make such qualification or authorization necessary.

Section 4.2 **Authority and Enforceability**. Buyer has the limited liability company power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and the Related Agreements to which it is a party, to perform its obligations hereunder and thereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. All limited liability company actions or proceedings to be taken by or on the part of Buyer to authorize and permit the due execution and valid delivery by Buyer of this Agreement and the Related Agreements to which it is a party, the performance by Buyer of its obligations hereunder and thereunder, and the consummation by Buyer of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly and properly taken. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by Buyer and, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by Seller, constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of Buyer, enforceable against Buyer in accordance with its terms and conditions, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance or other similar Laws relating to creditors' rights generally and general principles of equity, whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law. When each Related Agreement to which Buyer is a party has been duly executed and delivered by Buyer, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by each other party thereto, such Related Agreement will constitute the valid and legally binding obligation of Buyer, enforceable against Buyer in accordance with its terms and conditions, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance or other similar Laws relating to creditors'

Attachment 2 Page 52 of 159

rights generally and general principles of equity, whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.

- **Section 4.3 Noncontravention**. The execution and delivery by Buyer of this Agreement and the Related Agreements to which it is or will be a party do not and will not, the performance by Buyer of its obligations hereunder and thereunder will not, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby will not:
- (a) Conflict with or result in a violation or breach of any of the terms, conditions or provisions of the Organizational Documents of Buyer;
- (b) Conflict with, result in a breach of, constitute a default under, result in the acceleration of, or create in any Person the right to accelerate, terminate, modify, revoke, suspend or cancel (with or without giving of notice, the lapse of time or both), any Contract to which Buyer is bound or to which any of its assets is subject, except as would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on Buyer's ability to perform its obligations hereunder; or
- (c) Assuming all of the Consents of the Governmental Authorities set forth on Schedule 4.3(c) (the "Buyer Required Consents") have been obtained in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Buyer, (i) conflict with or result in a violation or breach of any Law, Order or Permit to which Buyer or any of its assets is subject, or (ii) require the Consent of any Governmental Authority under any applicable Law; except, in the case of each of clauses (i) and (ii), as would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on Buyer's ability to perform its obligations hereunder.
- **Section 4.4 Legal Proceedings**. Buyer has not been served with notice of any Claim and no Claim is pending or, to Buyer's knowledge, threatened, against Buyer (a) that seeks an Order restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting or making illegal any of the transactions contemplated hereby or (b) that would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on Buyer's ability to perform its obligations hereunder. Buyer is not bound by any Order that prohibits the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or that would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on Buyer's ability to perform its obligations hereunder.
- **Section 4.5 Compliance with Laws**. Buyer is not in violation of any Law applicable to Buyer or its assets the effect of which, individually or in the aggregate, would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on Buyer's ability to perform its obligations hereunder.
- **Section 4.6 Brokers**. Except for the fees and expenses of Guggenheim Securities, LLC, for which Buyer is solely responsible, neither Buyer nor any of its Affiliates has any Liability to pay fees or commissions to any broker, finder or agent with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement for which Seller or its Affiliates could become liable or obligated.
- **Section 4.7** Availability of Funds. Buyer has, and at the Closing will have, (a) cash on hand or other sources of immediately available funds in amounts sufficient to pay the full amount of the Purchase Price as well as any related fees, costs and expenses incurred by Buyer in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, and (b) the resources and capabilities

Attachment 2 Page 53 of 159

(financial or otherwise) to perform its obligations (including the Assumed Liabilities) under this Agreement and any Related Agreements. Buyer acknowledges and agrees that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, its obligation to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby is not subject to Buyer or any of its Affiliates obtaining any financing, or to any other contingency or condition respecting financing or availability of funds.

Section 4.8 Qualified Buyer. Buyer is qualified to obtain any Permits necessary for Buyer to own and operate the Acquired Assets as of the Closing, to the extent such operation is either required by any Related Agreement or this Agreement, or is contemplated by Buyer.

Section 4.9 Governmental Approvals. As of the Effective Date, neither Buyer nor any of its Affiliates is a party to any Contract respecting the construction, development, acquisition, ownership or operation of any power facility or related asset that would reasonably be expected to cause a delay in any Governmental Authority's granting of a Buyer Required Consent or Seller Required Consent, and neither Buyer nor any of its Affiliates has any plans or has engaged in any discussions to enter into any such Contract prior to the Closing Date.

Section 4.10 WARN Act. Buyer does not intend, with respect to the Acquired Assets or Transferred Employees, to engage in a "plant closing" or "mass layoff," as such terms are defined in the WARN Act, within sixty (60) days after the Closing Date.

Section 4.11 Independent Investigation. Buyer is a sophisticated Person, knowledgeable about the industry in which Seller operates, experienced in investments in such businesses, and able to bear the economic risks associated with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements. Buyer has such knowledge and experience as to be aware of the risks and uncertainties inherent in the acquisition of the Acquired Assets, the assumption of the Assumed Liabilities, and the rights and obligations of the type contemplated in this Agreement. Buyer has conducted to its satisfaction, independently and without reliance on Seller or its Representatives (except to the extent that Buyer has relied on the representations and warranties of Seller set forth in Article III hereof), its own investigation, review and analysis of the Facilities, the Acquired Assets and the Assumed Liabilities, and based on such investigation, review and analysis, has formed an independent judgment concerning the assets, Liabilities, condition, operations and prospects of the Acquired Assets and the ownership and operation thereof. In making its decision to execute this Agreement and the Related Agreements and to enter into the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. Buyer has relied and will rely solely upon the results of such independent investigation, review and analysis and the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Related Agreements. Buyer acknowledges that it has had reasonable and sufficient access to the Facilities, the Acquired Assets and documents and other information and materials in connection therewith, that all documents and other information and materials requested by Buyer have been provided to Buyer to its satisfaction, and that it and its Representatives have had the opportunity to meet with the personnel and Representatives of Seller to discuss and ask questions concerning the foregoing.

Section 4.12 Disclaimer Regarding Projections. Buyer may be in possession of certain plans, projections and other forecasts regarding the Acquired Assets and the Assumed Liabilities, including estimates, budgets of future revenues, expenses or expenditures, projections of future results of operations (or any component thereof), future cash flows (or any component thereof)

Attachment 2 Page 54 of 159

or future financial condition (or any component thereof). Buyer acknowledges that there are substantial uncertainties inherent in attempting to make such plans, projections and other forecasts, that Buyer is familiar with such uncertainties, that Buyer is taking full responsibility for making its own independent evaluation of the adequacy and accuracy of all plans, projections and other forecasts so furnished to it, and that Buyer shall have no claim against Seller, its Affiliates or their respective Representatives with respect thereto. Accordingly, Buyer acknowledges that without limiting the generality of this Section 4.12, neither Seller nor any of its Affiliates has made any representation or warranty with respect to such plans, projections or other forecasts.

ARTICLE V COVENANTS

Section 5.1 Closing Conditions. From the Effective Date until the Closing (the "Interim Period"), subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, each Party shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to take such actions as are necessary, proper or advisable in order to expeditiously consummate and make effective the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements (including satisfaction, but not waiver, of those closing conditions set forth in Article VI).

Section 5.2 Notices, Consents; Approvals and Related Agreements. During the Interim Period:

- Subject to Section 5.2(c), during the Interim Period, each Party will and (a) will cause its respective applicable Affiliates to, in order to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements, provide reasonable cooperation to the other Party, and proceed diligently and in good faith and use all commercially reasonable efforts, as promptly as practicable, to (i) obtain the Buyer Required Consents and the Seller Required Consents, (ii) make all required filings with, and give all required notices to, the applicable Governmental Authorities or other Persons required to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements, and (iii) cooperate in good faith with the applicable Governmental Authorities or other Persons and promptly provide such other information and communications to such Governmental Authorities or other Persons as such Governmental Authorities or other Persons may reasonably request in connection with the foregoing. The Parties will provide prompt notification to each other when any such Consent referred to in this Section 5.2(a) is obtained, taken, made, given or denied, as applicable, and will, subject to Section 5.2(b), promptly advise each other of any material communications (in oral or written form) with any Governmental Authority or other Person regarding any of the transactions contemplated under this Agreement or the Related Agreements. Each Party will pay any fees and expenses associated with obtaining any Consent from a Governmental Authority as may be imposed by applicable Law, provided that if applicable Law does not impose the fees or expenses on a Party, the Parties shall equally share the cost of such fees or expenses.
 - (b) In furtherance of the covenants set forth in Section 5.2(a):
 - (i) As soon as practicable following the Effective Date, Buyer and Seller shall prepare all necessary filings in connection with the transactions contemplated

Attachment 2 Page 55 of 159

by this Agreement and the Related Agreements that may be required to be filed by such Party with applicable Governmental Authorities or under any applicable Laws. Such filings shall be submitted as soon as practicable following the Effective Date, but in no event later than thirty (30) days thereafter (subject to extension by mutual written agreement). The Parties shall (A) request expedited treatment of any such filings (where applicable), (B) subject to applicable Law and the instructions of any Governmental Authority, keep each other apprised of the status of matters relating to such filings, including by promptly furnishing each other with copies of any notices, correspondence or other written communication from the relevant Governmental Authority, (C) promptly make any appropriate or necessary subsequent or supplemental filings, submissions or responses to any Governmental Authority, and (D) cooperate in the preparation of such filings, submissions or responses as is reasonably necessary and appropriate, including by making available to the other Party such information as the other Party may reasonably request in order to complete such filings or respond to information requests by any Governmental Authority. Prior to making any material filing, submission, response or other communication to any Governmental Authority (or members of their respective staffs) in oral or written form, each Party will permit the other Party (or its counsel) a reasonable opportunity to review and provide comments on such proposed filing, submission, response or other communication, and will consult with and consider in good faith the views of the other Party in connection therewith. Each Party will consult with the other Party in advance of any material meeting or conference (in person or by telephone) with any such Governmental Authority, and to the extent not prohibited by Law or such Governmental Authority, give the other Party the opportunity to attend and to participate in such meetings and conferences. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither Buyer nor Seller shall be obligated to share any information, filing, submission or response with the other Party if a Governmental Authority objects to the sharing of such information, filing, submission or response or if prohibited by applicable Law.

- (ii) The Parties shall not, and shall cause their respective Affiliates not to, take any action that would reasonably be expected to materially adversely affect or delay the Consent of any Governmental Authority with respect to any of the filings referred to in Section 5.2(a) or with respect to the divestiture of the Hydro Business.
- (iii) Except as set forth in <u>Section 9.1</u> or as otherwise set forth in this <u>Section 5.2</u>, each Party shall bear its own fees, costs and all other expenses (including filing fees, transfer fees, legal fees and other filing preparation costs) associated with any Consents or other actions contemplated by this <u>Section 5.2</u> in connection with or otherwise related to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements.
- (c) In addition to the covenants set forth in Section 5.2(a) and Section 5.2(b), Buyer shall undertake promptly any and all actions required to complete lawfully the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements prior to the Outside Date, including by (i) responding to and complying with, as promptly as reasonably practicable, any request for information or documentary material regarding such transactions from any relevant Governmental Authority (including responding to any "second request" for additional information or documentary material under the HSR Act as promptly as reasonably practicable),

Attachment 2 Page 56 of 159

- (ii) causing the prompt expiration or termination (including requesting early termination and/or approvals thereof) of any applicable waiting period and clearance or approval by any relevant Governmental Authority, including defense against, and the resolution of, any objections or challenges, in court or otherwise, by any relevant Governmental Authority or other Person preventing consummation of such transactions, and (iii) making any necessary post-Closing filing or proffering and consenting to an Order providing for the sale or other disposition, or the holding separate, of particular assets, categories of assets or lines of business, including the Acquired Assets or any other assets or lines of business of Buyer or any of its Affiliates, in order to mitigate or otherwise remedy any requirements of, or concerns of, any Governmental Authority, or proffering and consenting to any other restriction, prohibition or limitation on any of the Acquired Assets, or on Buyer or any of Buyer's Affiliates or any of their respective assets, in order to mitigate or remedy such requirements or concerns. The entry by any Governmental Authority in any legal proceeding of an Order permitting the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and/or any of the Related Agreements but which is subject to certain conditions or requires Buyer or any of its Affiliates to take any action, including any restructuring of the Acquired Assets or lines of business of Buyer or any of its Affiliates or any changes to the existing business of Buyer or any of its Affiliates, shall not be deemed a failure to satisfy the conditions specified in Article VI. For the avoidance of doubt, Buyer shall not take any action with respect to its obligations under this Section 5.2(c) which would bind Seller or any of its Affiliates irrespective of whether the transactions contemplated hereby occur. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, neither Buyer nor any of its Affiliates will have any obligation to (x) accept any material condition or requirement of any Consent that is not already imposed on Seller, (y) divest itself of any assets, whether tangible or intangible, or any portion of any of its or its Affiliates businesses in order to obtain any Consent required in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or any Related Agreement, or (z) take or refrain from taking any action that could result in a Material Adverse Effect.
- (d) Buyer further agrees that neither it nor any of its Affiliates shall, prior to Closing, enter into any other Contract to acquire or market or control the output of, nor acquire or market or control the output of, electric generating facilities or uncommitted generation capacity in the ISO-NE market if the proposed acquisition or ability to market or control output of such additional electric generating facilities or uncommitted generation capacity in such market could reasonably be expected to increase the market power attributable to Buyer and its Affiliates in such market in a manner materially adverse to approval of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements or that would reasonably be expected to prevent or otherwise materially interfere with, or materially delay the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.
- (e) During the Interim Period, Buyer and Seller shall cooperate and use their commercially reasonable efforts to secure the transfer or reissuance of the Transferable Permits to Buyer (including obtaining any necessary Consents thereto), or the substitution of Buyer for Seller where appropriate on pending applications for such Transferable Permits or renewals thereof, effective as of the Closing Date. If the Parties are unable to secure the transfer, reissuance or substitution respecting one or more Transferable Permits effective as of the Closing Date, Seller shall continue to reasonably cooperate with Buyer's efforts to secure such transfer, reissuance or substitution following the Closing Date. Each Party agrees that it will accept the

Attachment 2 Page 57 of 159

terms of all Transferable Permits as existing on the Effective Date relating to the operation of the Acquired Assets, and that it will not seek to amend any of such terms in connection with filings with Governmental Authorities relating to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements, other than as necessary to effect the transfer or reissuance thereof to Buyer. In addition, with respect to any Transferable Permits for which the date for renewal will have passed by the Closing Date, Seller and Buyer shall cooperate to file by the Closing Date all applications with Governmental Authorities necessary to renew such Transferable Permits in a timely fashion without any material modifications to the terms thereof, except by agreement of the Parties, as may be required by applicable Law or to effect the renewal of such Permit in the name of Buyer. Nothing in this Section 5.2(e), however, shall prohibit Buyer or Seller from appealing the terms of any Permit that is issued or renewed following the Effective Date, with respect to which the Parties shall cooperate in good faith.

(f) Promptly after the Effective Date and during the Interim Period, Buyer and Seller will in good faith negotiate the terms and conditions of the Related Agreements to implement the transactions contemplated by this Agreement with the intention that the forms are each in final form on or before the sixtieth (60th) day after the Effective Date; *provided, however*, that the final Easement and Easement Plan for the White Lake Site shall be finalized as soon as reasonably practicable in light of the subdivision of the White Lake Site currently in progress, but in all events prior to the Closing Date; and *provided further*, the Interconnection Agreements and related arrangements will satisfy all reasonable requirements of Buyer for purposes of supplying energy, capacity and ancillary services to the ISO-NE market without incurring any local network service charges for transmission, except as set forth in Schedule 3.7(b-1), and without the need for modifications to the transmission system unless, in each case, expressly approved in writing by Buyer.

Section 5.3 Assigned Contracts; Other Interim Covenants.

- (a) During the Interim Period, Buyer and Seller shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all required Consents to the assignment to Buyer of the Assigned Contracts from the applicable counterparties thereto (each, a "Counterparty"), effective as of the Closing Date, in accordance with the following:
 - (i) Seller shall have primary responsibility for obtaining all necessary Consents to the assignment of Material Contracts, *provided* that Buyer shall cooperate with Seller's efforts in this regard and shall use commercially reasonable efforts to assist Seller when so requested by Seller. Seller shall have primary responsibility for obtaining all necessary Consents to the assignment of Other Assigned Contracts, and in furtherance thereof, to the maximum extent permitted by Law and each applicable Other Assigned Contract, Seller appoints Buyer as Seller's agent to obtain all required Consents of any Counterparty to each of the Other Assigned Contracts for the assignment thereof to Buyer effective as of the Closing Date, which Seller shall pursue, using commercially reasonable efforts, in accordance with a mutually agreed protocol and form letters to be sent to such Counterparties.
 - (ii) To the extent that any Assigned Contract relates to assets or services that are both used in the operations of one or more Facilities and used by Seller in

Attachment 2 Page 58 of 159

its other operations, the Parties shall cooperate and use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the required Consent for any partial assignment, apportionment or other arrangement as may be necessary or practicable to permit Buyer to obtain such portion of assets or services necessary for the continued operation of such Facilities on and after the Closing Date, and to permit Seller to retain such other rights or portion of the assets or services to continue its operations on and after the Closing Date, it being understood that the portion of each such Assigned Contract relating to Buyer's continued operation of such Facilities on and after the Closing Date must be assigned to Buyer as of the Closing.

- (iii) Seller shall reasonably cooperate with Buyer in providing any notices to Counterparties as may be required by the terms of any Assigned Contract or as Buyer (acting reasonably) may deem necessary or advisable, including notices providing Counterparties with updated notice information and updated bank account information to which any applicable payments should be made by such Counterparties. Buyer shall, where necessary, enter into a master agreement or similar enabling agreement with any Counterparty, on substantially the same terms as those in place on the Effective Date in a master or enabling agreement between Seller and such Counterparty, in connection with the assignment to Buyer of one or more purchase orders or similar Contracts subject to such master agreement or enabling agreement with Seller.
- (iv) For the avoidance of doubt, it is specifically acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that neither Party shall be obligated to incur, pay, reimburse or provide or cause any of their respective Affiliates to incur, pay, reimburse or provide, any liability, compensation, consideration or charge to obtain the Consent of any Counterparty to the assignment of any Assigned Contract, unless any such liability, compensation, consideration or charge is expressly contemplated by any such Assigned Contract, in which case Seller shall incur the liability or make any such payment or charge.
- To the extent that Seller's rights under any Contract included as an Acquired Asset may not be assigned without the Consent of another Person, and such Consent has not been obtained by the Closing, this Agreement shall not constitute an agreement to assign the same if an attempted assignment would constitute a breach thereof or be unlawful or ineffective (or would otherwise impair Buyer's rights and obligations thereunder), and such Contract shall not be so assigned at the Closing (such non-assigned Contracts, the "Non-Assigned Contracts"). Seller and Buyer shall continue to comply with their obligations under this Section 5.3(a) to the extent and for so long as the applicable Non-Assigned Contract shall not have been assigned to Buyer (and Seller, to the maximum extent permitted by Law and such Non-Assigned Contract, shall appoint Buyer to be Seller's agent with respect to such Non-Assigned Contract for the purpose of obtaining an assignment thereof to Buyer); provided that neither Seller nor Buyer shall have any obligation to offer or pay any consideration in order to obtain any such Consent to assignment; provided, further, that Buyer and Seller shall use their commercially reasonable efforts, to the maximum extent permitted by Law and such Non-Assigned Contract, to enter into one or more back-to-back Contracts, or such other reasonable arrangements, that would place Buyer in the same or a substantially similar position and provide Buyer the same or substantially similar rights, privileges, liabilities, benefits and

Attachment 2
Page 59 of 159

obligations, in each case, as if such Non-Assigned Contract had been assigned to Buyer as of the Closing.

- During the Interim Period, Buyer and Seller shall use commercially (b) reasonable efforts to obtain all required Consents to the assignment to Buyer of any warranty described in Section 2.1(c), effective as of the Closing Date. To the extent that Seller's rights under any such warranty may not be assigned without the Consent of another Person, and such Consent has not been obtained by the Closing, this Agreement shall not constitute an agreement to assign the same if an attempted assignment would constitute a breach thereof or be unlawful or ineffective (or would otherwise impair Buyer's rights and obligations thereunder), and such warranty shall not be so assigned at the Closing. Seller and Buyer shall continue to comply with their obligations under this Section 5.3(b) to the extent and for so long as the applicable warranty shall not have been assigned to Buyer, and Seller, to the maximum extent permitted by Law and such warranty, shall from and after the Closing, appoint Buyer to be Seller's agent for the purpose of enforcing such warranty so as to the maximum extent possible to provide Buyer with the rights and obligations of such warranty. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Seller shall not be obligated to bring or file suit against any Third Party; provided that if Seller shall determine not to bring or file suit after being requested by Buyer to do so, Seller shall, to the maximum extent permitted by Law or any applicable Contract, enter into such reasonable arrangements with Buyer so that Buyer may bring or file such suit with respect to the rights of Seller.
- (c) In connection with Seller's assignment to Buyer of the Trust Agreement, dated as of April 7, 2017, between Seller and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, respecting the coal ash landfill located at Merrimack Station (the "Merrimack Landfill Trust"), Buyer shall, in conjunction with Seller's written notice of assignment to be provided to such trustee in accordance therewith, promptly satisfy the information and documentation requirements set forth in Section 15 of the letter agreement between Seller and such trustee, also dated April 7, 2017, executed in connection with such Trust Agreement.
- (d) The Parties will cooperate in good faith from and after the Closing if any Acquired Asset requires Buyer to provide credit support in any form for the benefit of a Third Party, and to further release Seller from any credit support provided in connection with any Acquired Asset.
- (e) To the extent that Seller's rights under any Contract included as an Acquired Asset may not be assigned without the Consent of another Person, and such Consent has not been obtained by the Closing, this Agreement shall not constitute an agreement to assign the same if an attempted assignment would constitute a breach thereof or be unlawful or ineffective (or would otherwise impair Buyer's rights and obligations thereunder), and such Contract shall not be so assigned at the Closing. To the extent Buyer elects to proceed to Closing without obtaining Consent regarding any Non-Assigned Contracts, Buyer will not be deemed to have waived any such requirement for Consent and Seller will take all commercially reasonable actions requested by Buyer to obtain such Consent after the Closing or to otherwise transfer to Buyer the benefit of such Non-Assigned Contract. If any such Consent shall not be obtained or if any attempted assignment would be ineffective or would impair Buyer's rights under the Non-Assigned Contract in question so that Buyer would not in effect acquire the benefit of all such rights, Seller, to the maximum extent permitted by Law and the Non-Assigned

Attachment 2 Page 60 of 159

Contract, shall act after the Closing as Buyer's agent in order to obtain for it the benefits thereunder and shall cooperate, to the maximum extent permitted by Law and the Non-Assigned Contract, with Buyer in any other reasonable arrangement designed to provide such benefits to Buyer. In addition to the foregoing, to the extent any Material Contract that is currently used in both the Hydro Business and the Business is not assigned to Buyer at the Closing and is assigned to any purchaser of all or any portion of the Hydro Business, Seller will obtain such benefits with the same counterparty for Buyer at the same costs as set forth in any such Contract.

Section 5.4 Access of Buyer and Seller.

(a) During the Interim Period, Seller will provide Buyer and its Representatives with reasonable access, upon reasonable prior notice and during normal business hours, to the Facilities, the Scheduled Employees and all information related to the Acquired Assets, the Scheduled Employees and the Assumed Liabilities in possession of Seller and its Affiliates (including, subject to the receipt of any required Consents and in accordance with applicable Law, such information and records respecting the Scheduled Employees as Buyer reasonably deems necessary to comply with its obligations under this Agreement), and to the Representatives of Seller who have significant responsibility with respect thereto, in each case, as reasonably requested by Buyer in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, but only to the extent that such access does not unreasonably interfere with the operation of the Facilities or the other business or operations of Seller or its Affiliates, and subject to compliance with applicable Laws and Permits; provided, that Seller shall have the right to have its Representatives present for any communication with the Scheduled Employees, or any other employees or officers of Seller or its Affiliates, and to impose reasonable restrictions and requirements for safety purposes. In connection with and subject to the limitations set forth in the foregoing, during the Interim Period, (i) Seller shall permit Buyer and its Representatives to make such reasonable inspections of the Sites as Buyer may reasonably request (and Buyer shall be entitled, at its expense, to have the Sites surveyed and to conduct non-invasive physical inspections thereof), and (ii) Buyer shall be entitled to perform Phase I environmental studies or environmental site assessments of the Acquired Assets at Buyer's cost and upon notice to and in cooperation with Seller, utilizing an environmental firm reasonably acceptable to Buyer and Seller to update any or all of the existing Phase I environmental assessments posted to the Data Site, with Buyer and Seller as the identified users of the updated Phase I environmental assessments, and Buyer shall promptly furnish Seller with a copy of any such updates; provided, however, that during the Interim Period Buyer shall not be entitled to perform any Phase II environmental site assessments or invasive environmental studies. Seller shall furnish Buyer with a copy of each material report, schedule or other document filed or received by Seller or its Affiliates with or from a Governmental Authority with respect to the Acquired Assets during the Interim Period. During the Interim Period and following Closing, with respect to Environmental Liabilities that constitute Excluded Environmental Liabilities, Seller agrees to provide to Buyer draft copies of all plans, studies and reports prepared after the Effective Date in connection with any site investigation or Remediation related to the Acquired Assets (including with regard to its obligations under Section 2.4(i)(A) and Section 2.4(i)(B)) and, during the Interim Period, Seller further agrees to provide to Buyer draft copies of any Environmental Permit renewal or modification applications related to the Acquired Assets, in each case prior to their submission to the Governmental Authority with jurisdiction under Environmental Laws. Further, Buyer shall have the right,

Attachment 2 Page 61 of 159

without the obligation, to attend all meetings between Seller, its Representatives, and such Governmental Authorities with respect to matters that constitute Excluded Environmental Liabilities or are related to Environmental Permit renewals or modifications. Notwithstanding the foregoing, and without limiting the generality of the confidentiality provisions set forth in this Agreement, the Confidentiality Agreements or any Related Agreement, Seller shall not be required to provide any information or access to any Facilities (A) which Seller reasonably believes it is prohibited from providing to Buyer by reason of any applicable Law or Permit, (B) which, if provided to Buyer, could constitute a waiver by Seller of the attorney-client privilege in respect of such information, (C) which Seller is required to keep confidential or prevent access to by reason of a Contract with a Third Party, or (D) relating to any potential sale of the Acquired Assets, or any other generating facilities of Seller, to any other Person; *provided, however*, that the Parties will, to the extent legally permissible, reasonably necessary and practicable, use commercially reasonable efforts to make appropriate substitute disclosure arrangements, or seek appropriate waivers or consents, under circumstances in which the foregoing restrictions of this sentence apply.

- (b) During the Interim Period, upon reasonable prior request of Buyer and at Buyer's sole cost and expense, Seller will permit designated employees or Representatives of Buyer ("**Buyer's Observers**") to observe all operations of Seller related to the Facilities, with such observation permitted on a cooperative basis in the presence of personnel of Seller during normal daytime business hours of Seller; *provided, however*, that Buyer's Observers shall not unreasonably interfere with the operation of the Facilities by Seller or the other business or operations of Seller or its Affiliates.
- (c) Buyer shall not be permitted during the Interim Period to contact any of Seller's vendors, customers or suppliers, or any Governmental Authorities (except, in accordance with Section 5.2 or Section 5.3, in connection with Consents to be obtained in connection with this Agreement or any Related Agreement), regarding the operations or regulatory status of Seller or with respect to the transactions contemplated under this Agreement or the Related Agreements without receiving prior written authorization from Seller (not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed); *provided*, that nothing in this Section 5.4(c) shall be construed to restrict Buyer or its Affiliates from contacting any Person to the extent the subject of such communications is not related to this Agreement or any Related Agreement, or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby.
- (d) Buyer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Seller, its Affiliates and their Representatives for any and all Losses incurred by Seller, its Affiliates or their Representatives arising out of any exercise of the access rights under this Section 5.4, including any Claims by any of Buyer's Representatives for any injuries or property damage while present at the Facilities, except in cases of Seller's or its Representatives' willful misconduct.
- (e) On or as soon as reasonably practicable after the Closing Date (but in no event more than twenty (20) days thereafter), Seller shall deliver to Buyer all the Transferred Books and Records (to the extent not already located at the Facilities or otherwise Made Available to Buyer on or prior to the Closing), except as prohibited by applicable Law.

Attachment 2 Page 62 of 159

- (f) Following the Closing, Seller shall be entitled to retain copies (at Seller's sole cost and expense) of all books and records relating to its ownership or operation of the Acquired Assets and the Assumed Liabilities.
- After the Closing, Buyer will, and will cause its Representatives to, provide Seller and its Affiliates, including their respective Representatives, reasonable access to or copies of all books, records, files and documents to the extent they are related to the Acquired Assets or the Assumed Liabilities, and to periods ending prior to the Closing Date in order to permit Seller and its Affiliates and their respective Representatives to prepare and file their Tax Returns and to prepare for and participate in any investigation with respect thereto, to prepare for and participate in any other investigation and defend any Claims relating to or involving Seller or its Affiliates, to discharge its obligations under this Agreement, to comply with financial reporting requirements, and for other reasonable purposes, and will afford Seller and its Affiliates reasonable assistance in connection therewith at no cost to Seller. Buyer will cause such records to be maintained for not less than seven (7) years from the Closing Date and will not dispose of such records without first offering in writing to deliver them to Seller; provided, however, that in the event that Buyer transfers all or a portion of the Acquired Assets or the Assumed Liabilities to any Third Person during such period, Buyer may transfer to such Third Person all or a portion of the books, records, files and documents related thereto, provided such transferee expressly assumes in writing the obligations of Buyer under this Section 5.4(g).
- On and after the Closing Date, (i) at the request of either Party, the other (h) Party shall make available to such requesting Party, its Affiliates and their respective Representatives, those employees of the non-requesting Party or its Affiliates requested by such requesting Party in connection with any Claim, including to provide testimony, to be deposed, to act as witnesses and to assist counsel, and (ii) at the reasonable request of Seller, Seller shall have reasonable access to the Transferred Employees for a period of seven (7) years following the Closing Date, for purposes of consultation or otherwise, to the extent that such access may reasonably be required by Seller in connection with matters relating to or affected by the operations of Seller prior to the Closing; provided, however, that, in each case, (x) such access to such employees shall not unreasonably interfere with the normal conduct of the operations of the non-requesting Party, (y) the requesting Party shall pay and reimburse the non-requesting Party for the out-of-pocket costs reasonably incurred by the non-requesting Party in making such employees available, and (z) such assistance shall be provided insofar as the same may be provided without violating any Law or Permit, or waiving any attorney-client privilege, as determined in the reasonable opinion of counsel to the non-requesting Party.
- Section 5.5 Conduct of Business Pending the Closing. During the Interim Period, Seller will operate and maintain the Acquired Assets in the ordinary course of business consistent with Good Utility Practice, unless otherwise expressly contemplated by this Agreement or with the prior written consent of Buyer (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed). Good Utility Practice during the Interim Period shall include, but not be limited to, the following: to the extent Seller experiences a GADS Event, Seller will cure in accordance with Good Utility Practice the cause of such GADS Event for each Facility such that it reports in GADS as available an amount of capacity equal to or greater than each Facility's applicable Capacity Supply Obligation as of the Closing Date. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, except as otherwise expressly contemplated by this Agreement or as set forth in

Attachment 2 Page 63 of 159

<u>Schedule 5.5</u>, Seller shall not, without the prior written consent of the Buyer (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), during the Interim Period, with respect to the Acquired Assets or Assumed Liabilities:

- (a) Except for Acquired Assets used at or consumed by the Facilities in the ordinary course of business consistent with Good Utility Practice, and except for sales or dispositions of obsolete or surplus assets in connection with the normal repair or replacement of assets or properties, (i) sell, lease (as lessor), license (as licensor), transfer or otherwise dispose of any of the Acquired Assets, or (ii) encumber, pledge, mortgage or suffer to be imposed on any of the Acquired Assets any Lien other than Permitted Liens;
- (b) Make any material change in the levels of Inventories customarily maintained by the Seller with respect to the Acquired Assets, except for such changes that are consistent with Good Utility Practice, nor transfer, sell or otherwise acquire or dispose of any assets described in Section 2.1(c) except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices; provided, however, that Seller shall consult with Buyer with respect to the purchase of any fuel Inventory during the Interim Period, the terms of which purchase shall be subject to Buyer's prior written approval, not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; provided, further, that Seller shall consult with Buyer with respect to the purchase of any non-fuel Inventory during the Interim Period in excess of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$500,000) in the aggregate, the terms of which purchase shall be subject to Buyer's prior written approval, not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed;
- (i) Terminate, make any waiver under, extend, materially amend, or renew or replace any Material Contract, Assigned Lease or Transferable Permit, except in connection with transferring Seller's rights or obligations thereunder to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement; or (ii) enter into or commit to enter into any Contract that would be a Material Contract, in each case without the prior written consent of Buyer (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed). Except with the prior written consent of Buyer (which consent may be granted or withheld by Buyer in its sole discretion), Seller shall not enter into any Contract relating to the ownership or operation of the Acquired Assets or the operation of the Business, except for any Contract (w) entered into in the ordinary course of business that will be terminated or fully performed prior to the Closing (without assignment to, or any continuing Liability of, Buyer on or after the Closing), (x) that can be freely assigned to Buyer at the Closing and terminated by Buyer at its option at any time on or after the Closing without penalty or cancellation charge, (y) that can be freely assigned to Buyer at the Closing and that does not increase an Assumed Liability or which increases an Assumed Liability by an amount of Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$250,000) or less individually or One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) or less in the aggregate with other such Contracts, or (z) as may be required or permitted pursuant to Section 5.3 or to implement another provision of this Section 5.5, so long as such Contract can be freely assigned to Buyer at the Closing; provided that, during the Interim Period, Schedule 2.1(e), be amended to account for any Contract permitted under this Section 5.5(c);
- (d) Enter into, amend, or otherwise modify any real or personal property Tax agreement, treaty or settlement that would reasonably be expected to affect the Tax Liabilities of

Attachment 2 Page 64 of 159

Buyer or any of its Affiliates in a material manner for any taxable year or period ending after the Closing Date;

- (e) Make, or enter into any commitment to make, any capital expenditures relating to the Acquired Assets, Facilities or Sites, except for those capital expenditures or commitments necessitated by Good Utility Practice and which will be paid in full prior to the Closing, *provided that* if not paid in full prior to the Closing, not more than Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$250,000), in the aggregate, will be payable at any time from and after the Closing;
- (f) Increase the level of wages, compensation or other benefits of any Scheduled Employee, except as required pursuant to the Generation CBA or applicable Law or in accordance with Seller's ordinary course of business consistent with past practices; *provided, however*, that such increase shall not in the aggregate, together with any increases resulting from Seller's or its Affiliates' actions set forth in Section 5.5(g) below, exceed the greater of a three percent (3%) of the Scheduled Employees' wages or Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$250,000) annually;
- (g) Terminate the employment of any Scheduled Employee except for cause, or hire any employee who would be a Scheduled Employee (other than to replace or fill vacancies), in each case, other than as consistent with past practices, without first consulting with Buyer; *provided, however*, that any such hiring shall not, in the aggregate and, together with any increases resulting from Seller's or its Affiliates' actions set forth in Section 5.5(f) above, exceed Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$250,000) annually; *provided further*, that, during the Interim Period, Schedule 3.12(a) shall be amended to reflect any changes in the Scheduled Employees listed thereon that are permitted under this Section 5.5(g); or
- (h) Except as required by Law, agree to any amendment to or waiver of any term of the Generation CBA, or enter into any new collective bargaining agreement with respect to any Scheduled Employees.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Seller may take commercially reasonable actions with respect to emergency situations or as required by Law as reasonably determined by Seller and without Buyer's prior written consent, so long as Seller shall promptly inform Buyer upon taking any such action.

Section 5.6 Termination of Certain Services and Contracts; Transition Matters.

(a) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, at or prior to the Closing, Seller, subject to consultation with Buyer and Buyer's right to request modifications to the Schedules as set forth in Section 5.15(a), shall (i) terminate, effective upon the Closing, any services provided to any of the Facilities or with respect to the Acquired Assets by Seller, or by any Affiliate thereof under an Intercompany Arrangement, including the termination or severance of insurance policies with respect to coverage for any of the Facilities, Tax services, legal services and banking services (to include the severance of any centralized clearance accounts), other than any such services provided pursuant to the Transition Services Agreement and other than with respect to those Assigned Contracts set forth on Schedule 2.2(j) and (ii)

Attachment 2 Page 65 of 159

terminate each Contract designated by Buyer on Schedule 5.6(a), which Schedule will be finalized by the Parties acting in good faith within sixty (60) days and which does not result in a termination fee to Seller (such services or Contracts collectively, the "Terminated Contracts"). Within thirty (30) days of the Effective Date, Seller will provide Buyer a full and complete copy of each Contract used in connection with the operation of the Business that is not a Material Contract and is available for assumption at Closing by Buyer. Buyer will, acting reasonably and in good faith, determine which of such Contracts Buyer will assume at Closing. For avoidance of doubt, Buyer acknowledges and agrees that all insurance coverage with respect to the Acquired Assets, including those policies referred to in Section 3.9, shall be terminated as of the Closing, and that Buyer shall be solely responsible for providing insurance in respect of the Acquired Assets and for any claims made in connection with such insurance policies after the Closing but only for those claims relating to events or occurrences first occurring on and after the Closing Date.

- Eversource Services to, enter into an agreement with Buyer to provide, following Closing, those transition services respecting the Acquired Assets as, and for such periods of time, set forth on Schedule 5.6(b) (which schedule may be amended by mutual agreement of Buyer and Seller prior to Closing) at a price equal to the applicable Transition Service Cost Percentage of cost (as allocated in accordance with the same methodologies used for such allocations by Seller and its Affiliates in accordance with past practice); provided, however, the escalation provisions in the Transition Service Cost Percentage will be subject to negotiation and potential expansion of time periods during the Interim Period with respect to information technology services in accordance with the other terms and conditions set forth therein (the "Transition Services Agreement"). The Parties will agree upon any remaining terms and conditions of the Transition Services Agreement in a commercially reasonable manner as soon as practicable after the date hereof and in any event within sixty (60) days of the date hereof.
- (c) Within thirty (30) days after the date hereof, Buyer shall deliver to Seller a list of its proposed representatives to a joint transition team. Seller will add its representatives to such team within ten (10) Business Days after receipt of Buyer's list. Such team will be responsible for preparing as soon as reasonably practicable after the date hereof, and using commercially reasonable efforts to timely implement, a transition plan which will identify and describe substantially all of the various transition activities that the Parties will cause to occur before and after the Closing and any other transfer of control matters that any Party reasonably believes should be addressed in such transition plan. Buyer and Seller shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause their representatives on such transition team to cooperate in good faith and take reasonable steps necessary to develop a mutually acceptable transition plan no later than sixty (60) days after the date of this Agreement.
- Section 5.7 Seller Marks. Buyer acknowledges and agrees that as a result of the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, it will not obtain any right, title, interest, license or other right hereunder to use any of the Seller Marks. Prior to the Closing, Seller may remove any of the Seller Marks as it determines in its sole discretion. As soon as reasonably practicable but in no event more than one hundred eighty (180) days after the Closing Date, Buyer shall remove, cover or conceal from the Facilities or the Acquired Assets all of the Seller Marks, including signage at the Facilities, and shall dispose of any unused products,

Attachment 2 Page 66 of 159

signage, materials, stationery and literature bearing the Seller Marks remaining at the Facilities following the Closing; *provided* that Buyer shall, within ten (10) Business Days after the Closing Date, remove, cover or conceal the Seller Marks appearing on signage at the primary entrances of the Facilities. Thereafter, Buyer shall not use any Seller Mark or any name or term confusingly similar to any Seller Mark in connection with the sale of any products or services, in the corporate or doing business name of any of its Affiliates or otherwise in the conduct of its or any of its Affiliates' businesses or operations. In the event that Buyer breaches this Section 5.7, Seller shall be entitled to specific performance of this Section 5.7 and to injunctive relief against further violations, as well as any other remedies at law or in equity available to Seller.

Section 5.8 Employee Matters.

(a) <u>Settlement Agreement</u>. The Parties acknowledge and agree that under New Hampshire Law (New Hampshire RSA 369-B:3-b) and the Settlement Agreement, Affected Employees are entitled to certain employee protections that apply in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, including provisions requiring that Buyer undertake certain employee-related obligations as a condition to the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the covenants and agreements set forth in this <u>Section 5.8</u> are intended to implement the applicable employee protection provisions and requirements set forth under New Hampshire Law and in the Settlement Agreement and shall be interpreted consistently therewith.

(b) <u>Represented Transferred Employees</u>.

- Schedule 5.8(b)(i) sets forth the total number of Represented (i) Scheduled Employees (including all such Represented Scheduled Employees who are on inactive status due to any short-term disability, long-term disability or other approved leave) employed in each job classification at each Facility as of the Effective Date. Within twenty (20) days following the Effective Date, Buyer shall provide notice to Seller of the number of Represented Scheduled Employees by classification and Facility whom Buyer desires to hire. The Parties shall cooperate in good faith with the Union to identify, within fifteen (15) days after receipt of Buyer's notice pursuant to Section 5.8(k), in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Generation CBA and the Settlement Agreement, the particular Represented Scheduled Employees to whom Buyer shall offer employment pursuant to the terms of this Section 5.8 (the "Selected Represented Employees"). Within sixty (60) days following the date the Selected Represented Employees are identified, Buyer shall offer employment, commencing as of 12:01 a.m. Eastern time on the Closing Date, to all such Selected Represented Employees. Effective immediately before the commencement of employment by Buyer, Seller will terminate the employment of all such Selected Represented Employees who have accepted employment with the Buyer.
- (ii) All such offers of employment shall be (A) contingent upon the employee's satisfactory completion of background and drug tests to the extent permitted under the Generation CBA and applicable Law, (B) made in accordance with applicable Laws, the Generation CBA and the Settlement Agreement, and (C) otherwise on terms consistent with the provisions of this Section 5.8. Those employees who accept such offer

Attachment 2 Page 67 of 159

of employment are referred to herein as the "Represented Transferred Employees." Buyer shall, as soon as reasonably practicable and in no event more than twenty (20) days following the Effective Date, provide notice to the Union (x) that Buyer intends to recognize the Union, as of the Closing, as the collective bargaining representative for all Represented Transferred Employees, (y) that, subject to Section 5.8(e), Buyer agrees to become party to and bound by the terms of the Generation CBA as of the Closing with respect to the Represented Transferred Employees, and (z) that describes Buyer's plans regarding staffing by classification and operations of the Facilities.

(iii) On and after the Closing, Buyer shall, subject to <u>Section 5.8(e)</u>, comply with all applicable obligations under the Generation CBA with respect to the Represented Transferred Employees covered thereby.

(c) <u>Non-Represented Transferred Employees.</u>

- Buyer may interview some or all Non-Represented Scheduled (i) Employees listed in Schedule 3.12(a) to determine whether to make offers of employment. As of the Effective Date, Seller will provide Buyer reasonable access to the Facilities and shall make Non-Represented Scheduled Employees available to Buyer for purposes of conducting employment interviews. Within sixty (60) days following the Effective Date, Buyer shall offer employment to those Non-Represented Scheduled Employees listed in Schedule 3.12(a) whom Buyer desires to employ commencing as of 12:01 a.m. Eastern time on the Closing Date (the "Selected Non-Represented Employees"). All such offers of employment shall be contingent upon the employee's satisfactory completion of background and drug tests to the extent permitted under applicable Law, made in accordance with applicable Laws and otherwise on terms consistent with the provisions of this Section 5.8. Those Selected Non-Represented Employees who accept such offer of employment are referred to herein as the "Non-Represented Transferred Employees." Buyer will provide Seller a list of the Non-Represented Transferred Employees prior to the Closing. Effective immediately before Closing, Seller will terminate the employment of all Non-Represented Transferred Employees.
- (ii) The Parties acknowledge and agree that, pursuant to the Settlement Agreement and New Hampshire RSA 369-B:3-b, the Non-Represented Transferred Employees are entitled to employee protections no less than those set forth in the Generation CBA with respect to the Represented Transferred Employees. As required by the Settlement Agreement, Buyer shall, from and after Closing, assume and comply with those employee protection obligations with respect to the Non-Represented Transferred Employees as required by New Hampshire RSA 369-B:3-b as set forth in Section 5.8(c)(iii), Section 5.8(d), Section 5.8(e) and Section 5.8(g) herein.
- (iii) Continuing from Closing through no sooner than the end of the CBA Term, Buyer shall maintain an overall benefit package for the Non-Represented Transferred Employees that has an aggregate value at least as favorable as the overall benefit package provided to each such Non-Represented Transferred Employee immediately prior to the Closing and shall provide to each Non-Represented Transferred Employee vacation, holiday and sick leave benefits that are as favorable as such benefits

Attachment 2 Page 68 of 159

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017

provided to them immediately prior to Closing. Seller shall cooperate and consult in good faith with Buyer in structuring its proposed benefits during the Interim Period.

Service Credit. With respect to benefits accruing during the CBA Term, (d) Buyer shall recognize and apply each Transferred Employee's prior service with Seller toward any eligibility and vesting under the Employee Benefits Plans and other compensation arrangements of Buyer and, in the case of Represented Transferred Employees, any other plans established to provide benefits described in the Generation CBA and in the case of Non-Represented Transferred Employees in Seller's policies or plans, if any, that may become applicable to Non-Represented Transferred Employees. Buyer shall vest each Transferred Employee under the Employee Benefits Plans of Buyer to the extent such employee is vested under the Employee Benefits Plans of Seller (or its applicable Affiliates) immediately prior to the Closing, provided that all vacation, personal and sick days accrued by each Transferred Employee under the plans, policies, programs and arrangements of Seller (or its applicable Affiliates) immediately prior to the Closing shall not be a cost to Buyer, but shall be paid as provided in Section 5.8(f). Buyer shall waive all limitations with respect to preexisting conditions, exclusions based on health status and waiting periods with respect to participation and coverage requirements under Buyer's health and welfare plans. Except as provided in this Section 5.8(d), Seller shall be solely responsible for all Liabilities including any applicable termination pay, severance pay, accrued wages or salary, accrued bonus and/or incentive pay (whether or not such bonus or incentive compensation is subject to any continued service requirement), accrued vacation and sick time, as well as any other benefits, created or owing as a consequence of the employment on or before the Closing Date of any Transferred Employee, or the cessation of any Scheduled Employee's employment on or before the Closing Date, including (i) all Liabilities under any Employee Benefit Plan maintained by Seller and any Liabilities resulting from any deficiency in the administration or funding of any such plan, (ii) all claims for health care and other welfare benefits, including any workers' compensation claims, (iii) COBRA continuation coverage requirements, (iv) any and all Liabilities with respect to any employees who are not Transferred Employees, and (v) any and all Liabilities accruing from the CBA MOA.

(e) Pension and Retirement Benefits.

(i) Employees Participating in Seller's Defined Benefit Pension Plan.

- (A) As soon as practicable after the Effective Date, Buyer shall take all necessary and appropriate action to establish and maintain a tax qualified retirement plan ("Buyer's Retirement Plan") for Transferred Employees who currently participate in Seller's defined benefit pension plan in accordance with this Section 5.8(e). Seller shall cooperate and consult in good faith with Buyer in structuring Buyer's Retirement Plan during the Interim Period, and Seller shall further take commercially reasonable actions as are reasonably requested by Buyer to ensure compliance of the Buyer's Retirement Plan with the Settlement Agreement and the Generation CBA.
- (B) For purposes of this <u>Section 5.8(e)(i)</u>, the term "Combined **Minimum Pension Benefit**" means, for any such Transferred Employee, the

Attachment 2 Page 69 of 159

Transferred Employee's total pension benefit as calculated as of the earlier of (i) such Transferred Employee's retirement date and (ii) the end of the CBA Term, using (A) the pension benefit formula under the Eversource Pension Plan ("Seller's Pension Plan") applicable to such Transferred Employee as of the Closing Date, as adjusted to incorporate the provisions of the CBA MOA, (B) such Transferred Employee's final average earnings (as specified in Seller's Pension Plan) as of the earlier of (i) such Transferred Employee's retirement date and (ii) the end of the CBA Term, taking into account compensation earned from both Seller and Buyer, (C) such Transferred Employee's total years of service with both Seller (or its applicable Affiliates and predecessors) and Buyer as of the earlier of (i) such Transferred Employee's retirement date and (ii) the end of the CBA Term, and (D) covered compensation as of the earlier of (i) such Transferred Employee's retirement date and (ii) the end of the CBA Term.

- (C) For purposes of this <u>Section 5.8(e)(i)</u>, the term "**Accrued Pension Benefit**" means, for any such Transferred Employee, the pension benefit payable to such Transferred Employee under Seller's Pension Plan at such Transferred Employee's retirement, which shall be calculated based upon (A) the pension benefit formula under the Seller's Pension Plan applicable to such Transferred Employee as of the Closing Date, as adjusted to incorporate the provisions of the CBA MOA, (B) such Transferred Employee's years of credited service with Seller (or its applicable Affiliates) as of the Closing Date, (C) such Transferred Employee's final average earnings (as specified in the Seller's Pension Plan) as of the Closing Date, and (D) such Transferred Employee's covered compensation as of the Closing Date.
- (D) Upon such Transferred Employee's retirement date, Seller (or its Affiliates) shall provide each such Transferred Employee with a vested and non-forfeitable right to a pension benefit equal to such Transferred Employee's Accrued Pension Benefit.
- (E) On and after Closing, and continuing through no sooner than the end of the CBA Term, Buyer shall provide each such Transferred Employee with a retirement benefit (or contributions) under Buyer's Retirement Plan with a value that is at least equal to the actuarial equivalent of the difference between such Transferred Employee's Combined Minimum Pension Benefit and such Transferred Employee's Accrued Pension Benefit (the "Buyer's Retirement Benefit"). For the avoidance of any doubt, such retirement benefit may be provided through Buyer's Contributory Plan or another defined contribution plan. Such Buyer's Retirement Benefit must be guaranteed to each Transferred Employee and protected from forfeiture to no less extent than an ERISA plan benefit. If any such Transferred Employee's Buyer's Retirement Benefit should be subject to Social Security and Medicare Taxes that do not apply to ERISA pension benefits, Buyer shall "gross up" such Buyer's Retirement Benefit to offset such additional Tax liability to the applicable Transferred Employee.

Attachment 2 Page 70 of 159

(F) On and after Closing, and continuing through no sooner than the end of the CBA Term, in the event that any such Transferred Employee (A) is involuntarily separated from employment as a result of layoff from Buyer (or any of its Affiliates) and (B) at the time of Closing (x) is age 50-54 and (y) whose age plus credited service equal or exceed 65 years, then Buyer shall provide to such Transferred Employee those pension and other retirement benefits described in Schedule 5.8(e)(i)(F).

(ii) <u>Employees Participating in Seller's Contributory Retirement Plan.</u>

- (A) As soon as practicable after the Effective Date, Buyer shall take all necessary and appropriate action to establish and maintain a tax qualified contributory retirement plan ("**Buyer's Contributory Plan**") for the Transferred Employees who participate in Seller's "K-Vantage" contributory retirement plan in accordance with the provisions of this <u>Section 5.8(e)(ii)</u>.
- (B) On and after Closing and through the end of the CBA Term, Buyer (or its Affiliates) shall provide each Transferred Employee with contributions to Buyer's Contributory Plan in an amount no less than the amount such Transferred Employee would have received under Seller's "K-Vantage" contributory retirement plan, as set forth in Schedule 5.8(e)(ii)(B).
- Transition Matters. Effective as of the Closing, the Transferred Employees shall cease active participation in all Employee Benefit Plans of Seller (or its applicable Affiliates). Seller (or its applicable Affiliates) shall pay, in accordance with Seller's customary practice, to all Transferred Employees all accrued salary or wages, including overtime, vacation pay, all bonus or incentive pay due in connection with the 2017 and other applicable performance year(s), or other benefits to which they are entitled under the Employee Benefit Plans of Seller (or its applicable Affiliates) as of immediately prior to the Closing. For the avoidance of any doubt, Seller shall pay to Transferred Employees all bonus or incentive compensation, if any, calculated in accordance with Seller's customary practice with respect to the period prior to the Closing Date, whether or not such incentive compensation is subject to any continued service requirement. Buyer and Seller intend that the transactions contemplated by this Agreement should not constitute a separation, termination or severance of employment of any Transferred Employee for purposes of any Employee Benefit Plan that provides for separation, termination or severance benefits, and that each such Transferred Employee will have continuous employment immediately before and immediately after the Closing. All Liability and Claims relating to the employment and compensation of any Transferred Employee on and after the Closing shall be the sole responsibility of Buyer, and Buyer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Seller, its Affiliates and their Representatives for any and all Losses incurred by Seller, its Affiliates or their Representatives arising out of or related to Buyer's (or its Affiliate's) employment of any Transferred Employee following the Closing.
- (g) <u>Severance Benefits</u>. Any Transferred Employee who is terminated as a result of a reduction in force or change in operational practices prior to the end of the CBA Term will be entitled to the benefits set forth in <u>Schedule 5.8(g)</u>.

Attachment 2 Page 71 of 159

- WARN Act; Restructuring Activities. Seller will notify Buyer of any separations or layoffs in the 90 day period prior to the Closing Date, and agrees to timely perform and discharge all requirements under the WARN Act and under applicable similar state and local Laws for the notification of its and its Affiliates' employees arising from any "plant closing," "mass layoff," relocation, employment losses, group termination or similar event, including those arising from Buyer's election not to offer employment to Scheduled Employees or the sale of the Acquired Assets to Buyer up to and including the Closing. Buyer shall be responsible for performing and discharging all requirements under the WARN Act and under applicable similar state and local Laws for the notification of its employees, whether Transferred Employees or otherwise, arising from any "plant closing," "mass layoff," relocation, employment losses, group termination or similar event undertaken by Buyer after the Closing Date. Seller undertakes to indemnify and shall keep indemnified the Buyer and its Affiliates against all liabilities and all related costs and expenses arising from or relating to any claim brought as a result of any action of Seller or its Affiliates, including the sale of the Acquired Assets, that would cause any termination of employment or employment loss of any employees of Seller or its Affiliates that occurs prior to or as of the Closing, to (i) constitute a "plant closing," "mass layoff," relocation, employment loss, or group termination or similar event under the WARN Act or any similar state or local Law, or (ii) result in any other liability or penalty to the Buyer or its Affiliates under applicable law. Buyer will indemnify Seller for any liability under the WARN Act or any similar federal, state or local Law for any actions of Buyer or its Affiliates that would cause any termination of employment of any Transferred Employees by Buyer or its Affiliates that occurs after the Closing to (i) constitute a "plant closing," "mass layoff" or group termination or similar event under the WARN Act or any similar state or local Law, or (ii) result in any other liability or penalty to the Seller or its Affiliates under applicable law after the Closing. All severance and other costs associated with workforce restructuring activities associated with the Acquired Assets and/or the Transferred Employees subsequent to the Closing Date shall be borne solely by Buyer.
- (i) <u>Successors and Assigns</u>. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the agreements and obligations of Buyer set forth in this <u>Section 5.8</u> shall be binding upon and enforceable against any successor or assign or any other entity acquirer of Buyer, whether by sale, transfer, merger, acquisition or otherwise. Buyer shall make it a condition of any such sale, transfer, merger, acquisition or other transaction or event that any such successor or assign or other entity acquirer shall be bound by the terms of this Section 5.8.
- (j) Non-solicitation. For a period of twelve (12) months following the Closing, neither Seller nor any its Affiliates shall directly or indirectly hire or solicit for hire any person who is employed by Buyer or any of its Affiliates. The foregoing, however, shall not preclude Seller or its Affiliates from making good faith generalized solicitations of employment, so long as such solicitations are not targeted to or focused on the officers or employees of Buyer or any of its Affiliates or from hiring any former employee of Buyer or any of its Affiliates who has not been employed with Buyer or its Affiliate in preceding 6 months.
- (k) <u>Hiring Commitment</u>. Buyer will make offers of employment to at least eighty percent (80%) of the Scheduled Employees.

Attachment 2 Page 72 of 159

Section 5.9 ISO-NE and NEPOOL Matters.

- (a) At the Closing, Buyer shall be a member in good standing in NEPOOL or otherwise have sufficient authority to sell the Facilities' electrical output into the wholesale market. Except as required to preserve system reliability and in compliance with the requirements of the ISO-NE or NEPOOL, and as may be otherwise provided in any Related Agreement, following Closing, Seller shall not interfere with Buyer's efforts to expand or modify generation capacity at any of the Sites.
- Not less than five (5) Business Days prior to the Closing Date, Buyer shall (b) initiate, and Seller shall confirm, with ISO-NE Buyer's acquisition of the Facilities from Seller, to be effective as of the Closing Date, pursuant to the CAMS User Guide for Company and Affiliate Maintenance, Version 1.4, Section 2.3.15, Asset Ownership Share Transfers. In the event that ISO-NE (or NEPOOL) does not recognize until after the Closing Buyer's acquisition of the Facilities as of the Closing Date (or recognizes such acquisition effective as of any date other than the Closing Date), the Parties agree that (i) any proceeds received by Seller or its Affiliates from ISO-NE (or NEPOOL) after Closing relating to Buyer's ownership of the Facilities on and after the Closing Date shall be promptly paid over to Buyer, and (ii) any proceeds received by Buyer or its Affiliates from ISO-NE (or NEPOOL) after Closing relating to Seller's ownership of the Facilities prior to the Closing Date shall be promptly paid over to Seller. The Parties further agree that (x) any amounts received by Buyer or its Affiliates from ISO-NE after the Closing respecting the Facilities, to the extent attributable to any period prior to the Closing, including (A) ISO-NE Winter Reliability Program revenues attributable to any period prior to the Closing, and (B) ISO-NE Forward Capacity Market capacity payments attributable to any period prior to the Closing, shall be promptly paid over to Seller; and (y) any amounts received by Seller or its Affiliates from ISO-NE after Closing respecting the Facilities, to the extent attributable to any period on and after the Closing, including (A) ISO-NE Winter Reliability Program revenues attributable to any period on and after the Closing and (B) ISO-NE Forward Capacity Market capacity payments attributable to any period on and after the Closing. shall be promptly paid over to Buyer. Any payment required to be made by a Party pursuant to this Section 5.9(b) shall be made to the other Party by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the account designated in writing by such other Party.
- (c) The Parties shall cooperate and provide reasonable assistance in connection with any Potential Qualified Capacity Reduction or Potential Qualified Capacity Increase dispute or correction related thereto, whether prior to or following the Closing; provided, however, Buyer shall not be required to incur any cost or expense outside of the ordinary course in connection with such cooperation or assistance.
- (d) Seller agrees that it shall promptly notify Buyer in writing of the receipt of notice from ISO-NE determining a Qualified Capacity Reduction for any Facility.
- (e) If the Closing has not occurred prior to January 1, 2018, Seller and Buyer will cooperate to bid the Facilities into the ISO-NE forward capacity market to the extent such cooperation is allowed by FERC and ISO-NE.

Attachment 2 Page 73 of 159

Section 5.10 Post-Closing Operations. As required by the Settlement Agreement, Buyer hereby covenants and agrees that Buyer shall (and shall cause any successor or assign of Buyer to) cause the Facilities to remain in service for a minimum of eighteen (18) months following the Closing Date.

Section 5.11 Post-Closing Environmental Matters.

- On and after the Closing Date, with respect to Environmental Liabilities (a) which constitute Excluded Environmental Liabilities, Buyer will (i) use commercially reasonable efforts not to prejudice or impair Seller's rights under the Environmental Laws or interfere with Seller's ability to contest in appropriate administrative, judicial or other proceedings its Liability, if any, for Environmental Claims or Remediation, and (ii) provide reasonable access to Seller to any Facility for purposes of (x) assisting in Seller's ability to contest its Liability, if any, for Environmental Claims or Remediation or (y) undertaking Remediation; provided, however, such access may not unreasonably interfere with ordinary business operations of any Facility. Until such time as Seller's obligations for Excluded Environmental Liabilities are extinguished and only to the extent relevant to those Environmental Liabilities which constitute Excluded Environmental Liabilities, (A) Buyer further agrees to provide to Seller draft copies of all plans and studies prepared in connection with any Site investigation or Remediation related to the Acquired Assets prior to their submission to the Governmental Authority with jurisdiction under Environmental Laws, (B) Seller shall have the right, without the obligation, to attend all meetings between Buyer, its Representatives, and such Governmental Authorities, and (C) Buyer shall promptly provide to Seller copies of all written information, plans, documents and material correspondence submitted to or received from such Governmental Authorities relating to Buyer's discharge of any Environmental Liabilities assumed pursuant to this Agreement.
- (b) Buyer shall provide Seller with reasonable advance written notice before commencing any Dig Activities prior to the Excluded Environmental Liability Termination Date.
- Section 5.12 Transfer Taxes; Expenses. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in accordance with New Hampshire Law and custom, Buyer and Seller shall in good faith determine the amount and at Closing each pay fifty percent (50%) of all Transfer Taxes that may be imposed upon, or payable, collectible or incurred in connection with the transfer of the Acquired Assets to Buyer or otherwise in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements. Except as provided in Section 2.10(m). Buyer shall, at its own expense, prepare and timely file all Tax Returns relating to any such Transfer Tax (and Seller shall cooperate with respect thereto as reasonably necessary, including by preparing, executing and providing its Tax Return to Buyer, or by joining in the execution of any such Tax Returns if required by applicable Law), shall notify Seller when such filings have been made and shall provide Seller with copies of all Forms CD-57-S.

Section 5.13 Tax Matters. Except as provided in <u>Section 5.12</u> relating to Transfer Taxes:

(a) With respect to Taxes to be prorated in accordance with <u>Section 2.7</u> of this Agreement, Buyer shall prepare and timely file all Tax Returns required to be filed after the Closing with respect to the Acquired Assets, if any, and Buyer shall duly and timely pay all such Taxes shown to be due on such Tax Returns (or shall reimburse Seller for any such Taxes paid

Attachment 2 Page 74 of 159

by Seller). Buyer's preparation of any such Tax Returns shall be subject to Seller's review and comment, and Buyer shall consider in good faith any comments received from Seller. No later than twenty (20) Business Days prior to the due date of any such Tax Return, Buyer shall make such Tax Return available for Seller's review and comment. Buyer shall respond no later than five (5) Business Days prior to the due date for filing such Tax Return. Without the prior written consent of Seller, Buyer will not (i) file or amend any Tax Return relating to any taxable period ending on or prior to the Closing Date, or to any taxable period beginning before the Closing Date and ending after the Closing Date, or any portion thereof or (ii) extend or waive, or cause to be extended or waived, any statute of limitations or other period for the assessment of any Tax or deficiency related to any such taxable period (or portion thereof), in each case for Tax Returns related to the Acquired Assets.

Whenever any Taxing Authority asserts a claim, makes an assessment, or otherwise disputes the amount of Taxes relating to any taxable period ending on or prior to the Closing Date, or to any taxable period beginning before the Closing Date and ending after the Closing Date, or any portion thereof, Buyer shall, upon receipt of such assertion, promptly, but no later than thirty (30) days thereafter, inform Seller in writing of such assertion. With respect to proceedings that relate solely to Taxes that represent Excluded Liabilities and to any proceedings described on Schedule 3.10, Seller shall have the sole right to control any such proceedings and to determine whether and when to settle any such claim, assessment or dispute; provided, however, that Seller shall not settle any Tax controversies in a manner that would reasonably be expected to affect the Tax Liabilities of Buyer or any of its Affiliates in a material manner for any taxable year or period ending after the Closing Date without the prior written consent of Buyer. With respect to proceedings that relate to Taxes that represent Assumed Liabilities, Buyer shall have the sole right to control any such proceedings and determine whether and when to settle any such claim, assessment or dispute; provided, however, that Buyer shall not settle any Tax controversies in a manner that would reasonably be expected to affect the Tax Liabilities of Seller or any of its Affiliates in a material manner for any taxable year or period without the prior written consent of Seller. Each of Buyer and Seller shall provide the other with such assistance and cooperation as may reasonably be requested by the other Party in connection with the preparation of any Tax Return, any audit or other examination by any Taxing Authority, or any judicial or administrative proceedings relating to Liability for Taxes. Such assistance and cooperation shall include the retention and (upon the other Party's request) the provision of records and information that are reasonably relevant to any such audit, litigation or other proceeding and making employees available on a mutually convenient basis to provide additional information and explanation of any material provided hereunder, and each will retain and provide the requesting Party with any records or information until the expiration of the statute of limitations (and, to the extent notified by the other Party, any extensions thereof) of the respective taxable periods which may be relevant to such Tax Return, audit or examination, proceedings or determination.

Section 5.14 Further Assurances. At any time and from time to time after the Closing, at the reasonable request of a Party and without further consideration, the other Party will or will cause its Affiliates to execute and deliver such instruments of sale, transfer, conveyance, assignment, assumption and confirmation and take such actions as the Parties may reasonably agree are necessary to transfer, convey and assign to Buyer, and to confirm Buyer's title to or interest in the Acquired Assets and assumption of and obligation with respect to the Assumed Liabilities, to

Attachment 2 Page 75 of 159

put Buyer in actual possession and operating control of the Acquired Assets, and otherwise to consummate and give effect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. For avoidance of doubt, in the event that any asset that is an Acquired Asset shall not have been conveyed to Buyer at the Closing, Seller shall, subject to <u>Section 5.3</u>, use its commercially reasonable efforts to convey such asset to Buyer as promptly as is practicable after the Closing.

Section 5.15 Schedule Modifications During the Interim Period and Updates.

- Schedule Modifications. The Parties acknowledge and agree that Schedule 1.1-PL (solely with respect to matters that are or may be disclosed in any Title Commitment or any additional title insurance commitments obtained by Seller or Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, provided that any such disclosed matter will not be deemed to be a "Permitted Lien" under this Agreement without the Buyer's consent, not to be unreasonably withheld), Schedule 2.1(a), Schedule 2.1(c), Schedule 2.1(e), Schedule 2.1(g), Schedule 2.2(a), Schedule 2.2(b), Schedule 3.3, Schedule 3.6 (and upon such agreed upon modification based on updated title commitments, such updated title commitments shall become the "Title Commitments"), Schedule 3.7(b-1) and Schedule 3.7(b-2) are not final and in each case are subject to review and reasonable modifications requested in good faith by the Parties during the Interim Period. The Parties will cooperate in good faith during the Interim Period in connection with any requested modifications to such Schedules and to finalize Schedule 2.1(a) to effect the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including the Related Agreements. For the avoidance of doubt, any modifications to the Schedules pursuant to this Section 5.15(a) are not intended to and shall not be made in order to cure any Party's breach as of the Effective Date or the Closing Date of a representation or warranty, but such modifications may be made to allow the Parties to finalize the Related Agreements and Schedule 2.1(a) in good faith and in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and to confirm that the Acquired Assets constitute all of the assets intended to be transferred to Buyer in accordance with this Agreement.
- Schedule Updates. During the Interim Period, Seller shall supplement or amend the Schedules hereto with respect to any matter (regardless of whether such matter arose prior to, on or after the date hereof) if necessary to remedy any inaccuracy of any representation or warranty of Seller (each, a "Schedule Update"); provided that, except as specifically provided in this Section 5.15(b), no Schedule Update shall be deemed to be incorporated into or to supplement, amend or modify the Schedules. If Seller notifies Buyer that such event, development or occurrence which is the subject of the Schedule Update arose after the Effective Date and was not the result of a breach of this Agreement by Seller and constitutes a Material Adverse Effect, then Buyer shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without any penalty whatsoever. If Buyer has the right to, but does not elect to terminate this Agreement and the Closing occurs, then (i) Buyer shall be deemed to have irrevocably waived any right to terminate this Agreement with respect to the matters specifically set forth in such Schedule Update that constituted or otherwise had a Material Adverse Effect, (ii) such Schedule Update shall be deemed to be incorporated into and to supplement, amend and modify the Schedules, and (iii) Buyer shall have irrevocably waived its rights to indemnification under Section 7.2 solely with respect to the matters specifically set forth in such Schedule Update. For purpose of clarity, Buyer and the Seller acknowledge and agree that any Schedule Update that reflects an event, development or occurrence that either (A) occurred prior to the Effective Date and should have been set forth on the Schedules as of the execution of this Agreement or (B) that does not give

Attachment 2 Page 76 of 159

Buyer the right to terminate this Agreement for failure to satisfy the closing condition set forth in Section 6.1(a) or otherwise pursuant to this Agreement shall be deemed to have been provided for information purposes only, shall not be deemed to cure any breach of this Agreement or affect the conditions to Closing or Buyer's indemnification rights set forth in this Agreement. In the event Buyer determines in good faith that any such Schedule Update, or prior Schedule Updates in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to result in the incurrence by Buyer of Losses in excess of one percent (1.00%) of the Base Purchase Price, Buyer shall notify Seller of such determination within twenty (20) days of receipt of such Schedule Update from Seller, and the Parties shall negotiate in good faith an equitable adjustment to the Base Purchase Price to account for such Losses. Buyer will have the right to terminate this Agreement without any liability whatsoever if the aggregate of all such Losses equal or exceeds ten percent (10%) of the Base Purchase Price. In the event Buyer fails to deliver such determination to Seller within such twenty (20) day period, the Parties agree that no such equitable adjustment shall be made in respect of such Schedule Update.

Section 5.16 Casualty. If any material Acquired Asset is damaged or destroyed by a casualty loss during the Interim Period (a "Casualty Loss"), Seller shall promptly give Buyer written notice thereof, including reasonable details regarding the Casualty Loss, the amounts recoverable from insurance, any deductible for which Seller or any of its Affiliates would be required to pay out-of-pocket and any other information related to the costs and sources of repayment to restore such Casualty Loss. Upon receipt of such notice, Buyer will have the right, in its sole discretion, to (a) require Seller to restore such damaged or destroyed Acquired Asset to a condition reasonably comparable to its condition prior to such Casualty Loss (such costs with respect to any Acquired Asset, the "Restoration Cost") prior to the Closing; (b) proceed to Closing without Seller restoring such damaged or destroyed Acquired Asset, in which case Buyer will be entitled to a reduction in the Purchase Price equal to the difference between the Restoration Cost less any proceeds delivered to Buyer by Seller at the Closing related to the Casualty Loss; or (c) terminate this Agreement with no penalty whatsoever if the cost to repair exceeds ten percent (10%) of the Base Purchase Price (as determined by a qualified firm mutually selected by Buyer and Seller as promptly as practicable after the date of the event of casualty). Buyer will give notice to Seller of its election within sixty (60) days after receipt from Seller of all information reasonably required by Buyer and in Seller's possession or control related to the Casualty Loss. If Buyer requires Seller to restore the Casualty Loss, Buyer and Seller will negotiate in good faith if Seller believes that an extension of the Outside Date is required.

Section 5.17 Condemnation. If from time to time any portion of any Acquired Asset is taken by condemnation during the Interim Period (a "Taking"), Seller shall promptly give Buyer written notice thereof, including reasonable details regarding the Taking and the Acquired Assets affected thereby, the amounts being paid to Seller in connection with such Taking and any other information related to the costs and sources of repayment related to the Acquired Assets affected by such Taking. If the value of the Acquired Assets affected by the Taking is less than or equal to ten percent (10%) of the Base Purchase Price and no material portion of any Facility is affected, the proceeds of the Taking will be credited against the Base Purchase Price. If the value of the Acquired Assets affected by the Taking is greater than ten percent (10%) or if a material portion of any Facility is affected (regardless of the amount at issue), Buyer will have the right, in its sole discretion, to (a) proceed to Closing, in which case Buyer will be entitled to a reduction in the Purchase Price equal to the proceeds of the Taking, or (b) terminate this

Attachment 2 Page 77 of 159

Agreement with no penalty whatsoever if the cost to restore exceeds ten percent (10%) of the Base Purchase Price (as determined by a qualified firm mutually selected by Buyer and Seller as promptly as practicable after the date of the event of condemnation). Buyer will give notice to Seller of its election within sixty (60) days after receipt from Seller of all information reasonably required by Buyer and in Seller's possession or control related to the Taking.

Section 5.18 Confidentiality. Buyer acknowledges and agrees that the Confidentiality Agreements remain in full force and effect and, in addition, covenants and agrees to keep confidential, in accordance with the provisions of the Confidentiality Agreements, information provided to Buyer pursuant to this Agreement (including this Agreement and the Exhibits and Schedules hereto); *provided*, that from and after Closing, Buyer shall not have any obligation to maintain the confidentiality of information with respect to the Business or the Acquired Assets, but Buyer's confidentiality obligations under the Confidentiality Agreements (with respect to information concerning Seller and its Affiliates) shall otherwise continue. If this Agreement is, for any reason, terminated prior to the Closing, the Confidentiality Agreements and the provisions of this Section 5.18 shall nonetheless continue in full force and effect.

Section 5.19 Public Announcements. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, each Party shall, and shall cause its Affiliates (as applicable) to, consult with the other Party regarding the timing and content of any public announcements regarding this Agreement, the Closing and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement to the news media, financial community, any Governmental Authority, customers, suppliers or the general public. Except as otherwise provided herein, no Party or its Affiliates shall make any such public announcement without the prior written consent of the other Party, unless any such disclosure is otherwise required by Law or by the rules of a national securities exchange (in which case such Party will provide to the other Party reasonable advance notice of and an opportunity to review any such disclosure).

Section 5.20 Mercury Removal Contract. Seller shall be responsible for completing the scope of work set forth in the "Scope of Work for the Abatement, Demolition and Disposal of the Mercury Vapor Power Units at Schiller Station – Rev 12.15.16" attached to and part of the Removal Contract as Exhibit E. If the Closing occurs before the Schiller Boiler Removal Completion Date, Buyer shall provide Seller, its Representatives, Removal Contractor and its subcontractors under the Removal Contract with reasonable access to Schiller Station to permit all such persons to complete such removal, but only to the extent that such access does not unreasonably interfere with the operation of Schiller Station, and subject to compliance with applicable Laws. Seller shall furnish Buyer with such information or other data related to the completion of such removal as Buyer may reasonably request, and Buyer shall cooperate with Seller and the Removal Contractor (at Seller's expense) in connection with the completion of such removal.

ARTICLE VI CONDITIONS TO CLOSING

Section 6.1 Buyer's Conditions to Closing. The obligation of Buyer to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement is subject to the fulfillment, at or prior to Closing, of each of the following conditions (except to the extent waived in writing by Buyer):

Attachment 2 Page 78 of 159

- Representations and Warranties. (i) The representations and warranties (other than the Seller Fundamental Warranties, which are addressed in clause (ii) below) made by Seller in Article III hereof (without giving effect to any materiality or Material Adverse Effect qualifiers contained therein) shall be true and correct on the Closing Date as though made on and as of the Closing Date, except (x) for changes expressly permitted or contemplated hereby, (y) representations and warranties that address matters only as of a specified date, which shall be true and correct as of such specified date, subject to the immediately following clause (z), or (z) where the failure to be so true and correct would not individually or in the aggregate have or would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, or would not have a material adverse effect on Seller's ability to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Related Agreements. (ii) The Seller Fundamental Warranties shall be true and correct in all material respects on the Closing Date as though made on and as of the Closing Date, except for changes expressly permitted Section 5.15(a) with respect to Section 3.6. (iii) Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, to the extent any inaccuracy in any representation or warranty of Seller that, individually or in the aggregate with any other such inaccuracy, results in or creates or could reasonably be expected to result in or create a Loss or Claim in excess of ten percent (10%) of the Base Purchase Price, the conditions of this Section 6.1(a) shall be deemed to be not fulfilled.
- (b) <u>Title Commitments</u>. Receipt of title commitments for each Facility, each in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Buyer, and such that the only condition to the issuance of Title Policies from such title commitments is the payment of the title insurance premiums.
- (c) <u>Performance</u>. Seller shall have performed and complied, in all material respects, with all agreements, covenants and obligations required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by Seller at or before the Closing.
- (d) Officer's Certificate. Seller shall have delivered to Buyer at the Closing a certificate of an authorized officer of Seller, dated as of the Closing Date, stating that the conditions set forth in Section 6.1(a) and Section 6.1(c) have been satisfied.
- (e) <u>Consents</u>. The Seller Required Consents and the Buyer Required Consents marked with an asterisk on <u>Schedule 3.3</u> and <u>Schedule 4.3</u> shall have been duly obtained, made or given and shall be in full force and effect, all appeal, reconsideration, rehearing or other time periods relating to the finality of all such Consents have expired with no appeals, motions for reconsideration, or rehearing shall have been made or exist or, if any such matters shall exist, they have been finally determined to the reasonable satisfaction of Buyer, and all terminations or expirations of waiting periods imposed by any Governmental Authority with respect thereto (including under the HSR Act) shall have occurred.
- (f) <u>No Injunctions</u>. On the Closing Date, there shall be no Laws in effect that operate to restrain, enjoin or otherwise prevent or make illegal the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Attachment 2 Page 79 of 159

- (g) <u>Deliveries</u>. Seller shall have delivered or shall stand ready to deliver all of the certificates, instruments, agreements, documents and other items specified to be delivered by it hereunder, including pursuant to Section 2.10.
- **Section 6.2 Seller's Conditions to Closing.** The obligation of Seller to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement is subject to the fulfillment, at or prior to Closing, of each of the following conditions (except to the extent waived in writing by Seller):
- (other than the Buyer Fundamental Warranties, which are addressed in clause (ii) below) of Buyer set forth in Article IV hereof (without giving effect to any materiality qualifiers contained therein) shall be true and correct in all respects on the Closing Date as though made on and as of the Closing Date except (x) for changes expressly permitted or contemplated hereby, (y) in the case of representations and warranties that address matters only as of a specified date, on and as of such specified date, subject to the immediately following clause (z), or (z) where the failure to be so true and correct would not reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the ability of Buyer to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Related Agreements. (ii) The Buyer Fundamental Warranties shall be true and correct in all material respects on the Closing Date as though made on and as of the Closing Date.
- (b) <u>Performance</u>. Buyer shall have performed and complied, in all material respects, with all agreements, covenants and obligations required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by Buyer at or before the Closing.
- (c) <u>Officer's Certificate</u>. Buyer shall have delivered to Seller at the Closing a certificate of an authorized officer of Buyer, dated as of the Closing Date, stating that the conditions set forth in <u>Section 6.2(a)</u> and <u>Section 6.2(b)</u> have been satisfied.
- (d) <u>Consents</u>. The Seller Required Consents and the Buyer Required Consents marked with an asterisk on <u>Schedule 3.3</u> and <u>Schedule 4.3</u> shall have been duly obtained, made or given and shall be in full force and effect, and all terminations or expirations of waiting periods imposed by any Governmental Authority with respect thereto (including under the HSR Act) shall have occurred.
- (e) <u>No Injunctions</u>. On the Closing Date, there shall be no Laws in effect that operate to restrain, enjoin, prohibit or otherwise prevent or make illegal the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
- (f) <u>Deliveries</u>. Buyer shall have delivered or shall stand ready to deliver all of the certificates, instruments, agreements, documents and other items specified to be delivered by it hereunder, including pursuant to Section 2.11.
- (g) <u>Closing Purchase Price</u>. Buyer shall have delivered the Closing Purchase Price in accordance with Section 2.5.

Attachment 2 Page 80 of 159

ARTICLE VII INDEMNIFICATION; LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY AND WAIVERS

- Survival. Subject to the limitations and other provisions of this Agreement, Section 7.1 including Section 7.4, (a) the Seller Fundamental Warranties and the Buyer Fundamental Warranties shall survive the Closing and remain in full force and effect indefinitely; (b) each of the Tax and HR Warranties shall survive until the expiration of all applicable statutes of limitation with respect to claims for breach of any such Tax and HR Warranty; (c) the representation and warranty in Section 3.7(a) shall survive the Closing and shall remain in full force and effect for a period of five (5) years following the Closing Date; and (d) all other representations and warranties of Seller set forth in Article III and all other representations and warranties of Buyer set forth in Article IV shall survive the Closing and shall remain in full force and effect for a period of twelve (12) months following the Closing Date. The covenants and agreements of the Parties contained in this Agreement to be performed on or prior to the Closing shall expire at the Closing and have no further force or effect, and the covenants and agreements of the Parties contained in this Agreement that by their terms survive the Closing or contemplate performance after the Closing shall survive for the period set forth therein or otherwise until fully performed. The indemnification obligations of any Party pursuant to this Article VII with respect to any breach of a representation or warranty hereunder shall terminate upon the expiration of such representation or warranty as set forth in this Section 7.1.
- **Section 7.2 Indemnification by Seller**. Subject to the other provisions of this <u>Article VII</u>, from and after the Closing, Seller shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Buyer, its Affiliates and their respective Representatives (collectively, the "**Buyer Indemnified Parties**") from and against all Losses suffered or incurred by a Buyer Indemnified Party resulting or arising from:
- (a) Any breach of any representation or warranty of Seller contained in this Agreement that survives the Closing as specified in <u>Section 7.1</u>;
- (b) Any breach of any covenant or agreement of Seller contained in this Agreement that survives the Closing as specified in Section 7.1; or
- (c) Any Excluded Liability, excluding from this indemnity obligation (i) any Excluded Environmental Liability that has become an Assumed Liability pursuant to <u>Section 2.4(i)</u> and (ii) any Environmental Liability resulting from Buyer's Dig Activities.
- **Section 7.3 Indemnification by Buyer**. Subject to the other provisions of this <u>Article VII</u>, from and after the Closing, Buyer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Seller, its Affiliates and their respective Representatives (collectively, the "**Seller Indemnified Parties**") from and against all Losses suffered or incurred by a Seller Indemnified Party resulting or arising from:
- (a) Any breach of any representation or warranty of Buyer contained in this Agreement that survives the Closing as specified in <u>Section 7.1</u>;
- (b) Any breach of any covenant or agreement of Buyer contained in this Agreement that survives the Closing as specified in <u>Section 7.1</u>;

Attachment 2 Page 81 of 159

- (c) Any Assumed Liability, including within this indemnity obligation (i) any Excluded Environmental Liability that has become an Assumed Liability pursuant to <u>Section</u> 2.4(i) and (ii) any Environmental Liability resulting from Buyer's Dig Activities.
- **Section 7.4 Certain Limitations and Provisions**. The Buyer Indemnified Party or Seller Indemnified Party, as applicable, making a claim for indemnification under this <u>Article VII</u> is referred to herein as the "**Indemnified Party**" and the Party against whom such claims are asserted under this <u>Article VII</u> is referred to as the "**Indemnifying Party**." The indemnification provided for in this <u>Article VII</u> shall be subject to the following limitations and other provisions:
- (a) Seller shall have no liability for indemnification of any Losses under Section 7.2(a) (other than arising out of any breach of the Seller Fundamental Warranties, the Tax and HR Warranties and instances of Seller's criminal conduct or common law or statutory fraud for which, in each case, the Threshold Amount shall be zero) until the aggregate amount of all such Losses equals or exceeds one-half percent (0.5%) of the Base Purchase Price (the "Threshold Amount"), in which event Seller shall only be liable for Losses in excess of the Threshold Amount. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the aggregate amount of all Losses for which Seller shall be liable shall be limited as follows:
 - (i) Indemnification for Losses pursuant to <u>Section 7.2(a)</u> (excluding such Losses set forth in <u>Section 7.4(a)(ii)</u> and <u>Section 7.4(a)(iii)</u> below) shall not exceed an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the Base Purchase Price;
 - (ii) Indemnification for Losses pursuant to <u>Section 2.4(i)(A)</u>, <u>Section 2.4(i)(B)(I)</u> and <u>Section 7.2(a)</u> (to the extent relating to Seller's breach of <u>Section 3.11(b)</u> or <u>Section 3.11(d)</u>) shall not exceed Twenty-Five Million Dollars (\$25,000,000); and
 - (iii) Indemnification for breach of any Seller Fundamental Warranty or Tax and HR Warranty shall not exceed an amount equal to the Base Purchase Price.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Seller shall have no liability for indemnification under Section 7.2(a) or Section 7.2(b) for Losses with respect to any individual item or set of items arising out of substantially similar facts and circumstances unless the amount of Losses with respect to such item equals or exceeds Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000), and if such amount is not equaled or exceeded, none of the Losses with respect to such items will be counted toward the Threshold Amount.

(b) Buyer shall have no liability for indemnification of any Losses under Section 7.3(a) (other than arising out of any breach of the Buyer Fundamental Warranties and instances of Buyer's criminal conduct or common law or statutory fraud for which, in each case, the Threshold Amount shall be zero) until the aggregate amount of all such Losses equals or exceeds the Threshold Amount, in which event Buyer shall only be liable for Losses in excess of the Threshold Amount. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the aggregate amount of all Losses for which Buyer shall be liable pursuant to Section 7.3(a) shall not exceed an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the Base Purchase Price, except with respect to any breach of any Buyer Fundamental Warranty, in which case Buyer's liability shall not exceed an amount equal to the Base Purchase Price. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Buyer shall

Attachment 2 Page 82 of 159

have no liability for indemnification under <u>Section 7.3(a)</u> or <u>Section 7.3(b)</u> for Losses with respect to any individual item or set of items arising out of substantially similar facts and circumstances unless the amount of Losses with respect to such item equals or exceeds Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000), and if such amount is not equaled or exceeded, none of the Losses with respect to such items will be counted toward the Threshold Amount, *provided, further* that Buyer shall have no liability for indemnification of any Losses incurred by Seller related to court costs, fees of attorneys, accountants, consultants and other experts, and document production in defense of Claims arising under <u>Section 7.3(c)(i)</u>; *provided, however*, if Buyer fails to assume (and had the obligation to assume) the obligation to indemnify Seller under <u>Section 7.3(c)</u> for an Excluded Environmental Liability that has become an Assumed Liability, then Buyer shall reimburse Seller for those enumerated Losses.

- (c) Any Indemnified Party that becomes aware of a Loss for which it seeks indemnification under this <u>Article VII</u> shall be required to use commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate the Loss.
- (d) Losses of any Indemnified Party hereunder shall be calculated after deducting the amount of any insurance proceeds and any indemnity, contribution or other similar Third Party recoveries actually received or reasonably expected to be received by such Indemnified Party in respect of such Loss at or prior to the time of such calculation (net of the reasonable out of pocket costs and expenses associated with such recoveries and any associated increases in insurance premiums). The Indemnified Party shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to recover under insurance policies or indemnity, contribution or similar agreements for any Losses prior to seeking indemnification under this Agreement.
- (e) All Losses shall be determined without duplication of recovery under any other provisions of this Agreement or any Related Agreement. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (i) if any fact, circumstance, condition, agreement or event forming a basis for a claim for indemnification under this <u>Article VII</u> shall overlap with any fact, circumstance, condition, agreement or event forming the basis of any other claim for indemnification under this <u>Article VII</u>, there shall be no duplication in the calculation of the amount of Losses, and (ii) neither Seller nor Buyer shall have any liability under this <u>Article VII</u> for Losses relating to matters to the extent included in the calculation of the Purchase Price Adjustment in accordance with <u>Section 2.6</u> or the prorations made in accordance with <u>Section 2.7</u> (other than the failure to pay or credit any amounts so included).
- (f) Solely for purposes of calculating Losses arising from a breach of any representation, warranty or covenant hereunder (and not for purposes of determining the existence of a breach of any representation, warranty or covenant), any materiality or Material Adverse Effect qualifications in such representation or warranty shall be disregarded.
- (g) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the limitations on any liability or Loss set forth in this Agreement shall not apply in instances of Seller's or Buyer's, as applicable, willful misconduct, criminal conduct or common law or statutory fraud.

Page 83 of 159

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017 Attachment 2

Section 7.5 Indemnification Procedures.

- Third Party Claims. If any Indemnified Party receives notice of the assertion or commencement of any Claim made or brought by any Third Party (a "Third Party Claim") against such Indemnified Party with respect to which the Indemnifying Party is obligated to provide indemnification under this Agreement, the Indemnified Party shall give the Indemnifying Party prompt written notice thereof. The failure to give such prompt written notice shall not, however, relieve the Indemnifying Party of its indemnification obligations, except and only to the extent that the Indemnifying Party forfeits rights or defenses by reason of such failure. Such notice by the Indemnified Party shall describe the Third Party Claim in reasonable detail, shall include copies of all material written evidence thereof and shall indicate the estimated amount, if reasonably practicable, of the Loss that has been or may be sustained by the Indemnified Party. The Indemnifying Party shall have the right to participate in, or by giving written notice to the Indemnified Party, to assume the defense of any Third Party Claim at the Indemnifying Party's expense and by the Indemnifying Party's own counsel, and the Indemnified Party shall cooperate in good faith in such defense. In the event that the Indemnifying Party assumes the defense of any Third Party Claim, subject to Section 7.5(b), it shall have the right to take such action as it deems necessary to avoid, dispute, defend, appeal or make counterclaims pertaining to any such Third Party Claim in the name and on behalf of the Indemnified Party. The Indemnified Party shall have the right, at its own cost and expense, to participate in the defense of any Third Party Claim with counsel selected by it, subject to the Indemnifying Party's right to control the defense thereof. If the Indemnifying Party elects not to compromise or defend such Third Party Claim or fails to promptly notify the Indemnified Party in writing of its election to defend as provided in this Agreement, the Indemnified Party may, subject to Section 7.5(b), pay, compromise or defend such Third Party Claim and, subject to the limitations set forth in this Article VII, seek indemnification for any and all Losses based upon, arising from or relating to such Third Party Claim. Seller and Buyer shall cooperate with each other in all reasonable respects in connection with the defense of any Third Party Claim, including making available (subject to the provisions of Section 5.18) information reasonably available to such Party relating to such Third Party Claim.
- Settlement of Third Party Claims. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Indemnifying Party shall not enter into settlement of any Third Party Claim without the prior written consent of the Indemnified Party (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), except as provided in this Section 7.5(b). If a firm offer is made to settle a Third Party Claim without leading to liability or the creation of a financial or other obligation on the part of the Indemnified Party and provides, in customary form, for the unconditional release of each Indemnified Party from all liabilities and obligations in connection with such Third Party Claim and the Indemnifying Party desires to accept and agree to such offer, the Indemnifying Party shall give written notice to that effect to the Indemnified Party. If the Indemnified Party fails to consent to such firm offer within ten (10) days after its receipt of such notice, the Indemnified Party may continue to contest or defend such Third Party Claim and in such event, the maximum liability of the Indemnifying Party as to such Third Party Claim shall not exceed the amount of such settlement offer. If the Indemnified Party fails to consent to such firm offer and also fails to assume defense of such Third Party Claim, the Indemnifying Party may settle the Third Party Claim upon the terms set forth in such firm offer to settle such Third Party Claim. If the Indemnified Party has assumed the defense pursuant to Section 7.5(a),

Attachment 2 Page 84 of 159

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017

it shall not agree to any settlement without the written consent of the Indemnifying Party (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed).

Direct Claims. Any Claim by an Indemnified Party for indemnification on account of a Loss which does not result from a Third Party Claim (a "Direct Claim") shall be asserted by the Indemnified Party giving the Indemnifying Party prompt written notice thereof, and in any event within thirty (30) days after the discovery by the Indemnified Party of the circumstances giving rise to such Claim. The failure to give such prompt written notice shall not, however, relieve the Indemnifying Party of its indemnification obligations, except and only to the extent that the Indemnifying Party forfeits rights or defenses by reason of such failure. Such notice by the Indemnified Party shall describe the Direct Claim in reasonable detail, shall include copies of all material written evidence thereof and shall indicate the estimated amount, if reasonably practicable, of the Loss that has been or may be sustained by the Indemnified Party. The Indemnifying Party shall have thirty (30) days after its receipt of such notice to respond in writing to such Direct Claim. During such thirty (30) day period, the Indemnified Party shall allow the Indemnifying Party and its Representatives to investigate the matter or circumstance alleged to give rise to the Direct Claim, and whether and to what extent any amount is payable in respect of the Direct Claim, and the Indemnified Party shall assist the Indemnifying Party's investigation by giving such reasonable information and assistance (including access to the Indemnified Party's premises and personnel and the right to examine and copy any accounts, documents or records) as the Indemnifying Party or any of its professional advisors may reasonably request (subject to the provisions of Section 5.18). If the Indemnifying Party does not so respond within such thirty (30) day period, the Indemnifying Party shall be deemed to have rejected such claim, in which case the Indemnified Party shall be free to pursue such remedies as may be available to the Indemnified Party on the terms and subject to the provisions of this Agreement.

Section 7.6 Tax Treatment of Indemnification Payments. Unless otherwise required by applicable Law, all indemnification payments made pursuant to this Agreement will be treated as an adjustment to the Purchase Price for all Tax purposes

Section 7.7 Waiver of Other Representations; No Reliance; "As Is" Sale.

(a) NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING IN THIS AGREEMENT TO THE CONTRARY AND EXCEPT FOR THOSE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN <u>ARTICLE III</u>, IT IS THE EXPLICIT INTENT OF EACH PARTY, AND THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE, THAT NONE OF SELLER, ITS AFFILIATES OR THEIR RESPECTIVE REPRESENTATIVES HAS MADE OR IS MAKING ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY WHATSOEVER, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AT COMMON LAW, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, WRITTEN OR ORAL, WITH RESPECT TO, (I) THE ACQUIRED ASSETS, THE ASSUMED LIABILITIES, OR ANY PART THEREOF OR (II) THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE INFORMATION, RECORDS, AND DATA NOW, HERETOFORE, OR HEREAFTER MADE AVAILABLE TO BUYER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT AND ANY SUCH OTHER REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES ARE HEREBY EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED. BUYER HAS NOT EXECUTED OR AUTHORIZED THE EXECUTION OF THIS

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2
Page 85 of 159

AGREEMENT IN RELIANCE UPON ANY SUCH PROMISE, REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY NOT EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN.

WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING. EXCEPT FOR THOSE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN ARTICLE III, THE ACQUIRED ASSETS ARE SOLD "AS IS, WHERE IS," "WITH ALL FAULTS," AND NONE OF SELLER OR ITS AFFILIATES, NOR ANY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE REPRESENTATIVES. MAKE OR HAVE MADE. AND BUYER IS NOT RELYING ON, ANY REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND OR NATURE, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AT COMMON LAW, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, WRITTEN OR ORAL, AS TO LIABILITIES, OPERATIONS OF THE FACILITIES, TITLE, CONDITION, VALUE OR QUALITY OF THE ACQUIRED ASSETS OR THE PROSPECTS (FINANCIAL AND OTHERWISE), RISKS OR ANY OTHER MATTERS RESPECTING THE ASSUMED LIABILITIES, ASSETS OR INCLUDING, LIMITATION, WITH RESPECT TO (I) THE ACTUAL OR RATED GENERATING CAPABILITY OF ANY OF THE FACILITIES OR THE ABILITY OF BUYER TO SELL FROM ANY OF THE FACILITIES ELECTRIC ENERGY, CAPACITY OR OTHER RECOGNIZED BY**ISO-NE FROM** TIME TO MERCHANTABILITY, USAGE, OR SUITABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE WITH RESPECT TO THE ACQUIRED ASSETS, OR ANY PART THEREOF, (III) THE WORKMANSHIP OF THE ACOUIRED ASSETS. OR THE ABSENCE OF ANY DEFECTS THEREIN, WHETHER LATENT OR PATENT, (IV) COMPLIANCE WITH ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS RESPECTING THE ACQUIRED ASSETS, (V) WHETHER SELLER POSSESSES SUFFICIENT REAL PROPERTY OR PERSONAL PROPERTY TO OPERATE THE ACQUIRED ASSETS, OR (VI) THE PROBABLE SUCCESS OR PROFITABILITY OF OPERATING THE ACQUIRED ASSETS AFTER THE CLOSING, ALL OF WHICH ARE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED BY SELLER. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN, SELLER FURTHER SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY REGARDING THE ABSENCE OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES OR LIABILITY OR POTENTIAL LIABILITY ARISING UNDER ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS. WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN, SELLER EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND REGARDING THE CONDITION OF THE ACQUIRED ASSETS OR THE SUITABILITY THEREOF FOR OPERATION AS POWER GENERATION FACILITIES OR AS SITES FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF ADDITIONAL OR REPLACEMENT GENERATION CAPACITY. NO MATERIAL OR INFORMATION MADE AVAILABLE BY OR COMMUNICATIONS MADE BY SELLER, ITS AFFILIATES AND THEIR RESPECTIVE REPRESENTATIVES, THE NHPUC, OR ANY BROKER OR INVESTMENT BANKER IN EXPECTATION OF OR CONNECTION WITH THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY INFORMATION OR MATERIAL CONTAINED IN THE CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION MEMORANDUM DATED AS OF MARCH 2017. ANY OTHER EVALUATION OR DUE DILIGENCE MATERIAL. THE DATA SITE, MANAGEMENT PRESENTATIONS, FUNCTIONAL "BREAK-OUT" DISCUSSIONS, OR ANY ORAL, WRITTEN OR ELECTRONIC RESPONSE TO ANY INFORMATION REQUEST MADE AVAILABLE TO BUYER, WILL CAUSE OR CREATE ANY WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE TITLE, CONDITION, VALUE

Attachment 2 Page 86 of 159

OR OUALITY OF THE ACQUIRED ASSETS OTHER THAN THOSE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN ARTICLE III, AND EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN, SELLER SHALL NOT HAVE OR BE SUBJECT TO ANY LIABILITY TO BUYER RESULTING THEREFROM.

Section 7.8 **Exclusive Remedies; Certain Waivers, Releases and Limitations.**

- Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, subject to (a) Section 8.3, from and after the Closing, the rights and remedies of the Parties under this Article VII, in Section 5.4(d) and in Section 5.8(f) shall be the exclusive rights and remedies available to any Party hereto with respect to any breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement set forth in this Agreement, except in each case with respect to Losses arising from common law or statutory fraud, criminal activity or willful misconduct. Nothing in this Section 7.8(a) shall limit any Party's rights to seek and obtain any equitable relief to which such Party is entitled pursuant to Article VIII.
- Without limiting the provisions of Section 7.8(a), Buyer, for itself and its (b) Affiliates, effective as of the Closing, hereby irrevocably releases, and forever discharges Seller, its Representatives and its Affiliates from any and all claims, demands, Losses, Liabilities, damages, complaints, causes of action, investigations, hearings, actions, suits or other Claims or proceedings of any kind or character whether known or unknown, hidden or concealed, arising out of or related to any Environmental Liability, except for those Excluded Environmental Liabilities but only to the extent and for so long as the same are retained by Seller pursuant to Section 2.4(h) and Section 2.4(i). In furtherance of the foregoing, effective as of the Closing. Buyer, for itself and its Affiliates, hereby irrevocably waives, with respect to any matter it is releasing pursuant to the preceding sentence, any and all rights and benefits that it now has or in the future may have conferred upon it by virtue of any Law or common law principle which provides that a general release does not extend to claims which a party does not know or suspect to exist in its favor at the time of executing such release, if knowledge of such claims would have materially affected such party's settlement with the obligor. Buyer hereby acknowledges that it is aware that factual matters now unknown to it may have given or hereafter may give rise to claims, demands, Losses, Liabilities, damages, complaints, causes of action, investigations, hearings, actions, suits or other Claims or proceedings that are unknown, unanticipated and unsuspected as of the Effective Date and will not be known, anticipated or suspected prior to the Closing Date, and Buyer further agrees that this Section 7.8(b) has been negotiated and agreed upon in light of that awareness, and Buyer, for itself and on behalf of its Affiliates, nevertheless hereby intends to irrevocably release, forever discharge Seller and its Affiliates as set forth in the first sentence of this Section 7.8(b).
- To the extent the transfer, conveyance, assignment and delivery of the (c) Acquired Assets to Buyer as contemplated in this Agreement is accomplished by deeds, assignments, easements, leases, licenses, bills of sale or other instruments of transfer and conveyance, whether executed at the Closing or thereafter, these instruments are made without representation or warranty by, or recourse against, Seller, except as expressly provided in this Agreement or in any such instrument.

Attachment 2 Page 87 of 159

- (d) No Representative or Affiliate of Seller shall have any personal liability to Buyer or any other Person as a result of the breach of any representation, warranty, covenant, agreement or obligation of Seller in this Agreement, and no Representative or Affiliate of Buyer shall have any personal liability to Seller or any other Person as a result of the breach of any representation, warranty, covenant, agreement or obligation of Buyer in this Agreement.
- (e) NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING IN THIS AGREEMENT TO THE CONTRARY, NO PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR INDIRECT DAMAGES, OR LOST OPPORTUNITY, OR ANY DAMAGES BASED ON ANY TYPE OF MULTIPLE, WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY, OTHER LAW OR OTHERWISE AND WHETHER OR NOT ARISING FROM THE OTHER PARTY'S SOLE, JOINT OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHER FAULT ("NON-REIMBURSABLE DAMAGES"), PROVIDED, THAT ANY AMOUNTS PAYABLE TO THIRD PARTIES PURSUANT TO A THIRD PARTY CLAIM SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO CONSTITUTE NON-REIMBURSABLE DAMAGES.

ARTICLE VIII TERMINATION

Section 8.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time before the Closing as follows:

- (a) By either Buyer or Seller, by written notice to the other, if the Closing shall not have occurred within twelve (12) months after the Effective Date, as may be extended pursuant to Section 5.16 (the "Outside Date"); provided, that (i) if the sole reason Closing has not occurred prior to the Outside Date is that one or more Consents of a Governmental Authority required to consummate the Closing pursuant to Article VI have not yet been obtained or made, and such Consents are being diligently pursued by the appropriate Party, then such Outside Date may be extended by either Party by written notice to the other Party delivered at any time before termination of this Agreement, for an additional ninety (90) days, and (ii) Buyer cannot terminate this Agreement under this provision if the failure of the Closing to occur is the result of the failure on the part of Buyer to perform any of its obligations hereunder and Seller cannot terminate this Agreement under this provision if the failure of the Closing to occur is the result of the failure on the part of Seller to perform any of its obligations hereunder;
- (b) By Seller, by written notice to Buyer if Seller is not then in material default of any of its obligations under this Agreement and Buyer has breached in any material respect any of its representations, warranties, covenants, agreements or obligations in this Agreement and such breach has not been cured within thirty (30) days following written notification thereof (*provided*, that if, at the end of such thirty (30) day period, Buyer is endeavoring in good faith, and proceeding diligently, to cure such breach, Buyer shall have an additional thirty (30) days in which to effect such cure), and such breach, if not cured, would have a material adverse effect on Buyer's ability to perform its obligations hereunder;
- (c) By Buyer, by written notice to Seller if Buyer is not then in material default of any of its obligations under this Agreement and Seller has breached in any material

Attachment 2 Page 88 of 159

respect any of its representations, warranties, covenants, agreements or obligations in this Agreement and (i) such breach has not been cured within thirty (30) days following written notification thereof; *provided, however*, that if, at the end of such thirty (30) day period, Seller is endeavoring in good faith, and proceeding diligently, to cure such breach, Seller shall have an additional thirty (30) days in which to effect such cure and (ii) such breach (to the extent not cured) would have a material and adverse effect on the operation of the Business, including the Acquired Assets, or would have a material and adverse effect on Seller's ability to perform its obligations hereunder;

- (d) By either Buyer or Seller, by written notice to the other, if there shall be in effect any Law or final, non-appealable Order restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting or making illegal the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;
 - (e) By Buyer in accordance with <u>Section 5.16</u> or <u>Section 5.17</u>;
 - (f) By Buyer pursuant to Section 2.6(a)(iii)(A)(2) or Section 5.15(b); or
 - (g) By mutual written agreement of Buyer and Seller.

Section 8.2 Effect of Termination; Termination Fee.

- (a) If this Agreement is validly terminated pursuant to <u>Section 8.1</u>, there will be no liability or obligation on the part of Seller or Buyer (or any of their respective Representatives or Affiliates), except as provided in this <u>Section 8.2</u>.
- (b) Regardless of the reason for termination, Section 5.4(d), Section 5.18, Section 5.19, Section 7.7, Section 8.2, Section 8.2(d), Section 8.3 and Article IX (and, in each case the applicable definitions and rules of interpretation set forth in Article I) will survive any termination of this Agreement.
- (c) Upon termination of this Agreement by either Party for any reason, each Party shall return or destroy, in accordance with the terms of the Confidentiality Agreements and Section 5.18, all documents and other materials provided by the other Party relating to the Acquired Assets, the Assumed Liabilities, the Facilities or to this Agreement, the Related Agreements or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, including any information relating to the Parties to this Agreement, whether obtained before or after the execution of this Agreement, and all information received by Buyer with respect to Seller, the Acquired Assets, the Assumed Liabilities, the Facilities, this Agreement, the Related Agreements or otherwise respecting the transactions contemplated hereby shall remain subject to the terms of the Confidentiality Agreements and Section 5.18.
- (d) If this Agreement is terminated by Buyer pursuant to Section 8.1(a) (arising out of a failure of Seller to comply in all material respects with its obligations under this Agreement) or Section 8.1(c), and such failure to comply is through no fault of Buyer, and provided that Buyer has complied in all material respects with its obligations under this Agreement, Buyer shall be entitled to recover from Seller all costs incurred by Buyer in connection with the preparation, negotiation and execution of this Agreement or recovery of damages from Seller, including attorneys' fees and expenses of financial and other advisors. In

Attachment 2 Page 89 of 159

addition to the foregoing damages (and not in lieu thereof), if such termination by Buyer occurs after January 1, 2018, Buyer is entitled to its loss of bargain, cost of funding or, at the election of Buyer but without duplication, loss or cost incurred as a result of its terminating, liquidating, obtaining or reestablishing any hedge or related trading position (or any gain resulting from any of them) of Buyer relating to any of the Facilities.

If this Agreement is terminated by Seller pursuant to Section 8.1(a) (arising out of a failure by Buyer to pay the Purchase Price and make its other Closing deliverables under this Agreement after all of Buyer's conditions precedents to proceed to Closing have been satisfied) or Section 8.1(b), and such failure to comply is through no fault of Seller, and provided that Seller has complied in all material respects with its obligations under this Agreement, then, and in lieu of any other rights or remedies Seller may have at law or in equity, (i) Buyer hereby agrees to immediately pay to Seller, as liquidated damages (and not a penalty), an amount equal to Twenty-Six Million Two Hundred Fifty Dollars (\$26,250,000) in immediately available funds and (ii) Seller shall have the right to immediately seek such relief from the guarantors under the Guaranty to satisfy such payment obligation. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the provisions for payment of liquidated damages in this Section 8.2(d) have been included because, in the event of termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.1(a) or Section 8.1(b), the actual damages to be incurred by Seller are reasonably expected to approximate the amount of liquidated damages set forth in this Section 8.2(d) and because the actual amount of such damages would be difficult if not impossible to measure and prove precisely. The Parties therefore expressly intend to liquidate damages in advance in accordance with this Section 8.2(d), and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, acknowledge and agree that the amount of liquidated damages set forth in this Section 8.2(d) is reasonable and is not greatly disproportionate to the presumable loss or injury of Seller in the event of termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.1(a) or Section 8.1(b). Buyer acknowledges that the agreements contained in this Section 8.2(d) are an integral part of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and that, without these agreements, Seller would not enter into this Agreement. The Parties acknowledge and agree that (A) Seller shall be entitled to pursue either payment of liquidated damages in accordance with this Section 8.2(d) or to pursue specific performance pursuant to Section 8.3 and (B) Seller may, in its sole discretion, elect to receive either an award of liquidated damages in accordance with this Section 8.2(d) or seek judgment awarding specific performance pursuant to Section 8.3; provided, that the Parties acknowledge and agree that under no circumstance shall Seller be entitled to receive both payment of liquidated damages in accordance with this Section 8.2(d) and specific performance pursuant to Section 8.3.

Section 8.3 Specific Performance and Other Remedies. Each Party hereby acknowledges and agrees that the rights of each Party to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby are special, unique and of extraordinary character, and that, if any of the provisions of this Agreement were not performed by a Party in accordance with their specific terms or were otherwise breached by a Party, the non-breaching Party would suffer irreparable damage and would be without an adequate remedy at law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if any Party violates or fails or refuses to perform any covenant or agreement made by such Party herein, without limiting or waiving in any respect any rights or remedies of a Party under this Agreement now or hereafter existing at law, in equity or by statute, the non-breaching Party shall, in addition to any other remedy to which a Party is entitled at law or in equity, be entitled

Attachment 2 Page 90 of 159

to specific performance of such covenant or agreement, injunctions to prevent or restrain breaches of this Agreement, and any other equitable relief, in each case without the proof of actual damages. Each Party agrees to waive any requirement for the security or posting of any bond in connection with any such equitable remedy, and agrees that it will not oppose the granting of an injunction, specific performance or other equitable relief on the basis that (a) the other Party has an adequate remedy at law, or (b) an award of specific performance is not an appropriate remedy for any reason at law or equity.

ARTICLE IX MISCELLANEOUS

Section 9.1 Expenses. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, including in Section 8.2, whether or not the Closing shall have occurred, each Party will pay its own costs and expenses (including, without limitation, fees and disbursements of counsel, financial advisors and accountants) incurred in anticipation of, relating to and in connection with the negotiation and execution of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (a) each Party will pay all filing fees for Consents of Governmental Authorities required in connection with this Agreement, the Related Agreements and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, including filing fees in connection with filings under the HSR Act or in connection with obtaining required Consents from FERC as set forth in this Agreement, (b) Buyer will pay all document recordation costs (including all New Hampshire County Registry of Deeds recording fees and New Hampshire Land and Community Heritage Investment Program surcharges for all deeds, mortgage indenture releases, easements, plans and other recorded documents), and (c) Seller will pay all fees, including filing and recording fees, related to the discharge and release of all Liens encumbering the Acquired Assets, excluding the Permitted Liens.

Section 9.2 Notices. All notices, requests, consents, waivers, demands, claims and other communications hereunder will be in writing and shall be deemed duly given (a) when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (b) when received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); (c) on the date sent by facsimile or email (in each case, with confirmation of delivery) if sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next Business Day if sent after normal business hours of the recipient; or (d) on the fifth day after the date mailed, by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications must be sent to the applicable Party at the address and/or other contact information for such Party set forth below (or at such other address and/or other contact information for a Party as shall be specified in a notice given in accordance with this Section 9.2):

If to Seller: Public Service Company of New Hampshire

c/o Eversource Energy 56 Prospect Street

Hartford, Connecticut 06103 Attention: General Counsel

with a copy to:

Attachment 2 Page 91 of 159

Public Service Company of New Hampshire

780 North Commercial Street

Manchester, New Hampshire 03101-1134

Attention: Law Department

If to Buyer: Granite Shore Power LLC

c/o Atlas Capital Resources II LP

100 Northfield Street

Greenwich, Connecticut 06830 Attention: General Counsel

and

Granite Shore Power LLC c/o Castleton Commodities International LLC 2200 Atlantic Street, Suite 800 Stamford, Connecticut 06902

Attn: General Counsel

Section 9.3 Entire Agreement. This Agreement (including the Exhibits and Schedules hereto), the Related Agreements and the Confidentiality Agreements constitute, as a complete and final integration thereof, the sole and entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersede all prior and contemporaneous agreements (other than the Confidentiality Agreements), understandings or representations, both written and oral, between the Parties with respect to such subject matter. Except as otherwise set forth herein, all conflicts or inconsistencies between the terms hereof and the terms of any of the Related Agreements, if any, shall be resolved in favor of this Agreement.

Section 9.4 Severability. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such manner as to be valid, binding and enforceable under applicable Law. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable under any present or future Law, and if the rights and obligations of any Party will not be materially and adversely affected thereby, (a) such provision will be fully severable, (b) this Agreement will be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision had never comprised a part hereof, (c) the remaining provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect and will not be affected by the illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision or by its severance herefrom and (d) in lieu of such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision, there will be added automatically as a part of this Agreement a legal, valid and enforceable provision as similar in terms of such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision as may be possible.

Section 9.5 Schedules and Exhibits. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, all Schedules and Exhibits referred to herein, as the same may be amended, modified or supplemented from time to time in accordance with this Agreement, are intended to be and hereby are made a part of this Agreement. Any matter set forth in any Schedule under this Agreement corresponding to or qualifying a specific numbered paragraph of this Agreement shall be deemed to correspond to and qualify any other numbered paragraph of this Agreement to which the relevance or applicability of such matter is reasonably apparent on its face, whether or

Attachment 2 Page 92 of 159

not there is an explicit cross-reference thereto. Certain information set forth in the Schedules is included solely for informational and other disclosure purposes, is not an admission of liability with respect to the matters covered by the information, and may not be required to be disclosed pursuant to this Agreement. The specification of any dollar amount in any provision of this Agreement or the inclusion of any specific item in the Schedules is not intended to imply, and shall not be deemed to be an acknowledgement or admission, that such amounts (or higher or lower amounts) or items are or are not material, and shall not otherwise be deemed to establish any standard of materiality or to define further or otherwise interpret the meaning of "material," "Material Adverse Effect," or any similar terms for purposes of the Agreement. In no event shall the inclusion of any matter in these Schedules be deemed or interpreted to broaden or otherwise amplify the representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in this Agreement. Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined in the Schedules shall have the meanings given to them in this Agreement.

Section 9.6 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties named herein and their respective successors and permitted assigns. No Party may assign either this Agreement or any of its rights, interests, or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other Party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, either Party may assign its rights under this Agreement without the consent of the other Party for purposes of providing collateral security in connection with any financing. No assignment shall relieve the assigning Party of any of its obligations hereunder or thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Buyer will have the right by written notice to Seller not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the Closing to direct the transfer of Acquired Assets (but without duplication) to one or more wholly-owned subsidiaries of Buyer (each, a "Buyer Subsidiary") and agrees that each Buyer Subsidiary will assume in writing (a copy of which shall be provided to Seller) any Assumed Liability related to such Acquired Assets assigned to it and be liable to Seller for Buyer's obligations under this Agreement related to such Assumed Liabilities and Acquired Assets, provided that Buyer will remain liable for all obligations related to such any Assumed Liability assumed by a Buyer Subsidiary.

Section 9.7 No Third Party Beneficiaries. The terms and provisions of this Agreement are intended solely for the benefit of the Parties hereto, their respective successors and permitted assigns, and any Person benefitting from the indemnities, releases or limitations of liability provided herein, and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon any other Person (including any employee, any beneficiary or dependents thereof, or any collective bargaining representative thereof) any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement.

Section 9.8 No Joint Venture or Agency. Nothing in this Agreement creates or is intended to create an association, trust, partnership, joint venture or other entity or similar legal relationship between the Parties, or impose a trust, partnership or fiduciary duty, obligation or liability on or with respect to either Party. Except as expressly provided herein, neither Party is or shall act as or be the agent or representative of the other Party.

Section 9.9 Amendments and Waivers. Except to the extent expressly set forth herein with respect to Schedule Updates during the Interim Period, this Agreement may not be amended, modified or supplemented except by an agreement in writing signed by each Party hereto. No

Attachment 2 Page 93 of 159

waiver by any Party of any of the provisions hereof shall be effective unless explicitly set forth in writing and signed by the Party so waiving. No waiver by any Party shall operate or be construed as a waiver in respect of any failure, breach or default not expressly identified by such written waiver, whether of a similar or different character, and whether occurring before or after such written waiver. No failure to exercise, or delay in exercising, any right, remedy, power or privilege arising from this Agreement shall operate or be construed as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy, power or privilege.

Section 9.10 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the state of New Hampshire without giving effect to any choice or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the state of New Hampshire or any other jurisdiction) that would cause the application of Laws of any jurisdiction other than those of the state of New Hampshire, except to the extent that certain matters are pre-empted by federal Law or are governed by the Law of the jurisdiction of organization of any Party or other Person referred to herein.

Section 9.11 Dispute Resolution. Prior to instituting any litigation or dispute resolution mechanism, each of the Parties will attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute or claim promptly by referring any such matter to their respective senior executives for resolution. Either Party may give the other Party written notice of any dispute or claim. Within ten (10) days after delivery of said notice, the executives will meet at a mutually acceptable time and place, and thereafter as often as they reasonably deem necessary to exchange information and to attempt to resolve the dispute or claim within thirty (30) days.

Section 9.12 Submission to Jurisdiction. ANY ACTION, SUIT OR PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT. THE RELATED AGREEMENTS OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY SHALL BE INSTITUTED IN THE FEDERAL OR STATE COURTS LOCATED IN THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION 9.12. EACH PARTY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY CONSENTS AND DOES HEREBY SUBMIT TO THE EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF THE BUSINESS AND COMMERCIAL DISPUTE DOCKET (BCDD) OF THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE PURSUANT TO N.H. SUPERIOR COURT CIVIL RULE 207 OR THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW HAMPSHIRE FOR ANY SUCH ACTION, SUIT OR PROCEEDING, AND HEREBY FURTHER IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES AND AGREES NOT TO PLEAD IN ANY SUCH COURT THAT ANY SUCH ACTION, SUIT, OR PROCEEDING BROUGHT IN ANY SUCH COURT HAS BEEN BROUGHT IN AN INCONVENIENT FORUM.

Section 9.13 Waiver of Jury Trial. EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT ANY CONTROVERSY WHICH MAY ARISE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR THE RELATED AGREEMENTS IS LIKELY TO INVOLVE COMPLICATED AND DIFFICULT ISSUES AND, THEREFORE, EACH SUCH PARTY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY LEGAL ACTION ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017

Attachment 2 Page 94 of 159

AGREEMENT, THE RELATED AGREEMENTS OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY.

Section 9.14 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same agreement. A signed copy of this Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail, PDF or other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement.

[Signature page follows.]

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 2 Page 95 of 159

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first written above.

| SELLER: | | |
|---|--|--|
| PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE | | |
| Name: Philip(J. Lembo Title: Executive Vice President and Chief | | |
| Financial Officer | | |
| BUYER: | | |
| GRANITE SHORE POWER LLC | | |
| | | |
| Name: | | |
| Title: | | |

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 2 Page 96 of 159

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first written above.

| SEL | LER: |
|-----|------|
|-----|------|

PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF **NEW HAMPSHIRE**

By: Name: Philip J. Lembo

Title: Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer

BUYER:

GRANITE SHORE POWER LLC

By: GRANITE SHORE POWER HOLDINGS LLC, its Managing Member

By: ATLAS CAPITAL RESOURCES II LP, a Member

By: ATLAS CAPITAL GP II LP, its General Partner

By: ATLAS CAPITAL RESOURCES GP II LLC, its General Partner

Name: Timothy Fazio

Title: Authorized Representative

By: CCI POWER ASSET HOLDINGS II LLC, a Member

Name: Bradley Romine

Title: Authorized Representative

[Purchase and Sale Agreement]

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 2 Page 97 of 159

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first written above.

SELLER:

PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

By:____

Name: Philip J. Lembo

Title: Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer

BUYER:

GRANITE SHORE POWER LLC

By: GRANITE SHORE POWER HOLDINGS LLC, its Managing Member

By: ATLAS CAPITAL RESOURCES II LP, a Member

By: ATLAS CAPITAL GP II LP, its General

Partner

By: ATLAS CAPITAL RESOURCES GP II LLC, its General Partner

By: Name: Timothy Fazio

Title: Authorized Representative

By: CCI POWER ASSET HOLDINGS II LLC, a Member

Name: Bradley Romine

Title: Authorized Representative

[Purchase and Sale Agreement]

Attachment 2 Page 98 of 159

SCHEDULES TO PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

These Schedules are attached to and a part of the Purchase and Sale Agreement (the "Agreement"), dated as of October 11, 2017, by and between Public Service Company of New Hampshire, a New Hampshire corporation ("Seller") and Granite Shore Power LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Buyer"). Unless the context otherwise requires, capitalized terms used but not defined in the Schedules have the meanings given to them in the Agreement.

The matters set forth in these Schedules relate to any and all of the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements made in the Agreement and to matters of disclosure generally. Any matter set forth in any Schedule corresponding to or qualifying a specific numbered paragraph of the Agreement shall be deemed to correspond to and qualify any other numbered paragraph of the Agreement to which the relevance or applicability of such matter is reasonably apparent on its face, whether or not there is an explicit cross-reference thereto. Any reference to a Contract, Permit, report or other document or item of any kind in these Schedules shall be deemed a full disclosure of all of the terms thereof (provided that a copy of which has been Made Available or provided by Buyer to Seller) and it shall not be necessary to identify or reference specific provisions or portions of such item in order to make a full disclosure for purposes of these Schedules.

Certain information set forth in the Schedules is included solely for informational and other disclosure purposes, is not an admission of liability with respect to the matters covered by the information, and may not be required to be disclosed pursuant to the Agreement. The specification of any dollar amount in any provision of the Agreement or the inclusion of any specific item in the Schedules is not intended to imply, and shall not be deemed to be an acknowledgement or admission, that such amounts (or higher or lower amounts) or items are or are not material, and shall not otherwise be deemed to establish any standard of materiality or to define further or otherwise interpret the meaning of "material," "Material Adverse Effect," or any similar terms for purposes of the Agreement. In no event shall the inclusion of any matter in these Schedules be deemed or interpreted to broaden or otherwise amplify the representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in the Agreement. No disclosure in the Schedules relating to any possible breach or violation of any Contract or Law shall be construed as an admission or indication to any Person that is not a Party to the Agreement that any such breach or violation exists or has actually occurred.

Solely for convenience of reference, certain Schedules are organized using a general heading, followed by headings corresponding to the names of specific Facilities. In any such Schedule, those items listed under the general heading are generally applicable with respect to all Facilities and Acquired Assets, and those items listed under a specific Facility heading are additional items relating to such specified Facility. For avoidance of doubt, any such headings, and any other headings contained in these Schedules, are for convenience of reference only and shall not be deemed to modify or influence the interpretation of the Agreement or the information contained in these Schedules.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017

Attachment 2 Page 99 of 159

The attachments to these Schedules form an integral part of these Schedules and are incorporated by reference for all purposes as if set forth fully herein. These Schedules may be amended, modified or supplemented from time to time in accordance with the Agreement.

Attachment 2 Page 100 of 159

SCHEDULE 1

Facilities

| | Station Name | Description ¹ |
|----|----------------------|---|
| 1. | Newington Station | 400 MW fuel oil- and natural gas-fired electric generation facility located in Newington, New Hampshire |
| 2. | Merrimack Station | 481 MW coal- and kerosene-fired electric generation facility located in Bow, New Hampshire |
| 3. | Schiller Station | 155 MW coal-, fuel oil-, kerosene-, natural gas- and biomass- fired electric generation facility located in Portsmouth, New Hampshire |
| 4. | Lost Nation Facility | 19 MW fuel oil-fired electric generation facility located in Northumberland, New Hampshire |
| 5. | White Lake Facility | 23 MW kerosene-fired electric generation facility located in Tamworth, New Hampshire |

¹ All megawatt (MW) references in this Schedule 1 refer to the applicable Facility's nominal or nameplate capacity.

Attachment 2 Page 101 of 159

SCHEDULE 1.1-K

Seller's Knowledge

- William H. Smagula 1.
- Elizabeth H. Tillotson 2.
- 3. Terrance J. Large
- 4. Shawn Southworth
- 5. Eric Chung

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124
EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2

Attachment 2 Page 102 of 159

SCHEDULE 1.1-PL

Permitted Liens

None.

XECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2
Page 103 of 159

SCHEDULE 2.1(a)

Real Property

[Real Property Details Not Included in Filing]

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124
EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2
Page 104 of 159

SCHEDULE 2.1(b)

Leased Real Property

None.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124
EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017

Attachment 2 Page 105 of 159

SCHEDULE 2.1(c)

Personal Property²³

[Personal Property Details Not Included in Filing]

² Seller has only listed items with a cost of over \$1,000,000 for fossil facilities as a proxy for materiality to avoid overly voluminous schedules.

³ Asterisks and similar punctuation used in this Schedule is not intended to have any specific meaning as it relates to the Agreement.

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2
Page 106 of 159

SCHEDULE 2.1(e)

Material Contracts

[Material Contracts Details Not Included in Filing]

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2
Page 107 of 159

SCHEDULE 2.1(g)

Assigned Intellectual Property

[Assigned Intellectual Property Details Not Included in Filing]

/

Attachment 2 Page 108 of 159

SCHEDULE 2.1(i)

Environmental Attributes

Generally

- 1. SO₂ allowances
- 2. NO_x allowances
- 3. RGGI allowances

Newington Station

1. None.

Merrimack Station

2. None.

Schiller Station

- 3. Renewable Energy Certificate Purchase Agreement, dated January 30, 2014, by and between The Connecticut Light and Power Company and Seller.
- 4. Renewable Energy Certificate Purchase Agreement, dated January 30, 2014, by and between The United Illuminating Company and Seller.

Lost Nation Facility

5. None.

White Lake Facility

6. None.

Attachment 2 Page 109 of 159

SCHEDULE 2.2(a)

T&D and Associated Telecommunications Assets

[T&D and Associated Telecommunications Assets Details Not Included in Filing]

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017 Attachment 2

Page 110 of 159

SCHEDULE 2.2(b)

Retained Real Property

[Retained Real Property Details Not Included in Filing]

Attachment 2 Page 111 of 159

SCHEDULE 2.2(j)

Assigned Intercompany Contracts

1. Renewable Energy Certificate Purchase Agreement, dated January 30, 2014, by and between The Connecticut Light and Power Company and Seller.

Attachment 2 Page 112 of 159

SCHEDULE 2.6(a)(i)

Working Capital Adjustment Calculation

The Working Capital Adjustment shall be calculated as \$136,094,648 (the "Target") minus the net working capital as of Closing calculated in the same manner as the Target in the example calculation below and in accordance with the notes below. If the Working Capital Adjustment is a positive number, it shall be deducted from Base Purchase Price and if the Working Capital Adjustment is a negative number, the absolute value of such number shall be added to Base Purchase Price.

- For all fuel oil and kerosene/jet fuel, Buyer and Seller shall engage a third-party (to be mutually agreed-upon prior to Closing) to conduct as of Closing, a measurement of the volume of each fuel, net of free water and bottom solids, measured according to the American Petroleum Institute Manual of Petroleum Measurement Standards.
- For coal held in storage, Buyer and Seller shall engage CDI L.R. Kimball to conduct as of Closing, an aerial inventory survey on the same basis as used in measuring the inventory as of June 12, 2017 in Data Site file 1.4.20.2.
- Materials and supplies Inventory as of Closing shall be deemed to equal \$26,935,000 unless the value of materials and supplies Inventory has increased or declined by more than 10%, in which case the value as of Closing shall be calculated in the same manner as was used in the financial information on Schedule 3.15.
- The following unit values shall be used to calculate the values of each of the categories of Inventory as of Closing, provided that if Seller purchases additional Inventory in consultation with Buyer in accordance with Section 5.5(b), such additional Inventory shall be valued at 100% of Seller's delivered cost.

| Inventory type | Unit of measure | \$ / unit |
|--|-----------------|-----------|
| Fuel oil #6 | barrel | 55.75 |
| Fuel oil #2 (Merrimack, Newington, Schiller) | gallon | 2.01 |
| Fuel oil #2 (Lost Nation, White Lake) | gallon | 2.10 |
| Coal (Merrimack) | ton | 100.00 |
| Coal (Schiller) | ton | 88.00 |
| Kerosene / jet fuel | gallon | 2.37 |
| Cocoa beans | ton | 25.06 |
| Wood | ton | 27.50 |
| NOx (ozone season) | ton | 400.00 |
| NOx (annual) | ton | 2.43 |
| SO2 | ton | 0.85 |
| CO2 (RGGI) | ton | 4.35 |
| Limestone | ton | 47.16 |

The following table sets forth the calculation of the Target which set the basis for how the net working capital as of Closing shall be calculated. The table also contains an example calculation which is intended to be illustrative only, and shows example assets and liabilities as of Closing

Attachment 2 Page 113 of 159

which would result in a \$5,030,636 Working Capital Adjustment as a reduction to Base Purchase Price.

| | | | | Tan | et | Closing (| example) | Working |
|--|-------------|---------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|
| | | Unit of | Price | | | | | Capital |
| Asset / liability type | Facility | measure | (\$ / unit) | Quantity | Value (\$) | Quantity | Value (\$) | Adjustment |
| Current assets | | | | | | | | |
| Fuel oil #8 | Newington | barrel | 55.75 | 284,277 | 14,733,443 | 260,000 | 14,495,000 | 238,443 |
| Fuel oil #2 | Newington | gallon | 2.01 | 57,478 | 115,531 | 55,000 | 110,550 | 4,981 |
| Coal | Merrimack | ton | 100.00 | 654,497 | 65,449,700 | 577,000 | 57,700,000 | 7,749,700 |
| Kerosene / jet fuel | Merrimack | gallon | 2.37 | 126,679 | 300,229 | 61,808 | 146,481 | 153,748 |
| Fuel oil #2 | Merrimack | gallon | 2.01 | 11,654 | 23,425 | 9,000 | 18,090 | 5,335 |
| Coal | Schiller | ton | 88.00 | 60,767 | 5,347,496 | 51,000 | 4,488,000 | 859,496 |
| Kerosene / jet fuel | Schiller | gallon | 2.37 | 35,570 | 84,301 | 17,355 | 41,130 | 43,171 |
| Fuel oil #8 | Schiller | barrel | 55.75 | 143 | 7,984 | 143 | 7,964 | - |
| Cocoa beans | Schiller | ton | 25.08 | 207 | 5,187 | 207 | 5,187 | - |
| Wood | Schiller | ton | 27.50 | 14,373 | 395,224 | 14,373 | 395,224 | - |
| Fuel oil #2 | Lost Nation | gallon | 2.10 | 83,999 | 176,398 | 83,999 | 176,398 | - |
| Kerosene / jet fuel | White Lake | gallon | 2.37 | 86,839 | 205,808 | 86,839 | 205,808 | |
| Total fuel inventory | | | | | 86,844,706 | | 77,789,833 | 9,054,873 |
| NOx (azone season) | | ton | 400.00 | | | | | |
| NOx (annual) | | ton | 2.43 | | | | | |
| SO2 | | ton | 0.85 | | | | | |
| CO2 (RGGI) | | ton | 4.35 | | | | | |
| Total allowances inventory | | | | | 19.489.000 | | 19,489,000 | |
| • | | | | | 00.005.000 | | | (4.005.000) |
| Materials and supplies Limestone | Mandanak | ton | 47.16 | 50.000 | 28,935,000 | 50.000 | 31,000,000 | (4,085,000) |
| Limestone | Merrimack | ton | 47.10 | 59,926 | 2,825,943 | 59,926 | 2,825,943 | |
| Total current assets | | | | | 138,094,648 | | 131,104,778 | 4,989,873 |
| Current liabilities | | | | | | | | |
| NOx (ozone season) | | ton | 400.00 | _ | _ | 100 | 40.000 | (40,000) |
| NOx (annual) | | ton | 2.43 | | | 100 | 243 | (243) |
| SO2 | | ton | 0.85 | | | 100 | 85 | (85) |
| CO2 (RGGI) | | ton | 4.35 | _ | _ | 100 | 435 | (435) |
| Total allowance liability | | | | - | - | | 40,763 | (40,783) |
| Total current liabilities | | | | - | - | | 40,763 | (40,763) |
| Net working capital (current assets minus current liabilities) | | | | 136,094,648 | | 131,064,013 | 5,030,636 | |

Attachment 2 Page 114 of 159

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017

SCHEDULE 2.6(a)(iv)

Delayed Closing Adjustment Calculation

The delayed closing adjustment to be subtracted from the Base Purchase Price shall be calculated as the sum of the Capacity Payment Adjustment and the Energy Margin Adjustment (each as calculated below).

Capacity Payment Adjustment:

For the purposes of this Schedule 2.6(a)(iv), the number of days elapsed between two dates shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year and include the ending date.

If the number of days elapsed between January 1, 2018 and the Closing Date (the "Closing Delay"), is less than or equal to 150 days, the Capacity Payment Adjustment shall be an amount equal to 1,059,000, multiplied by the Closing Delay, divided by 30, multiplied by the greater of (a) 7.025 minus the Rest-of-Pool Payment Rate for Existing Generators in Forward Capacity Auction #12 as defined in the ISO-NE Tariff (the "FCA12 Price") and (b) zero.

If the Closing Delay exceeds 150 days, the Capacity Payment Adjustment shall be an amount equal to the sum of:

- (x) 5,295,000, multiplied by the greater of (a) 7.025 minus the FCA12 Price and (b) zero, and
- (y) 1,059,000, multiplied by the number of days elapsed between June 1, 2018 and the Closing Date, divided by 30, multiplied by the greater of (a) 9.551 minus the FCA12 Price and (b) zero.

By way of example only, and not intending to be binding, the below table contains examples of Capacity Payment Adjustment calculations at various closing dates, illustrative of a \$7.000 / kw-mo FCA 12 clearing price.

| Clos ing date | Delay (days) | Delay days ≤ 150 | Delay days > 150 | Capacity (k W) | FCA8 / 9 (\$/k w-mo) | FCA 12 (\$/k w-mo) | Capacity payment adjustment (S's per month) | Total capacity payment adjustment (\$'s) |
|------------------|-----------------|---------------------|---------------------|-------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|---|--|
| 1/1/2018 | | | - | | | | | |
| 2/1/2018 | 30 | 30 | - | 1,059,000 | 7.025 | 7.000 | 26,475 | 26, 475 |
| 3/1/2018 | 60 | 60 | - | 1,059,000 | 7.025 | 7.000 | 26,475 | 52,950 |
| 4/1/2018 | 90 | 90 | - | 1,059,000 | 7.025 | 7.000 | 28,475 | 79, 425 |
| 5/1/2018 | 120 | 120 | - | 1,059,000 | 7.025 | 7.000 | 28,475 | 105,900 |
| 6/1/2018 | 150 | 150 | - | 1,059,000 | 7.025 | 7.000 | 28,475 | 132, 375 |
| 7/1/2018 | 180 | 150 | 30 | 1,059,000 | 9.551 | 7.000 | 2,701,509 | 2,833,884 |
| 8/1/2018 | 210 | 150 | 60 | 1,059,000 | 9.551 | 7.000 | 2,701,509 | 5,535,393 |
| 9/1/2018 | 240 | 150 | 90 | 1,059,000 | 9.551 | 7.000 | 2,701,509 | 8,236,902 |
| 10/1/2018 | 270 | 150 | 120 | 1,059,000 | 9.551 | 7.000 | 2,701,509 | 10,938,411 |
| 11/1/2018 | 300 | 150 | 150 | 1,059,000 | 9.551 | 7.000 | 2,701,509 | 13,639,920 |
| 12/1/2018 | 330 | 150 | 180 | 1,059,000 | 9.551 | 7.000 | 2,701,509 | 16,341,429 |

Energy Margin Adjustment:

For the period beginning on January 1, 2018 and ending on the Closing Date:

Attachment 2 Page 115 of 159

All revenues earned by the Business, including but not limited to energy, ancillary services, ISO-NE Forward Reserve Market and Real-Time Reserve revenues and Winter Reliability Program revenues, excluding revenues from sale of the ISO-NE Forward Capacity Market product (each as defined the ISO-NE Tariff) contemplated in the Capacity Payment Adjustment and any penalties imposed by ISO-NE, less variable operations and maintenance ("VOM") costs, Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative ("RGGI") costs, Fuel Costs, and Non Fuel Startup Costs associated with delivery of the products to the ISO-NE wholesale energy market.

VOM costs

VOM costs are to be calculated by unit per the table below as VOM costs per megawatt-hour, multiplied by megawatt-hours of electricity sold.

RGGI costs

For the period starting January 1, 2018 and ending on the date of RGGI CO₂ Allowance Auction 39 ("**RGGI Period 1**"), the RGGI costs shall be calculated as the RGGI CO₂ Allowance Auction 38 Clearing Price multiplied by the tons of CO₂ produced by the Facilities during RGGI Period 1.

For each successive period starting on the date of a RGGI CO₂ Allowance Auction and ending on the date of the following RGGI CO₂ Allowance Auction, the RGGI costs shall be calculated as the Clearing Price of the RGGI CO₂ Allowance Auction occurring on the first day of such period, multiplied by the tons of CO₂ produced by the Facilities during such period.

Fuel Costs

Fuel Costs are to be calculated as quantity of Fuel by type multiplied by such Fuel's Fuel Price detailed in Schedule 2.6(a)(i) Working Capital Adjustment Calculation.

Non Fuel Startup Costs

Non Fuel Startup Costs are to be calculated by unit per the table below as Non Fuel Startup Costs per start, multiplied by number of starts.

| Unit | VOM per MWh | Non Fuel Startup Costs per start |
|----------------|-------------|-------------------------------------|
| Newington CT | 0.51 | - |
| Merrimack 1 | 5.12 | \$3,000 |
| Merrimack 2 | 5.12 | \$3,000 |
| Merrimack CT 1 | - | - |
| Merrimack CT 2 | - | - |
| Schiller 4 | 3.05 | - |
| Schiller 5 | 0.71 | \$2,500 weekdays |
| | | \$6,000 weekends |
| Schiller 6 | 3.06 | - |
| Schiller CT | - | - |
| White Lake CT | - | - |
| Lost Nation CT | - | - |

Attachment 2 Page 116 of 159

SCHEDULE 2.8(b)

Total Purchase Price Allocation

| Facility | Amount | | |
|-------------|--------------|--|--|
| Newington | \$80,000,000 | | |
| Merrimack | \$75,000,000 | | |
| Schiller | \$10,000,000 | | |
| Lost Nation | \$5,000,000 | | |
| White Lake | \$5,000,000 | | |

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124
EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2

Attachment 2 Page 117 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.1

Jurisdictions

- 1. Maine
- 2. New Hampshire
- 3. Vermont

Attachment 2 Page 118 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.3

Seller Required Consents

General

- A. Consents of Governmental Authorities*
 - 1. FERC
 - 2. HSR Act
 - 3. NHPUC
 - 4. NHDES
 - 5. FCC
- B. Consents of Other Persons

[Consents of Other Persons Details Not Included in Filing]

Page 119 of 159

Attachment 2

SCHEDULE 3.4

Legal Proceedings

- 1. See Schedule 3.11(b) and Schedule 3.12(b).
- 2. Settlement Agreement and related dockets.
- 3. Seller v. Town of Bow, New Hampshire Supreme Court Docket 2016-0668.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124
EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2

Attachment 2 Page 120 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.5(a)

Compliance with Laws

None.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017

Attachment 2
Page 121 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.5(b)

Permits

[Permits Details Not Included in Filing]

Attachment 2 Page 122 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.6

Title Commitments

Newington Station

- 1. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company Commitment for Title Insurance Office File No. 15-0294KC-FN(NH) dated effective August 14, 2017 at 8:00 a.m.
- 2. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company Commitment for Title Insurance Office File No. 15-0299KC-FN(NH) dated effective August 14, 2017 at 8:00 a.m.

Merrimack Station

3. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company Commitment for Title Insurance Office File No. 15-0292KC-FN(NH) dated effective August 8, 2017 at 8:00 a.m.

Schiller Station

4. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company Commitment for Title Insurance Office File No. 15-0297KC-FN(NH) dated effective August 14, 2017 at 8:00 a.m.

Lost Nation Facility

5. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company Commitment for Title Insurance Office File No. 15-0291KC-FN(NH) dated effective July 17, 2017 at 8:00 a.m.

White Lake Facility

6. Fidelity National Title Insurance Company Commitment for Title Insurance Office File No. 15-0301KC-FN(NH) dated effective July 7, 2017 at 4:00 p.m.

Attachment 2 Page 123 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.7(a)

Certain Assets Used in Operations

- 1. See Schedule 2.2(b) for retained properties historically associated with the Facilities but which are not required for Buyer's operations.
- 2. The service agreement with Eversource Service.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124
EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017

Attachment 2 Page 124 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.7(b-1)

Other Matters Related to Certain Assets Used in Operations

[Other Matters Related To Certain Assets Used In Operations Details Not Included in Filing]

Attachment 2 Page 125 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.7(b-2)

Interconnection Matters

[Interconnection Matters Details Not Included in Filing]

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124
EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2

Attachment 2
Page 126 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.8(b)

Contracts Not Provided

None.

Attachment 2 Page 127 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.8(c)

Certain Matters Regarding Material Contracts

Various Contracts that apply to the entire generation portfolio or to multiple Facilities listed under the "Generally" headers may need to be amended to effect the transaction.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124
EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2

Attachment 2 Page 128 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.9

Insurance

[Insurance Details Not Included in Filing]

Attachment 2 Page 129 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.10

Tax Claims

1. Settlement Agreement, dated May 10, 2016, by and between Seller and the Town of Newington, New Hampshire.

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2
Page 130 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.11(a)

Environmental Permits

[Environmental Permits Details Not Included in Filing]

Attachment 2 Page 131 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.11(b)

Certain Environmental Matters

1. Merrimack Station NPDES Permit

Merrimack Station's current National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ("NPDES") Permit No. NH0001465 was issued by EPA on June 25, 1992. The permit was administratively continued in 1997 as a result of Seller's timely application for permit renewal. EPA issued a new draft of the permit on September 30, 2011, and a revised draft of a portion of the permit on April 18, 2014. The proposed draft discontinues the Station's Clean Water Act ("CWA") § 316(a) thermal variance, establishes more stringent thermal limits based on closed cycle cooling ("CCC") technology (i.e., cooling towers), and requires seasonal operation of CCC technology under § 316(b) to reduce impingement and entrainment of fish and aquatic species by the Station's cooling water intake structures ("CWISs"). The draft also includes a zero discharge limit for the Station's flue gas desulphurization ("FGD") waste water effluent, based on a determination that the Station's current treatment system is capable of meeting a zero liquid discharge.

Following issuance of the 2011 draft permit and 2014 revised draft permit, Seller submitted extensive comments, information, and data to EPA and, more recently, requested EPA to issue a new draft permit that addresses these comments and data, as well as legal developments since the 2011 and 2014 drafts, including, among other things, changes in the nationally applicable rules governing § 316(b) and FGD discharges. On March 23, 2016, Seller notified EPA of Seller's decision to opt into the Voluntary Incentives Program ("VIP") established under the Effluent Limitations Guidelines and Standards for the Steam Electric Power Generating Point Source Category ("ELGs") which provides that Seller may take until December 31, 2023, to achieve the evaporative based effluent limitations for the treatment of FGD waste water.

On July 26, 2017, EPA provided notice that, effective August 4, 2017, EPA is reopening the public comment period to allow additional comment to address certain data, information, and arguments that pertain to the 2011 draft permit and 2014 revised draft permit. The public comment period currently extends through December 4, 2017. Seller intends to submit additional comments, information, and data in response to the public notice.

Should EPA fail to modify its 2011 and 2014 draft permit determinations in its final permit, the final permit may be appealed to the Environmental Appeals Board and then to the United States Court of Appeals for the First Circuit, if necessary. Until a final permit is issued and all appeals are exhausted, the Station's existing permit remains in full force and effect.

The 2011 draft permit, 2014 revised draft permit, comments of stakeholders, submissions of Seller, and information concerning the reopening of the public comment period and how to submit comments are available at EPA Region 1's website dedicated to the Merrimack NPDES permit renewal proceeding, found at:

https://www3.epa.gov/region1/npdes/merrimackstation/

Attachment 2 Page 132 of 159

2. Schiller Station NPDES Permit

Schiller Station's current NPDES Permit No. NH0001473 was issued by EPA on September 11, 1990. The permit was administratively continued following Seller's timely application for renewal. EPA issued a new draft permit on September 30, 2015. The currently proposed draft continues Schiller Station's CWA § 316(a) thermal variance. The draft requires that fine-mesh cylindrical wedgewire ("CWW") screens be installed on the CWISs to comply with CWA § 316(b) and requires the Station to hold its annual outage during the month of June as opposed to April when the Station ordinarily has its outage. The permit also establishes new iron and copper limits for nonchemical metal cleaning wastes. Seller submitted extensive comments on the draft permit on January 27, 2016. Should EPA fail to modify its 2015 draft permit determinations in the final permit, the final permit may be appealed to the Environmental Appeals Board and then to the United States Court of Appeals for the First Circuit, if necessary. Until a final permit is issued and all appeals are exhausted, the Station's existing permit remains in full force and effect. The draft permit, comments of stakeholders, and submissions of Seller are available at EPA Region 1's website dedicated to the Schiller NPDES permit renewal proceeding, found at:

https://www3.epa.gov/region1/npdes/schillerstation/index.html

3. Schiller Station Title V Permit

The New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services ("NHDES") issued a final renewed Clean Air Act ("CAA") Title V Operating Permit to Schiller Station on June 6, 2014. On July 24, 2014, Sierra Club petitioned EPA to object to the permit. The petition was granted, in part, by EPA on July 28, 2015 with respect to Sierra Club's claim that the SO2 limits in the Permit are insufficient to prevent Schiller Station from interfering with maintenance of the 2010 1-hour sulfur dioxide (SO2) National Ambient Air Quality Standard ("NAAQS") in Maine. EPA ordered NHDES to provide additional explanation concerning the Permit's SO2 emission limitations and determine whether different limitations are necessary under New Hampshire's State Implementation Plan.

On November 9, 2016, in response to EPA's order, NHDES issued a revised draft Title V Permit for Schiller Station proposing, among other revisions, a new SO2 permit limit of 0.77 lb/MMBtu (boiler operating day average) (compared to the previous SO2 permit limit of 2.4 lb/MMBtu). Seller and Sierra Club submitted comments opposing the proposed Permit revisions. Seller argued for a higher emissions limit of 0.92 lb/MMBtu and Sierra Club requested a lower limit of 0.49 lb/MMBtu.

On February 28, 2017, NHDES issued an updated draft Permit that includes a revised SO2 emissions limit of 0.83 lb/MMBtu. Seller and Sierra Club submitted comments on the updated draft Permit.

On June 13, 2017, EPA wrote to NHDES advising EPA had completed its review of the proposed revised permit and did not object to its issuance.

On June 15, 2017, NHDES reissued the final, revised Title V permit for Schiller Station. The reissued Title V permit became effective upon issuance and expires on June 30, 2019.

Attachment 2 Page 133 of 159

Commenters in the Title V permit proceedings have until August 25, 2017, to petition EPA to object to the Title V permit.

4. CAA Section 126 Petition by Town of Eliot, Maine

On August 22, 2013, the Town of Eliot, Maine filed a petition to EPA under Section 126 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7426. The petition, which was drafted for the Town of Eliot by Sierra Club, requests EPA determine air emissions generated by Seller's Schiller Station are causing and significantly contributing to nonattainment of the 1-hour SO2 primary NAAQS in the Town of Eliot, as well as York County, Maine. The petition seeks an order from EPA directing Schiller Station to reduce SO2 emissions as expeditiously as practicable but no later than three years "such that the Plant is no longer causing or significantly contributing to nonattainment of the NAAQS in the town of Eliot, Maine."

On November 8, 2013, EPA extended its deadline for ruling on the petition to May 8, 2014. On February 4, 2014, Seller provided EPA with preliminary comments to the petition stating Seller's intent to vigorously contest any unfavorable EPA action on the petition on numerous grounds. Subsequently, EPA and NHDES, in partnership with the Town of Eliot and the Maine Department of Environmental Protection, conducted a two-year air quality monitoring study from 2014 to 2016. EPA Region 1 issued a study report in September 2016, finding no exceedances of the 1-hour SO2 NAAQS threshold of 75 ppb during the monitoring period.

To date, EPA has not ruled on the Section 126 petition; although, as discussed with respect to Seller's Title V Operating permit, NHDES has established a new, revised SO2 emissions limit of 0.83 lb/MMBtu in the final re-issued permit. Seller and other third-parties will have the opportunity to provide notice and comment concerning any ruling on the Section 126 petition. Seller may directly challenge any final rulemaking in the United States Court of Appeals for the First Circuit, if necessary.

Attachment 2 Page 134 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.11(e)

Removal Contract

On June 12, 2017, an employee of the Removal Contractor voiced concern regarding potential mercury exposure. The Removal Contractor stopped all cutting, burning and handling of steel to re-evaluate their safety and work procedures. On August 31, 2017, the Removal Contractor resumed work.

Additionally, in July 2017 Seller met with the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services ("NHDES") and NHPUC to discuss the project's air compliance plan. Although NHDES advised that air emissions during demolition are in compliance, they asked that Seller explore additional measures to reduce total project air emissions. Seller followed up on this request with proposed work process and pollution control equipment modifications that were supported by both NHDES and the NHPUC.

Seller is currently negotiating an amendment to the Removal Contract to revise the schedule for work due to the foregoing. These efforts will reduce overall air emissions and provide a safer work environment. Seller expects the work under the Removal Contract, as amended, will be completed in mid-2018.

SCHEDULE 3.12(a)

Scheduled Employees⁴

[Scheduled Employees Details Not Included in Filing]

⁴ Current as of the Effective Date.

Attachment 2 Page 136 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.12(b)

Certain Employment Matters

[Certain Employment Matters Details Not Included in Filing]

SCHEDULE 3.12(c)

Independent Contractor Information

[Independent Contractor Information Details Not Included in Filing]

| Independent Contractor Information

SCHEDULE 3.13

Employee Benefit Plans

| | | | Current Plan | |
|-----|--|--|-----------------------|---|
| | Plan | Vendor | Document ⁵ | Document Date |
| 1. | Medical Plan – choice between three (3) self-insured PPO Plans, PPO 100, PPO 90 or SAVER (a CDHP PLAN) | CIGNA | A | January 1, 2013 |
| 1. | Prescription Drugs | Express Scripts or CIGNA, if in SAVER plan | A | January 1, 2013 |
| 2. | Dental – Choice of two (2) plans | Delta Dental of MA | A | January 1, 2013 |
| 3. | Vision Plan | Vision Service Plan | A | January 1, 2013 |
| 4. | Group Term Life Insurance | Minnesota Life Insurance Company | C | January 1, 2013 |
| 5. | Optional Supplemental Life | Minnesota Life Insurance Company | C | January 1, 2013 |
| 6. | Optional Dependent Life | Minnesota Life Insurance Company | C | January 1, 2013 |
| 7. | Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) | Minnesota Life | D | January 1, 2013 |
| 8. | Basic Accidental Death (Union) | Insurance Company Minnesota Life | D | January 1, 2013 |
| 9. | Business Travel Accident | Insurance Company Minnesota Life Insurance Company | D | January 1, 2013 |
| 10. | Optional AD&D | Minnesota Life Insurance Company | D | January 1, 2013 |
| 11. | Optional Dependent AD&D | Minnesota Life Insurance Company | D | January 1, 2013 |
| 12. | Flex Spending Account – medical and dependent care | Discovery benefits | A | January 1, 2013 |
| 13. | Health Savings Account (linked to SAVER Plan) | CIGNA | A | January 1, 2013 |
| 14. | Short-term Disability | Liberty Mutual | G | January 1, 2014 |
| 15. | Long-term Disability | Liberty Mutual | G | January 1, 2014 |
| 16. | 401(K) Plan | Fidelity | E | January 1, 2014 |
| 17. | Pension Plan | Willis Towers Watson | В | January 1, 2015 |
| 18. | K-Vantage (enhance 401(K) for those not eligible for the Pension Plan) | Fidelity | Е | As described in Eversource Benefits Highlights (1/2017) |

⁵ See immediately following list of Current Plan Documents for reference.

Attachment 2 Page 139 of 159

| 19. | Plan Med-Vantage Account | Vendor Discovery Benefits | Current Plan Document⁵ F | Document Date As described in Eversource Benefits Highlights (1/2017) |
|-----|---|----------------------------|--------------------------------|--|
| 20. | Group Auto and Home | Met Life | Н | As described in Eversource Benefits Highlights (1/2017) |
| 21. | Group Legal | Met Life | Н | As described in Eversource Benefits Highlights (1/2017) |
| 22. | Employee Assistance Program | KGA, Inc | Н | As described in Eversource Benefits Highlights (1/2017) |
| 23. | Wellness Program | Premise Health | Н | As described in Eversource Benefits Highlights (1/2017) |
| 24. | Illness Plan (not on STD Plan) | Internally administered | G | |
| 25. | Tuition Reimbursement | Internally administered | Н | As described in Eversource Benefits Highlights (1/2017) |
| 26. | Adoption Assistance | Internally administered | Н | As described in Eversource Benefits Highlights (1/2017) |
| 27. | Vacation | Internally administered | I | As described in Eversource Benefits Highlights (1/2017) |
| 28. | Vacation Buy (phasing out) | Internally administered | I | As described in Eversource Benefits Highlights (1/2017) |
| 29. | Holidays | Internally administered | I | As described in Eversource Benefits Highlights (1/2017) |
| 30. | Employee Annual Incentive Program (all employees) | Internally administered | J | As described in 2017 Eversource Employee Annual Incentive Program |
| 31. | Long-Term Incentive Plan (entire document applies to Officers; only RSU portion applies to Directors) | Internally administered | K | |

Current Plan Documents:

A. Eversource Flexible Benefits Plan f/k/a Northeast Utilities Service Company Flexible Benefits Plan (Union and Non-Union) – January 1, 2013

Attachment 2 Page 140 of 159

- B. Eversource Pension Plan f/k/a Northeast Utilities Service Company Retirement January 1, 2015
- C. AD&D Insurance-Minnesota Life Insurance Company (contained in #3 Eversource Flexible Benefits Plan) January 1, 2013
- D. Group Term Life Insurance-Minnesota Life Insurance Company (contained in #3 Eversource Flexible Benefits Plan) January 1, 2013
- E. Eversource 401k Plan f/k/a Northeast Utilities Service Company 401k Plan January 1, 2014
- F. Eversource Med-Vantage Plan January 1, 2017
- G. PSNH Disability Plans January 1, 2014
- H. Eversource Benefits Highlights January 1, 2017
- I. Eversource Energy Vacation, Sick Time, and Holiday Schedule July 10, 2017
- J. 2017 Eversource Energy Employee Annual Incentive Program January 1, 2017
- K. 2017 2019 Long-Term Incentive Program January 1, 2017

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2
Page 141 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.15

Financial Information

[Financial Information Details Not Included in Filing]

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124
EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2

Attachment 2 Page 142 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.16

Changes

None.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017

Attachment 2 Page 143 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.17(e)

Real Property Agreements Non-Compliance

None.

Attachment 2 Page 144 of 159

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017

SCHEDULE 3.17(f)

Real Property Agreement Subleases, Etc.

See Schedule 2.1(e) and the matters set forth in the title commitments listed on Schedule 3.6.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2
Page 145 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.18

NERC Registration

Lost Nation and White Lake are not registered with NERC.

SCHEDULE 3.21(a)

ISO-Recognized Capacity

[ISO Recognized Capacity Details Not Included in Filing]

47

| ISO-Recognized Capacity

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124
EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2

Attachment 2 Page 147 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.21(b)

Pledged Capacity

None

Attachment 2 Page 148 of 159

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017

SCHEDULE 3.21(c)

Qualified Capacity Reductions

See the schedule provided on the ISO-NE website, updated on a monthly basis: https://www.iso-ne.com/isoexpress/web/reports/operations/-/tree/seasonal-claimed-capability

Attachment 2 Page 149 of 159

SCHEDULE 3.21(d)

Winter Reliability Program Obligations and Reduction Notices

Newington

Seller is obligated to abide by the rules of Appendix K referenced in Section 3.21(d) of the Agreement. Seller's request to participate will be officially submitted by October 1, 2017, with the expectation of being qualified at 165,911.341 bbl.

Anticipated revenues are \$10.33/bbl, multiplied by the number of bbl in inventory as described

| ın Appendix K. | | |
|--------------------|--|--|
| <u>Merrimack</u> | | |
| None. | | |
| <u>Schiller</u> | | |
| None. | | |
| | | |
| Lost Nation | | |
| Lost Nation None. | | |
| | | |
| None. | | |

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124
EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017
Attachment 2

Attachment 2
Page 150 of 159

SCHEDULE 4.3(c)

Buyer Required Consents

1. See Schedule 3.3.

Attachment 2 Page 151 of 159

SCHEDULE 5.5

Interim Period Operations

1. If the Closing has not occurred prior to January 1, 2018, Seller and Buyer will cooperate to bid the Facilities into the ISO-NE forward capacity market to the extent such cooperation is allowed by FERC and ISO-NE.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire
dba Eversource Energy
Docket DE 17-124
EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017

Attachment 2
Page 152 of 159

SCHEDULE 5.6(a)

Terminated Contracts

[Subject to finalization pursuant to Section 5.6(a) of the Agreement]

Attachment 2 Page 153 of 159

SCHEDULE 5.6(b)

Transition Services

Information Technology

- Seller agrees to support agreed upon infrastructure, software and applications on behalf of the buyer for up to 18 months. The Buyer may be required to have appropriate licenses in place in order for the Seller to provide transition services.
- Seller will provide:
 - The appropriate information, use or access to current software, infrastructure and data necessary to process and review daily activities utilized prior to the Closing Date:
 - Assistance to Buyer in setting up any required vendor application support from the applications, including software and database support;
 - Technical support for applicable generation applications including troubleshooting, configuration, tuning, user security, backup and recovery services;
 - Technical support for applicable and agreed upon corporate applications and services will be determined based on business transition services agreement;
 - Continued operation of applicable network infrastructures, data shares, and supporting services for the Assets; and
 - Extraction of Asset-related application data and transmittal of this data to the Buyer in accordance with agreed upon schedule.
- During the transition term, Seller will make, subject to regulatory considerations, certain information technology and software accessible to personnel and vendors working on behalf of Buyer, including those who reside in Buyer operated offices. Seller will make space available for Buyer personnel for the duration of the TSA.
- Seller to permit access to Buyer remote systems and/or VPN for personnel to perform necessary support functions from Seller facilities and/or utilizing Seller equipment.
- Provide timely access to EMA provider to any necessary data feeds from the plant required to perform its duties under the EMA to the extent this access and information is not managed by Scheduled Employees
- Buyer will need to receive, on a timely basis, the necessary plant information to reconcile with ISO and EMA manager to report plant level P&L to the extent this information is not managed by Scheduled Employees.
- Seller to provide buyer NERC / CIP information, if appropriate, but will not be responsible for NERC CIP compliance or for setting up any NERC / CIP program.
- Seller will not be responsible for any security-related program guidance or set up on behalf of the Buyer.
- Seller will follow Seller's security policies when operating systems on behalf of Buyer.

Financial Services

Until Buyer is able to migrate to its own ERP/accounting system, Seller will provide the following:

- General accounting, consolidation, reporting
 - o Monthly close, monthly reporting

Attachment 2 Page 154 of 159

- Asset accounting
 - Capex, retirements, disposals, asset sale transactions, asset valuations and depreciation schedules based on Buyer's valuations
- Journal entry preparation / posting
 - Inventory revaluation entries, allocations liquidations entries, miscellaneous inventory entries, approved post tax entries
- Miscellaneous sales / invoicing
- Miscellaneous inventory
- o Accounting transaction support (AR, AP, payroll, etc.)
- o Bank account management (accounting only)
- Consultative assistance with the following matters, if applicable:
 - o Financial planning and analysis
 - o Treasury
 - o Tax and audit matters

Human Resources

- Seller to assist Buyer with transition to new payroll system (but payroll services for Transferred Employees will not be provided)
- Seller to transfer to Buyer all applicable employee records

Fuel Procurement

• To the extent not provided by Scheduled Employees, Seller to provide Buyer with general knowledge and relationship transfer—may be able to be done pre-Closing

Energy Management

- Seller to assist Buyer with transition to a new energy manager
- Seller to continue bidding and dispatching in cooperation with Buyer until transition is complete
- Seller to maintain ISO-NE settlement process through transition period

Regulatory and Environmental Support

- To the extent not provided by Scheduled Employees:
 - Seller to provide Buyer with access to and instruction on the use of all EHS database and IT systems, and provide Buyer with cost-effective means to download usable historical databases on air, wastewater, water use, and other required (or corporate-required) EHS documentation.
 - Seller to provide Buyer electronic and paper copies of all reports, permit documentation, correspondence in accordance with local, state, and federal records retention requirements.
 - o Seller to provide Buyer with general knowledge and relationship transfer.
 - Seller to provide buyer assistance with compliance reporting as required for regulatory (including NERC), environmental, and safety regulations.

Asset and Interconnection Separation

• Seller to provide general cooperation and assistance with Buyer's acquisition of all necessary right of ways and assets needed to operate the business on a standalone basis

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124

EXECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017

Attachment 2 Page 155 of 159

- Seller to operate and support all interconnection-related assets
- Seller to remote dispatch and operate the White Lake and Lost Nation combustion turbines

XECUTION VERSION October 12, 2017 Attachment 2 Page 156 of 159

SCHEDULE 5.8(b)(i)

Represented Scheduled Employee Numbers by Job Classification and Facility

[Represented Scheduled Employee Numbers by Job Classification and Facility

Details Not Included in Filing]

Attachment 2 Page 157 of 159

SCHEDULE 5.8(e)(i)(F)

Pension Plan Modifications

- 1. Minnesota Life life insurance, beginning at separation, upon the same terms and conditions provided to Seller's retirees as of the Closing Date
- 2. Continuation of health benefits at COBRA rates until age 55, after which retiree health benefits and contributions apply
- 3. Option to begin pension payments before age 55. Total pension payments from Seller and Buyer would be as follows (prorated for partial years):

| Age When Benefits Begin | Percent of Accrued Age 65 Benefit |
|--------------------------------|-----------------------------------|
| 55 | 75% |
| 54 | 71% |
| 53 | 67% |
| 52 | 63% |
| 51 | 59% |
| 50 | 55% |

Attachment 2 Page 158 of 159

SCHEDULE 5.8(e)(ii)(B)

Contributory Retirement Plan

The following is an excerpt from the "Eversource 401k Plan – Summary Plan Description" document that describes the key components of the Seller's Contributory Retirement Plan. Please refer to the plan documents in the Data Site for additional details, including definitions of terms referenced in the description below.

Seller-Matching Contributions

Employees are always full vested in their contributions to the Plan and in Seller-matching contributions.

The Seller-matching contribution is equal to 100% up to the first three percent of Eligible Compensation the Employee contributes to his or her Pre-Tax and/or Roth-401(k) accounts for any Plan year.

K-Vantage

K-Vantage is an account within the Plan that was added when participation in the Eversource Pension Plan, a defined benefit pension plan, was discontinued for newly hired, non-represented Employees in 2006 and represented employees as subsequently negotiated. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2006 may not actively participate in K-Vantage and in the Eversource Pension Plan unless they "opted in" to K-Vantage through the former "CHOICE" program—in which case they will continue to have a frozen benefit in the Eversource Pension Plan. All non-represented employees hired after December 31, 2005, and represented Employees subsequently hired on dates as negotiated, are eligible to receive K-Vantage contributions from the Company—effective on their first date of employment. K-Vantage contributions are automatically provided regardless of whether or not a K-Vantage employee actively participates in the Plan. Non-represented employees hired before January 1, 2006 (and represented Employees hired before a negotiated date) may also participate in K-Vantage if they "opted in" to K-Vantage during specified enrollment periods.

Employee's account each pay period and are calculated based on the sum of the eligible Employee's years and months of age and K-Vantage Service, rounded down to a whole year as of January 1 of each Plan Year as follows:

| Age Plus K-Vantage Service | % of K-Vantage Pay |
|-----------------------------|--------------------|
| Less than 40 | 2.5 |
| 40 or more but less than 60 | 4.5 |
| 60 or more | 6.5 |

The applicable K-Vantage percentage is multiplied by the Employee's K-Vantage Pay to arrive at the K-Vantage contributions for the pay period.

Attachment 2 Page 159 of 159

SCHEDULE 5.8(g)

Severance Benefits

- 1. Outplacement assistance (such as the Lee Hecht Harrison workshop provided to Seller's employees in prior years).
- 2. Severance pay: Transferred Employees with between 1 and 26 years of service (collectively with Buyer and Seller) will receive 52 weeks of pay. Transferred Employees with between more than 26 years of service (collectively with Buyer and Seller) will receive an additional 1 week of pay for every additional 6 months of service (calculated to the nearest 6-month period).
- 3. Up to \$5,000 in tuition assistance for job/career related educational courses or training programs begun within 12 months from the date of termination and concluded within 36 months of that date.
- 4. Medical benefits at Buyer's expense (excluding the Transferred Employee's contributions) for a period based on number of weeks equal to severance pay with a maximum of 1 year.
- 5. Employee Assistance Program counseling for term of medical benefits.
- 6. In the event of a reduction in force, it will be administered within a classification:
 - a. Voluntary senior to junior
 - b. Involuntary junior to senior

Volunteers who are eligible for retirement at the time of the reduction in force will be permitted to take their severance and medical benefits in addition to, and unreduced by, their normal retirement benefit, to the full extent permitted by law.

ATTACHMENT 3

Testimony of Eric H. Chung

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE BEFORE THE NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

PREPARED TESTIMONY OF ERIC H. CHUNG

APPLICATION OF PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE d/b/a EVERSOURCE ENERGY FOR APPROVAL OF THE SALE OF ITS GENERATION ASSET OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

DOCKET NO. DE 17-124

OCTOBER 12, 2017

| 1 | Q. | Please state your name, title and business address. |
|----|----|---|
| 2 | A. | My name is Eric H. Chung. I am employed by Eversource Energy Service Company as |
| 3 | | Director, Revenue Requirements (NH) and Regulatory Projects. My business address is |
| 4 | | 247 Station Drive, Westwood, Massachusetts 02090. |
| 5 | Q. | Have you previously testified before the Commission? |
| 6 | A. | Yes, I have testified before the Commission in many proceedings, including, inter alia, |
| 7 | | Docket No. DE 11-250 (Investigation of Merrimack Station Scrubber Project and Cost |
| 8 | | Recovery); Docket No. DE 13-274 (2014 Stranded Cost Recovery Charge Rate Change); |
| 9 | | Docket No. DE 13-275 (2014 Default Energy Service Rate Change); Docket No. DE 13- |
| 10 | | 108 (Reconciliation of Energy Service and Stranded Costs for Calendar Year 2012); |
| 11 | | Docket No. DE 14-238 (2015 PSNH Restructuring and Rate Stabilization Agreement); |
| 12 | | Docket No. DE 15-464 (Lease Agreement Between PSNH and Northern Pass |
| 13 | | Transmission); Docket No. DE 16-693 (PSNH PPA with Hydro-Renewable Resources); |
| 14 | | and, Docket No. DE 17-105 (Sale of Wyman 4 Interest). |
| 15 | Q. | Please describe your educational background. |
| 16 | A. | I have a Bachelor of Arts in physics with honors from Harvard College, as well as a |
| 17 | | Master's of Business Administration in finance and economics from the University of |
| 18 | | Chicago Booth School of Business. |

Q. Please describe your professional experience.

1

2 A. I was appointed to my current position at Eversource Energy in February 2015. From 3 August 2013 to January 2015, I was Director of Revenue Requirements for Eversource's 4 operating companies in both Massachusetts and New Hampshire, including Public 5 Service Company of New Hampshire ("PSNH" or the "Company"). From 2011 to 2013, I was a Senior Manager in the Power Utilities Advisory practice at Ernst and Young LLP. 6 7 From 2009 to 2011, I worked for PacifiCorp, a vertically-integrated electric utility 8 serving approximately 1.7 million customers across six states in the Western United 9 States, where my primary role was Director of Environmental Policy and Strategy. I have also served as an Associate Partner in the Utilities practice at Oliver Wyman, a Senior 10 11 Engagement Manager in the Power practice at Strategic Decisions Group, and a Senior Programmer Analyst at Goldman Sachs. I have approximately twenty years of relevant 12 13 management consulting and industry experience, with most of my career dedicated to the 14 power and utilities sectors.

15 Q. What is the purpose of your testimony in this proceeding?

16 I am filing testimony on behalf of PSNH to request that the Commission approve the sale A. 17 of PSNH's generating assets pursuant to New Hampshire law and the "2015 Public Service Company of New Hampshire Restructuring and Rate Stabilization Agreement," 18 19 filed with the Commission on June 10, 2015, as amended and approved by the Commission in Order No. 25,920 dated July 1, 2016 (the "2015 Settlement Agreement"). 20 21 PSNH has entered into two Purchase and Sale Agreements ("PSA") that are included with PSNH's Application – one for the sale of the Company's Thermal generation units 22 23 (Merrimack, Newington, Schiller, Lost Nation and White Lake Stations) (the "Thermal 24 Assets") to Granite Shore Power LLC ("Granite Shore Power"), a 50-50 joint venture 25 between Atlas FRM LLC d/b/a Atlas Holdings LLC ("Atlas") and Castleton 26 Commodities International (CCI) and the second for the sale of the Company's Hydro 27 generating units (Smith, Gorham, Canaan, Ayers Island, Eastman, Hooksett, Garvins Falls, Amoskeag and Jackman Station as well as the Company's ownership shares in the 28 29 Androscoggin Reservoir Company) (the "Hydro Assets") to HSE Hydro NH AC, LLC

1 ("HSE Hydro"), a subsidiary of HSE Hydro NH Co-Invest Fund, LP and an affiliate of

2 Hull Street Energy, LLC.

In my testimony, I will describe PSNH's role in the various phases of the auction, plus highlights of the commercial terms of sale for the two transactions. I will also discuss the benefits customers will receive as a result of the sale of these generating assets, and describe how the sale is consistent with both New Hampshire law and with the 2015

7 Settlement Agreement.

8 Q. Please summarize the 2015 Settlement Agreement.

9 As described and approved in docket DE 14-238, the 2015 Settlement Agreement was A. 10 executed by a wide variety of parties including Senator Jeb Bradley, Senator Dan Feltes, 11 the Office of Energy and Planning, Designated Advocacy Staff of the NHPUC, the Office 12 of Consumer Advocate, the IBEW Local 1837 union, the Retail Energy Supply 13 Association, the New England Power Generators Association, the Conservation Law 14 Foundation, the New Hampshire Sustainable Energy Association, TransCanada Power 15 Marketing and TransCanada Hydro Inc. The Agreement requires the expeditious 16 divestiture of PSNH's generating assets. It provides for securitization of stranded costs, extends the Reliability Enhancement Program, and requires PSNH to forego recovery of 17 18 \$25 million related to the Merrimack scrubber project. The Agreement also requires that 19 any divestiture will ensure that the plants remain in service for at least18 months after the 20 sale; specifies specific employee protections; provides for certain tax stabilization 21 payments over a three-year period; establishes a stay-out period for PSNH distribution 22 rate cases; and, provides a \$5 million contribution by Eversource's shareholders to New 23 Hampshire's clean energy fund. The Agreement was approved on July 1, 2016.

Q. What is your role in PSNH's divestiture of its generating assets?

A. I am the overall Eversource lead for the divestiture. In this role, I have served as the primary business principal representing the Company for all aspects of the transaction.

1 Q. Please identify PSNH's Thermal and Hydro Assets. 2 A. The Thermal Assets include five generating facilities: Merrimack Station, Newington 3 Station, Schiller Station, the Lost Nation remote combustion turbine, and the White Lake 4 remote combustion turbine. The Hydro Assets include nine generating facilities: Smith 5 Station, Gorham Station, Canaan Station, Ayers Island Station, Eastman Falls Station, Amoskeag Station, Hooksett Station, Garvins Falls Station, and Jackman Station. 6 7 Additionally, PSNH's 12.5% share in the Androscoggin Reservoir Company ("ARCO") 8 is included with the Hydro Assets. Please refer to the testimony of Mr. Neil Davids of 9 J.P. Morgan ("JPM"), as he describes the assets in further detail in his pre-filed 10 testimony. 11 Q. Please describe PSNH's role in the auction process. 12 As required by the 2015 Settlement Agreement approved by this Commission, Α. Commission Staff was responsible for administration and oversight of the entire auction 13 14 process, with JPM acting as the Commission's auction advisor. PSNH worked 15 collaboratively with both JPM and Commission Staff to support the success of all phases 16 of the auction. 17 *Pre-auction preparation* 18 PSNH conducted significant work in preparation for the auction process prior to JPM's 19 retention by the Commission. In mid-2015, the Company engaged Concentric Energy 20 Associates, under the leadership of Mr. John Reed, pursuant to the 2015 Settlement 21 Agreement requirement that, "PSNH shall engage an expert consultant regarding typical 22 divestiture processes and submit testimony from that expert as part of the Commission's 23 proceeding to review this Agreement." Mr. Reed appeared in Docket No. DE 14-238 on 24 behalf of the Company, and his team collaborated with the Company across a series of 25 internal work streams to help ensure Eversource would be adequately prepared by the 26 time the auction commenced. 27 Early in the process, the Company engaged transaction legal counsel to assist with the 28 commercial aspects of the auction, as well as certain environmental and regulatory

matters. The Company conducted a competitive Request for Proposals process to determine which legal firm could provide the necessary assistance at the most costefficient price. As a result of that process, the law firm of Balch & Bingham ("Balch") from Birmingham, Alabama was engaged. Balch has provided the Company with generation environmental counsel for many years, and was awarded the divestiture contract with Eversource based on their ability to provide substantial expertise with generation sales at cost-effective billing rates. Moreover, Balch has a strong FERC practice, allowing them to assist with the development of interconnection agreements and the preparation of the application to FERC that would be necessary to transfer to the Company's FERC hydro licenses to the successful bidder. Our generation group employees were highly involved in many aspects of the pre-auction and auction stages of the divestiture, and deserve high praise for their efforts throughout. As part of the pre-auction preparation process, the Company's generation employees made efforts to ensure that each of the generating assets was visually ready to attract interested bidders. Aerial videos of each of our generating plants were obtained to provide visual overviews of the assets, and were leveraged to aid discussions during the auction's management presentations. The Company also sought external assistance to conduct a fast-paced and high-level review of its readiness for a post-divestiture transition. Such a planning exercise is typical and reasonable for complex transactions of this nature, and has been conducted for prior transactions in Eversource's history. After conducting a comprehensive Request for Proposals process, the Company engaged the Strategy&, a division of PwC, led by experienced management consultant Tom Flaherty, to conduct the review. The review concluded that, despite the complexity associated with the separation of the Generation business and expedited divestiture schedule, there were no substantial issues or gaps observed that were likely to impede the success of the transition. Finally, when JPM was retained by the Commission, Eversource was able to leverage its substantial pre-auction preparation efforts towards the completion of a final set of

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

comprehensive auction-related materials. Eversource and JPM conducted a significant joint work effort whose deliverables includes the following: a Confidential Information Memorandum ("CIM") that described the key aspects of the Generation business; a Management Presentation that would later be delivered to Round 2 bidders; an independent engineering report developed by Leidos Engineering; a market analysis conducted by PA Consulting; and the preparation of a comprehensive Virtual Data Room ("VDR") that, when fully populated, contained many thousands of documents describing the general portfolio and the assets individually. Auction rounds Round 1 and Round 2 of the auction are described in the testimony of Mr. Davids. In cooperation with JPM, the Company managed initial administrative processes for entities asking to participate in Round 1 of the process. Non-disclosure agreements were provided by Balch and negotiated and executed with a myriad of interested bidders. Following execution of those NDAs, Round 1 parties received copies of initial confidential auction materials from JPM. These materials included the CIM, independent engineering report, and market analysis study. PSNH cooperated with JPM and Commission Staff in the analysis of the Round 1 indicative bids to determine which bidders should be included in Round 2. After the conclusion of Round 1, the Company hosted individual management presentations for each Round 2 bidder. These presentations, which typically spanned an entire day, provided a comprehensive review of Eversource's generating portfolio and an opportunity for Round 2 bidders and their technical consultants to ask detailed questions about the assets. As part of its oversight responsibilities, Commission Staff attended each of the management presentations as an observer. Meanwhile, JPM was responsible for arranging each meeting, preparing meeting materials, ensuring the confidentiality of bidder identifications, and ensuring that the auction process moved expeditiously through the management presentation process, onsite visits, and detailed due diligence questions.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Furthermore, visits to each site were conducted for every Round 2 bidder. As with the management presentations, each of these site visits included representatives from JPM and Commission Staff. The visits were led by managers from the Company's generation business. These management guides had the knowledge necessary to respond to questions from the visiting bidder; their role as guide also allowed the Company to demonstrate the high-quality of our managing workforce and supporting staff. During the due diligence period, the Company responded to approximately 2,000 questions across all Round 2 bidders. Due diligence questions sought very detailed information regarding each generating asset. Topics of due diligence included operations, fuel use, fuel contracting, permits, environmental matters, real estate, labor issues, financials, taxes, ISO-NE matters, and interconnection agreements. As part of the due diligence process, the Company also participated in approximately 40 conference calls with Round 2 bidders on specific topics of interest, such as environmental, human resources, and information technology. I commend every discipline within Eversource that was engaged in the auction due diligence process for their timely, accurate, and complete participation. Unless and until the due diligence questions were answered, the auction process could not move forward to final bids. In concert with our lawyers from Balch, the Company developed the commercial terms and conditions contained in a draft PSA that were presented to bidders that would form the purchase and sales agreements for the transaction. The Company chose to use the PSA from the sale of Seabrook Station as the model for this document, as that PSA had been reviewed and approved by the Commission during the Seabrook divestiture process. Finally, upon receipt of final bids from the various bidders, the Company, its lawyers from Balch, and JPM reviewed each final bid to determine which bid or combination of bids maximized the Total Transaction Value ("TTV"). Components of TTV included not just the "headline" overall bid prices, but factors such as the following: an assessment of liabilities that each bidder was willing to accept; an assessment of what liabilities would

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

| 1 | | remain with the Company; price adjustments due to delays in closing the transaction; and |
|----|----|---|
| 2 | | the hiring expectations for PSNH's generation employees. |
| 3 | | After the submission of final bids, JPM engaged leading bidders in follow-on discussions |
| 4 | | regarding the maximization of the value of their bid. Ultimately, JPM recommended that |
| 5 | | the auction result that maximized the TTV was one with separate bidders for the |
| 6 | | Company's hydro assets and thermal assets. Following JPM's recommendation, final |
| 7 | | contract negotiations with the two selected bidders led to the two PSAs presented to the |
| 8 | | Commission for approval in this Application. |
| 9 | Q. | In your opinion, was the auction process fair and inclusive of the appropriate level |
| 10 | | of oversight? |
| 11 | A. | Yes, we thought the process was fair. JPM's Auction Report provides a detailed |
| 12 | | summary of the entire auction process. The auction process complied with the 2015 |
| 13 | | Settlement Agreement, and with the Commission's auction design set forth in Order No. |
| 14 | | 25,967. |
| 15 | Q. | Do you accept the recommendation of J.P. Morgan? |
| 16 | A. | Yes, we agree that the JPM recommended auction result supports the maximization of |
| 17 | | total transaction value. In addition, the Company has reviewed and accepts the |
| 18 | | commercial terms of sale as presented in the two PSAs. |
| 19 | Q. | Are the sales of PSNH's Thermal and Hydro assets consistent with New Hampshire |
| 20 | | law? |
| 21 | A. | Yes. In 2015, the Legislature enacted Chapter 221, "AN ACT relative to electric rate |
| 22 | | reduction financing." This legislation amended RSA Chapter 369-B, the law allowing |
| 23 | | securitized financings of certain costs of PSNH, as well as a portion of RSA Chapter 374- |
| 24 | | F, the restructuring law. |

RSA 369-B:3-a, as amended in 2015, states in relevant part:

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11 12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

I. The general court finds that divestiture of PSNH's generation plants and securitization of any resulting stranded costs pursuant to RSA 369-B:3, IV(c) is in the public interest....

II. As part of an expedited proceeding, the commission shall review the 2015 settlement proposal and determine whether its terms and conditions are in the public interest. Notwithstanding RSA 374-F:3, VI, the commission may incorporate rate designs that fairly allocate the costs of divestiture of PSNH's generation plants among customer classes. As part of its review of the 2015 settlement proposal, the commission shall take into account the impact on all PSNH customer classes, and shall consider the impacts on the economy in *PSNH's service territory, the ability to attract and retain employment across* industries, and whether the proposed rate design fairly allocates the costs of divestiture of PSNH's generation plants among customer classes. The commission may approve or reject the 2015 settlement proposal, or condition its approval on any modification of the terms and conditions that it determines to be necessary to meet the public interest standard, so long as any order to divest provides for recovery of stranded costs and such other costs of divestiture as may be approved by the commission. If the commission conditions its approval, the settling parties may amend or terminate the 2015 settlement proposal.

As noted previously, in Docket No. DE 14-238, the Commission reviewed and approved the 2015 Settlement Agreement, finding that it is in the public interest. As discussed further below, the 2015 Settlement Agreement calls for the divestiture of all of PSNH's generating assets.

In addition, 2014 N.H. Laws, Chapter 310, "An Act relative to the divestiture of PSNH assets and relative to the siting of wind turbines," at Section 310:1 provides:

The purpose of allowing the public utilities commission to determine if divestiture of Public Service Company of New Hampshire's (PSNH) remaining generation assets is in the economic interests of PSNH's retail customers should be to maximize economic value for PSNH's retail customers, minimize risk to PSNH's retail customers, reduce stranded costs for PSNH's retail customers, promote the settlement of outstanding issues involving stranded costs, and, if appropriate, provide for continued operation or possible repowering of PSNH's generation assets.

The proposed transaction fulfills all of the requirements of 310:1, as it maximizes the economic value of PSNH's generation assets to benefit retail customers; minimizes risk to PSNH's retail customers by resolving future liabilities; reduces stranded costs to customers by selling at the highest transaction value that the market produced; and will

result in the continued operation of the assets for at least eighteen months following the financial closings.

RSA 374:30 requires a public utility seeking to transfer any portion of its works or system to obtain a finding from the Commission that such transfer will be for the public good. In light of the 2015 amendments to RSA 369-B:3-a wherein the Legislature statutorily determined that divestiture of PSNH's generation assets is in the public interest, the requirements of RSA 374:30 are met since the process used to arrive at the PSAs is consistent with the 2015 Settlement Agreement and, per the accompanying testimony of JPM, the Commission's Auction Advisor, the overall sales price is reasonable and consistent with the goal of maximizing the Total Transaction Value from the divestiture of PSNH's generating assets.

Therefore, the proposed sales of PSNH's generation assets as set forth in the two PSAs is entirely consistent with state law.

14 Q. Do the PSAs conform to the provisions of the 2015 Settlement Agreement?

15 A. Yes.

3

4

5

6 7

8

9

10

11

12

13

16 Q. Please describe the key terms of the Hydro Asset Sale.

17 A. The key terms of sale for the Hydro Asset Sale are presented in the table below. Please 18 refer to the attached PSA (Attachment 1) for a more detailed description of all terms, 19 including those listed below.

| Key term of sale | Description |
|-----------------------------------|---|
| Final headline price, including | \$83.3mm |
| inventory and prior to closing | (\$83mm for assets; \$0.3mm for inventory) |
| adjustments | |
| Costs associated with liabilities | Seller assumes pre-closing liabilities for unknown issues |
| for unknown future issues, | subject to \$8.3mm cap and 5-year term; buyer assumes all |
| including environmental | remaining pre-closing liabilities and all post-closing |
| | liabilities |
| Employee considerations | Agrees to fulfill required employee protections; intends to |
| | hire all hydro unit employees plus interview management |
| | and designated EESCO staff for consideration |
| Transition services | Limited; to be agreed upon between signing and closing |
| | |

1 Q. Please describe the highlights of the Thermal Asset Sale.

- 2 A. The key terms of sale for the Thermal Asset Sale are presented in the table below. Please
- 3 refer to the attached PSA (Attachment 2) for a more detailed description of all terms,
- 4 including those listed below.

| Key term of sale | Description | | |
|---------------------------------------|--|--|--|
| Final headline price, including | \$175.0mm | | |
| inventory and prior to closing | (\$97mm for assets; \$78mm for inventory) | | |
| adjustments | | | |
| Costs associated with liabilities for | Seller assumes pre-closing liabilities for | | |
| unknown future issues, including | unknown issues subject to \$25mm cap and 7-year | | |
| environmental | term; buyer assumes all remaining pre-closing | | |
| | liabilities and all post-closing liabilities | | |
| Costs associated with unknown future | Liability included as part of \$25mm cap above, | | |
| issues related to removal of retired | but 7-year duration starts after completion of | | |
| Schiller Station mercury boilers | removal project | | |
| Employee considerations | Agrees to fulfill required employee protections; | | |
| | will hire no less than 80% of staff designated for | | |
| | fossil sale | | |
| Working capital treatment | Contract has a closing price adjustment to sale | | |
| | proceeds based on updates to fuel and non-fuel | | |
| | inventory as of closing | | |
| Additional closing date adjustments | Contract has a closing price adjustment to sale | | |
| | proceeds beyond 1/1/2018 based on energy and | | |
| | capacity markets | | |
| Transition services | Information technology, plus limited support with | | |
| | financial services, human resources, fuel | | |
| | procurement, ISO-NE bidding/scheduling, | | |
| | regulatory/environmental, and | | |
| | assets/interconnection separation | | |

6 Q. Do you think the commercial terms of sale described in the PSAs are reasonable?

- 7 A. Yes. Based on the advice of our legal counsel, Balch & Bingham, and of the
- 8 Commission's auction advisor, JPM, we understand the collective set of terms of the sale,
- and each term generally, to be consistent with the range of market standards for similar
- transactions.

11 Q. Does the 2015 Settlement Agreement require PSNH's divestiture of its generation

12 assets?

- 13 A. Yes, it does. One of the specified key components of the 2015 Settlement Agreement is
- 14 "Expeditious pursuit of the divestiture of PSNH's generating plants after a final decision

by the Commission approving the settlement set forth in this Agreement." Settlement at lines 33-34. In addition, the 2015 Settlement Agreement contains the following general language regarding divestiture of generation:

For the economic benefit of customers, the Commission and PSNH shall expeditiously pursue divestiture of PSNH's owned generation fleet.... This divestiture will take place through several processes including the sale of its existing power generation facilities at auction. The goals of the asset auctions are to maximize the net Total Transaction Value ("TTV"), which reflects all of the cash and non-cash elements of the transaction(s), realized from the sale(s) in order to minimize Stranded Costs, to provide a market-based determination of Stranded Costs, and to establish a competitive energy market, while at the same time providing certain employee and host community protections as set forth herein.

(Settlement, lines 432-438.)

Q. Do these two PSAs maximize the Total Transaction Value as required by the 2015 Settlement Agreement?

A. Yes, they do. The primary driver of Total Transaction Value is the total sale proceeds across the winning bids. As described in the testimony of Mr. Neil Davids of J.P. Morgan, the sum of the headline prices of the winning thermal bid and the winning hydro bid yields a total of \$258.3 million for the assets plus related inventory. This sum exceeds both that of any other combination of individual thermal and hydro bids, as well as any binding bid received for the full portfolio. Furthermore, the winning thermal bidder had the highest headline price across thermal bidders, and the winning hydro bidder had the highest headline price across hydro bidders. It appears from Mr. Davids's submission that no other potential drivers of transaction value had a meaningful impact on the auction outcome.

Q. Will the sale of PSNH's generation assets benefit customers?

A. Yes, it will. These sales are consistent with the overall Legislative determination that divestiture of PSNH's generating assets is in the public interest. The sale of these assets is a prelude to the securitized financing of remaining stranded costs. It is the combination of these sales and the issuance of Rate Reduction Bonds that produce benefits to customers.

Q. What are the financial aspects of the sale of PSNH's generation assets?

A. As shown in Exhibit EHC-1, we have estimated the financial aspects of the sale of PSNH's generation assets?

As shown in Exhibit EHC-1, we have estimated the financial aspects of the sale assuming a placeholder closing date of December 31, 2017. The estimated net book value of all assets, including the facilities and inventory, is \$746.4 million. We estimate that including various closing adjustments, the net sale proceeds as of December 31, 2017, will be approximately \$258.3 million. Given these estimates, there would be approximately \$488.1 million in stranded costs. With these stranded costs, plus the outstanding equity deferral, Schiller boiler removal costs, and other costs and expenses associated with divestiture and securitization, we expect to securitize approximately \$600 million.

These financials are within a reasonable range of the forecast figures contained in my testimony filed in Docket No. DE 14-238. The Company plans to provide descriptions and updated estimates of costs and expenses in a supplemental filing in Docket No. DE 17-096, the securitization financing docket, which the Company expects to file in early November 2017. However, final securitization and costs amounts will only be known with certainty after closing. One reason is that, per the PSAs, final prices at closing will be adjusted to reflect allocations of certain matters, the level of fuel inventories, taxes, and price adjustments due to delayed closing, if applicable. In addition, the extent of prudently-incurred divestiture-related costs can be quantified only after the closings have occurred.

- Q. How will the differences between the sales prices and the book value of the assets be dealt with?
- A. PSNH will request this amount, along with other expense items that occur due to the transaction, to be securitized using low-interest rate reduction bonds ("RRBs") as authorized by RSA Chapter 369-B. As described in the Company's filings in Docket No. DE 17-096, RRBs will be recovered across all customer classes using the allocation established in the 2015 Settlement Agreement and within a total term of approximately 15 years. The Company's supplementary testimony in Docket No. DE 17-096 described

2 results of the auction. 3 Q. Are there any ongoing benefits that customers will receive as a result of the sale? 4 Α. Yes, there are. Overall, the sale fulfills the New Hampshire public policy mandate as 5 described earlier in my testimony. Turning to the transaction itself, the sale will result in 6 real customer savings by recovering the maximum value of the assets from the sales 7 process and refinancing the remaining costs of the plant investment from PSNH's 9.81% 8 generation return on equity to a Triple A-rated bond interest rate, currently in the 3-4% 9 range. 10 Finally, the transaction structure results in limitations on customer exposure to potential 11 future costs. PSNH was able to negotiate with the buyers the sharing of liabilities related 12 to unknown issues. As I describe below, the assumption of liabilities greatly mitigates the 13 future financial risk borne by customers. 14 Thermal Assets 15 After extensive negotiations, the buyer of the Thermal Assets has agreed to assume all 16 costs related to post-closing liabilities, plus costs related to pre-closing liabilities as 17 follows: 18 For issues other than those related to the removal of the retired mercury boilers at 19 Schiller Station, the buyer will assume costs related to pre-closing liabilities in 20 excess of \$25 million for seven years beyond the closing of the sale. After the 21 end of the seven-year term, the buyer will assume all costs related to pre-closing 22 liabilities without a dollar limitation. 23 Any costs to treat unknown issues deemed related to the boiler removal are also 24 included within the \$25 million liability cap. However, the seven-year term of 25 that assumed liability commences with the completion of the removal project. 26 Hydro Assets 27 After extensive negotiations, the buyer of the Hydro Assets has agreed to assume costs

above will include an estimate of the bond issuance amount that reflects the expected

2 of \$8.3 million for five years beyond the closing of the sale. After the end of the five-3 year term, the buyer will assume all costs related to pre-closing liabilities without a dollar 4 limitation. 5 Q. Has PSNH taken any other actions to mitigate any future environmental liabilities? 6 A. Yes. PSNH will be obtaining environmental liability insurance to cover the amounts 7 above for terms that meet or nominally exceed the time periods in the thermal and hydro 8 contracts. We are requesting in this petition the recovery of prepayment of related 9 insurance premiums as prudent for inclusion in stranded costs. In addition, as described 10 in Order 25,956 ("Order Approving Removal of Mercury Boilers from Schiller 11 Generation Station") in Docket No. DE 16-817, PSNH was ordered to remove the retired 12 Schiller mercury boilers to maximize the amount of the auction's Total Transaction 13 Value. Under the circumstances, having PSNH manage the removal project directly 14 (versus a new owner) likely results in the best mitigation of future environmental 15 liabilities related to these boilers, as PSNH has the greatest knowledge of this station at 16 this point in time and can likely manage the project in a way that best minimizes overall 17 costs and risks. 18 Q. Both State Law and the 2015 Settlement Agreement require that the employees in 19 PSNH's generation segment receive certain employee protections. Are these sales 20 consistent with both that law and the 2015 Settlement Agreement? 21 Yes, they are. RSA 369-B:3-b, "Employee Protections" requires: A. 22 In the event of divestiture or retirement of any or all of PSNH's generation assets, 23 employee protections no less than those set forth in the then-current collective bargaining 24 agreement shall be provided to affected employees. 25 The 2015 Settlement Agreement sets forth its required Employee Protection requirements in Article VII. 26

related to all post-closing liabilities, plus costs related to pre-closing liabilities in excess

1 In both PSAs, the Buyers have agreed to assume and honor the Collective Bargaining 2 Agreement ("CBA") with IBEW Local 1837 that covers PSNH's generation operations. 3 The CBA includes both the "Memorandum of Agreement Extending Current CBA Upon 4 Divestiture by PSNH of any Generating Asset" and its referenced "Exhibit A" and 5 "Exhibit B" attached to the 2015 Settlement Agreement as Appendix B. 6 In addition, as noted in PSNH's Application, due to delays in the auction process, the 7 previous CBA expired on May 31, 2017, and was replaced by a new CBA. Certain 8 provisions in the employee protections agreed to between the Union and PSNH became 9 ambiguous and uncertain as a result of the requirement in RSA 369-B:3-b for the 10 provision of employee protections "no less than those set forth in the then-current collective bargaining agreement." A clarifying Memorandum of Understanding between 11 12 the Union and PSNH dated September 7, 2017 (the "2017 MOU") relating to these issues is included as Attachment 4 and is presented for the Commission's review and approval. 13 14 Q. The 2015 Settlement Agreement provided that the auction process would 15 accommodate the participation of municipalities that host generation assets and that 16 any buyer would fairly allocate among individual assets the sale price of any assets that are sold as a group. Did the auction process comply with these requirements? 17 18 A. Yes. The Commission set forth the procedure that would be used for the divestiture 19 taking into account the desires of municipalities that had expressed an interest in 20 potentially participating in the auction process. JPM, in its overall direction of the 21 auction process, complied with the Commission's decisions relating to such participation 22 by municipalities. In addition, the Buyers have set forth the allocation of their overall 23 purchases prices to individual units. What is PSNH requesting from the Commission? 24 Q. 25 A. PSNH requests that the Commission expeditiously find that the sale of its generation 26 assets under the terms and conditions contained in the PSAs meets the requirements of 27 New Hampshire law, that the Commission further find that the sales are in the public 28 good and consistent with RSA 374:30.

1 An expeditious decision is requested for a number of reasons. First and perhaps 2 foremost, the Legislature has declared that "time is of the essence" for matters relating to 3 this divestiture process (RSA369-B:1, XIV) and that the Commission should act in an 4 expedited manner (RSA 369-B:3-a, II). 5 Contractually, time is essential because the Thermal PSA includes a provision calling for 6 a decrease in the sale price if closings on the transactions do not occur expeditiously. 7 Please refer to Schedule 2.6(a)(iv), "Delayed Closing Adjustment Calculation" in the 8 Thermal PSA. 9 PSNH also requests that the Commission approve the 2017 MOU with the Union, as well 10 as the Company's plan to mitigate on-going environmental liabilities retained under the 11 PSAs via purchase of insurance to cover that risk. 12 Finally, PSNH respectfully requests that the Commission issue a separate order for each 13 PSA. This request is made to expedite closing on the transactions due to there being 14 separate buyers, with differing deal terms and conditions, relating to different generating assets. Should one buyer feel that a single final order is insufficient to move to closing 15 16 necessitating a request for rehearing, the closing on the other deal could also be delayed. 17 Thus, we request the Commission ultimately issue two orders, one approving the thermal 18 sale and one approving the hydro sale. 19 Q. Does this complete your testimony? 20 A. Yes, it does.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE D/B/A EVERSOURCE ENERGY PRELIMINARY ESTIMATE OF SECURITIZATION AMOUNT* (BALANCES ESTIMATED AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017)

| Line | Description of items to securitize (\$ millions) | | Amount | |
|------|---|----|---------|--|
| 1 | Net book value of generating Assets and inventory | \$ | 746.4 | |
| 2 | Sale proceeds | | (258.3) | |
| 3 | Plant-related stranded costs | \$ | 488.1 | |
| 4 | Scrubber deferral | | 102.4 | |
| 5 | Reduction for deferred equity return per settlement agreement | | (25.0) | |
| 6 | Net deferral | \$ | 77.4 | |
| 7 | Regulatory assets and liabilities | | 10.4 | |
| 8 | JPM auction advisor fee | | 4.0 | |
| 9 | Potential employee separation and severance cost | | 4.6 | |
| 10 | Environmental liability insurance premiums | | 0.9 | |
| 11 | Stranded administrative and general expenses | | 10.5 | |
| 12 | Schiller mercury boiler removal project | | 30.0 | |
| 13 | Other divestiture costs | | 6.0 | |
| 14 | Transaction-related costs | \$ | 66.4 | |
| 15 | Subtotal of estimated costs to be securitized | \$ | 631.8 | |
| 16 | Less: Net present value of tax benefits | | (48.7) | |
| 17 | Plus: Issuance costs | | 6.3 | |
| 18 | Net securitization amount estimated as of 12/31/2017 | \$ | 589.4 | |

^{*}Estimated as of October 10, 2017

ATTACHMENT 4

Memorandum of Agreement Clarifying Certain Employee Protections Following a Divestiture by PSNH of its Generating Assets

Memorandum of Agreement Clarifying Certain Employee Protections Following a Divestiture by PSNH of its Generating Assets

Public Service Company of New Hampshire d/b/a Eversource Energy (hereinafter referred to as "PSNH") and IBEW, Local 1837 (hereinafter collectively the "Parties") hereby enter into this Memorandum of Agreement ("Agreement") to clarify certain provisions, including specifically the pension provisions, under that certain Memorandum of Agreement Extending Current CBA Upon Divestiture by PSNH of any Generation Asset, executed on May 20, 2015 ("MOA"), which incorporates as Exhibit A that certain Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Employee Protection Provisions, executed on May 20, 2015 ("MOU"), and as Exhibit B that certain explanation of Enhanced Bidding Rights, and Amendment dated November 14, 2016.

WHEREAS, the Parties negotiated and executed a new Collective Bargaining Agreement ("Current CBA") effective on June 1, 2017 with an expiration date of May 31, 2020, which superseded and replaced the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Parties that expired by its terms on May 31, 2017 and is referenced in the MOA and MOU as the then-existing CBA ("Prior CBA"); and

WHEREAS, the New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission in its Docket No. DM 17-029, "Auction of Electric Generation Facilities," recognized that the divestiture process had been delayed from what had been anticipated; and

WHEREAS, when agreeing to the MOU and MOA, the Parties had anticipated that the closing (the "Closing") of the divestiture of the PSNH generating assets ("Acquired PSNH Generating Asset(s)") would occur prior to the expiration of the Prior CBA; and

WHEREAS, the Parties recognize the provisions of the MOA and MOU extending the Prior CBA for a period of two (2) years following the closing of the divestiture by PSNH of any generating facility currently owned by PSNH to another entity (the "Acquiring Entity") or upon the shut-down of any generating facility currently owned by PSNH are no longer applicable due to the term of the Current CBA; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the delay in the divestiture process the Parties wish to clarify the effect of the Current CBA on the MOA and MOU, including specifically with respect to the applicability and extension of the Prior CBA and the pension provisions contained in Section VI of the MOU.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

- I. MOA The following provisions relate to the interpretation and application of the MOA:
 - 1. The provision in the MOA providing that the Parties agree to extend "the existing collective-bargaining agreement (CBA) for a period of two (2) years following the divestiture by PSNH of any generating facility currently owned by PSNH to another entity or upon the shut-down of any generating facility currently owned by PSNH" is superseded by the Current CBA, which does not expire until May 31, 2020. In the event that such divestiture or closing occurs after May 31, 2018, the Current CBA will expire two (2) years after the actual Closing.

- 2. The provision in the MOA providing, "Any negotiated wage adjustments or benefit changes that are negotiated between PSNH and IBEW Local 1837 Utility Group CBA after June 1, 2017 will apply to the employees covered by this agreement until the expiration of this agreement (2 years from the transfer of ownership to a new entity)," is clarified to refer to the Current CBA, which does not expire until May 31, 2020, or for a period of two (2) years after the actual Closing, whichever is later.
- 3. All other terms of the MOA remain unchanged.
- II. MOU The following provisions relate to the interpretation and application of the MOU:
 - 4. All references and associated obligations in Section II of the MOU to the effect that PSNH will make as a condition of sale the extension of the Prior CBA for a period of two years following divestiture and the requirement that the Acquiring Entity be bound by the terms of the extended Prior CBA, shall instead be interpreted to simply require PSNH to make as a condition of sale that the Acquiring Entity will be bound by the terms of the Current CBA, which does not expire until May 31, 2020, or for a period of two (2) years after the actual Closing, whichever is later.
 - All references in the MOU to the term of the existing Collective Bargaining
 Agreement, shall be interpreted to mean the term of the Current CBA, which does not
 expire until May 31, 2020, or for a period of two (2) years after the actual Closing,
 whichever is later.
 - 6. The provision in Section VI of the MOU providing, "The Company will require as a condition of sale that when employees who are hired by the buyer retire, they will receive a pension benefit from the buyer (or subsequent buyers) which, in combination with their Eversource Energy pension benefit, will provide them with a total pension benefit equal to at least that of the plan they qualified for at the time of the transfer of assets," shall be interpreted to apply through no less than the term of the Current CBA, which does not expire until May 31, 2020, or for a period of two (2) years after the actual Closing, whichever is later.
 - 7. All other terms of the MOA remain unchanged.
- III. Rule of 85 Grow-in Benefit The following provisions relate to the Rule of 85 Grow-In Benefit negotiated by the Parties:
 - 8. Employees who participate in the Eversource defined benefit retirement plan who are offered, accept, and commence employment with an Acquiring Entity at an Acquired PSNH Generating Asset immediately following the Closing ("Transferred Employee"), who have not yet reached the Rule of 85, will be eligible to grow into a Rule of 85 retirement benefit ("Rule of 85 Grow-In Benefit") as follows:
 - a. The Transferred Employee must continue working for and must retire from

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 4 Page 3 of 6

the Acquiring Entity (or its successor(s)) at an Acquired PSNH Generating Asset through or after the period when the Transferred Employee's age when added to his/her credited employment service with Eversource at the time of the closing of the divestiture of the Acquired PSNH Generating Asset combined with the continuous employment service with the Acquiring Entity at the Acquired PSNH Generating Asset satisfies the age and service requirement for the Rule of 85.

4

b. For purposes of calculating the Rule of 85 Grow-In Benefit, a Transferred Employee's: i) highest 60 months of pensionable earnings will be based on his/her final average earnings with Eversource at the time of Closing with an imputed (for pension calculation purposes only) three percent (3%) annual prorated increase through his/her attainment of the Rule of 85 Grow-In Benefit while employed at the Acquiring Entity, or through the period of the Transferred Employee's layoff from the Acquiring Entity due to the permanent closure by the Acquiring Entity of the Acquired PSNH Generating Asset at which the Transferred Employee is employed per paragraph 8(e) below; ii) credited service will be his/her credited Eversource service at the time of Closing; and iii) age will be his/her age at the commencement of his/her Eversource retirement benefit.

Example for illustration purposes: Assumes closing is December 31, 2017.

Jim is 57 with 22 years of credited Eversource service on December 31, 2017 with final average annual earnings of \$80,000. He works an additional 3 years and retires from the Acquiring Entity at the Acquired PSNH Generating Asset on December 31, 2020. Jim has reached the Rule of 85 with the Grow-In Benefit as of December 31, 2020 (based on his age of 60 and imputed additional 3 years of credited service to his 22 years with Eversource, adding up to 85), and he may begin collecting his unreduced Eversource pension based on his age at commencement (60), years of Eversource credited service (22), and 3% annual prorated imputed increase to his final Eversource average earnings (~\$87,418).

c. There is no additional pension benefit available from Eversource for Transferred Employees who satisfied the age and service requirement and attained the Rule of 85 prior to the Closing. These employees may retire from Eversource and commence a pension benefit and continue employment with the Acquiring Entity, where they will receive a pension benefit which, in combination with their Eversource Energy pension benefit, will provide them with a total pension benefit equal to at least that of the Eversource plan they qualified for at the time of the Closing, through at least the term of the Current CBA or 2 years after the actual Closing, whichever is later.

Example for illustration purposes: Assumes closing is December 31, 2017.

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 4 Page 4 of 6

Jim has achieved his Rule of 85 on December 31, 2017. He retires from Eversource and begins collecting his Eversource Rule of 85 unreduced pension benefit on January 1, 2018 based on his highest 60 months of pensionable earnings with Eversource at the time of the Closing, his credited service with Eversource at the time of the Closing, and his age at the time of commencement of his unreduced Eversource pension benefit.

Jim works for the Acquiring Entity and then retires 2 years later on December 31, 2019. He is entitled to begin collecting a pension benefit from the Acquiring Entity on January 1, 2020 that is calculated as if Jim had worked and retired from Eversource with the additional 24 months of service and age, less the pension benefit he is already receiving from Eversource.

d. Transferred Employees who, for whatever reason, voluntarily or involuntarily, terminate from the Acquiring Entity at the Acquired PSNH Generating Asset without having reached the age and service requirement for the Rule of 85, as described in 8.a. above, are ineligible for the Rule of 85 Grow-In Benefit (with the exception of those who voluntarily retire from the acquiring entity), and their Eversource pension benefit will be calculated based on their credited service, final average earnings, early commencement factors eligibility (either vested term or early retirement) attained at Eversource at the time of the Closing, and their age when they begin collecting their pension. Such Transferred Employees who voluntarily retire from the Acquiring Entity will have their pension benefit calculated as described in this paragraph, except that such Transferred Employees' final average earnings from Eversource will be increased by 3% per year annually, prorated, through their retirement date.

Example for illustration purposes: Assumes closing is December 31, 2017.

Tom has 20 years with Eversource and is age 50 at the time of the Closing. He would be eligible for the Rule of 85 Grow-In benefit if he remained an employee of the Acquiring Entity at the Acquired PSNH Generating Asset until he achieved the age and service milestones. He is laid off as part of a reduction-in-force from the acquiring entity on May 31, 2020, at age 53. If Tom does not begin collecting his Eversource pension until age 55, then, pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 13 below, Tom's Eversource pension would be calculated based on his credited service (20 years), final average earnings, and the early commencement factors table contained in Article XVI, Section 3 of the Current CBA.

Tom would also be entitled to begin collecting a pension benefit from the Acquiring Entity on June 1, 2020 that is calculated as if Tom had worked and retired from Eversource with the additional 17 months of service and age, less the pension benefit he would receive from Eversource as

calculated at the time of the Closing.

e. Notwithstanding the foregoing disqualification in 8.d., if a Transferred Employee is laid off from the Acquiring Entity due to the permanent closure by the Acquiring Entity of the Acquired PSNH Generating Asset at which the Transferred Employee is employed before the Transferred Employee satisfies the age and service requirement for the Rule of 85, the Transferred Employee may continue to accrue imputed credit toward the age and service requirement for the Rule of 85 Grow-In Benefit provided that he/she does not begin his/her Eversource pension until the age and service requirement for the Rule of 85 is reached.

Example for illustration purposes: Assumes closing is December 31, 2017.

Mike is 44 on December 31, 2017 and has 20 years of credited service with Eversource. He remains employed with the Acquiring Entity at the Acquired PSNH Generating Asset through December 31, 2025, when the asset is permanently closed and Mike is laid off. On December 31, 2028 Mike begins collecting his Eversource pension benefit. Under the Rule of 85 Grow-In Benefit he is credited with an imputed 11 years of additional service, which in combination with his age 55 and his 20 years of credited service with Eversource, qualifies him for a Rule of 85 unreduced pension from Eversource. His benefit would be based on his final average earnings at Eversource at the time of closing, plus 3% per year annual prorated increase through his layoff on December 31, 2025, and 20 years of credited service with Eversource at the time of the Closing.

Mike is also eligible for retirement benefits from the acquiring entity for his covered service time with that entity through no less than the term of the Current CBA or for a period of two (2) years after the Closing, whichever is later.

- Employees who are not offered, do not accept, and/or do not commence employment
 with an Acquiring Entity at an Acquired PSNH Generating Asset immediately
 following the Closing are not eligible for the Rule of 85 Grow-In Benefit.
- The Rule of 85 Grow-In Benefit is available only in the event of a successful Closing of the PSNH generating assets.
- 11. The Rule of 85 Grow-In Benefit is expressly contingent upon the Company's receiving, to the Company's and Union's satisfaction, the approval by the New Hampshire PUC of the Rule of 85 Grow-In Benefit.
- 12. The Company has agreed to the Rule of 85 Grow-In Benefit solely for purposes of the divestiture of the PSNH Generating Assets to clarify the employee protection provisions previously negotiated that have become ambiguous due to delays in the

Public Service Company of New Hampshire dba Eversource Energy Docket DE 17-124 October 12, 2017 Attachment 4 Page 6 of 6

generation divestiture process, and this Agreement and Rule of 85 Grow-In Benefit is made without precedent and prejudice to the Company now or in the future.

13. It is understood that if a Transferred Employee is terminated involuntarily from the Acquiring Entity due to a reduction-in-force at the Acquired PSNH Generating Asset at which the Transferred Employee is employed, and has not at the time of termination satisfied the requirements for the Rule of 85, such Transferred Employee shall have his or her pension calculated using the early commencement factors table contained in Article XVI, Section 3 of the Current CBA, and not the vested term retirement reduction factors, provided that such Transferred Employee does not commence his or her pension until age 55.

It is understood that this Agreement shall become operative and in force and effect upon acceptance by the Union and satisfaction of the contingency set forth in Paragraph 11.

For PSNH

Christopher L. Hall

Vice President Employee & Labor Relations

Date:

For Local 1837 IBEW

Гhomas F. Ryan

Business Agent

Jenibu 7,2017